¥i¥ Shropshire

Council

Shropshire Council
Legal and Democratic Services
Shirehall
Abbey Foregate
Shrewsbury
SY2 6ND
Committee: Council Date: Wednesday, 13 March 2024

Date: Thursday, 21 March 2024
Time: 10.00 am
Venue: Council Chamber, Shirehall, Abbey Foregate, Shrewsbury, SY2 6ND

You are requested to attend the above meeting. The Agenda is attached

Members of the Council — a briefing note will be circulated by e-mail prior to the meeting with
important housekeeping details and arrangements for the meeting.

Members of the Public — If you wish to attend the meeting, please e-mail
democracy@shropshire.gov.uk to check whether a seat will be available for you.

Please click here to view the livestream of the meeting on the date and time stated on the agenda

The recording of the event will also be made available shortly after the meeting on the Shropshire
Council Youtube Channel Here

Tim Collard
Assistant Director - Legal and Governance

Vince Hunt (Chairman) Rachel Connolly Kirstie Hurst-Knight
Brian Williams (Vice Chairman) Gerald Dakin Mike Isherwood
Lezley Picton (Leader) Rosemary Dartnall Mark Jones

lan Nellins (Deputy Leader) Steve Davenport Simon Jones
Roy Aldcroft Mary Davies Duncan Kerr
Jeff Anderson Julian Dean Heather Kidd
Caroline Bagnall Geoff Elner Christian Lea
Nicholas Bardsley David Evans Hilary Luff

Joyce Barrow Julia Evans Nigel Lumby
Bernie Bentick Roger Evans Robert Macey
Thomas Biggins Paul Gill David Minnery
Ed Bird Rob Gittins Dan Morris
Andy Boddington Nat Green Pamela Moseley
Peter Broomhalll Kate Halliday Alan Mosley
Julia Buckley Simon Harris Cecilia Motley
Garry Burchett Nigel Hartin Peggy Mullock
Gwilym Butler Nick Hignett Kevin Pardy
Dean Carroll Ruth Houghton Vivienne Parry
Steve Charmley Richard Huffer Tony Parsons

Ted Clarke Tracey Huffer John Price

www.shropshire.gov.uk

General Enquiries: 0845 678 9000

Printed on recycled paper


https://www.youtube.com/user/ShropshireCouncil/featured
https://www.youtube.com/user/ShropshireCouncil/streams

Ed Potter Robert Tindall
Chris Schofield Edward Towers
Andrew Sherrington Kevin Turley
Colin Taylor David Vasmer
Dan Thomas Alex Wagner

Your Committee Officer is:

Tim Ward Committee Officer
Tel: 01743 257713
Email: tim.ward@shropshire.gov.uk

Claire Wild
Mark Williams
Rob Wilson
Paul Wynn



AGENDA

Apologies for Absence

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

Members are reminded that they must declare their disclosable pecuniary interests and
other registrable or non-registrable interests in any matter being considered at the
meeting as set out in Appendix B of the Members’ Code of Conduct and consider if they
should leave the room prior to the item being considered. Further advice can be sought
from the Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting.

Minutes (Pages 1 - 16)

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the previous meeting held on 29 February
2024

Announcements

To receive such communications as the Chairman, Leader and Head of Paid Service may
desire to lay before the Council.

Public Questions

To receive any questions from the public, notice of which has been given in accordance
with Procedure Rule 14. Deadline for notification is 5.00pm on Friday 15 March 2024

A petition, bearing over 1000 signatures has been received from Shrewsbury BID,
requesting a debate under the Council’s Petition Scheme. The petition requests that the
Council:

Halt damaging parking charge hikes.

The petitioner will be allowed 5 minutes to outline their case, after which there may a
debate of up to a maximum of 15 minutes

Establishment of the Children’s Improvement Board (Pages 17 - 22)
Report of the Executive Director of People attached

Contact Tanya Miles Tel: 01743 255811

Senior Officer Employment Procedure (Pages 23 - 34)

Report of the Assistant Director Workforce & Improvement is attached
Contact: Sam Williams. Tel. 01743 252817

Community Governance Reviews (Pages 35 - 92)

Report of the Assistant Director — Legal and Governance is attached

Contact Tim Collard Tel: 01743 252756



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

Adoption of Cleobury Mortimer Neighbourhood Development Plan (Pages 93 - 188)
Report of the Executive Director of Place is attached

Contact Mark Barrow Tel: 01743258919

Shrewsbury Town Centre Regeneration: Smithfield Riverside Phase One
Development Activities (Pages 189 - 240)

Report of the Executive Director of Place is attached

Contact Mark Barrow Tel: 01743258919

Post-16 Transport Task and Finish Group (Pages 241 - 244)

Report of the Assistant Director of Education and Achievement and the Passenger
Transport Group Manager is attached

Contact David Shaw Tel: 01743 256479/ James Willocks Tel: 01743 252474

Annual Report of the Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care and Public Health
(Pages 245 - 270)

Report of the Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care and Public Health is attached

Annual report — Heath & Adult Social Care Overview & Scrutiny Committee
(Including Joint HOSC) (Pages 271 - 278)

Report of the Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee is attached

Annual Report of the Portfolio Holder for Climate Change, Environment & Transport
(Pages 279 - 288)

Report of the Portfolio Holder for Climate Change, Environment & Transport is attached
Annual report — Place Overview Committee

Report of the Place Overview Committee is TO FOLLOW

Appointment to Committees

Northern Planning Committee

Councillor Colin Taylor to be appointed a substitute member of the Northern Planning
Committee



17

Motions

The following motions have been received in accordance with Procedure Rule 16:

Motion received from Councillor Kirstie Hurst-Knight and supported by Councillors
Duncan Kerr, Peggy Mullock and Tony Parsons

Motion for Shropshire Council to accept a proposal that individuals with care experience
are treated as if it were a Protected Characteristic

This Council notes:

To be ‘care experienced’ a young person or adult will have been looked after by the local
authority as a child. The Independent Review of Children’s Social Care headed by Josh
McCallister published in May 2022 a final report and recommendations that included:
“‘Government should make care experience a protected characteristic”

Many care experienced people face discrimination, stigma, and prejudice in their day to
day lives. Hearing testimony from care experienced people sharing the discrimination they
have experienced, even from a very young age, itis clear that such discrimination can be
similar in nature to other groups that have a legally protected characteristic under the
Equality Act (2010). Despite the resilience of many care-experienced people, society too
often does not take their needs into account. Care experienced people often face
discrimination and stigma across housing, health, education, relationships, employment
and in the criminal justice system.

This Council understands:

Every elected member and employee of this Council - along with our partner agencies - is
a corporate parent to the children in our care.

Introducing a protected characteristic for care experience will mean that some of our most
vulnerable residents within the borough will be happier, healthier and safer and have the
confidence and opportunities to be ambitious and strive to achieve their goals.

All corporate parents should be champions of the children in our care and challenge the
negative attitudes and prejudice that exists in all aspects of society. The Public Sector
Equality Duty requires public bodies, such as councils, to eliminate unlawful
discrimination.

This Council therefore resolves:

e That it recognises that care experienced people are a group who are likely to
face discrimination.

e That it recognises that Councils have a duty to put the needs of disadvantaged
people atthe heart of decision-making through co-production and collaboration.

e That future decision, services and policies made and adopted by the Council
should be assessed through Equality Impact Assessments to determine the
impact of changes on people with care experience, alongside those who formally
share a protected characteristic.

e That in the delivery of the Public Sector Equality Duty the Council includes care
experience in the publication and review of Equality Objectives and the annual
publication of information relating to people who share a protected characteristic
in services and employment.



18

e That this Council will treat care experience as if it were a Protected
Characteristic.

e To formally call upon all other bodiesto treat care experience as a protected
characteristic until such time as it may be introduced by legislation.

e Forthe council to continue proactively seeking out and listening to the voices of
care experienced people when developing new policies based on their views.

Motion received from Councillor Rachel Connolly and supported by the Labour
Group
Digital Switchover

This Council notes:

Looming over the horizon is a significant change to how telecommunications in Britain
operate as the UK’s landline telephone network is being decommissioned, with an
upgrade to digital telephone lines by the end of 2025.

For most residents, the upgrade will be as simple as connecting their home phone
handset to a router rather than the phone socket on the wall. However, there could be
significant implications for many residents in Shropshire as there will be changes to how
telephones, emergency alarms and other telecommunication devices are used. For the
many elderly residents without broadband or a computer this change will be particularly
difficult.

It is likely that many people will be surprised and inconvenienced by these changes with
the possibility of many unforeseen circumstances if people are not fully prepared.

This Council Believes:

That telephone providers should be contacting all their customers to make them aware of
the changes and have moved their customers onto the new digital services by November
2025.

There is a webpage on the Council’'s website with some information and messaging about
the digital switchover is planned for the Council Tax leaflet due to be sent out in March.

This Council commits:

That Shropshire Council act to mitigate the potential problems of this move to a fully
digital telecommunications system across the county.

That Shropshire Council create a support network to advise and guide residents,
especially senior citizens and the most vulnerable, through this change.

That Shropshire Council works with local and wider business partners such as our local
libraries to communicate, regularly and repeatedly, via social media, news stories, written
leaflets and other forms of media such as websites to mitigate against potential issues for
the residents of Shropshire.

Questions from Members (Pages 289 - 294)

To receive any questions from Members, notice of which has been given in accordance
with Procedure Rule 15.2.



19 Report of the Shropshire and Wrekin Fire and Rescue Authority (Pages 295 - 298)

To receive the report of the Shropshire and Wrekin Fire and Rescue Authority arising
from its meeting held on 21 February 2024



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 3

Committee and Date

¥ Shropshire

) Council
= Council

21 March 2024

COUNCIL

Minutes of the meeting held on 29 February 2024
In the Council Chamber, Shirehall, Abbey Foregate, Shrewsbury, SY2 6ND
10.00 am - 3.00 pm

Responsible Officer: Tim Ward
Email: tim.ward@shropshire.gov.uk Tel: 01743 257713

Present

Councillors Vince Hunt (Chairman), Lezley Picton (Leader), Brian Williams (Vice
Chairman), lan Nellins (Deputy Leader), Roy Aldcroft, Jeff Anderson, Caroline Bagnall,
Nicholas Bardsley, Joyce Barrow, Bernie Bentick, Thomas Biggins, Ed Bird,

Andy Boddington, Julia Buckley, Garry Burchett, Gwilym Butler, Dean Carroll,

Steve Charmley, Ted Clarke, Rachel Connolly, Gerald Dakin, Rosemary Dartnall,

Steve Davenport, Mary Davies, Julian Dean, Geoff Elner, David Evans, Julia Evans,
Roger Evans, Paul Gill, Rob Gittins, Nat Green, Kate Halliday, Simon Harris, Nigel Hartin,
Nick Hignett, Ruth Houghton, Richard Huffer, Kirstie Hurst-Knight, Mark Jones,

Simon Jones, Duncan Kerr, Heather Kidd, Christian Lea, Hilary Luff, Nigel Lumby,

Robert Macey, David Minnery, Dan Morris, Pamela Moseley, Alan Mosley, Cecilia Motley,
Peggy Mullock, Kevin Pardy, Vivienne Parry, Tony Parsons, John Price, Ed Potter,

Chris Schofield, Andrew Sherrington, Colin Taylor, Dan Thomas, Robert Tindall,

Edward Towers, David Vasmer, Alex Wagner, Claire Wild, Mark Williams and Rob Wilson

79 Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Peter Broomhall, Tracey
Huffer, Mike Isherwood, Kevin Turley and Paul Wynn.

80 Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

Members were reminded that they must not participate in the discussion or voting on
any matter in which they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest and should leave the
room prior to the commencement of the debate.

Councillor Jeff Anderson declared an interest in agenda item 11(b) — Motion on
Consultation on car parking increases as he owned a business in the town centre.
He left the room for the duration of this item

Councillor Ruth Houghton declared an interest in agenda item 11(a) Motion on Social
Care Costs as she was a trustee of a charity that provided care and had a contract
with Shropshire Council. She left the room for the duration of this item.

81 Minutes

Page 1



[ Minutes of the Council held on 29 February 2024

82

83

84

RESOLVED: That the Minutes of the meeting held on 14 December 2023, as
circulated with the agenda papers, be approved and signed as a correct record.

Announcements

Chairman’s Engagements

The Chairman referred Members to the list of official engagements carried out by
himself and the Vice Chairman since the last meeting of the Council on 15 December
2023, which had been emailed prior to the meeting.

Public Questions

The Chairman advised that public questions had been received from Timothy
Ashton, Mike Streetly, Jamie Russell, Emma Bullard, Paul Cawthorne and Karen
Pearce. A copy of the questions and the responses provided are attached to the
signed minutes and available from the web page for the meeting.

Agenda for Council on Thursday, 29th February, 2024, 10.00 am — Shropshire
Council

Financial Strategy 2024/25 - 2028/29 - Final (including Capital Strategy and
Council Tax Resolution)

It was proposed by Councillor Lezley Picton, Leader and Portfolio Holder for Policy
and Strategy, Improvement and Communications, and seconded by Councillor
Gwilym Butler, Portfolio Holder for Finance, Corporate Resources and Communities
that the report of the Executive Director of Resources, a copy of which is attached to
the signed minutes and the recommendations contained therein, be received and
agreed.

In response to a request from Councillor Roger Evans, the Chairman confirmed that
he would split the recommendations in two for the purposes of voting, taking
recommendations i to iv (council tax resolution) first and the remaining
recommendations second.

By way of amendment Councillor Julia Buckley made the following proposal

“That in lieu of the proposed redundancies, Council enter into consultations with the
trade unions and employees, to introduce 12 days unpaid leave for all staff. This
would amount to an additional day’'s holiday per month, and a saving of 4.6% on
salaries, totalling £10.6m based on the most recent annual pay bill.

Based on the median salary, this would protect 292.68 Full Time Equivalent jobs
(including on costs at an average of 27%)

All those staff below scp 39 (band 13) would still receive a net increase on their
salary following a pay rise of £1800 which has been budgeted for by the Council.”

Contact: Tim Ward on 01743 257713



https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/committee-services/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=125&MId=4845&Ver=4
https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/committee-services/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=125&MId=4845&Ver=4

[ Minutes of the Council held on 29 February 2024

This was seconded by Councillor Alan Mosley

The Portfolio Holder for Finance, Corporate Resources and Communities stated that
whilst he could not currently commit to this proposal, he would investigate the matter
further.

On being put to a recorded vote with 29 Members voting for, 38 against and 2
abstentions as follows:

FOR:

Councillors Bagnall, Bentick, Boddington, Buckley, Clarke, Connolly, Dartnall,
Davies, Dean, J Evans, R Evans, Green, Halliday, Hartin, Houghton, R Huffer, Kerr,
Kidd, Moseley, Mosley, Pardy, Parry, Parsons, Sherrington, Taylor, Vasmer,
Wagner, M Williams and Wilson

AGAINST:

Councillors Aldcroft, Anderson, Bardsley, Barrow, Biggins, Bird, Burchett, Butler,
Carroll, Charmley, Dakin, Davenport, Elner, D Evans, Gill, Gittins, Harris, Hignett,
Hunt, Hurst- Knight, M Jones, S Jones, Lea Luff, Lumby, Macey, Morris, Motley,
Mullock, Nellins, Picton, Potter, Price, Schofield, Thomas, Tindall, Wild and B
Williams

ABSTAIN:

Councillors Minnery and Towers

The amendment proposed by Councillor Buckley fell.

By way of amendment Councillor Julian Dean proposed the following
“‘Delete all from

‘In respect of the revenue budget’ to ‘xv agree the Capital Programme as set out in
Appendix 2 section 6 and Annex B to capital Strategy’.

Delete all from and including ‘In relation to the delivery partner’

Insert at the end:

1. Require the cabinet to return to full council in time to set a balanced budget with
new proposals which rebalance the Capital Strategy specifically to support more
investment in infrastructure that will support care for adults and children which
mitigate the need for residential care.

la. Specifically the £2m identified in savings from children services to be retained by
the dept and used to fund the repayments on a revised capital programme
designed to enable the development of in-house residential alternatives to
expensive privately operated care homes.

Contact: Tim Ward on 01743257713 3 |
rFage s




[ Minutes of the Council held on 29 February 2024

2. To require the cabinet to bring forward an asset disposal strategy that requires
the council to approach parish and town councils and community groups for
assets earmarked for disposal, with a view to making arrangements for such
assets to stay in public or community hands, whether for management or
ownership.

3. To require the cabinet to set up cross party working groups to consider the
implications and enactment of agreed budget measures within each portfolio
area, with terms of reference that allow them to bring forward alternatives
throughout the year.

4. To require the cabinet to produce portfolio specific equalities and community
impact assessments to be considered by the working parties as part of the
process at 3.”

The amendment was seconded by Councillor Duncan Kerr

The Leader stated that she would be happy to consider cross party working as
suggested but could not accept the specifics of the amendment proposed.

Following a vote with 28 votes for, 39 votes against and 1 abstention Councillor
Dean’s amendment fell.

Following further discussion the Chairman reminded the Members that he would take
recommendations ito iv first and on being put to a recorded vote with 69 Members
voting for, none against and no abstentions as follows:

FOR:

Councillors Aldcroft, Anderson, Bagnall, Bardsley, Barrow, Bentick, Biggins, Bird,
Boddington, Buckley, Burchett, Butler, Carroll, Charmley, Clarke, Connolly, Dakin,
Dartnall, Davenport, Davies, Dean, Elner, D Evans, J Evans, R Evans, Gill, Gittins,
Green, Halliday, Harris, Hartin, Hignett, Houghton, R Huffer, Hunt, Hurst-Knight, M
Jones, S Jones, Kerr, Kidd, Lea, Luff, Lumby, Macey, Minnery, Morris, Moseley,
Mosley, Motley, Mullock, Nellins, Pardy, Parry, Parsons, Picton, Potter, Price,
Schofield, Sherrington, Taylor, Thomas, Tindall, Towers, Vasmer, Wagner, Wild, B
Williams, M Williams and Wilson.

It was RESOLVED:
That Council

I. approve a 4.99% Council tax rise (a 2.99% increase to Council Tax and a 2%
increase to Adult Social Care Precept) resulting in a basic amount of council
tax for a Band D property of £1,720.80 in the billing authority’s area,
calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Local Government Finance
Act 1992 (section 42b).

Contact: Tim Ward on 01743 257713 4 |
Fage 4




[ Minutes of the Council held on 29 February 2024 |

ii.  inaccordance with the provisions of Section 40 (2) of the 1992 Act, approve
the amount of Council Tax calculated for each category of dwelling in the
billing authority’s area to be as follows:

Property Band | 2024/25 Charge
£
1,147.20
1,338.40
1,529.60
1,720.80
2,103.20
2,485.60
2,868.00
3,441.60

I|Omm|O0|m| >

iii. approve a total precept of £205,104,165.

iv.  approve the formal council tax resolution as set out in Appendix 4 to
determine the levels of Council Tax for Shropshire Council for 2024/25.

Clir Buckley asked for an explanation as to why the reference to “Bridgnorth Town
Centre Parking and Public Realm Works” which had been included in previous
Capital Strategy had been removed from the Priority Capital Schemes Schedule
(Appendix C to the Report). In response the Portfolio Holder for Finance and
Corporate Support gave his assurance that the scheme was in the Council’s
Aspirational Schemes Schedule and remained under consideration for inclusion in
the Capital Programme subject to a clear specification and business case.

Recommendations v to xvii were then taken and on being put to a recorded vote with
37 Members voting for, 32 against and no abstentions as follows:

FOR:

Councillors Aldcroft, Anderson, Bardsley, Barrow, Biggins, Bird, Burchett, Butler,
Carroll, Charmley, Dakin, Davenport, Elner, D Evans, Gill, Gittins, Harris, Hignett,
Hunt, Hurst- Knight, M Jones, S Jones, Lea, Luff, Lumby, Macey, Morris, Motley,
Mullock, Nellins, Picton, Potter, Price, Schofield, Thomas, Wild and B Williams

AGAINST:

Councillors Bagnall, Bentick, Boddington, Buckley, Clarke, Connolly, Dartnall,
Davies, Dean, J Evans, R Evans, Green, Halliday, Hartin, Houghton, R Huffer, Kerr,
Kidd, Minnery, Moseley, Mosley, Pardy, Parry, Parsons, Sherrington, Taylor, Tindall,
Towers, Vasmer, Wagner, M Williams and Wilson

it was RESOLVED:

That Council

Contact: Tim Ward on 01743257713 5 |




[ Minutes of the Council held on 29 February 2024

V.

Vii.

Viii.

Xi.

Xii.

Xiii.

XiV.

XV.

XVi.

approve the 2024/25 gross budget of £709.472m outlined in the Budget
Book at Appendix 3.

note the key changes to the MTFS as outlined in Appendix 1 since the
December update of the MTFS and the advice relating to those changes, in
particular:

the public consultation and related findings

the Alternative Budget process and findings

the Financial Settlement and implications for the Council

the Collection Fund outturn and the impact on next year

the latest budget forecast for the current year and the resulting likely
Impact on reserves in this year and next (also included in the MTFS
assumptions)

¢ Inclusion of the Equality, Social Inclusion and Health Impact
Assessment (ESIHA)

note the alignment of this report with other reports on this agenda,
including the Fees and Charges proposals, and the proposed Treasury
Strategy.

note the revised funding gap for the years 2025/26 to 2028/29.

note the Statement of the Chief Financial Officer on the Robustness of
Estimates and Adequacy of Reserves as set out in Sections 6.1 — 6.3 of
the MTFS at Appendix 1.

approve the recommended level of general fund balances to support the
2024/25 revenue budget of £49.682m, noting that the projected balance is
presently significantly below this for 2024/25.

note the projected recommended level of general reserves for the following
four years at £47.463m in 2025/26, £45.539m in 2026/27, £45.874m in
2027/28 and £46.934m in 2028/29.

note the continued use of the Policy for Flexibility around the use of Capital
Receipts as detailed in section 8.1 of the MTFS at Appendix 1.

agree the adoption of the Capital Strategy 2023/24 — 2028/29 attached as
Appendix 2.

note the prioritised capital schemes identified at Appendix 2 section 8
including the need to identify and confirm funding sources for these
schemes.

agree the Capital Programme as set out in Appendix 2 section 6 and
Annex B to the Capital Strategy.

agree the Pay and Rewards Policy for all Council staff for 2024/25 as set
out in Appendix 5.

Contact: Tim Ward on 01743 257713




[ Minutes of the Council held on 29 February 2024

85

xvii.  approve a delegation to the CFO in consultation with the Portfolio Holder -
Finance, Corporate Resources and Communities to enable specific work to
be commissioned from PwC in line with the conditions set out in paragraph
4.8.

Fees and Charges 2024/25

it was proposed by Councillor Gwilym Butler, Portfolio Holder for Finance, Corporate
Resources and Communities and seconded by Councillor Claire Wild that the report
of the Executive Director of Resources, a copy of which is attached to the signed
minutes and the recommendations contained therein, be received and agreed.

Councillor Andrew Sherrington suggested that a charge out rate for Social Care ICT
equipment expertise could be levied. It was suggested that he contact the Portfolio
Holder for Social Care/Executive Director directly regarding this so they can provide
a response directly.

Councillor Heather Kidd commented that some fees were capped which meant that it
was not possible to get full cost recovery and asked could the Council lobby Central
Government for the removal of such caps

RESOLVED:
That Council

i. Note the breakdown of the total income for 2023/24 and 2024/25 and in
particular that the proposed 2024/25 charges for discretionary services
represent £52.822m of the £98.525m of income derived from Fees and
Charges.

ii. To approve the charges for 2024/25 as detailed in Appendix 3 to be
implemented from 1 April 2024.

iii.  To note that as previously agreed, any changes to fees and charges proposed
by Shropshire Community Leisure Trust Ltd. in relation to the outsourced
leisure facilities will only be referred to Cabinet and Council for approval if the
proposed increases exceed Consumer Price Index (CPI) for the preceding
November.

iv.  To note that the proposals to increase car parking fees and charges (arising
from the traffic management policies and strategies of the Council) further to
the recent decision of Cabinet has been called in for further scrutiny by
Councillors. This report does not supersede the call-in process; rather, the
outcome of the call in process will determine the eventual charges to be levied
in 2024/25.

Contact: Tim Ward on 01743 257713




[ Minutes of the Council held on 29 February 2024

V.

Vii.

a)
b)
c)
d)

e)

To note that proposals in adult social care services for applying charges for
telecare services and appointeeships are new proposals and will require further
discussion and consultation. Proposed charges will be set on a ‘cost recovery’
basis, in line with best practice in other councils.

To revise housing rents as follows (subject to restrictions or exemptions
identified in the Welfare Reform and Work Bill)

Social Housing rents for 2024/25 are increased by 7.7% from 3rd April 2024.
Affordable rents for 2024/25 are increased by 7.7% from 3rd April 2024.
Shared Ownership rents continue to be set at 2.75% of the outstanding capital
value of the home at the time of sale and thereafter increased each April in
accordance with the terms specified in the lease agreements.

All accommodation charges for 2024/25 are increased by 7.7% from 3rd April
2024.

Service charges continue to be set on the basis of actual cost

To review the total estimated income from different fees and charges items, to
identify which items generate the most income, and to consider whether the
benchmarking already undertaken for those sources of income is placing the
council in the upper quartile for charges, based on comparison with similar
local authorities

86 Treasury Strategy 2024/25

It was proposed by Councillor Gwilym Butler, Portfolio Holder for Finance, Corporate
Resources and Communities and seconded by Councillor Claire Wild that the report
of the Executive Director of Resources, a copy of which is attached to the signed
minutes and the recommendations contained therein, be received and agreed.

it was unanimously RESOLVED

That Full Council

Approve the Treasury Strategy for 2024/25, set out in appendix 1 (parts 1-3).

Approve the Investment Strategy, set out in Appendix 1 (part 4) in accordance
with the DLUHC Guidance on Local Government Investments.

Approve the Prudential Indicators, setout in Appendix 1 (part 5), in
accordance with the Local Government Act 2003.

iv.  Approve the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy Statement, set out in
Appendix 1 (part 6).
v.  Authorise the Section 151 Officer to exercise the borrowing powers contained
in Section 3 of the Local Government Act 2003 and to manage the Council's
debt portfolio in accordance with the Treasury Strategy.
Contact: Tim Ward on 01743 257713 _ - 8 |




[ Minutes of the Council held on 29 February 2024

vi.  Authorise the Section 151 Officer to use other Foreign Banks which meet
Link’s creditworthiness policy as required.

vii.  Authorise the Section 151 Officer to progress and finalise the restatement and
amendment of Cornovii Development Ltd loan agreements

87 Shrewsbury North West Relief Road — Funding Delegation

It was proposed by the Councillor Dan Morris, Portfolio Holder for Highways and
seconded by Councillor Dean Carroll, Portfolio Holder for Housing and Assets that
the report of the Executive Director of Place, a copy of which is attached to the
signed minutes and the recommendations contained therein, be received and agreed

By way of amendment Councillor Andrew Sherrington proposed that funding only be
agreed to bring the project to Full Business case and no other expenditure is incurred
until itis agreed at a future meeting of Council.

This was seconded by Councillor Julian Dean

On being put to a recorded vote with 37 Members voting for, 32 against and no
abstentions as follows:

FOR:

Councillors Bagnall, Bentick, Boddington, Buckley, Clarke, Connolly, Dartnall,
Davies, Dean, J Evans, R Evans, Green, Halliday, Hartin, Houghton, R Huffer, Kerr,
Kidd, Minnery, Moseley, Mosley, Pardy, Parry, Parsons, Sherrington, Taylor, Tindall,
Towers, Vasmer, Wagner, M Williams and Wilson

AGAINST:

Councillors Aldcroft, Anderson, Bardsley, Barrow, Biggins, Bird, Burchett, Butler,

Carroll, Charmley, Dakin, Davenport, Elner, D Evans, Gill, Gittins, Harris, Hignett,
Hunt, Hurst- Knight, M Jones, S Jones, Lea Luff, Lumby, Macey, Morris, Motley,

Mullock, Nellins, Picton, Potter, Price, Schofield, Thomas, Wild and B Williams

Councillor Sherrington’s amendment fell.

On being put to a recorded vote with 37 Members voting for, 32 against and no
abstentions as follows:

FOR:

Councillors Aldcroft, Anderson, Bardsley, Barrow, Biggins, Bird, Burchett, Butler,

Carroll, Charmley, Dakin, Davenport, Elner, D Evans, Gill, Gittins, Harris, Hignett,
Hunt, Hurst- Knight, M Jones, S Jones, Lea Luff, Lumby, Macey, Morris, Motley,

Mullock, Nellins, Picton, Potter, Price, Schofield, Thomas, Wild and B Williams

AGAINST:

Contact: Tim Ward on 01743257713 9 |

Page 9



[ Minutes of the Council held on 29 February 2024

88

Councillors Bagnall, Bentick, Boddington, Buckley, Clarke, Connolly, Dartnall,
Davies, Dean, J Evans, R Evans, Green, Halliday, Hartin, Houghton, R Huffer, Kerr,
Kidd, Minnery, Moseley, Mosley, Pardy, Parry, Parsons, Sherrington, Taylor, Tindall,
Towers, Vasmer, Wagner, M Williams and Wilson

It was RESOLVED:
That Council

a) Approves the delegation of programme development responsibility for the
NWRR together with authority to spend up to an additional £16.981m (as set
out in more detail within the table at paragraph 5.9 below) so as to enable the
completion of the Full Business Case submission, to the Executive Director of
Place in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Highways and Transport,
noting that £6.667m of this will be funded by the DfT Large Local Majors
Grant. The breakdown of this delegation, including contingency, is £16.499m
advance works costs, £181,500 to deliver the FBC, and £300,000 to cover
exceedance of current delegation.

b) Confirms, for the avoidance of doubt, that the previous total combined
delegation of £27.9m was comprised of £15m (NWRR) and £12.9m (OLR).
Appointment to Committees
It was proposed by the Chairman Councillor Vince Hunt and seconded by the Vice
Chairman Councillor Brian Williams that the following amendments to committee

membership be agreed.

Northern Planning Committee

Councillor Ed Potter to be appointed as a substitute member of the Northern
Planning Committee

Southern Planning Committee

Councillor Roy Aldcroft to be appointed as a substitute member of the Southern
Planning Committee

Councillor David Vasmer to replace Councillor Mark Williams as a substitute member
of the Southern Planning Committee

Economy and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Councillor Alan Moseley to replace Councillor Ted Clarke as a substitute member of
the Economy and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee

People Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Contact: Tim Ward on 01743 257713

10 |

Y
Q
Q
M
=
o



[ Minutes of the Council held on 29 February 2024 |

89

Councillor Heather Kidd to replace Councillor Bernie Bentick as a substitute member
of the People Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Transformation and Improvement Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Councillor Jeff Anderson to be appointed a substitute member of the Transformation
and Improvement Overview and Scrutiny Committee

RESOLVED:
That the following changes in committee membership be agreed

Northern Planning Committee

Councillor Ed Potter to be appointed as a substitute member of the Northern
Planning Committee

Southern Planning Committee

Councillor Roy Aldcroft to be appointed as a substitute member of the Southern
Planning Committee

Councillor David Vasmer to replace Councillor Mark Williams as a substitute member
of the Southern Planning Committee

Economy and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Councillor Alan Moseley to replace Councillor Ted Clarke as a substitute member of
the Economy and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee

People Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Councillor Heather Kidd to replace Councillor Bernie Bentick as a substitute member
of the People Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Transformation and Improvement Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Councillor Jeff Anderson to be appointed a substitute member of the Transformation
and Improvement Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Motions

The following motion was received from Councillor Tony Parsons and
supported by the Labour Group

The original motion on Social Care as set out on the agenda was altered by
Councillor Tony Parsons and presented to the council as follows:

Social Care Costs

Contact: Tim Ward on 01743257713 11 |

Y
Q
Q
M
=
=



[ Minutes of the Council held on 29 February 2024

This Council notes:

In October 2023, Skills for Care estimated that there were 1000 vacancies inthe
adult social care workforce in Shropshire (a vacancy rate of 8%)[l. However, in a
survey of its care provider members the average staff turnover rate over the last 12
months reported by respondents was 19%, and nearly a quarter (23%) of
respondents stated that they are employing less staff than this time last year, with
nearly a third (31%) of domiciliary care providers stating that they now employ less
staff than a year ago.

For much of the past 12 months our local hospitals in Shropshire and Telford &
Wrekin have continued to face the challenge of trying to discharge people back into
the community made all the more difficult by the lack of available care. As was the
case a year ago, this is not due to a lack of care providers, but their inability to recruit
and retain staff as a result of the low wages they can afford to pay their staff due in
part to the low fee rates payable by local authorities.

This is compounded by significant operational cost pressures over the last 12
months. Inflation as measured by CPI rose by 3.9% in the 12 months to November
2023, but for the period April-September 2023 was significantly higher, ranging from
6.7%-8.7%.

The National Living Wage (NLW) is due to increase by 9.8%, from £10.42 to £11.44
per hour, from 1 April 2024 and whilst this is a positive move for care workers will
directly impact on care providers’ staff costs.. Put simply, if local authority fee rates
do not at least cover the increase in NLW this will represent a real terms cut in fee
rates. In addition to staff costs, care providers have continued to face significant
financial challenges over the last 12 months relating to staff recruitment, energy/utility
costs, PPE and other operating costs including insurance, IT and staff travel.

This Council believes:

Both Shropshire Council and Telford & Wrekin Council had been awarded additional
funding by central Government, through the Department of Health and Social Care
(DHSC), under the Market Sustainability and Improvement Fund for investment in
adult social care in 2023/24. Shropshire Council had been allocated an additional
£2,119,773 which was used to improve fee rates together with additional investment
from the Council. We await to see what funding is provided by central government in
2024/25.

Most local care providers have grave concerns regarding their financial viability and
the sustainability of their business in continuing with local authority-funded care going
forward without a significant increase in local authority fee rates from April 2024.
Whilst Council awaits funding from the Market Sustainability and Improvement Fund
for investment in adult social care for financial year 2024/25, when that funding is
provided it needs to be specifically targeted to address this issue.

Only 19% of respondents to the survey of care provider members conducted by
Partners in Care in October 2023 feel that current local authority fee rates cover their
actual weekly operating costs. More than half (54%) of all providers who responded
confirmed that they have reduced the amount of local authority funded

Contact: Tim Ward on 01743257713 12 |
rFage 12




[ Minutes of the Council held on 29 February 2024

placements/packages they accept in the past 12 months, with 56% of all respondents
also expecting to further reduce the amount of council funded care they provide in
the next 12 months if fee rates remain the same in 2024/25.

This Council commits:

To use funding received from central government for investment in adult social care
in 2024/25 to increase fee rates paid to adult social care providers, particularly as we
continue to prepare for the implementation of charging reform.”

By way of amendment Councillor Cecilia Motley proposed

That paragraphs 2 - 6 be deleted and replaced with the following: -

This Council believes:

Both Shropshire Council and Telford & Wrekin Council had been awarded additional
funding by central Government, through the Department of Health & Social Care
(DHSC) under the Market Sustainability and Improvement Fund for investment in
adult social care in 2023/24. Shropshire Council had been allocated an additional
£2,119,773 which was used to improve fee rates together with a large investment of
more than £6m provided by Shropshire Council, and increased contributions as
demand and prices continued to rise.

A proportion of care providers have concerns over their financial viability but our ASC
teams are not seeing large exits from the market to support this. Furthermore,
despite increasing financial pressures Shropshire Council already pays the highest
rates for domiciliary care across the region and the second highest care home rates.
This needs to be taken into account.

Additionally, Shropshire Council should not be expected to bear the full brunt of
National Living Wage and care costs in the county when it only commissions 30% of
care, with the NHS also commissioning 30% and private funders the remaining 40%.
Most care homes negotiate a rate with the Council depending on need so it is hard
for the Council generalise costs.

This Council commits:

To use funding received from central government and aligned to grant conditions for
investment in adult social care provision in 2024/25 which best meets the needs of
our residents in the most cost efficient way.

Councillor Parsons indicated that he was happy to accept the amendment.

By way of further amendment Councillor Roger Evans proposed that the following be
added to the end of the motion

“‘including paying more to care staff through improved hourly rates.”

Contact: Tim Ward on 01743257713 13 |

Y
Q
Q
M
=
w



[ Minutes of the Council held on 29 February 2024

Councillor Parsons and Councillor Motley both indicated that they were happy to
accept this amendment

Following a vote it was unanimously RESOLVED

This Council commits:

To use funding received from central government and aligned to grant conditions for
investment in adult social care provision in 2024/25 which best meets the needs of
our residents in the most cost-efficient way, including paying more to care staff
through improved hourly rates.

The following motion was received from Councillor Alan Mosley and supported
by the Labour Group

Consultation on Car Parking Increases
This council notes:

The decision by Shropshire Council cabinet this January to raise £2m income
through increasing car parking charges seeks to introduce increases of 33% at St.
Julian Friars, 50% at Frankwell, 67% at Abbey Foregate and zero at Raven
Meadows. This appears to penalise those who park outside of loop, whilst rewarding
those who drive into the centre.

The cabinet proposals also seek to increase charges in the evening until 8pm and
introduce them on Sundays and Bank Holidays

The scale of the increases has also sparked a considerable number of objections
and concerns raised by the public, residents, workers, businesses and visitors.

Recent surveys and submissions by Shrewsbury BID provide evidence that there is
considerable concern about the adverse impact on businesses of all types.

There has been a lack of any meaningful engagement with businesses or the wider
public on the rationale and potential impact of the changes.

The proposals as they currently stand could undermine the Shropshire Plan:-

“We'll develop Shropshire as a vibrant destination that attracts people to live in,
work in, learn in and visit. We'll deliver excellent connectivity and infrastructure, and
increasing access to social contact, employment, education, services and leisure
opportunities. We will communicate clearly and transparently about what
Shropshire Council delivers, signposting to the right places for services and
support, and listen to what communities say about their place and what they need.”

This council believes:

1. The proposed hikes, ranging from 29% to 67%, could have a profound and
serious impact on our Town’s economy and attraction without any other
mitigating improvements to town centre access, for example public transport,
park and ride, highways infrastructure, active travel. Hence, the new charges

Contact: Tim Ward on 01743257713 14 |

Y
Q
Q
M
=
N



[ Minutes of the Council held on 29 February 2024

90

pose a significant risk to the Shrewsbury town centre economy and its on-
going post- Covid recovery

2. The swingeing increases for Abbey Foregate and Frankwell will have a
particularly serious impact on those commuting to work, especially those on
low income, where they have no affordable or convenient alternatives.

3. The changes are contrary to proposals within the movement strategy aimed at
encouraging parking outside of the river loop.

4. Changes to Sunday and early evening charges could have a particularly
seriously impact on the those employed in the night-time, hospitality and
cultural economy and on visitors and residents in the town.

5. Many could be deterred from using designated car parks and will seek on-
street parking around the town centre, much to the detriment of local
residents.

This Council:

1. Recognises the need for a new Parking Strategy to be developed and for a
review of the role, structure and staff in the Parking Services operation. This
needs to be completed and with full public consultation, before such significant
proposals are introduced.

2. Sothe parking increases need to be paused until such consultation has
gathered feedback from those affected and demonstrated mitigation.

The motion was seconded by Councillor Julia Buckley
Following a vote the motion was not supported.
Questions from Members

The Chairman advised that two questions had been received in accordance with
Procedure Rule 15, and that he had also allowed an urgent question from Councillor
Julia Evans. A copy of the report containing the detailed questions and their formal
response is attached to the signed minutes.

Received from Councillor Viv Parry in respect of road signage to help deter heavy
lorries from using Ludford Bridge. By way of supplementary question Councillor
Parry asked whether specific signs could be moved. The Portfolio Holder requested
that she email him and he would provide a response outside the meeting.

Received from Councillor David Vasmer regarding procedures for call in meetings.
By way of supplementary question Councillor Vasmer asked for assurance that
Group Leaders would be consulted prior to anything being brought to Council. The
Leader reminded him that the Group Leaders were part of the Scrutiny Chairs Group
who would be considering any changes before they are brough to Council.

Received from Councillor Julia Evans regarding the ICB declaration of a critical
emergency. By way of supplementary question Councillor Evans asked how the

Contact: Tim Ward on 01743 257713

15 |

Y
Q
Q
M
=
ol



[ Minutes of the Council held on 29 February 2024 |

recent county wide critical care emergency in the health care system impacted on the
council both financially and in capacity terms, and how the burden of care shift to the
council from the NHS was affecting the council year on year. The Portfolio Holder
agreed to provide an answer outside of the meeting.

91 Exclusion of Press and Public
92 Exempt Minutes
RESOLVED: That the Exempt Minutes of the meeting held on 14 December 2023,

as circulated with the agenda papers, be approved and signed as a correct record.

Signed (Chairman)

Date:

Contact: Tim Ward on 01743257713 16 |

Y
QD
(@)
D
|_|
(0] ]



Agenda Iltem 6

W | Committee and Date Item
::é; Shropgbul nrg Council

21 March 2024

Public

Healthy Healthy Healthy
Economy Environment Organisation

Children’s Improvement Board

Responsible Officer: Tanya Miles

email: Tanya.miles@shropshire.gov.uk Tel: 01743 255811

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder):  Kirstie Hurst-Knight

Synopsis

To regularise and insert into Part 3 of the Constitution the recently formed Children’s
Improvement Board.

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

Executive Summary

As all Members will appreciate decisive action was required to address the
concerns raised during the Ofsted Focused Visit in November 2023. Though their
formal letter was not published until 12 January 2024, immediate steps were taken
to establish a provisional Children’s Improvement Board to develop the
Improvement Plan required by Ofsted.

Given the embargoed nature of the Ofsted letter it was not possible to establish a
fully formed Board until January and we are now seeking formal Council approval
to include the Board within Part 3 of the Constitution (Statutory and Advisory
Bodies). The Board includes the Chief Executive (chair), Portfolio Holder for
Children and Education, Opposition Members who sit on the Corporate Parenting
Panel, the Chair of the People Overview and Scrutiny Committee, the Executive
Director of People, Assistant Director Childrens Social Care & Safeguarding as
well as a representative from the LGA. The full Terms of Reference are included
as Appendix 1

A Children’s Improvement Board is a common feature where Council’s have
experienced critical Ofsted visits/inspections. Sometimes they are directed to
introduce them by the Department for Education but in Shropshire’s case, it was a
proactive decision to set the Board up voluntarily.

Page 17



Council 21 March 2024: Children’s Improvement Board

3. Recommendations

That Council approve the formal establishment of a Children’s Improvement Board with the
Terms of Reference set out at Appendix 1

Report

4. Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal

4.1

The Report is concerned with formal establishment of the Board rather than the
risks that it seeks to address. It is important to ensure that the Board is
appropriately referenced within the Constitution so that all members and the public
are aware of what it does.

5. Financial Implications

5.1.

There are no financial implications of formally including the Board within Part 3 of
the Constitution.

6. Background

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

Members will be aware that during the Ofsted Focused Visit in November 2023,
certain weaknesses in child protection practice were identified including the quality
of management oversight and decision-making, staff supervision, and appropriate
challenge by child protection chairs.

As an immediate action, the informal establishment of the Children’s Improvement
Board, chaired by the Chief Executive was agreed with both Ofsted and the
Department for Education (“DfE”).

Careful consideration was given to the set-up of this Board and its membership. It
is correct to say that a number of other such Improvement Boards set up over the
past few years by various local authorities across the country have external
agency members (such as from the NHS and Police). However, that approach was
not considered necessary in Shropshire because we are largely already aware of
the issues of concern (having identified them within our pre-visit self-assessment)
which are mainly inward looking rather than involving external partners. This point
was raised at a recent Safeguarding Partnership meeting and it was accepted that
the issues need to be predominantly addressed by the Council itself.

A number of the other Improvement Boards have engaged independent chairs for
the meetings. Often that has been because their establishment has been directed
by the DfE and there is a requirement for a level of independent oversight. That is
not currently considered to be a necessity in Shropshire’s situation as the priority
was to prepare and recommend to Cabinet the Children’s Services Improvement
Action Plan. The key role of the Board moving forward is to ensure that the
Council delivers on the Improvement Plan actions.

Pagp 18

Contact: Tanya Miles 01743 255811 2




Council 21 March 2024: Children’s Improvement Board

6.5. Given that the Board includes both Members and Officers it cannot be a formal
Council committee and so it can only be advisory in nature. Formal decisions will
be taken on the recommendations of the Board by either the Executive Director of
People and/or the Chief Executive or in the case of significant policy proposals by
Cabinet. Oversight of the Board’s operation is undertaken by the People Overview
and Scrutiny Committee as appropriate.

6.6. As setoutin its Terms of Reference (Appendix 1) the role of the Improvement
Board is to oversee the implementation of the Improvement Plan.

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does
not include items containing exempt or confidential information)

Local Member: All

Consultation with Local Member — Please consider the Local Member Protocol
(see page E60 onwards of part 5 of the Constitution) and determine whether it is
necessary to consult with the local member over the proposal set out in this report.
This may not always be applicable (eg where the proposal affects all of Shropshire)
but it should always be a consideration and in some cases a necessity so as to
comply with the spirit of the Protocol.

Appendices [Please list the titles of Appendices]

Appendix 1 — Children’s Improvement Board Terms of Reference

Pagp 19

Contact: Tanya Miles 01743 255811 3




This page is intentionally left blank



Terms of Reference (ToR) | [Children's Improvement Board]

These reporting and working arrangements will be reviewed every three months to ensure that they are fulfilling their purpose. If the Exec Review Board (ERB) decides that these need to be updated, then these Terms of Reference will be updated.

Monthly for 1.5 hours Andy Begley, Chief Executive Manage the delivery of a plan of Improvement for Childrens Services — ensuring a
Ideally on the same day and time each week cycle of continuous improvement and outcomes for children, delivering on the
Shropshire Plan for Children.

Role and remit: Core attendees:

e Overall purpose is to seek assurance about progress in identified areas and ensure interdependent projects are + CEO Andy Begley - chair
progressing through the transformation programme. + Claire Burgess LGA - Independent Person to provide critical challenge
e Ensure the delivery of the Children's Improvement Plan is progressing in line with the agreed scope and delivery * Kirstie Hurst-Knight - Portfolio Holder
timelines + ClIr Ruth Houghton - Councillor
e Scrutinise areas of practice and monitor delivery against targets * Clir David Minnery - Councillor
e Provide effective oversight and challenge of reports evidencing progress * Clir Duncan Kerr -Councillor
e Engyre Children's Services are in a position to demonstrate substantial change by the Ofsted Annual Conversation in * Clir Tony Parsons - Councillor

+ James Walton — Executive director resources

* Tanya Miles — ED People

» Sonya Miller — AD Childrens

» Billy Webster — AD Transformation

* OCE Member to Lead on the Board — to confirm
»  PWC will support where required.

Juge 2024 through effective decision making across the Council

ERsure evidence of impact of leaders in achieving excellent outcomes for children

Act as a decision making forum on key actions required to impact change

Mitigate key risks

The Board will make recommendations in relation to resources, it is not a decision making forum for resources.
Provide challenge and direction to the Improvement Plan

Consider all papers

Attendance is mandatory.

Links to other governance arrangements that have oversight and scrutiny of Childrens Social Care. Eg Corporate
Parenting Board, People's Overview Committee.

e Improvement Plan - Key notes from meetings 1. Improvement Plan Review and Updates on activity
e Highlight reports - Evidence of deliverables and impact on outcomes for 2. Scrutinise Performance Reports including
e Project Highlight Reports children to be clearly evidenced. Caseload data, QA monthly reports, Exiting Service,
e Performance Power Bl report - Updated RAID Log (Risks, Issues, Actions and Decisions) 3. Transformation project Updates as required
e Agenda — to be circulated at the latest 24 hours in advance - Highlight Report — RAG updates, forthcoming milestones, 4. Any Other Business

of the meeting escalations from ERB discussion/decision

- Key messages/communications

B



Terms of Reference (ToR) | Governance | Decision making hierarchy

. The Council Cabinet may be required to sign-off a decision in exceptional circumstances (e.g. where there would be a fundamental change to the delivery
of a external council service).

Corporate Parenting Board Peoples Overview Committee

Wider Childrens

Governance

zzebed




Agenda Iltem 7
|

| Council 215t March 2024; Senior Officer Employment Procedure

Committee and Date Iltem

¥a¥ Shropshire

el Councill
21st March 2024

Public

@

Healthy Healthy
Economy Environment

Senior Officer Employment Procedure

Healthy
Organisation

Responsible Officer: Sam Williams — Assistant Director Workforce & Improvement
email: sam.williams@shropshire.gov.uk Tel: 01743 252817
Cabinet Member Clir Gwilym Butler, Finance, Corporate Resources and Communities

(Portfolio Holder):

1. Synopsis

Council is requested to approve an updated procedure for the appointment, dismissal
and disciplinary action, in respect of Senior Officers.

2. Executive Summary

2.1. The Council's Constitution already contains Standing Orders within Part 4 dealing
with the appointment, dismissal and disciplinary action in respect of the officers
described at paragraph 7.3 below.

2.2. Following a review of the procedures under-pinned by these Standing Orders it is
recommended that an updated procedure, to be referred to as the “Senior Officer
Employment Procedure” (as set out at Appendix 1) is approved.

2.3. In summary, this procedure covers the following:

A. Clarity on the definitions of Chief Officers, Statutory Chief Officers, Non-
Statutory Chief Officers and Deputy Chief Officers in line with the Localism

Act 2011.
B. Recruitment and appointment of the above officers.
C. Grievances relating to the above officers.

Page 23
Contact: Sam Williams on 01743 252817 > 1



mailto:sam.williams@shropshire.gov.uk

Council 215t March 2024; Senior Officer Employment Procedure

D. Disciplinary Action and Dismissal relating to the above officers, taking
account of the specific requirements in relation to the Head of Paid
Service (HoPS), Section 151 Officer and Monitoring Officer, as set out in
the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) Regulations 2001 (the
Regulations) (as amended by the Local Authorities (Standing Orders)
(England) (Amendment) Regulations 2015, the Chief Executive
Employment Procedure Rules 2008.

E. They also provide for the establishment of a Chief Officer Employment
Panel. The constitution and terms of reference for this Panel is set out at
Section 4 of Appendix 1 and the advantage of having a standing
arrangement is that the Panel can be convened at short notice without the
need to seek separate Council approval.

2.4. The adoption of such procedure will be in accordance with the Shropshire Plan
priority of having a Healthy Organisation where senior staff understand the precise
process by which they are to be appointed, disciplined and, in certain
circumstances, dismissed. The current procedures cover these eventualities but
needed to be updated to provide clarity and in line with best practice.

3. Recommendations
That Council:

3.1. adopt the proposed procedure attached at Appendix 1.

3.2. establish the Chief Officer Employment Panel.

3.3. delegate to the Assistant Director for Workforce and Improvement the power to
make minor amendments to the procedure at 3.1 in consultation with the Portfolio
Holder for Finance and Corporate Resources.

Report
4. Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal

4.1. ltis important that the Council has in place robust procedures to deal with
employment related matters for senior officers. The failure to do so could lead to
challenges from senior members of staff etc. There might even be a situation
where it is suggested that such staff have been appointed or disciplined/dismissed
other than in accordance with the correct legal requirements.

4.2. Having robust and clear procedures for the recruitment, discipline and dismissal of

senior staff provides confidence in the organisation’s reputation as an employer of
choice and the recruitment and retention of high-quality staff.

Pagp 24

Contact: Sam Williams on 01743 252817




Council 215t March 2024; Senior Officer Employment Procedure

5.

Financial Implications

5.1.

There are no financial implications of adopting these procedures. Robust and
clear procedures for senior staff are likely to save costs in seeking external advice
and/or dealing with any employment related claims.

Climate Change Appraisal

6.1. There are no Climate implications arising from the adoption of these procedures.
Background
7.1. The functions of appointing staff, determining their terms and conditions of service

7.2.

7.3.

7.4.

7.5.

(including remuneration) and procedures for their dismissall cannot be executive
functions. They are therefore Council functions which can be delegated as
appropriate. It is recommended that Council approve the Senior Officer
Employment Procedure and establishment of the Chief Officer Employment Panel
as it provides a robust approach that is flexible enough to allow political
considerations to be part of the process, while enabling the Council to respond
promptly to urgent issues.

The function of appointment, dismissal and the taking of disciplinary action against
a member of Council staff, must be discharged by the Head of Paid Service
(HoPS) or by an officer nominated by them. In practice this is dealt with through
the responsibilities set out within an officer's job description.

However, the general principle set out in paragraph 7.2 does not apply to the
appointment or dismissal of, or disciplinary action against: Head of Paid Service
(HoPS); a statutory chief officer within the meaning of section 2(6) of the 1989 Act
(politically restricted posts); a non-statutory chief officer within the meaning of
section 2(7) of the 1989 Act; a deputy chief officer within the meaning of section
2(8) of the 1989 Act (for more details please see Annex 1 to the Senior Officer
Employment Procedure);

The Council’s current Standing Orders within Part 4 of the Constitution provide
that the Council’s Head of Paid Service (HoPS), Chief Finance Officer (S151) or
Monitoring Officer (referred to here as “statutory officers”) may not be dismissed
unless the procedure set out within the Standing Order is complied with. The
Senior Officer Employment Procedure addresses these requirements.

Where the Council proposes to take disciplinary action against a Statutory Officer,
it is required to form an independent panel comprising not less than two
independent persons which must meet at least 20 working days before the Full
Council meets to decide whether to approve a proposal to dismiss. Before taking a
vote on whether to approve such a dismissal, the Council must take into account
any advice, views or recommendations of the Panel.

Pagp 25

Contact: Sam Williams on 01743 252817 3



https://ukc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/wordeditorframe.aspx?ui=en-GB&rs=en-GB&wopisrc=https%3A%2F%2Fshropshirecouncil.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2Fcr%2Fr%2F_vti_bin%2Fwopi.ashx%2Ffiles%2F67de9c5da1a94f968a247962ccbee8af&wdenableroaming=1&mscc=1&hid=9C6112A1-40F6-8000-5F00-96C1F1BCDA34.0&uih=sharepointcom&wdlcid=en-GB&jsapi=1&jsapiver=v2&corrid=086120d3-0209-571d-5de6-b434810e5c14&usid=086120d3-0209-571d-5de6-b434810e5c14&newsession=1&sftc=1&uihit=docaspx&muv=1&cac=1&sams=1&mtf=1&sfp=1&sdp=1&hch=1&hwfh=1&dchat=1&sc=%7B%22pmo%22%3A%22https%3A%2F%2Fshropshirecouncil.sharepoint.com%22%2C%22pmshare%22%3Atrue%7D&ctp=LeastProtected&rct=Normal&wdorigin=ItemsView&wdhostclicktime=1709731280672&instantedit=1&wopicomplete=1&wdredirectionreason=Unified_SingleFlush#_ftn1

Council 215t March 2024; Senior Officer Employment Procedure

8. Conclusions

8.1. The proposed procedure, as set out in Appendix 1, provides clarity on the
definitions of Chief Officers, Statutory Chief Officers, Non-Statutory Chief Officers,
and Deputy Chief Officers, and covers recruitment, grievances, disciplinary action,
and dismissal.

8.2. It is recommended that the Council adopt the proposed procedure, establish the
Chief Officer Employment Panel, and delegate the power to make minor
amendments to the Assistant Director for Workforce and Improvement in
consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Finance and Corporate Resources.

8.3. The adoption of this procedure will align with the Shropshire Plan priority of having
a Healthy Organisation and will provide confidence in the organisation's reputation
as an employer of choice.

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does
not include items containing exempt or confidential information)

Local Member: All

Appendices
Appendix 1 - Senior Officer Employment Procedure

Pagp 26

Contact: Sam Williams on 01743 252817 4




Council 215t March 2024; Senior Officer Employment Procedure

Appendix 1 — Senior Officer Employment Procedure

1.0 General

1.1 Staff within the organisation are employed on behalf of the whole Council and not
by parts of the organisation or individuals.

1.2 The employment or engagement of all staff will be in compliance with the law and
the policies and practices of the Council.

1.3 Persons employed or engaged by contractors under specific agreements or
contracts are not staff of the Council but are employees engaged by the
Contractor.

1.4 The Council, as outlined in the Constitution will approve the overall management
structure and provide the necessary resources to support it.

1.5 Generally (except for certain senior staff appointments and dismissals) the
function of appointment and dismissal of and taking disciplinary action against a
member of staff of the Council must be discharged on behalf of the Authority by
the Chief Executive - Head of the Paid Service or, in most cases, by an officer
nominated by him/her.

1.6 In relation to staff employed in Community, Voluntary Controlled, Community
Special and Maintained Schools and Nursery schools, the responsibility for

appointment, discipline and dismissal rests with the governing body and the
Local Authority.

1.7 In Shropshire Council Chief Officer means employees whose contract of
employment is subject to Joint Negotiating Committee (JNC) for Chief Officers
terms and conditions. However, for specific purposes there are statutory
definitions of Chief Officer in accordance with the Localism Act 2011 and as set
out in more detail within the Annex A.

2.0 Definitions

2.1 This section sets out the definition of terms used for the purposes of these Rules
in respect of particular posts.

2.2 “Chief Officer” means each of the following:

2.2.1 Chief Executive - Head of Paid service designated under section 4(1) of
the Local Government and Housing Act 1989.

2.2.2 Assistant Director of Legal and Governance (Monitoring Officer)
designated under section 5(1) of that Act.

2.2.3 Executive Director of Resources (S.151 Officer) having responsibility for
the purposes of section 151 of Local Government Act 1972

2.2.4 “Statutory Chief Officer” has the meaning as set out in section 2 (6) of the
Local Government and Housing Act 1989 and for this Council will be the

Pagp 27

Contact: Sam Williams on 01743 252817 1 |




Council 215t March 2024; Senior Officer Employment Procedure

Executive Director of People, Executive Director of Place, Executive
Director of Health Wellbeing and Prevention (also known as “Executive
Directors”).

2.2.5 “Non - Statutory Chief Officer” means a person who reports to the Chief
Executive - Head of the Paid Service or who is directly accountable to the
local authority or any committee or subcommittee of the authority as set
out in Section 2 (7) of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 and
for this Council will be any other Director appointed by the Council who
are not Statutory Chief Officers.

2.2.6 “Deputy Chief Officer” means a person who for most or all of his/her duties
is required to report direct, or is directly accountable, to a statutory or non-
statutory Chief Officer as set out in section 2 (8) of the 1989 Act (excluding
persons whose duties are solely secretarial, clerical or in the nature of
support services). See Annex A.

2.3 “Independent Panel’” means a panel consisting of at least two Independent
Persons. The Independent Persons must already be acting in that capacity either
within the Council or at another local authority, and be invited in accordance with
the following priority order:

1. a relevant Independent Person who has been appointed by the authority and
who is a local government elector;

2. any other relevant Independent Person who has been appointed by the
authority;

3. a relevant Independent Person who has been appointed by another authority
or authorities

The Panel should comprise solely independent persons, rather than
incorporating elected members.

2.4 “Independent Person” means someone appointed under section 28(7) of the
Localism Act 2011.

2.5 “Dismissal” means when an employment contract is terminated by the employer
for the reasons of misconduct, capability, or a legal reason for ‘some other
substantial reason’, otherwise than by mutual agreement. For the avoidance of
doubt this does not include a dismissal on the grounds of redundancy or ill health
retirement.

3.0 Recruitment and Appointment of Staff

3.1 All recruitment and appointment of staff will be conducted in accordance with the
law, the Council’s policies and procedures and the Council’s Finance Procedure
Rules.

Pagp 28

Contact: Sam Williams on 01743 252817




Council 215t March 2024; Senior Officer Employment Procedure

4.0 Responsibility of the Chief Officer Employment Panel

4.1 The Chief Officer Employment Panel supports, amongst other things as set out
below, the recruitment of the Chief Executive — Head of Paid Service.
Membership of the Panel shall comprise the Leaders of the three main political
parties (or their nominees), and two other members subject to the proportionality
rules and the Assistant Director of Workforce and Improvement or their
nominated deputy. The Chair of the Panel will be the Leader of the Council or
his/her nominated deputy. Where the appointment isn’t relating to the Chief
Executive — Head of Paid Service, he/she will form part of the panel
membership.

4.2 The quorum for each meeting of the Committee/Panel is three, including a
member of the Administration and main opposition party.

4.3 For the purposes of this procedure, the Proper Officer shall be the Chief
Executive - Head of Paid Service, except where the appointment/ dismissal
relates to the Chief Executive - Head of Paid Service in which case the Proper
Officer shall be the Assistant Director of Workforce & Improvement.

4.4 The Panel is also responsible for hearing and determining any appeals from
Chief Officers as appropriate under the Council’s discipline, grievance,
performance management and grading policies, the suspension of sick pay and
the review and determination of matters relating to contracts of employment. In
determining these matters, the Panel will have regard to the appropriate
provisions of these Rules. The Panel may agree to discharge some of these
functions through a Sub- Committee.

5.0 Appointment of Head of the Paid Service.
5.1 The appointment is subject to specific requirements as set out below.
5.2 The Chief Officer Employment Panel shall:

a) agree a statement specifying the duties and any qualifications or qualities to
be sought in the person to be appointed.

b) agree for the post to be advertised in such a way as is likely to bring it to the
attention of persons who are qualified to apply for it.

c) agree for a copy of the statement mentioned above to be sent to any person
on request.

d) where a post has been advertised as required above, the panel will select
from the applications a short list of qualified candidates and will then interview
those included in the short list.

e) Panel to agree interview arrangements e.g. stakeholder panels

f) Following the interview of candidates, the panel will come to a view as to the
most suitable person for the position.

Pagp 29

Contact: Sam Williams on 01743 252817 3




Council 215t March 2024; Senior Officer Employment Procedure

g) Where following the interviews the panel is of the view that there is no suitable
candidate, it will re-advertise the post.

5.3 The Assistant Director of Workforce & Improvement has, within the period
specified in the notice under paragraph 5.4 notified the Leader that each member
of the Cabinet has stated that they do not have any objection to the making of
the offer; or the Assistant Director of Workforce & Improvement has notified the
Leader that no objection was received from any member of the Cabinet within
the specified period; or The Leader is satisfied that any objection which has been
received from any member of the Cabinet within the specified period is not
material and/or is not well-founded or does not outweigh the other factors taken
into consideration by the panel

5.4 The period within which any objection to the making of the offer is to be notified
to the Assistant Director of Workforce & Improvement. The standard period will
be three working days but may be shortened by the Chair of the Panel/Leader
where necessary for the proper discharge of the Council’s functions, subject to a
minimum period of 24 hours.

5.5 Where following the above procedure there are no objections to the proposed
appointment or any objections are not upheld, the panel will recommend that
person for appointment at the next meeting of the Full Council or at a specially
convened meeting of the Council. If the full Council approves the
recommendation, then a formal offer of appointment can be made.

5.6 Where full Council does not approve the recommendation of the panel, they shall
indicate how they wish to proceed.

6.0 Appointment of Statutory Chief Officers, Assistant Director of Legal and
Governance (Monitoring Officer) designated under section 5(1) of that Act
and Executive Director of Resources (S.151 Officer) having responsibility
for the purposes of section 151 of Local Government Act 1972

6.1 Where the Council is appointing the officers to which this section applies the
Chief Officer Employment Panel, or their nominated deputies shall be convened
and:

a) agree a statement specifying the duties and any qualifications or qualities to
be sought in the person to be appointed.

b) agree for the post to be advertised in such a way as is likely to bring it to the
attention of persons who are qualified to apply for it.

c) agree for a copy of the statement mentioned above to be sent to any person
on request.

d) where a post has been advertised as required above, the panel will select
from the applications a short list of qualified candidates and will then interview
those included in the short list.

Pagp 30

Contact: Sam Williams on 01743 252817 4




Council 215t March 2024; Senior Officer Employment Procedure

e) Panel to agree interview arrangements e.g., stakeholder panels

f) Following the interview of candidates, the panel will come to a view as to the
most suitable person for the position. Cabinet will be notified of the selected
candidate.

g) Where following the interviews the panel is of the view that there is no suitable
candidate, it will re-advertise the post.

6.2 The period within which any objection to the making of the offer is to be notified to
The Assistant Director of Workforce & Improvement. The standard period will be
three working days but may be shortened by the Chair of the Panel/Leader
where necessary for the proper discharge of the Council’s functions, subject to a
minimum period of 24 hours.

6.3 The Assistant Director of Workforce & Improvement has, within the period
specified in the notice under paragraph 6.2 notified the Leader that each member
of the Cabinet has stated that they do not have any objection to the making of
the offer; or the Assistant Director of Workforce & Improvement has notified the
Leader that no objection was received from any member of the Cabinet within
the specified period; or The Leader is satisfied that any objection which has been
received from any member of the Cabinet within the specified period is not
material and/or is not well-founded or does not outweigh the other factors taken
into consideration by the panel

6.4 Where following the above procedure there are no objections to the proposed
appointment or any objections are not upheld, the panel will recommend that
person for appointment.

7.0 Employment responsibility of Chief Officers (Non-Statutory), Deputy Chief
Officers and below to Chief Officer Service Manager Level.

7.1 Employment responsibilities under the Council’s Human Resources policies in
respect of posts below Statutory Chief Officer to Service Manager levels will be
the responsibility of the Chief Executive - Head of the Paid Service or nominated
officer and will be exercised in accordance with the scheme of delegation and
relevant personnel policies.

7.2 Appointments may not be made by Councillors.

7.3 A Committee (the Appeals Committee) will be appointed to hear an appeal by an
Officer employed by the Council as provided in the Human Resource Policies of
the Council from time to time.

Pagp 31

Contact: Sam Williams on 01743 252817 5




Council 215t March 2024; Senior Officer Employment Procedure

8.0 Disciplinary Action Relating to the Head of the Paid Service, Monitoring
Officer or S151 Officer in accordance with the Local Authorities (Standing
Orders) (England) Regulations 2001 (the Regulations) (as amended by the
Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations
2015, the Chief Executive Employment Procedure Rules 2008.

8.1 No disciplinary action in respect of the above Chief Officers may be taken by or
on behalf of the Authority) other than in accordance with the provisions set out in
Schedule 3 (or provisions to the like effect) of the Local Authorities (Standing
Orders) (England) Regulations 2001, as amended by the Local Authorities
(Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2015.

8.2 The Chief Executive - Head of Paid Service, Assistant Director Legal &
Governance (Monitoring Officer) and Executive Director of Resources (S151)
Officer may be suspended (in accordance with paragraph 8.3 below) while an
investigation takes place into alleged misconduct or incapability. Suspension
does not itself constitute disciplinary action and does not imply guilt. Any such
suspension must be on full pay and terminate no later than the expiry of two
months beginning on the day on which the suspension takes effect.

8.3 The responsibility for implementing the suspension of the Chief Executive — Head
of Paid Service will be the Assistant Director of Workforce & Improvement in
consultation with the Leader of the Council and the responsibility for
implementing the suspension of the Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Officer
will be the Chief Executive — Head of Paid Service and the Assistant Director of
Workforce & Improvement.

8.4 Where an allegation is made relating to the conduct of these officers the matter
will be considered by the Chief Officer Employment Panel.

8.5 Where the Chief Officer Employment Panel determines that a matter requires
more detailed investigation, this will be undertaken by an independent
investigator.

8.6 The Chief Officer Employment Panel will determine from the investigation report
whether further action is required. Where the decision is any action short of
dismissal, the decision will be taken by the Panel itself.

8.7 Where the recommendation is for dismissal, an Independent Panel, as defined at
paragraph 2.4 above, must be approved, and full Council approval is required.

9.0 Dismissal of Head of the Paid Service, Monitoring Officer or S151 Officer.

9.1 An Independent Panel must be convened in accordance with Schedule 3 the
Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) Regulations 2001 (as amended)
having considered and recommend the dismissal of an Officer to whom this
section applies. The panel must be appointed at least 20 working days before a
meeting of Council is held to consider any dismissal.

9.2 Assistant Director of Workforce and Improvement on behalf of the Independent
Panel will submit a report to Council on the recommended action.

Pagp 32

Contact: Sam Williams on 01743 252817 6




Council 215t March 2024; Senior Officer Employment Procedure

9.3 Notice of dismissal must not be given until approval of the Full Council.

10. Disciplinary Action relating to Statutory Chief Officers

10.1 The Chief Officers Employment Panel has power to decide whether to
investigate any allegation of misconduct by a Statutory Chief Officer and all
matters relating to the conduct of the investigation and/or any subsequent
disciplinary process.

10.2 Officers may be suspended whilst an investigation takes place into alleged
misconduct. The decision to suspend on full pay shall be made by the Chief
Executive - Head of Paid Service or their designated nominee in consultation
with the Leader of the Council and/ Deputy Leader and the Assistant Director of
Workforce & Improvement.

10.3 The Chief Officer Employment Panel may decide to dismiss or take disciplinary
action short of dismissal. This can only take effect where no well-founded
objection has been made by any member of the Cabinet. Any objection needs
to relate to the Council’s disciplinary, capability and related procedures and
policies.

10.4 Assistant Director of Workforce and Improvement on behalf of the Chief Officer
Employment Panel will submit a report to Cabinet on the recommended action.

10.5. The period within which any objection to the proposed action is to be notified to
The Assistant Director of Workforce & Improvement. The standard period will
be three working days but may be shortened by the Chair of the Panel/Leader
where necessary for the proper discharge of the Council’s functions, subject to
a minimum period of 24 hours.

10.6 The Assistant Director of Workforce & Improvement has, within the period
specified in the notice under paragraph 10.5 notified the Leader that each
member of the Cabinet has stated that they do not have any objection to the
proposed action; or the Assistant Director of Workforce & Improvement has
notified the Leader that no objection was received from any member of the
Cabinet within the specified period; or The Leader is satisfied that any objection
which has been received from any member of the Cabinet within the specified
period is not material and/or is not well-founded or does not outweigh the other
factors taken into consideration by the panel

10.7 In the event that a reasoned objection is received, the Assistant Director of
Workforce & Improvement shall refer the matter to a specially convened
meeting of the Chief Officers Employment Panel (the members of the specially
convened Panel must be the same members who recommended the
dismissal/disciplinary action) and the decision of this specially convened Panel
will be final.

Pagp 33

Contact: Sam Williams on 01743 252817




Council 215t March 2024; Senior Officer Employment Procedure

11. Grievances

11.1 Grievances made by all Chief Officers and Deputy Chief Officers including the
Chief Executive - Head of Paid Service, Executive Director of Resources
(S151) and Assistant Director Legal and Governance (Monitoring Officer) will
be dealt with in accordance with the Council’s relevant procedures at the
relevant time or as set out in the Chief Officer Handbook Joint Negotiation
Committee in force at the relevant time.

Annex A

Statutory and non-statutory chief officer and deputy chief officer posts are defined in the
Localism Act 2011:

The Localism Act 2011, chapter 8, section 43(2) states:

In this Chapter “chief officer”, in relation to a relevant authority, means each of the
following:

1. the head of its paid service designated under section 4(1) of the Local Government and
Housing Act 1989;

2. its monitoring officer designated under section 5(1) of that Act;

3. a statutory chief officer mentioned in section 2(6) of that Act;
a. Executive Director of People
b. Executive Director of Health Wellbeing and Prevention.
c. Executive Director of Place
d. The officer having responsibility for the purposes of section 151 of Local Government
Act 1972 - Executive Director of Resources

4. a non-statutory chief officer mentioned in section 2(7) of that Act;

a. Person whom the Head of Paid Service is directly responsible for*.

b. Person who, as respects all or most of his post, is required to report directly or is
directly accountable to the head of paid service*.

c. Any person, who all or most of duties of the post is required to report directly or is
directly accountable to the local authority themselves or any committee or sub-
committee of the local authority.

(*excluding anyone who duties are secretarial/clerical/in the nature of support services).

5. a deputy chief officer mentioned in section 2(8) of that Act.
a. person who, as respects all or most of the duties of their post, is required to report
directly or is directly accountable to one or more of the statutory or non-statutory chief
officers:

i)  All of Executive Director of People direct reports
i)  All of Executive Director of Health Wellbeing and Prevention direct reports
i) All of Executive Director of Resources direct reports
iv)  All of Executive Director of Place direct reports
v)  All of Assistant Director of Transformation and Efficiency direct reports

Pagp 34

Contact: Sam Williams on 01743 252817




Agenda Item 8

| Council 21 March 2024 Community Governance Review |

ltem

ﬁ?ShFOpSh”"e Council

Council

21 March 2024

Healthy
Environment

Public

@

Healthy
Economy

Healthy
Organisation

Community Governance Review

Responsible Officer: Tim Collard
email:  tim.collard@shropshire.gov.uk Tel: | (01743) 252756

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder): = Councillor Gwilym Butler

1. Synopsis

1.1  To seek Council approval for consultation on the community governance reviews
recommended by the Community Governance Review Working Group

2. Executive Summary

2.1 The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 provides authority for
Shropshire Council to undertake community governance reviews and to decide whether
to give effect to recommendations made in those reviews. In making those decisions, it
Is necessary to take account of the views of local people.

2.2 Following the completion of the review undertaken by the Local Government
Boundary Commission for England (LGBCE), a number of the new division boundaries
dissect an existing Parish. The LGBCE does not have the power to change Parish
Boundaries but must create a Parish Ward where a division boundary cuts across a
parish.

Page 35

Contact: Tim Collard 01743 252756 1




Council 21 March 2024 Community Governance Review

2.3

2.3

3.1

7.1

Shropshire Council, at its meeting held on 14 December 2023, agreed to commence a
Community Governance Review to ensure that the community governance for the area
continues to be effective and convenient and that it reflects the identities and interests
of the community.

Consultation commenced on 15 December 2023 and concluded on 26 January 2024.
The Community Governance Review Working Group (consisting of Councillors Nick
Bardsley, Gwilym Butler (Chair), Ted Clarke, Nick Hignett, Simon Jones, Duncan Kerr,
Heather Kidd, David Minnery, Cecilia Motley, Alex Wagner and Claire Wild) met, on 07
February 2024, to discuss the responses received during the consultation and prepare
recommendations for draft proposals to be considered by the Council.

That the draft proposals for the following Community Governance reviews set out in
appendices 1 to 5 be approved for consultation:

(a) Albrighton/Donington

(b) Baschurch/Pimhill (Bomere Heath and District)
(c) Ludlow/Ludford

(d) Market Drayton/Adderley

(e) Shrewsbury

Report

Risk Assessmentand Opportunities Appraisal

Shropshire Council is required to keep the electoral arrangements of Parishes in its
area under review. The recommendations in this report do not have an adverse impact
on human rights or equalities. When conducting a review, the Council is required to
have regard to the identities and interests of the community in the area and is required
to consult with local government electors in the area under review and any other person
or body which, in the opinion of the Council, might have an interest in the review.

Financial Implications

This report is simply seeking approval to consult on the draft proposals which will not
involve some costs in terms of publicity and postage in addition to officer time.

Climate Change Appraisal

The Community Governance Review will have no obvious impact in terms of climate
change.

Background

The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 provides authority for
Shropshire Council to undertake community governance reviews and to decide whether
Page 36

| Contact: Tim Collard 01743 252756 2




Council 21 March 2024 Community Governance Review

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

to give effect to recommendations made in those reviews. In making those decisions, itis
necessary to take account of the views of local people.

The first period of consultation closed on 26 January. The Community Governance
Review Working Group considered the responses received during the consultation set
out in the draft proposals documents (Appendices 1 to 5) and agreed to make
recommendations as follows:

Albrighton/Donington/Boscobel

That the Parishes of Albrighton, Donington and Boscobel be abolished, a new parish of
Albrighton and Donington, split into three wards and represented by a Parish Council be
created.

Baschurch/Pimhill
That the Walford Heath Parish Ward of Pimhill Parish be moved into the Parish of
Baschurch and a new ward for the Parish of Baschurch be created for Walford and
Walford Heath It is further proposed that the parish of Pimhill be renamed “Bomere Heath
and District.”

Ludlow/Ludford

That no changes are made to the current arrangements at this time.

Market Drayton/ Adderley

That the Weston Way Parish Ward of Adderley Parish be moved into the Market Drayton
East Ward of the Parish of Market Drayton

Shrewsbury
a. That the Bicton Urban ward of Bicton Parish be moved into the Bowbrook ward of the

Shrewsbury Parish

b. That the Upper Edgebold ward of Great Hanwood Parish be moved into the Radbrook
ward of the Shrewsbury Parish

c. That the Hendrick Crescent ward of Atcham Parish be moved into the Sutton and
Reabrook ward of the Shrewsbury Parish

d. That the area of land north of the A5 currently in the Berrington Parish be moved into
the Sutton and Reabrook ward of the Shrewsbury Parish

e. the Pimley Manor ward of Uffington Parish be moved into the Sundorne ward of the
Shrewsbury Parish;

f. That the Bowbrook ward be renamed Bicton Heath

g. That the Sutton and Reabrook ward be renamed Oteley and Reabrook

h. That the Sundorne ward be renamed Sundorne and Old Heath

In order to complete each review, a further period of consultation is required to be
undertaken.

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does
notinclude items containing exempt or confidential information)

Page 37

Contact: Tim Collard 01743 252756 3




Council 21 March 2024 Community Governance Review

Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 and Regulations made
thereunder.

Local Member: All

Appendices

Draft Proposals

Appendix 1 - Albrighton/Donington

Appendix 2 - Baschurch/Pimhil(Bomere Heath and District)
Appendix 3 - Ludlow/Ludford

Appendix 4 - Market Drayton/Adderley

Appendix 5 - Shrewsbury

Page 38

Contact: Tim Collard 01743 252756 4




SHROPSHIRE COUNCIL

COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW OF THE PARISHES OF ALBRIGHTON,

DONINGTON AND BOSCOBEL

LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT IN HEALTH ACT 2007

DRAFT PROPOSALS

1. Introduction

1.1 Shropshire Council has resolved to undertake a Community Governance Review
of the Parishes of Albrighton, Donington and Boscobel. The area to be included in
the review is the whole of the Parishes of Albrighton, Donington and Boscobel.

1.2 The Council gave public notice of a Community Governance Review and published
the Terms of Reference for the review of the Parishes of Albrighton and Donington
and in December 2023. Copies of the Terms of Reference were sent by e-mail to the
Parish Councils and to other stakeholders in the area. Information on the effect of the
review was also available for inspection at the Councils offices at Shirehall,
Shrewsbury and on the Council’s website.

1.3 The Terms of Reference were intended to prompt local consideration and initiate
discussionin order that the Council could take account of local feeling when preparing
its Draft Proposal Document. All concerned were invited to submit their comments in
writing by 26 January 2024.

14 Following the consultation, it was agreed to extend the area under review to include
the Parish of Boscobel, which jointly forms the Parish Council of Donington with
Boscobel.

1.4 A resident of Donington with Boscobel who is also a Parish Councillor indicated her
support for the retention of two Parish Councils with a slight increase to the size of
Albrighton. They suggested that one large parish risks benefitting the residents of
Albrighton to the detriment of the residents of Donington with Boscobel.

15 Another resident of Donington recognised the need to change and presented

arguments for both one council and for a smaller adjustment to the Parish Boundaries.

Community Governance Review — AIbrighton/DonirBlag-@m?ﬁgecommendations 1



1.6 A resident of Albrighton who is also a Parish Councillor suggested that the Parish of
Albrighton should be extended to include not only Donington with Boscobel, but also
Boningale, and Cosford. She suggested that the facilities of Albrighton were relied
upon by residents of all these areas and that they would be better served by one Parish
Council.

1.6 Albrighton Parish Council indicated that a joint meeting had been facilitated with
Donington with Boscobel Parish Council and preferred an amalgamation of the
Parishes into one with no wards.

1.7 Nigel Lumby, Shropshire Councillor for Albrighton, indicated support for the views
expressed by the Parish Councils.

2.0 BACKGROUND

2.1 The Parish of Albrighton is currently represented by 15 Councillors, split over two
wards. The Donington with Boscobel Parish Council is comprised of 10 Councillors
representing 3 parishes/parish wards.

2.2 The current and projected electorate figures for the Parishes of Albrighton, Donington
and Boscobel are setout in the tables below:

Parish Number of | Number  of | No of | Ratio of
Councillors | Electors Electors Electors per
(October (April 2028) | Councillor
2023)
Albrighton 15 3,421 3,778 1: 252
Donington 9 1,073 1,084 1:120
Boscobel 1 21 31 1:31
2.3 The current Shropshire Council division boundaries were made by the Local

Government Boundary Commission for England during its recent review and
necessitated the boundaries crossing several Parishes. Unless they are amended by

order following a Community Governance Review, the new boundaries may not

Community Governance Review — Albrighton/DRi%e—égﬂ Recommendations 2



2.4

2.6

2.7

2.8

3.0

provide for effective and convenient local governance or reflect the identities and
interests of the community in that area.

To avoid this situation arising at the next ordinary elections due to be held in May 2025,
Shropshire Council is undertaking a review of the electoral arrangements for the
Parishes of Albrighton, Donington and Boscobel under the provisions of Section 82
of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007, as well as the
Guidance on Community Governance Reviews issued in accordance with
Section 100(4) of the Act by the Department of Communities and Local Government
and the Electoral Commission (Revised March 2010).

The review also provides an opportunity to consider whether the historic electoral
boundaries for Albrighton, Donington and Boscobel remain appropriate, after taking
account of recent residential development as well as that proposed by 2029 and
beyond. The provision of more obvious and appropriate external boundaries for the
parishes have been considered in the interests of community identity and community
cohesion. In accordance with statutory guidance the review is seeking to establish
boundaries which follow the line of permanent or established physical features, rather
than the ancient field boundaries which mean little to today’s residents, where possible
The Terms of Reference document published in December 2023 set out the objective
of the review to consider whether there should be any changes to the boundaries
between the parishes of Albrighton and Donington, Following the conclusion of the
consultation, it was decided to extend the area under review to include also the
Parish of Boscobel.

During the preparation of these draft recommendations, the Council has taken account

of the comments received from the Parish Councils, residents and the Shropshire

Councillor for the area.

PROPOSED BOUNDARY CHANGES

Community Governance Review — AIbrighton/Doninglag-@rét]iecommendations 3



3.1

3.2

3.4

It is proposed that the Parishes of Albrighton, Donington and Boscobel be abolished
and a new single Parish created, known as the Parish of Albrighton and Donington
with a new Parish Council.

It is proposed that the Parish of Albrighton and Donington have three wards — the
Donington and Boscobel Ward, coloured green on Plan A, attached; the Albrighton
Village Eastward, coloured blue on Plan A, attached; and the Albrighton Village West
ward, coloured red on Plan A attached.

The current and projected electorate figures for the proposed wards in the Parish of

Albrighton and Donington are set out in the table below:

Proposed Parish Number of | Number of No of Ratio of
Councillors Electors Electors Electors per
(October (April 2028) Councillor
2023)
Albrighton, Donington 16 4515 4,893 1: 306
and Boscobel
Proposed Parish Wards | Number of | Number of No of Ratio of
Councillors Electors Electors Electors per
(October (April 2028) Councillor
2023)
Albrighton Village East 6 1,457 1,789 1:298
Albrighton Village West 7 2,173 2,195 1:313
Donington and Boscobel 3 885 909 1:303

4.0 PARISH COUNCIL SIZE:

4.1 The law requires that when considering whether to establish a pattern of wards for the

4.2

purposes for elections, the Council must first consider whether it is desirable for any
part of the parish to be separately represented on the Parish/Town Council. Secondly,
it is necessary to consider whether the number or distribution of electors within the
parish/town would make a single election of councillors impracticable.

There is little guidance on the appropriate number of councillors required to represent

a parish, other than there not being any less than five councillors. Where there is no

Community Governance Review — AIbrighton/D(Ri%e—éaﬁ Recommendations 4



maximum number and no rules on the allocation of councillors, in recent years the
Council has used the National Association of Local Councils’ formula as a guide

4.3  The Aston Business School has also published research on the appropriate levels of
representation.

4.4 In large parishes such as Albrighton and Donington there is a very strong case for
dividing the parishinto electoral wards, as communityidentity and community interests
tend to focus on a locality or neighbourhood. This can be an existing housing estate,
a shopping centre or some community facility. Where there is evidence that different
parts of a town have had their own sense of identity historically this supports the
establishment or retention of electoral wards.

4.5 It is proposed that the Parish of Albrighton comprises of 16 Councillors Split over 3

wards:
Donington and Boscobel 3
Albrighton East 6
Albrighton West 7

5.0 WHAT HAPPENS NEXT?

51 An initial timetable for this review was outlined in the Terms of Reference document
published in December 2023 but has been extended to allow for a longer period of

consultation as follows:-

Stage What happens? Timescales

Commencement | Terms of Reference are published | 14 December 2023

Stage one Initial Submissions are invited 15 December 2023

to 26 January 2024

Stage two Consideration of submissions | 27 January 2024 to
received — Draft | 20 March 2024

Recommendations are prepared

Community Governance Review — AIbrighton/Doninglag-@rétaecommendations 5



Stage three Draft Recommendations are | 21 March 2024 to 10

published — consultations on them | May 2024

Stage four Considerations of submissions | 11 May 2024 to 31
received — final recommendations | May 2024

are prepared

Final recommendations are | End June 2024

published — concluding review

Council resolves to make a | July 2024

Reorganisation Order

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

6.0

These draft proposals set out Shropshire Councils initial recommendations for the
future of Community Governance for Albrighton, Donington and Boscobel. The
Council will now allow a further period, in accordance with the above timetable for
public consultation.

Final Proposals will be made in response to the outcome of these consultations and
they may wholly change the Draft Proposals to encompass the broadly held views of
the residents of the affected areas, insofar as they are compatible with the legal tests
and principles referred to throughout this document.

There will then be a short period after the final proposals are published before the
Shropshire Council approves the recommendations and then seeks the consent of the
LGBCE to make the formal Order. This period will allow further time for any final
submissions and arguments to be made covering matters which did not arise during
earlier stages of the review.

A period for comments on the draft proposals has now opened and this lasts until 10

May 2024.

HOWTO CONTACT US

Community Governance Review — Albrighton/DRia@e—ééﬂ Recommendations 6




6.1 Comments should be submitted to the Democratic Services Section of Shropshire

Council by e-mail at communitygovernance@shropshire.gov.uk. Alternatively, you

can contact us at the following address:
Democratic and Electoral Services
Shropshire Council
The Shirehall
Abbey Foregate
Shrewsbury
SY2 6ND

Should you require any further information or need clarification on the review

process, please the above contact details.

Community Governance Review — AIbrighton/DonirBlag-@rgtﬁecommendations 7


mailto:communitygovernance@shropshire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



o = r ‘ ,, ‘ ‘ - DR
|/ KnollLodge ‘ [Tong Rougl [ Cuttag|
Plan A: Albrighton, Donington and Boscobel Parish ( Foxey ( Cottage// S | i
— CIZara FormT 77 | ; / - ' ! Peai"'ls'e ’
[\ / // \ The Holt ' O ¥res Hay Fanmd. Co
DAIbrighton, Donington and Boscobel Parish \ oy ®% °“°X€¥F3"“ 4 Barh ; /CO
/ Norton Mere Cottage oftor® e ‘ j e
. . Y P
Albrighton East Parish Ward A 3 // // | | Y A Boscolt .
; ; se Tong:Norton =) Barn %
[| 9 Albrighton West Parish Ward y FO% (] : \ % o s
. . /0 i 3 f o Peckerfield
Donington and Boscobel Parish Ward 2\ Ao _
! T |\ ) w -}
-F ncounty 1 ~ = | | \ / ."' & 3
.»r - ( i ) RoyilOak Wo
T o Y 55, g B - Whlteladles )
3 A Timiet © A Plantatlon
&S Lol eein =
‘g I \\ Spring gley L
2 A £ Home Far ik SIEL \
~ LoamWood AN } i
930 el | TheWood, l
| ( House Langley
Big Wood \ Ruckley, Cogc?gan s / Lawn Farm
Farm - 1 Grange —- X
\ )
¢ Grouse e —— X : \ \ -
\p (e ! e\ | u >
IF , ] [ - - L\ e 2 s
{ . Neachley \\ Kilsall (| bl - / B a /‘9 . ~._  BigWood
Ruckleywood \ House . OR 2 | (o A Lowern [ — UpperDairy g\~ —=_—__
U Farm Uses AT WOOd Farm e Houise
Ercatirg { & BOSCOb% — /
¥ \~ [
S ? Parlsh Ward N\ |
‘ \ . » Lower. Dalry,- |
NN / b House™~ o \ }
~ CommonFarm R : . E \ o \ y.
Twybrook . ' ‘ ) N A
House, Rookery 3 . S & : CodsaffWood ™\
’ Cottage = ? e o ampl
" School , : i " Farm Rainbow
‘ Cottage [ ‘ ; _ . » Stablesﬂ B
‘ | 7.  Rookery The : : ] o
i Thick Covert Farm Higﬁlan ¥
( / Spring
Plowden | Home s = Sottag
Farm || <HFarm® Colt Ha\,L,/\j ﬁ A PT\Cottage
Wood g Ggsford W Parlsh Wardjmen 3 R
‘k , ( King Edward's Ibrizh S @ B\ gHouse E Husphir
Dmg Covert PR L
Plantation # /:\t’}]/l\/ M A righton — High-House %ild Wood Th
e/ ey Ko ¢ Village|West Farm _—— ]
) Parish\Ward| oser 3
ark Farm
4 e ey / ,
| © crown copyright 2024 0S AC0000808715. Use of this data is subject ] The Woodhotse | ) Riders Way'Cottage
to terms and conditions. (1) You are granted a non-exclusive, royalty N g
free revocable licence solely to view the licensed data for \/ W = \ 1 Kl ng Y OOd & . [ Laev?:
non-commercial purposes for the period during which Shropshire Ha"‘ Farm ‘ G Vch’I:tE \ y = e
Council makes it available; (1) You are not permitted to copy, ‘ AT _,c];arm,"" ngsvg.o‘od 4 /
sub-license, distribute, sell or otherwise make available the Licensed Y s Boningale =/ Common !
- I | g i ) ¢ .
Data to third parties in any form; and (lll) Third party rights to enforce (/ “little v, { == : X N Shr‘o Sh”f‘e
| the terms of this licence shall be reserved to OS. J‘.’;' Whis}tf‘on Farm ‘ R =Y pCou neil

2 L Oegin i eiol]




This page is intentionally left blank



SHROPSHIRE COUNCIL

COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW OF THE PARISHES OF BASCHURCH AND

PIMHILL (KNOWN LOCALLY AS BOMERE HEATH AND DISTRICT

LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT IN HEALTH ACT 2007

DRAFT PROPOSALS

1. Introduction

1.1 Shropshire Council has resolved to undertake a Community Governance Review
of the Parishes of Baschurch and Pimhill. The area to be included in the review is
the whole of the Parishes of Baschurch and Pimbhill.

1.2  The Council gave public notice of a Community Governance Review and published
the Terms of Reference for the review of the Parishes of Baschurch and Pimhill in
December 2023. Copies of the Terms of Reference were sent by e-mail to the Parish
Councils and to other stakeholders in the area. Information on the effect of the review
was also available for inspection at the Councils offices at Shirehall, Shrewsbury and
on the Council’s website.

13 The Terms of Reference were intended to prompt local consideration and initiate
discussionin order that the Council could take account of local feeling when preparing
its Draft Proposal Document. All concerned were invited to submit their comments in
writing by 26 January 2024.

14 Baschurch Parish Council proposed moving the Walford Heath ward of Pimhill Parish
into the parish of Baschurchand creating of a new ward of the parish council consisting
of both Walford village and the Walford Heath ward, with one councillor elected to

represent that ward.

2.0 BACKGROUND

2.1 The Parish of Baschurch is currently represented by 12 Councillors, split over two

wards. The Parish of Pimhill is represented by 13 Councillors split over 5 wards.

Community Governance Review — Baschurch/Pim Iﬁagat élegommendations 1



2.2 The current and projected electorate figures for the wards in the Parishes of

Baschurch and Pimhill are set out in the tables below:

Baschurch
Parish Number of [ Number of | No of Electors | Ratio of
Councillors | Electors (April 2028) Electors  per
(October Councillor
2023)
Baschurch 12 2,325 2,649 1. 218
Parish Wards Number of | Number of | No of Electors | Ratio of
Councillors | Electors (April 2028) Electors  per
(October Councillor
2023)
Weston Lullingfields 3 463 508 1: 169
Baschurch 9 1,862 2,141 1. 238
Pimhill
Parish Number of [ Number of | No of Electors | Ratio of
Councillors | Electors (April 2028) Electors  per
(October Councillor
2023)
Pimhill (Bomere Heath) 13 1,880 1,969 1: 90
Parish Wards Number of | Number of | No of Electors | Ratio of
Councillors | Electors (April 2028) Electors  per
(October Councillor
2023)
Bomere Heath 8 1,129 1,165 1: 146
Fitz 2 275 309 1. 155
Leaton 1 162 162 1. 162
Preston Gubbals 1 209 223 1. 223
Walford Heath 1 105 110 1. 110

2.3 The current Shropshire Council division boundaries were made by the Local
Government Boundary Commission for England during its recent review and
necessitated the boundaries crossing several Parishes. Unless they are amended by
order following a Community Governance Review, the new boundaries may not
provide for effective and convenient local governance or reflect the identities and

interests of the community in that area.

Community Governance Review — Baschurch/PRIag®r5taecommendations 2



2.4

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

3.0

3.1

3.2

To avoid this situation arising at the next ordinary elections due to be held in May 2025,
Shropshire Council is undertaking a review of the electoral arrangements for the
Parishes of Baschurch and Pimhill under the provisions of Section 82 of the Local
Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007, as well as the Guidance on
Community Governance Reviews issued in accordance with Section 100(4) of the Act
by the Department of Communities and Local Government and the Electoral
Commission (Revised March 2010).

The review also provides an opportunity to consider whether the historic electoral
boundaries for Baschurch and Pimhill remain appropriate, after taking account of
recent residential development as well as that proposed by 2029 and beyond. The
provision of more obvious and appropriate external boundaries for the parishes have
been considered in the interests of community identity and community cohesion. In
accordance with statutory guidance the review is seeking to establish boundaries
which follow the line of permanent or established physical features, rather than the
ancient field boundaries which mean little to today’s residents, where possible

The Terms of Reference document published in December 2023 set out the objective
of the review to consider whether there should be any changes to the boundaries
between the parishes of Baschurch and Pimbhill.

During the preparing of these draft recommendations, the Council has taken account

of the comments received from Baschurch Parish Council and Pimhill Parish Council.

Public comment at the end of the first stage of this process has been limited.

PROPOSED BOUNDARY CHANGES

It is proposed that the boundary between the Parishes of Baschurch and Pimhill be
amended to move the Walford Heath ward (hatched on Plan A, attached) of Pimhill
Parish into the Baschurch Parish.

It is proposed that the Parish of Baschurch have three wards — the existing Weston

Lullingfield Ward coloured green on Plan A, attached; a reduced Baschurch ward,

Community Governance Review — Baschurch/Pim Iﬁagat I&lommendations 3



coloured yellow on the Plan A, attached; and a new Walford and Walford Heath ward,
coloured red on Plan A attached.

3.3 It is proposed that the Parish of Pimhill have 4 wards — Bomere Heath, coloured yellow
on Plan B attached; Fitz, coloured green on Plan B attached; Leaton, coloured blue on
Plan B attached; and Preston Gubbals, coloured red on Plan B attached.

3.3 The current and projected electorate figures for the proposed wards in the Parishes of

Baschurch and Pimhill are set out in the tables below:

Baschurch
Parish and Parish Wards Number of | Number of | No of Electors | Ratio of
Councillors | Electors (April 2028) Electors  per
(October Councillor
2023)
Baschurch Parish 12 2432 2,755 1: 230
Walford and Walford Heath 1 271 294 1: 294
Baschurch 9 1,698 1,953 1: 217
Weston Lullingfields 2 463 508 1. 254
Pimhill
Parish and Parish Wards Number of | Number of | No of Electors | Ratio of
Councillors | Electors (April 2028) Electors  per
(October Councillor
2023)
Pimhill (Bomere Heath and 13 1,775 1,859 1:143
District) Parish
Bomere Heath 8 1,129 1,165 1: 146
Fitz 2 275 309 1: 155
Leaton 1 162 162 1: 162
Preston Gubbals 2 209 223 1: 112

3.4 It is further proposed that the name of the Parish of Pimhill be amended to Bomere

Heath and District.

4.0 PARISH COUNCIL SIZE:

Community Governance Review — Baschurch/PRIag®r5(2ecommendations 4



4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.5

5.0

The law requires that when considering whether to establish a pattern of wards for the
purposes for elections, the Council must first consider whether it is desirable for any
part of the parish to be separately represented on the Parish/Town Council. Secondly,
it is necessary to consider whether the number or distribution of electors within the
parish/ftown would make a single election of councillors impracticable.

There is little guidance on the appropriate number of councillors required to represent
a parish, other than there not being any less than five councillors. Where there is no
maximum number and no rules on the allocation of councillors, in recent years the
Council has used the National Association of Local Councils’ formula as a guide

The Aston Business School has also published research on the appropriate levels of
representation.

In large parishes suchas Baschurchand Pimhill there is a very strong case for dividing
the parish into electoral wards, as community identity and community interests tend to
focus on a locality or neighbourhood. This can be an existing housing estate, a
shopping centre or some community facility. Where there is evidence that different
parts of a town have had their own sense of identity historically this supports the
establishment or retention of electoral wards.

Baschurch

It is proposed that the Parish of Baschurch comprise of 12 Councillors Split over 3

wards:
Baschurch 9
Walford and Walford Heath 1
Weston Lullingfields 2
Pimhill

It is proposed that the Parish of Pimhill should comprise of 13 Councillors over 4 wards:

Bomere Heath

Fitz

Leaton

N[ N]

Preston Gubbals

WHAT HAPPENS NEXT?

Community Governance Review — Baschurch/Pim Iﬁagat @&mmendations 5



51 An initial timetable for this review was outlined in the Terms of Reference document
published in December 2023 but has been extended to allow for a longer period of

consultation as follows:-

Stage What happens? Timescales

Commencement | Terms of Reference are published | 14 December 2023

Stage one Initial Submissions are invited 15 December 2023

to 26 January 2024

Stage two Consideration of submissions | 27 January 2024 to
received - Draft | 20 March 2024

Recommendations are prepared

Stage three Draft Recommendations are | 21 March 2024 to 10

published — consultations on them | May 2024

Stage four Considerations of submissions | 11 May 2024 to 31
received — final recommendations | May 2024

are prepared

Final recommendations are | End June 2024

published — concluding review

Council resolves to make a | July 2024

Reorganisation Order

5.2  These draft proposals set out Shropshire Councils initial recommendations for the
future of Community Governance for Baschurch and Pimhill. The Council will now
allow a further period, in accordance with the above timetable for public consultation.

5.3 Final Proposals will be made in response to the outcome of these consultations and

they may wholly change the Draft Proposals to encompass the broadly held views of

Community Governance Review — Baschurch/PRﬂQ@rMecommendations 6



54

5.5

6.0

6.1

the residents of the affected areas, insofar as they are compatible with the legal tests
and principles referred to throughout this document.

There will then be a short period after the final proposals are published before the
Shropshire Council approves the recommendations and then seeks the consent of the
LGBCE to make the formal Order. This period will allow further time for any final
submissions and arguments to be made covering matters which did not arise during
earlier stages of the review.

A period for comments on the draft proposals has now opened and this lasts until 10

May 2024.

HOWTO CONTACT US

Comments should be submitted to the Democratic Services Section of Shropshire

Council by e-mail at communitygovernance@shropshire.gov.uk. Alternatively, you

can contact us at the following address:
Democratic and Electoral Services
Shropshire Council
The Shirehall
Abbey Foregate
Shrewsbury
SY2 6ND

Should you require any further information or need clarification on the review

process, please the above contact details.

Community Governance Review — Baschurch/Pim Iﬁagat I5,53mmendations 7


mailto:communitygovernance@shropshire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



L1 WAl e LI01

Plan A: Parlsh of Baschurch

-?wtﬁ‘XI

Weston|

Lullingfields
Parish\Ward

unnin

—

—

D Proposed Baschurch Parish
D Baschurch Parish Ward

- Walford and Walford Heath Parish Ward
- Weston Lullingfields Parish Ward

/) LGBCE Walford Heath Ward

O,

N I uugeePool

© Crown copyright 2024 OS AC0000808715. Use of this data is subject
to terms and conditions. (I) You are granted a non-exclusive, royalty
free revocable licence solely to view the licensed data for
non-commercial purposes for the period during which Shropshire
Council makes it available; (I1) You are not permitted to copy,
sub-license, distribute, sell or otherwise make available the Licﬁage
Data to third parties in any form; and (Ill) Third party rights to enforce
the terms of this licence shall be reserved to OS.

fields
57

T T

- _Parish\Ward

The=
Rough

e Wood
Old Gorse

v oodi
Pool Coppice *

Marton
Coppice

Baschurch . .

"~ Olawood 7~
Coppicé

Old Wood
-

ckkiln
Plantatio:

ug,,\/

¢ Meadow P ntatuon

e

¢

Grafton \ : \§
)t 77 / Kééper's Wood
/\Forton ) [ N
H eath Black Copplce

v&‘q

Y shire

Council

Shrop

_ Mytton °

Y




This page is intentionally left blank



[ VWESTOTT /i | \

Plan B: Parish of Pimhill (Bomere Heath and District)

i’e}&sﬁ _ \ )\/

Marton ! \\ ’
N o / ‘ ' Newton on
Birchgrove~ ‘ the'Hill ' ‘
Pool Wi . 3
/]Fencmcre ‘
Eytoﬁ/lo oot 1% : ‘/7

——

Rabbit  ° Coppint

Hill

Blackb:

WarBrook
‘Walford

- Walford Heath

Preston
Gubbals
Parish Ward

yper
Broomfielg efield

v

lakeley's

J\
Clump\ Wik
\/ ¢

Isle Pool

+

Ve,

o
FO[R\OD Coppice Parish Ward Hencott Wood
Montford f A
; , f ppice
/Bndge \W _ : ;
. | ‘ \T Rongd Pimley
Rough
\ Preitaf” & ‘

1| Proposed Pimhill Parish :
) £
D Bomere Heath Parish Ward s,@, Sheltonv_ N Afon Hafr
lal 58 S‘vahe"MOum RiNeSey
[ Fitz Parish Ward adl J
- 2, thorne:Ro;
h - Leaton Parish Ward \ W A
-——-/

V°< /
- Preston Gubbals Parish WardAB/O/wbr._ODk W{}r’fhill ‘

© Crown copyright 2024 OS AC0000808715. Use of this data is subject
to terms and conditions. (I) You are granted a non-exclusive, royalty brook
free revocable licence solely to view the licensed data for £
| non-commercial purposes for the period during which Shropshire
Council makes it available; (I1) You are not permitted to copy,
sub-license, distribute, sell or otherwise make available the Licgage
Data to third parties in any form; and (Ill) Third party rights to enforce
the terms of this licence shall be reserved to OS.

— — — - ~ A J

Scale: 1:51,587

Shropshir—e |

Council

T N




This page is intentionally left blank



SHROPSHIRE COUNCIL COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW OF THE PARISHES OF

11

1.2

13

14

15

LUDLOWAND LUDFORD

LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT INHEALTH ACT 2007

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (PARISH AND PARISH COUNCILS) (ENGLAND)
REGULATIONS 2008

DRAFT PROPOSALS

Introduction

Shropshire Council has resolved to undertake a Community Governance Review
of the Parishes of Ludlow and Ludford. The area to be included in the review is the

whole of the Parishes of Ludlow and Ludford.

The Council gave public notice of a Community Governance Review and published
the Terms of Reference for the review of the Parishes of Ludlow and Ludford in
December 2023. Copies of the Terms of Reference were sent by e-mail to the Town
and Parish Councils and to other stakeholders in the area. Information on the effect
of the review was also available for inspection at the Councils offices at Shirehall,

Shrewsbury and on the Council’'s website.

The Terms of Reference were intended to prompt local consideration and initiate
discussion in order that the Council could take account of local feeling when preparing
its Draft Proposal Document. All concerned were invited to submit their comments in

writing by 26 January 2024.

Ludlow Town Council has suggested that the Rockgreen Ward of Ludford Parish
should transfer into the Parish of Ludlow together with a large part of the Ludford Rural
Ward. The Rockgreen ward would be amalgamated into the current Hayton Ward and
a new “Sheet Ward” of the Town Council would be created. This would retain a small
Ludford Parish centred around the village of Ludford. The growth of Ludlow outside of
its boundaries into Ludford is referred to as is the existence of the Town's Park and

Ride service operating from a site within the Parish of Ludford.

Two of the Shropshire Councillors for the Ludlow area have expressed their support
for the proposal of Ludlow Town Council, noting that the communities within Ludford
do not have a single identity and no direct road link exists between the three main

distinct settlements.

Page 61



1.6 A former Ludlow Town Councillor has suggested that the two Parishes should be
amalgamated to ensure that the residents of the Ludford Parish contribute equally to
the services that they use which are currently funded solely by the residents within the
Parish of Ludlow.

1.7 Ludford Parish Council has indicated support for the retention of the current Parish
Boundaries. They rely on the historic nature of the Parish and the particular community
identity of the village of Ludford and surrounding Parish with its close links to the
Ludford Manor Estate. With particular regard to the Rock Green Parish Ward, the
Parish Council note the lack of a bridge to provide a safe pedestrian route across the
busy A49 road and a renewed sense of community with new housing developments
and the opening of a large supermarket.

1.8  Two residents of the Rock Green ward of the Parish have expressed their satisfaction
that the current arrangements provide effective and convenient governance for the
hamlet of Rock Green, situated on the outskirts of Ludlow.

2. What Happens Next

2.1 An initial timetable for this review was outlined in the Terms of Reference document
published in December 2023 but has been extended to allow for a longer period of
consultation as follows:-

Stage What happens? Timescales
Commencement Terms of Reference are | 14 December 2023
published
Stage one Initial Submissions are | 15 December 2023 to
invited 26 January 2024
Stage two Consideration of | 27 January 2024 to 20
submissions received — | March 2024
Draft Recommendations
are prepared
Stage three Draft Recommendations | 21 March 2024 to 10
are published — | May 2024
consultations on them
Stage four Considerations of | 11 May 2024 to 31 May
submissions received — | 2024
final recommendations
are prepared
Final recommendations | End June 2024
are published -
concluding review

Page 62



Council

Order

resolves

to

make a Reorganisation

July 2024

3.0 Draft Recommendations

3.1 Having regard to the provisions of the Local Government and Public Involvement in
Health Act 2007, associated Guidance on Community Reviews produced jointly by the
department for Communities and Local Government and the Local Government
Boundary Commission for England and to the responses that have been received
during the initial consultation period, it is recommended that there should be no change

to the current Community governance arrangements:

Ludlow
Number of | Number of | No of Electors | Ratio of
Councillors | Electors (April 2028) Electors  per
(October Councillor
2023)
Ludlow 15 7,970 8,378 1: 559
Parish Wards Number of | Number of | No of Electors | Ratio of
Councillors | Electors (April 2028) Electors  per
(October Councillor
2023)
Bringewood 2 978 1,286 1: 643
Clee View 2 1,295 1,303 1: 652
Corve 2 949 1,021 1: 511
Gallows Bank 3 1,814 1,812 1: 604
Hayton 2 947 949 1: 475
Rockspring 2 976 979 1: 490
Whitcliffe 2 1,011 1,028 1: 514
Ludford
Number of | Number of | No of Electors | Ratio of
Councillors | Electors (April 2028) Electors  per
(October Councillor
2023)
Ludford 7 744 1,106 1: 158
Parish Wards Number of | Number of | No of Electors | Ratio of
Councillors | Electors (April 2028) Electors  per
(October Councillor
2023)
Rockgreen 2 132 132 1. 66
Ludford Rural 5 612 1,106 1: 221

Page 63




3.2

3.4

3.5

3.7

3.8

4.1

At this stage of the review, it is not considered to have been established that the
changes proposed by Ludlow Town Council and supported by two of the Shropshire
Councillors for Ludlow would better reflect the identities of local communities.

There is no evidence to suggest that the proposed changes would improve the ability
of individuals and organisations to participate and influence matters in the area in
which they are situated. Both Ludlow Town Council and Ludford Parish Council are
fully functioning and appear to have little difficulty in attracting candidates or engaging
with residents.

Consultees, other stakeholders and the public now have until 10 May 2024, in
accordance with the above timetable, in which to submit further comments and formal
representations.

Shropshire Councils final proposals will be made in response to the outcome of these
further consultations and they may wholly change the draft proposals to encompass
the broadly held views of the residents of the affected area, insofar as these are

compatible with the appropriate legal tests and principles.

There will then be a short period after the final proposals are published before the
Council approves the recommendations. This will allow further time for any final
submissions and/or arguments to be made covering matters which did not arise during

earlier stages of the review.

How to contact us

Comments should be submitted to the Democratic Services Section of Shropshire

Council by e-mail at communitygovernance@shropshire.gov.uk. Alternatively, you

can contact us at the following address:

Democratic and Electoral Services
Shropshire Council

The Shirehall

Abbey Foregate

Shrewsbury

SY2 6ND

Page 64


mailto:communitygovernance@shropshire.gov.uk

Should you require any further information or need clarification on the review

process, please the above contact details.

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



cisrnorerarin

Ludlow and Ludford Parishes

OLJnthIi"rt

tage

=Ludford and Ludlow Parishes
Bringewood Parish Ward The

| B Clee View Parish Ward Seflnels

Corve Parish Ward

BringeWood :

Parish Ward h _ Ludford

. “Rockgreen

Gallows Bank Parish Ward 1) Bromfield CP Parish Ward
Hayton Parish Ward riors ‘
ayton Parish War Ltk Farmm Corve
Ludford Rural Parish Ward Parish ¥
i \ Ward ) lan Bitterley CP [
Rockgreen Parish Ward Haltey,., ///
Rockspring Parish Ward e G Rocksprlpg s
Whitcliffe Parish Ward B =4 \Ward _
Whitcliffe = ) {
=Count - o
it /Pareh vierdh fitese 240 v ’v%&\ d?/\'\jyecrhe
Covert | o8 <Ga|low'§Bank oy

~v gy

oad

—— Mortimer=————Mid|e N o° \
i ———Cottage . P%Sh \Ward
—§ —
(@)
(9]
(@)]
\l
Ludford Rural
P Parish Ward Caynham
(_',qrs(y Mary Knoll H|l House
op p | [ lJ—;
Sunny Mary Knoll Ludford CP =
Dingle Wood Valley Caynham CP | -
1| kershill
Starvecrow | Richard's Castle Hog%e
© Crown copyright 2024 0S AC0000808715. Use of this data is subject (Shropshire) CP \
to terms and conditions. (I) You are granted a non-exclusive, royalty 7 T Saltmog flaEn J
free revocable licence solely to view the licensed data for V 4 |\ or-Sg Carbonel CP /4
non-commercial purposes for the period during which Shropshire v 4 Newﬁﬁouse . ‘
Council makes it available; (1) You are not permitted to copy, / N 7 “|Scale: 1:24,000
sub-license, distribute, sell or otherwise make available the Licensed |- S~
. - . . ==0verton) —
Data to third parties in any form; and (l1l) Third party rights to enforce W\ Shro Shlre
\
the terms of this licence shall be reserved to OS. N\ pCou neil
= Coach Lo |cy'c;"'x r




This page is intentionally left blank



SHROPSHIRE COUNCIL

COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW OF THE PARISHES OF MARKET DRAYTON

AND ADDERLEY

LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT IN HEALTH ACT 2007

DRAFT PROPOSALS

1. Introduction

1.1 Shropshire Council has resolved to undertake a Community Governance Review
of the Parishes of Market Drayton and Adderley. The area to be included in the
review is the whole of the Parishes of Market Drayton and Adderley.

1.2 The Council gave public notice of a Community Governance Review and published
the Terms of Reference for the review of the Parishes of Market Drayton and Adderley
in December2023. Copies of the Terms of Reference were sent by e-mail to the Town
and Parish Councils and to other stakeholders in the area. Information on the effect
of the review was also available for inspection at the Councils offices at Shirehall,
Shrewsbury and on the Council’s website.

1.3 The Terms of Reference were intended to prompt local consideration and initiate
discussionin order that the Council could take account of local feeling when preparing
its Draft Proposal Document. All concerned were invited to submit their comments in
writing by 26 January 2024.

14  Adderley Parish Council expressed their preference to retain the current Parish
boundaries seeing no justification to change the current arrangement.

15 Market Drayton Town Council has asked that the boundaries of the Parish of Market
Drayton are extended into the Adderley Parish to bring the Western Way Ward of
Adderley Parish into the Market Drayton East Ward of Market Drayton Parish. Given
the small number of electors affected, the Town Council considered that the
amendment to the boundaries would not require any further change to the number of

Councillors for the Parish. It was argued that the change to the boundaries was

Community Governance Review —Market Drayton/B@gae—Gaft Recommendations 1



justified as the main business site of Market Drayton falls within the WesternWayWard

and provides employment for the town.

2.0 BACKGROUND

2.1 The Parish of Market Drayton is currently represented by 12 Councillors, split over
three wards. The wards are largely coterminous with the Shropshire Council Division
Boundaries with the exception of the division of Market Drayton East and Rural, which
takes in part of the Parish of Adderley and the Parishes of Norton in Hales and Woore.
The boundaries of Parishes of Norton in Hales and Woore are not affected by this
review.

2.2 The current and projected electorate figures for the wards in the Parishes of Market
Drayton and Adderley are set out in the tables below:

Market Drayton

Parish Number of [ Number of | No of Electors | Ratio of
Councillors | Electors (April 2028) Electors  per
(October Councillor
2023)
Market Drayton Parish 12 9,233 9,864 1: 822
Parish Wards Number  of | Number of | No of Electors | Ratio of
Councillors | Electors (April 2028) Electors  per
(October Councillor
2023)
Market Drayton East 2 1,844 1,856 1: 464
Market Drayton South 5 3,728 3,891 1: 156
Market Drayton North 5 3,661 4,117 1. 165
Adderley
Parish Number of | Number of | No of Electors | Ratio of
Councillors | Electors (April 2028) Electors  per
(October Councillor
2023)
Adderley Parish 7 352 474 1: 68
Parish Wards Number of | Number of | No of Electors | Ratio of
Councillors | Electors (April 2028) Electors  per
Councillor

Community Governance Review —Market Draytc}%)/&g@eyibraft Recommendations 2



(October

2023)
Western Way 2 12 118 1: 59
Adderley Rural 5 340 356 1.71

2.3

2.4

2.6

The current Shropshire Council division boundaries were made by the Local
Government Boundary Commission for England during its recent review and
necessitated the boundaries crossing several Parishes. Unless they are amended by
order following a Community Governance Review, the new boundaries may not
provide for effective and convenient local governance or reflect the identities and
interests of the community in that area.

To avoid this situation arising at the next ordinary elections due to be held in May 2025,
Shropshire Council is undertaking a review of the electoral arrangements for the
Parishes of Market Drayton and Adderley under the provisions of Section 82 of the
Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007, as well as the Guidance
on Community Governance Reviews issued in accordance with Section 100(4) of the
Act by the Department of Communities and Local Government and the Electoral
Commission (Revised March 2010).

The review also provides an opportunity to consider whether the historic electoral
boundaries for Market Drayton and Adderley remain appropriate, after taking account
of recent residential development in the town, as well as that proposed by 2029 and
beyond. The provision of more obvious and appropriate external boundaries for the
town and the adjacent parish, have been considered in the interests of community
identity and community cohesion. In accordance with statutory guidance the review is
seeking to establish boundaries which follow the line of permanent or established
physical features, rather than the ancient field boundaries which mean little to today’s

residents, where possible

Community Governance Review —Market Drayton/B@gae—ziﬁ Recommendations 3



2.7

2.8

2.9

3.0

3.1

3.2

The Terms of Reference document published in December 2023 set out the objective
of the review to consider whether there should be any changes to the boundaries
between the parishes of Market Drayton and Adderley.

During the preparing of these draft recommendations, the Council has taken account
of the comments received from Market Drayton Town Council and Adderley Parish
Council.

Public comment at the end of the first stage of this process has been limited.

PROPOSED BOUNDARY CHANGES

It is proposed that the boundary between the Parishes of Market Drayton and Adderley
be amended to move the Western Way ward (marked in yellow on the plan attached)
of Adderley Parish into the Market Drayton East ward of the Market Drayton Parish.

The current and projected electorate figures for the proposed wards in the Parish of
Market Drayton and the unwarded revised Parish of Adderley are setout in the tables

below:

Market Drayton

Parish Number of [ Number of | No of Electors | Ratio of
Councillors | Electors (April 2028) Electors  per
(October Councillor
2023)
Market Drayton Parish 12 9,245 9,983 1. 832
Proposed Parish Wards Number of | Number of | No of Electors | Ratio of
Councillors | Electors (April 2028) Electors  per
(October Councillor
2023)
Market Drayton East 2 1,856 1,975 1: 988
Market Drayton South 5 3,728 3,891 1: 778
Market Drayton North 5 3,661 4,117 1: 823
Adderley
Parish Number of | Number of | No of Electors | Ratio of
Councillors | Electors (April 2028) Electors  per
(October Councillor
2023)

Community Governance Review —Market Draytc}%)/&g@ey%raft Recommendations 4



Adderley Parish 7 340 356 1: 50

4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

5.0

PARISH COUNCIL SIZE:

The law requires that when considering whether to establish a pattern of wards for the
purposes for elections, the Council must first consider whether it is desirable for any
part of the parish to be separately represented on the Parish/Town Council. Secondly,
it is necessary to consider whether the number or distribution of electors within the
parish/town would make a single election of councillors impracticable.

There is little guidance on the appropriate number of councillors required to represent
a parish, other than there not being any less than five councillors. Where there is no
maximum number and no rules on the allocation of councillors, in recent years the
Council has used the National Association of Local Councils’ formula as a guide

The Aston Business School has also published research on the appropriate levels of
representation.

Market Drayton

In urban settlements such as Market Drayton, there is a very strong case for dividing
the parish into electoral wards, as community identity and community interests tend to
focus on a locality or neighbourhood. This can be an existing housing estate, a
shopping centre or some community facility. Where there is evidence that different
parts of a town have had their own sense of identity historically this supports the
establishment or retention of electoral wards. There is no proposal to amend the
boundaries of the internal wards or numbers of Councillors for each of the wards of the
Parish of Market Drayton.

Adderley

It is proposed that the Parish of Adderley should be unwarded and represented by 7

Councillors, as at present.

WHAT HAPPENS NEXT?

Community Governance Review —Market Drayton/B@gae—zaft Recommendations 5



51 An initial timetable for this review was outlined in the Terms of Reference document
published in December 2023 but has been extended to allow for a longer period of

consultation as follows:-

Stage What happens? Timescales

Commencement | Terms of Reference are published | 14 December 2023

Stage one Initial Submissions are invited 15 December 2023

to 26 January 2024

Stage two Consideration of submissions | 27 January 2024 to
received - Draft | 20 March 2024

Recommendations are prepared

Stage three Draft Recommendations are | 21 March 2024 to 10

published — consultations on them | May 2024

Stage four Considerations of submissions | 11 May 2024 to 31
received — final recommendations | May 2024

are prepared

Final recommendations are | End June 2024

published — concluding review

Council resolves to make a | July 2024

Reorganisation Order

5.2  These draft proposals set out Shropshire Councils initial recommendations for the
future of Community Governance for Market Drayton and Adderley. The Council will
now allow a further period, in accordance with the above timetable for public

consultation.

Community Governance Review —Market Draytc}%)/&g@ey—ébraft Recommendations 6



5.3

54

5.5

6.0

6.1

Final Proposals will be made in response to the outcome of these consultations and
they may wholly change the Draft Proposals to encompass the broadly held views of
the residents of the affected areas, insofar as they are compatible with the legal tests
and principles referred to throughout this document.

There will then be a short period after the final proposals are published before the
Shropshire Council approves the recommendations and then seeks the consent of the
LGBCE to make the formal Order. This period will allow further time for any final
submissions and arguments to be made covering matters which did not arise during
earlier stages of the review.

A period for comments on the draft proposals has now opened and this lasts until 10

May 2024.

HOWTO CONTACT US

Comments should be submitted to the Democratic Services Section of Shropshire

Council by e-mail at communitygovernance@shropshire.gov.uk. Alternatively, you

can contact us at the following address:
Democratic and Electoral Services
Shropshire Council
The Shirehall
Abbey Foregate
Shrewsbury
SY2 6ND

Should you require any further information or need clarification on the review

process, please the above contact details.

Community Governance Review —Market Drayton/B@gae—zéft Recommendations 7


mailto:communitygovernance@shropshire.gov.uk

Community Governance Review —Market Draytc}%)/&g@ey—&raft Recommendations



—

Plan A: Market Drayton and Adderley Parishes| MKinse){{Heath ' %N%

]7' ==L ‘ _ ach |
o | k= w" -\ =
Wilkesley -

\

Brick-kiln
Wood

Kent's Roug

sombermere
A Wood

\0\\39

Adderley Parish

Bi
Wogd

Glade Wood\\

Ridgwardine

\ Cloverley Wall
Plantation

7

“Newstreey.,.
\ t‘Lano
Park Gorse o \ 1y
Newstreet Garden Covert Wagtail Wood
Lane .
o e S ILockett's Styche Wood
Villow |
ntation  \0Orse ~ i
A \no1|LGBCE Western Way 1
Plantation T Parish Ward y

Brownnis

| Lon/]gslow

- Market
\ -~ Drayton |,
- | ‘Bletchley /= Parish

I Market Drayton and Adderley Parishes
|| EZAdderley Parish
[ Market Drayton East Parish Ward Market Drayton ' X

| ) Market Drayton North Parish Ward SouthlParishiWard

[0 Market Drayton South Parish Ward Brickkiln Covert™s
XX LGBCE Western Way Parish Ward Castkléhil!

| E=lcounty ¢ Wood |
A4 EA™S AN LY b AT A : bl W v

© Crown copyright 2024 OS AC0000808715. Use of this data is subject

to terms and conditions. (I) You are granted a non-exclusive, royalty

free revocable licence solely to view the licensed data for

non-commercial purposes for the period during which Shropshire

|| Council makes it available; (1) You are not permitted to copy,

ongford___

alisbury
Hill

fﬁfh‘g’f&il\—/—\ Church.Wood

r/»__ﬁ\’ [scale: 1:40,000 se\aves

sub-license, distribute, sell or otherwise make available the LicenEag Zh Sh h !
Data to third parties in any form; and (Ill) Third party rights to enforce Colehurst %’;\V’ rOpS Ire
the terms of this licence shall be reserved to OS. Ih WQOd | S Council

L3} 77 ] 27 i




This page is intentionally left blank



SHROPSHIRE COUNCIL

COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW OF THE PARISH OF SHREWSBURY AND

ADJOINING PARISHES

LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT IN HEALTH ACT 2007

DRAFT PROPOSALS

1. Introduction

1.1 Shropshire Council has resolved to undertake a Community Governance Review
of the Parish of Shrewsbury and adjoining parishes. The area to be included in the
review is the whole of the Parish of Shrewsbury and adjoining parishes.

1.2 The Council gave public notice of a Community Governance Review and published
the Terms of Reference for the review of the Parish of Shrewsbury and adjoining
parishes in December 2023. Copies of the Terms of Reference were sent by e-mail to
the Town and Parish Councils and to other stakeholders in the area. Information on
the effect of the review was also available for inspection at the Councils offices at
Shirehall, Shrewsbury and on the Council’s website.

1.3 The Terms of Reference were intended to prompt local consideration and initiate
discussionin order that the Council could take account of local feeling when preparing
its Draft Proposal Document. All concerned were invited to submit their comments in
writing by 26 January 2024.

14  Great Hanwood Parish Council has asked that the boundaries of the Parish are
extended into the Pontesbury Parish to bring the school and adjacent residential
properties along with the settlements of Cruckton and Cruckmeole into the Parish. The
Parish Council requests that the number of Parish Councillors for the Parish should

remain at 9, due the expanding nature of the village.

2.0 BACKGROUND

2.1 The Parish of Shrewsbury is currently represented by 17 Councillors, each

representing one ward. The wards are largely coterminous with the Shropshire Council

Community Governance Review —Shrewsbury— Drﬁag@anegdations 1



Division Boundaries with the exception of the divisions of Bicton Heath, which takes in
part of the Parish of Bicton; Radbrook, which takes in part of the Parish of Great
Hanwood; Oteley and Reabrook, which takes in part of the Parish of Atcham; and
Sundorne, which takes in part of the Parish of Uffington.

2.2 In addition, a small part of the Parish of Berrington, north of the A5 road and adjacent
to the Oteley and Reabrook Division, might benefit from moving to the Parish of
Shrewsbury with an associated move from the Shropshire Council division of Severn
Valley to Oteley and Reabrook.

2.3 The current and projected electorate figures for the wards in the Parish of Shrewsbury,
and the Parishes of Bicton, Great Hanwood, Atcham, Sundorne and Berrington are set

out in the tables below:

Shrewsbury
Parish Number of | Number of | No of Electors | Ratio of
Councillors | Electors (April 2028) Electors  per
(October Councillor
2023)
Shrewsbury 17 58,928 62,204 1:3659
Parish Wards Number of | Number of | No of Electors | Ratio of
Councillors | Electors (April 2028) Electors  per
(October Councillor
2023)
Abbey 1 4,252 4,762 1. 4,762
Bagley 1 3,816 4,290 1: 4,290
Battlefield 1 3,123 3,361 1. 3,361
Belle Vue 1 3,465 3,541 1: 3541
Bowbrook 1 3,483 3,725 1. 3,725
Castlefields & Ditherington 1 3,400 3,584 1: 3,584
Column 1 3,135 3,357 1. 3,357
Copthorne 1 3,942 3,945 1: 3,945
Harlescott 1 3,300 3,349 1: 3,349
Meole 1 3,394 3,675 1: 3,675
Monkmoor 1 3,366 3,377 1: 3,377
Porthill 1 3,691 3,834 1. 3834
Quarry & Coton Hill 1 3,304 3,362 1: 3,362
Radbrook 1 3,508 4,030 1: 4,030
Sundorne 1 3477 3,480 1. 3,480
Sutton & Reabrook 1 2,858 3,082 1: 3,082

Community Governance Review —Shrewsbury— B&g@cﬁﬂ endations 2



Underdale 1 3414 3,449 | 1: 3,449
Atcham
Parish Wards Number of | Number of | No of Electors | Ratio of
Councillors | Electors (April 2028) Electors  per
(October Councillor
2023)
Atcham Parish 7 442 513 1:73
Atcham Rural 3 198 208 1: 69
Hendrick Crescent 4 244 305 1. 76
Berrington
Parish Number of | Number of | No of Electors | Ratio of
Councillors | Electors (April 2028) Electors  per
(October Councillor
2023)
Berrington Parish 9 1067 1082 1:120
Bicton
Parish Wards Number of | Number of | No of Electors | Ratio of
Councillors | Electors (April 2028) Electors  per
(October Councillor
2023)
Bicton Parish o 995 1347 1:150
Bicton Rural 6 859 873 1: 146
Bicton Urban 3 136 474 1: 158
Great Hanwood
Parish Wards Number of | Number of | No of Electors | Ratio of
Councillors | Electors (April 2028) Electors  per
(October Councillor
2023)
Great Hanwood Parish 9 962 968 1:108
Hanwood Bank & Hanwood 8 959 965 1: 121
Upper Edgebold 1 3 3 1:3
Uffington
Parish Wards Number of | Number of | No of Electors | Ratio of
Councillors | Electors (April 2028) Electors  per
Councillor
Community Governance Review —Shrewsbury— Drﬁag@nr&ldations 3




(October

2023)
Uffington Parish 5 141 275 1:55
Pimley Manor 2 46 75 1. 38
Uffington Rural 3 195 200 1. 67

2.4

2.5

2.6

The current Shropshire Council division boundaries were made by the Local
Government Boundary Commission for England during its recent review and
necessitated the boundaries crossing several Parishes. Unless they are amended by
order following a Community Governance Review, the new boundaries may not
provide for effective and convenient local governance or reflect the identities and
interests of the community in that area.

To avoid this situation arising at the next ordinary elections due to be held in May 2025,
Shropshire Council is undertaking a review of the electoral arrangements for the Parish
of Shrewsbury and the adjoining Parishes under the provisions of Section 82 of the
Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007, as well as the Guidance
on Community Governance Reviews issued in accordance with Section 100(4) of the
Act by the Department of Communities and Local Government and the Electoral
Commission (Revised March 2010).

The review also provides an opportunity to consider whether the historic electoral
boundaries for Shrewsbury and the adjoining parishes remain appropriate, after taking
account of recent residential development in the town, as well as that proposed by
2029 and beyond. The provision of more obvious and appropriate external boundaries
for the town and the surrounding parishes, such as using the A5/A49 have been
considered in the interests of community identity and community cohesion. In
accordance with statutory guidance the review is seeking to establish boundaries
which follow the line of permanent or established physical features, rather than the

ancient field boundaries which mean little to today’s residents, where possible

Community Governance Review —Shrewsbury— Bra‘g@c& endations 4



2.7

2.8

2.9

3.0

3.1

3.2

The Terms of Reference document published in December 2023 set out the objective
of the review to consider whether there should be any changes to the boundaries of
Shrewsbury and the adjoining parishes,

During the preparing of these draft recommendations, the Council has taken account
of the comments received from Great Hanwood Parish Council.

Public comment at the end of the first stage of this process has been limited.

PROPOSED BOUNDARY CHANGES

It is proposed that the boundary of the Parish of Shrewsbury be amended as follows:

3.1.1 the Bicton Urban ward (hatched and coloured yellow on the plan attached) of
Bicton Parish be moved into the Bowbrook ward of the Shrewsbury Parish;

3.1.2 the Upper Edgebold ward (hatched and marked in green on the plan attached)
of Great Hanwood Parish be moved into the Radbrook ward of the Shrewsbury
Parish;

3.1.3 the Hendrick Crescentward (hatched and marked in red on the plan attached)
of Atcham Parish be moved into the Sutton and Reabrook ward of the
Shrewsbury Parish ;

3.1.4 the area of land north of the A5 (Hatched blue and marked in red on the plan
attached) currently in the Berrington Parish be moved into the Sutton and
Reabrook ward of the Shrewsbury Parish;

3.1.5 the Pimley Manor ward (hatched and marked in blue on the plan attached) of
Uffington Parish be moved into the Sundorne ward of the Shrewsbury Parish;

It is further proposed that the names of the following wards of the Parish of Shrewsbury

be amended to match the Shropshire Council electoral divisions:

3.2.1 the Bowbrook ward be renamed Bicton Heath

3.2.2 the Sutton and Reabrook ward be renamed Oteley and Reabrook

3.2.3 the Sundorne ward be renamed Sundorne and Old Heath

Community Governance Review —Shrewsbury— Drﬁag@nr&&%dations 5



3.3 The current and projected electorate figures for the proposed wards in the Parish of
Shrewsbury, and the unwarded revised Parishes of Bicton, Great Hanwood, Atcham,
Uffington and Berrington are set out in the tables below:

Shrewsbury

Parish Wards Number of | Number of | No of Electors | Ratio of
Councillors | Electors (April 2028) Electors  per
(October Councillor
2023)
Abbey 1 4,252 4,762 1: 4,762
Bagley 1 3,816 4,290 1: 4,290
Battlefield 1 3,123 3,361 1: 3,361
Belle Vue 1 3,465 3,541 1: 3541
Bowhrook 1 3,619 4,200 1: 4,200
Castlefields & Ditherington 1 3,400 3,584 1. 3584
Column 1 3,135 3,357 1: 3,357
Copthorne 1 3,942 3,945 1: 3,945
Harlescott 1 3,300 3,349 1: 3,349
Meole 1 3,394 3,675 1: 3,675
Monkmoor 1 3,366 3,377 1: 3,377
Porthill 1 3,691 3,834 1: 3,834
Quarry & Coton Hill 1 3,304 3,362 1: 3,362
Radbrook 1 3,511 4,033 1: 4,033
Sundorne 1 3,523 3,555 1: 3,555
Sutton & Reabrook 1 3,199 3,484 1: 3,484
Underdale 1 3414 3,449 1: 3,449
Atcham
Parish Number of | Number of | No of Electors | Ratio of
Councillors | Electors (April 2028) Electors  per
(October Councillor
2023)
Atcham Parish 5 198 208 1:42
Berrington
Parish Number of | Number of | No of Electors | Ratio of
Councillors | Electors (April 2028) Electors  per
(October Councillor
2023)
Berrington Parish 9 970 985 1:109
Community Governance Review —Shrewsbury—Bra‘g@cMendations 6




Bicton

Parish Number of | Number of | No of Electors | Ratio of
Councillors | Electors (April 2028) Electors  per
(October Councillor
2023)
Bicton Parish 9 859 873 1:.97
Great Hanwood
Parish Number of | Number of | No of Electors | Ratio of
Councillors | Electors (April 2028) Electors  per
(October Councillor
2023)
Great Hanwood Parish 9 959 965 1:107
Uffington
Parish Number of | Number of | No of Electors | Ratio of
Councillors | Electors (April 2028) Electors  per
(October Councillor
2023)
Uffington Parish 5 195 200 1:40

3.4 The draft recommendation will move some electors from the division of Severn Valley
into Oteley and Reabrook. The table above shows that the overall number of electors
for Oteley and Reabrook will remain within 10% of the average. Severn Valley will
reduce by 97 electors to XX and also remain within 10%.

4.0 PARISH COUNCIL SIZE:

4.1 The law requires that when considering whether to establish a pattern of wards for the

purposes for elections, the Council must first consider whether it is desirable for any

part of the parish to be separately represented on the Parish/Town Council. Secondly,

Community Governance Review —Shrewsbury— Drﬁag@nr&%dations 7



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

it is necessary to consider whether the number or distribution of electors within the
parish/town would make a single election of councillors impracticable.

There is little guidance on the appropriate number of councillors required to represent
a parish, other than there not being any less than five councillors. Where there is no
maximum number and no rules on the allocation of councillors, in recent years the
Council has used the National Association of Local Councils’ formula as a guide

The Aston Business School has also published research on the appropriate levels of
representation.

Shrewsbury

In urban settlements such as Shrewsbury, there is a very strong case for dividing the
parish into electoral wards, as community identity and community interests tend to
focus on a locality or neighbourhood. This can be an existing housing estate, a
shopping centre or some community facility. Where there is evidence that different
parts of a town have had their own sense of identity historically this supports the
establishment or retention of electoral wards. There is no proposal to amend the
boundaries of the internal wards or numbers of Councillors for the Parish of
Shrewsbury.

Bicton

It is proposed that the Parish of Bicton should be unwarded and represented by 9
Councillors, as at present.

Great Hanwood

It is proposed that the Parish of Great Hanwood should be unwarded and represented
by 9 Councillors, as at present.

Atcham

It is proposed that the Parish of Atcham should be unwarded and represented by 5
Councillors, a reduction from 7 Councillors.

Uffington

Community Governance Review —Shrewsbury— B&g@c% endations 8



It is proposed that the Parish of Uffington should be unwarded and represented by 5
Councillors, as at present.

4.9 Berrington
It is proposed that the Parish of Berrington should be unwarded and represented by 9

Councillors, as at present.

5.0 WHAT HAPPENS NEXT?

51 An initial timetable for this review was outlined in the Terms of Reference document
published in December 2023 but has been extended to allow for a longer period of

consultation as follows:-

Stage What happens? Timescales

Commencement | Terms of Reference are published | 14 December 2023

Stage one Initial Submissions are invited 15 December 2023

to 26 January 2024

Stage two Consideration of submissions | 27 January 2024 to
received - Draft | 20 March 2024

Recommendations are prepared

Stage three Draft Recommendations are | 21 March 2024 to 10

published — consultations on them | May 2024

Stage four Considerations of submissions | 11 May 2024 to 31
received — final recommendations | May 2024

are prepared

Final recommendations are | End June 2024

published — concluding review

Community Governance Review —Shrewsbury— Drﬁag@nr&;dations 9



Council resolves to make a |July 2024

Reorganisation Order

5.2

5.3

54

5.5

6.0

6.1

These draft proposals set out Shropshire Councils initial recommendations for the
future of Community Governance for Shrewsbury and the surrounding parishes. The
Council will now allow a further period, in accordance with the above timetable for
public consultation.

Final Proposals will be made in response to the outcome of these consultations and
they may wholly change the Draft Proposals to encompass the broadly held views of
the residents of the affected areas, insofar as they are compatible with the legal tests
and principles referred to throughout this document.

There will then be a short period after the final proposals are published before the
Shropshire Council approves the recommendations and then seeks the consent of the
LGBCE to make the formal Order. This period will allow further time for any final
submissions and arguments to be made covering matters which did not arise during
earlier stages of the review.

A period for comments on the draft proposals has now opened and this lasts until 10

May 2024.

HOWTO CONTACT US

Comments should be submitted to the Democratic Services Section of Shropshire

Council by e-mail at communitygovernance@shropshire.gov.uk. Alternatively, you

can contact us at the following address:

Democratic and Electoral Services
Shropshire Council
The Shirehall

Abbey Foregate

Community Governance Review —Shrewsbury— B&g@c% endations 10



mailto:communitygovernance@shropshire.gov.uk

Shrewsbury

SY2 6ND

Should you require any further information or need clarification on the review

process, please the above contact details.

Community Governance Review —Shrewsbury— Drﬁag@nr&gdations 11



This page is intentionally left blank



~Salax

= 27 2 8 I = —1 W e »
Plan A: Shrewsbury Parish Wards and adjacent Parishes| \

' / Waits Coppice

eadow Plantation _qfop\

/a,—j:::: =2 | Sta:«\zn;\'u’ood b _‘h,.—.:\v.,;.-“-“'
/;-—"" g \ m\ A ne ton Kesters Coppice

—

.
J Al and District) Ba gﬁeld y
2 @ Dunnsheath 5. "To "
sle Pool
raton|Knolls \ pAILZ N
/ ,’:— = -‘-;\\./‘/" i OufF
/,j;"-'f ::::;u?vrle§/cott Poot Jove
Crossgreen Parish Ward Colir
N ssaNGrove ' :\\ (k/(% Battlefield
2 e A v 'Y
Rosethll D Parish\Ward!
|Bicton CP[""F" .
N = F.All;l%u sun -\\
n o ark Wod \
rton @ Sundorne % Merge Pimley, ..
g X4 Parish Ward 54\ /
It Round Whod % = xxdManor. PW
\'\“ ‘ Powys q:?- ) ::“g =
i owy ‘ ‘ Q&
oy Iy oppice o ?V .
Merge‘BEn - O, < E"‘ Castlefields’'& A\ /"§4 Uffujgton CP
- Urban PW g5 Quarry & {58 pitherington Monkmoor = '\1gton
T o slentee: MK ' Coton Hill . Parish Ward ; \\
ANt ' | Bry aa Parish Ward T

o,
L N ) : G
RIS RS lton Parish Ward
”:’4’4 Ay M1

|
|

—

|

(121 =
Undergale‘ ‘

Ko fale
Parish\Ward

- Parish Ward Upton
|Magna CP.~

BeIIe_S/Ue

Pa;ish‘
Quarry
Merge Upper Wood Moat
Edgebold;PW Atcham CP
’ . D trey
- Great ED ' Me‘r‘ge’l—len;\ick\
jood Bank rea 8ho _ Afon Hafre
g 2 : MM rescent PW \P« Seve
™\t Hanwood CP > | -
Chapel T >~ ‘ Merge Gwilt'etton
. T 2 Drive/ Greentrangé N
4 /"~ |Bayston Crescentfrom || Chiiiton ™ \ bes
Pontesbury CP % Hill CP Berrington PC LarchesF~—
Hook-a-gat . (
A Bayston-Hill - \
/',f ‘\::»::'--" t;' setton COPP”;C ]||| :";" %FIO m{hl”
e | ® Berrington CP s
Longden CP o® Bomeregood £ \1
© Crown copyright 2024 0S ACO000808715. Use of this data is subject Betton Abbots 4
to terms and conditions. (I) You are granted a non-exclusive, royalty ,.':." ::?‘\_'
free revocable licence solely to view the licensed data for ’ i :_.:::._-__f.——""": < A CTQ/
non-commercial purposes for the period during which Shropshire — ) ) F —
Council makes it available; (I1) You are not permitted to copy, Condover CP[rook 1l i_cf‘ll";I }y‘tﬁZ:B«—

Data to third parties in any form; and (Ill) Third party rights to enforce | .- f
f

sub-license, distribute, sell or otherwise make available the LiCP&ge 91 ,,-_-:5"’, ) “ H I
— BOfetdn @ ShrOpShl re

the terms of this licence shall be reserved to OS. ] L Council
— — — . . oy o N




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 9

21/03/24 COUNCIL Adoption of CleoburyMortimer Neighbourhood DevelopmentPlan |

Committee and Date ftem
.t . i
¥i¥ Shropshire
Council
Public

”
Healthy Healthy Healthy
People Economy Organisation

Healthy
Environment

Adoption of Cleobury Mortimer Neighbourhood
Development Plan

Responsible Officer: Mark Barrow, Executive Director Place
email: Mark.barrow@shropshire.gov.uk Tel: 01743 258 916

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder): = Clir Chris Schofield — Planning and Regulatory Services

1. Synopsis

1.1 This report provides the Cleobury Mortimer Neighbourhood Plan referendum results
bringing the Plan into force by ‘making’ (adopting) it as part of the statutory
development plan under the provision of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase
Act 2004 (as amended).

2. Executive Summary

2.1. The Cleobury Mortimer Neighbourhood Development Plan has been produced by
the Cleobury Mortimer Neighbourhood Plan Steering Group, with Cleobury
Mortimer Town Council as the ‘Qualifying Body'. Work on the Neighbourhood Plan
began in 2017 and has been produced in accordance with the Neighbourhood
Planning (General) Regulations 2012 (as amended) (referred to in this report as
‘the Regulations’). The final draft Plan was submitted to an Independent Examiner
in June 2023. Following the Examination, the Cleobury Mortimer Neighbourhood
Development plan was brought to local referendum on 07t December 2023. The
result was, of those who voted, 84.21% were in favour of Shropshire Council using
the Neighbourhood Plan for Cleobury Mortimer to help it decide planning
applications in the neighbourhood area.

Page 93

Contact: Edward West, 01743 254617 1




21/03/24 COUNCIL Adoption of CleoburyMortimer Neighbourhood DevelopmentPlan

2.2. The Shropshire Plan recognises the importance of creating a Healthy Environment
with a strategy objective to ‘maintain, protect and enhance our outstanding natural
and historic environment, promoting positive behaviours and greater biodiversity
and environmental sustainability.’ The Cleobury Neighbourhood Development Plan
contains policies which strive to encourage development to achieve these
objectives alongside those contained within the wider Development Plan for
Shropshire.

3. Recommendations

3.1. That Shropshire Council, as the Local Planning Authority ‘makes’i.e. adopts the
Cleobury Mortimer Neighbourhood Development Plan (as set out in Appendix 1)
and brings it into force with immediate effect as part of the Development Plan for
Shropshire.

Report

4. Risk Assessmentand Opportunities Appraisal

4.1. The Localism Act and regulations covering Neighbourhood Development Plans
provides the framework for their production and adoption. Whilst the preparation of
Neighbourhood Development Plans (referred to in this report as Neighbourhood
Plans) are led locally by a qualifying body, usually the relevant town or parish
council, Shropshire Council has key involvement at various stages of the process.
Most notably this includes: formally agreeing the Neighbourhood Area to be
covered by the Plan; administrating public consultation on a submission version of
the Plan; appointing an independent assessor to examine the submission version
of the Plan; agreeing any changes required to ensure the Plan meets a set of
basic conditions; administrating and reporting back of the referendum; and
‘making’ (adopting) the Plan.

4.2. Both Cleobury Mortimer Town Council and Shropshire Council have followed a set
of clearly defined national regulations set out in the Neighbourhood Planning
(General) Regulations 2012 in the preparation and consultation of the
Neighbourhood Plan. This regulatory process is covered in more detail in Section
7 of this Report. The risk of a legal challenge to the ‘making’ of the Neighbourhood
Plan has been significantly reduced by both Cleobury Mortimer Town Council and
Shropshire Council following these regulations closely.

4.3. The Plan was prepared by a steering group which included representatives from
the Town Council along with other local volunteers. Shropshire Council acted as a
statutory consultee during the preparation phase of the Plan, which allowed input
at key stages. It is considered this collaborative process has helped to ensure the
final version of the Neighbourhood Plan is in general conformity with the strategic
policies of Shropshire’s adopted Development Plan and the emerging Draft Local
Plan.

4.4, The steering group undertook community consultation which culminated in a
consultation of a draft version of the Plan during Summer 2021. Due to a need for

Page 94

Contact: Edward West, 01743 254617 2




21/03/24 COUNCIL Adoption of CleoburyMortimer Neighbourhood DevelopmentPlan

a fresh call of sites which resulted in a revision to the draft version a fresh
consultation was held in Summer of 2022. The Plan was then submitted to
Shropshire Council in January 2023 who undertook the statutory consultation into
the submission version of the Plan and appointed an independent assessor to
examine the Plan.

4.5. The purpose of the independent examination process is to ensure Neighbourhood
Development Plans meet the following set of nationally prescribed ‘Basic
Conditions’:

Having regard to national policies and advice contained in guidance issues by the
Secretary of State itis appropriate to make the Neighbourhood Plan;

e The making of the Neighbourhood Plan contributes to the achievement of
sustainable development;

e The making of the Neighbourhood Plan is in general conformity with the
strategic policies contained in the development plan for the area of the
authority (or any part of that area);

e The making of the Neighbourhood Plan does not breach, and is otherwise
compatible, with retained EU obligations;

e Prescribed conditions are met (in relation to the Neighbourhood Plan) and
prescribed matters have been completed with in connection with the proposal
for the neighbourhood plan.

4.6. The Examiner reported back in June 2023 concluding that the Plan could proceed
to referendum, subject to a number of modifications to the Plan. The Examiners
Report is included as Appendix 2 of this report. The Examiners conclusions are
not binding on the authority, however in this case all of the recommendations were
incorporated into the Plan and agreed by Cabinet on 18" October 2023.

4.7. The referendum into the Cleobury Mortimer Neighbourhood Plan took place on
07" December 2023 within the area defined as the Neighbourhood Area (Cleobury
Mortimer parish), where the following question was asked “Do you want
Shropshire Council to use the Neighbourhood Plan for Cleobury Mortimer to help it
decide planning applications in the neighbourhood area.” Paragraph 38A(4)(a) of
the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 as amended requires that the
Council must ‘make’ (adopt) the Neighbourhood Plan if more than half of those
voting have voted in favour of the plan. In this case out of 456 people who voted,
84.21% were in favour of the Neighbourhood Plan being used to help decide
planning applications. The turnout was 17.86%. Appendix 3 to this report provides
the referendums full ‘Declaration of Result of Poll’. All necessary requirements
relating to the administration of the referendum were carried out. Given this robust
process it is considered there is minimal risk to the Council.

4.8. Subject to the Council’s decision, the Cleobury Mortimer Neighbourhood Plan will
become part of the statutory planning framework applied in Shropshire. The
Neighbourhood Plan contains a range of locally produced policies which the
community have expressly asked to be brought into play to help guide the
decision-making process. Statute provides that planning applications should be
determined in accordance with the provision of the Neighbourhood Plan policies
unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

Page 95

Contact: Edward West, 01743 254617 3




21/03/24 COUNCIL Adoption of CleoburyMortimer Neighbourhood DevelopmentPlan

4.9. The Plan has been prepared positively and in its final format is considered to meet
the basic conditions. Following the successful referendum result it is considered
there is also clear public support for the Neighbourhood Plan. It is therefore
considered that there would be a very significant risk of challenge if the Plan were

not to be ‘made’ by the Council.

4.10. Shropshire Council has assessed that the Plan, including its preparation, does not
breach, and would not otherwise be incompatible with, any retained EU obligation
or any of the Convention rights (within the meaning of the Human Rights Act

1998).

4.11. Risk table

Risk

Mitigation

Legal challenge to the process of
‘making’ (adoption) of the
Neighbourhood Plan

This risk is significantly reduced by both Cleobury
Mortimer Town Council and Shropshire Council
following the regulations set out within Neighbourhood
Planning (General) Regulations 2012 (as amended)

Legal challenge if the Plan were not
‘made’ (adopted) by the Council

The referendum result of 84.21% of those who voted
were in favour of the use of the Cleobury Mortimer
Neighbourhood Plan as a decision-making tool for
planning applications. This is clear and overwhelming
public support for the Neighbourhood Plan and it is
recommended that the Council as the Local Planning
Authority ‘make’ (adopt) this Plan.

5. Financial Implications

5.1. The costs of undertaking the Examination and Referendum are met by
Government Funding. The robustness of the Neighbourhood Plan Policies will be
tested over time by independent Planning Inspectors on appeal. Members are
advised that the liability for future appeal costs rests with Shropshire Council as
Local Planning Authority and as such the usability of the plan and its impact on
local decision making needs to be carefully monitored.

6. Climate ChangeAppraisal

6.1. The Cleobury Mortimer Neighbourhood Plan includes positively prepared policies
seeking to achieve sustainable development and respond to climate change.
Specifically, the Plans ‘Good Residential Design Principles’ through policy CM6
(Housing Design) encourages the provision of energy efficient homes with zero-
carbon impact and the use of renewable energy. Whilst no specific climate change
adaption policies are put forward, the Plan is in general conformity with the current
adopted local plan and the emerging local plan review, which includes a positive
policy framework for mitigating and adapting to the impacts of climate change.

7. Background

7.1. Shropshire Council supports Neighbourhood Plans being brought forward under
the Localism Act and the 2012 Neighbourhood Planning Regulations, indeed the

Page 96

Contact: Edward West, 01743 254617

4




21/03/24 COUNCIL Adoption of CleoburyMortimer Neighbourhood DevelopmentPlan

Council is legally obliged to do so. The National Planning Policy Framework
(NPPF) also explicitly supports the principle of Neighbourhood Plans and their
status as part of the Development Plan, stating “Neighbourhood plans should
support the delivery of strategic policies contained in local plans or spatial
development strategies; and should shape and direct development that is outside
of these strategic policies”. It is also made clear that Neighbourhood Plans should
not promote less development than set out in the strategic policies for the area, or
undermine those strategic policies.

7.2. Neighbourhood Plans must follow a defined regulatory process in both their
preparation and adoption. The Cleobury Mortimer Neighbourhood Development
Plan has completed the following regulatory stages of the Neighbourhood
Planning (General) Regulations 2012:

e The formal designation of the Neighbourhood Area (Regulation 6),May 2018.

e Consultation on a draft version of the Plan (Regulation 14), carried out by
Cleobury Mortimer Town Council between 12 July 2021 — 27™ August 2021.

e Second Consultation on draft version of Plan (Regulation 14), due to
amendments to site allocations locations, carried out by Cleobury Mortimer
Town Council between 271 May 2022 — 11t July 2022.

e Submission of the draft Neighbourhood Plan by Cleobury Mortimer Town
Council to the Local Planning Authority (Regulation 15), November 2022.

e Consultation on final draft version of the Neighbourhood Plan (Regulation 16),
carried out by Shropshire Council between 16™ January 2023 — 10t March
2023

e Examination on the Final Draft Version of the Neighbourhood Plan (Regulation
17), May 2023 — August 2023.

e Publication of the Examiner's Report (August 2023) and decision to progress to
referendum (Regulation 18), (October 2023)

Following the successful referendum in December 2023, the Council is now being
asked to ‘make’ (adopt) the Neighbourhood Plan to form part of the Development
Plan for the area.

7.3. In accordance with the Regulations, once adopted, planning applications in the
area covered by the plan must be considered against the Neighbourhood Plan, as
well as existing Local Plan policies in the adopted Core Strategy and SAMDev
plans as well as other material planning considerations, such as the National
Planning Policy Framework.

7.4. 1t is considered the final version of the Cleobury Mortimer Neighbourhood
Development Plan, which covers the whole parish of Cleobury Mortimer, provides
an effective and positive planning framework for taking decisions on planning
applications.

7.5. The Plan provides a range of local objectives and policies to supplement the
strategic policies of Shropshire’s Local Plan, which largely reflect the priorities of
the area and the outcomes of the plan preparation process, which included local
community consultation. Alongside policies relating to the housing designin
Cleobury Mortimer, protection of the environment and provision of adequate water
infrastructure, the Plan also includes a housing allocation for delivery of 120
homes, a 1.3ha employment allocation through the extension of the existing

Page 97

Contact: Edward West, 01743 254617 5




21/03/24 COUNCIL Adoption of CleoburyMortimer Neighbourhood DevelopmentPlan

Tenbury Road employment area and an extension to Cleobury Mortimers existing
cemetery. The final version of the Cleobury Mortimer Neighbourhood Plan is
attached to this report Appendix 1.

Additional Information

8.1. Whilst Shropshire Council has helped to support the Neighbourhood Plan through
its statutory role as consultee and administrator, the Plans inception and
preparation has been led by Cleobury Mortimer Town Council with support of their
Neighbourhood Plan Steering Group. These bodies are to be commended for their
dedication and skill in bringing this Plan through to fruition.

8.2. The appendices to this report provide a copy of the final version of the Cleobury
Mortimer Neighbourhood Plan which went to referendum, the Examiners report
and results of the referendum.

Conclusions

9.1. Following a positive referendum result, this report seeks to ‘make’ (adopt) the
Cleobury Mortimer Neighbourhood Development Plan.

List of Background Papers

Cabinet Paper 18" October 2023: Recommendation for Cleobury Mortimer
Neighbourhood Development Plan to Proceed to Referendum

Local Member: Clir Gwilym Butler and Clir Simon Harris
Appendices

Appendix 1 — Cleobury Mortimer Neighbourhood Development Plan
Appendix 2 — Examiners Report (June 2023)
Appendix 3 — Declaration of Referendum Results (December 2023)

Page 98

Contact: Edward West, 01743 254617 6




CLEOBURY MORTIMER
NEIGHBOURHOOD

..u‘. A ._.-. - w".
L Lo :
.\ﬂuvvuﬁa‘_ _ .,m
\ !
/;Vl,u_.vﬂﬂ..%\“_
|
| St
i WEM =
Ly 3E3Z
14
C Oo:=
L O=2°

* e )
. r Y -
- "
Wy - b e . M

2038

DEVELOPMENT PLAN

2020

X - o ) .__... ._.qu.-h .u....._ - . .1. _-..—_....A...._‘u“.'._ N " I
T | e
_ AR \guin Hos
= - .
|1Irl|l||llltl'|lllll.l.?lll-.|l|. T

e LTI



CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

FORWARD BY CHAIRPERSON

Cleobury Mortimer is a strong, independent minded and resilient community and so has
embraced the opportunity to take control of planning for future development. A high
level of engagement and participation has enabled the steering group to draw on a wide
range of ideas in coming up with the plan.

Fundamental to the Plan has been a detailed and aspirational vision for the future of the
town that informed our policies and decision making.

A guiding principle has been to accept the need for new housing balanced by economic
development, but to do it in a way that provides the type of housing that we need whilst
recognizing we are in a rural setting. From the outset, environmental reinforcement, a
love of wildlife, trees and walking have all been constant themes.

This formal consultation document is the culmination of listening to positive inputs and
heart felt concerns of residents, landowners, community groups and organisations and
their reactions to initial plans published. We have tried to reach a balanced compromise
within what is viable and achievable.

If passed, Cleobury Mortimer, through its Town Council will have laid down planning
protection for its plans and policies and exert greater influence over proposed
developments to make sure they follow the vision for the town and meet its needs. It will
also mean a greater contribution from development towards infrastructure to support
development.

Powers are limited, but at least residents will have more of a say. The plan is reviewable
as soon as it is adopted, although the time horizon for the plan is some 18 years.

Peter Blackburn

This draft was prepared by Cleobury Mortimer Steering Group

working with Andrea Pellegram Ltd.

Page 100 2|Page



CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

FORWARD BY CHAIRPERSON.........coiii s 2
INTRODUGCTION ...ttt ettt et b st et et bbb sem e ses et b ses et e et eaenes et ses s eaesen et senne 4
Introduction and Background ............cieeeeiiiieeeiiiiiierciirreeerreeeeereennsesseenssessennssessennssessennssessennnnnes 5
YVES =TT E=1 o] L0 T3V ] [T o T4 T=T 41 7
Vision for the Cleobury Mortimer Neighbourhood Plan...........ccccccciiieeiiiiiiniiiniieniininiinneeeen. 9
1V E=1d 3 Yo T Lo o - 10
[\ 0 0] ¢ =T ot |V =P 12
ABOUT CLEOBURY MORTIMER .....ccuiituiiiiuniiinnireeiieniieesimesisimssresssrssssiesssssassssssssrssssssnssssnssssnssss 15
Cleobury Mortimer - OUF TOWN ...c..ciiieeeeiiieeeneeieenssesseenssesreenssessesnssesseensssssennsssssennsssssennssessennnnanes 16
POLICIES ...ttt sesnatt st ssstss e sas st ses st sa sas st sesssasas sus sas stsssssssans sussbssassssassess sussbenessssassanssasanes 35
Development Plan POLICIES ....c...iiieeeiiiiiciiiiei e rrcceessreneeesrene e s renaseessenssessnenssssssenssessrennssnsnennnes 36
[DTAVY VoY oYy o T=T o 1l e Yo 101 4 T -1 o AR 40
Cleobury Mortimer Development SErategy ....ccccivriiieiiieeiireniiieniereeittnncereeserenserensersnssesnssessnsessnns 40
Housing Land AlIOCAtIONS ......c..iveeiieeiieeiiiniiieeiereniereeereaseetnscernsserenserensessnssssassssnssessnssssnsessnsesens 40
CM1: Ludlow Road residential allocation .......c.....viiiiiiimmmeeiiiiiiiiiiienciiiiiciirreesc e 42
Cleobury Mortimer Cemetery EXteNSION ......ccceiieeiiieiiieeieteniiieeerennitrnncernsserenserensersnssesnssesnssensnns 42
CM2: Cleobury Mortimer cemetery eXteNnSioN....cccciieiiieeiiieniiieniiiteiiinieieeieiesirenssesessrsesssssssssnss 43
EMPIOYMENT LANd ......couiiieiiiieiiiiiicieeeienettenereanerennerensereasessnsesensserensssensessnssssnssssnssessnssssnsesensssnen 44
CM3: Extension at Tenbury Road employment area ......ccccieeeereencreeeiirnencreeereencrenserensscrnsscrnsseranss 45
Development BOUNAIY .......ccccciiieeeiiiieceiiiieieeeireaeseesrensseeseensssessenssesssensssssensssssssnsssssssnssssssennnes 46
CM4: Cleobury Mortimer development boundary....c.cccceeereeereeereneiiineitenenerencreeserensscrneerneseranes 46
HOUSING IVlIX...iiiiieeiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiieieeetenniitnsestnssstssssreesessnssssnssssnsssssnsssenssssnssssnssssssssssnssssnssssnssssnn 47
CIM5: HOUSING MIX cotieeiiiinieienieieniiineieieeieieeieressorsnsissnesesasserssserssssssnssssnssssssssssnssssnssssnsssssssssssssssnss 47
DESIZN Of NOUSING...c... ittt renee s rene s s renessssrenesssssenssssssenesssssenssssssennnes 48
Cleobury Mortimer good design prinCipals.........cceuciiiiieiciiieecirirec e rrenee e eeeaseseennsseseennnnanns 49
CMB: HOUSING AESIZN.ccureerereenerrenirenererannereeeraenerensssenssssnsseranseransersnssssnssssnssesassessnsesanssssnssssnssesanse 50
Y T 0T 4T o PN 50
Cleobury Mortimer environmental PrincCipals .........ccooveeeiiiiieiiiiiiccrrrccr e rreee e e eenn e s eennnnnns 51
CM7: Environment and biodiversity net gain.....ccceceeeeeceeecrenncrennecennnes Error! Bookmark not defined.
Water iNfrastrUCture .......ccuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniiiieneterereeer et eseees st eesesesesesesesestsesssssssssssssssens 52
CM8: Water iNfrastrUCture .....c.ciieeeeeeeiiiiiiiiiieeniiiiin e eessee s ssse s s e ssaeassses s s s e e s snassssaes 52

Page 101 3|Page



CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

Introduction

Page 102 4lpPage



CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

Introduction and Background

1.

Our Neighbourhood Plan has been
developed by volunteers alongside
members of the Town Council and has been
informed by a survey and consultation with
those that reside and work in our
community. County planning policy indicates
that we will require a minimum of 200
houses, which, including those already
permitted, requires an extra 120 new
houses before 2038. Our goal within this
Neighbourhood Plan is that alongside the
building of those houses, our community
will preserve the things we love and
appreciate about Cleobury Mortimer. Those
aspects of our living environment are the
sense of community and the natural
environment: the trees, hedges, brooks and
wildlife that enhance our lives. We seek to
protect and enhance that environment.

The Cleobury Mortimer (CM)
Neighbourhood Development Plan (NDP)
covers the period 2020-2038 to be aligned
to the plan period for the emerging
Shropshire Local Plan. It has been prepared
to be in conformity with the strategic
policies in the Development Plan and with
the agreement of the Local Planning
Authority (LPA) also addresses economic
and housing policies in the emerging Local
Plan that is being prepared
contemporaneously with the CMNDP.

Purpose

3.

Neighbourhood planning gives communities
the power to develop a shared vision for
their area. Neighbourhood plans can shape,
direct and help to deliver sustainable

! National Planning Policy Framework 2021, para. 29.

2 |bid., footnote 18.

Page 103

development, by influencing local planning
decisions as part of the statutory
development plan. Neighbourhood plans
should not promote less development than
set out in the strategic policies for the area
or undermine those strategic policies®.
Neighbourhood plans must be in general
conformity with the strategic policies
contained in any development plan that
covers their area?.

4. Once a neighbourhood plan has been

5.

brought into force, the policies it contains
take precedence over existing non-strategic
policies in a local plan covering the
neighbourhood area, where they are in
conflict; unless they are superseded by
strategic or non-strategic policies that are
adopted subsequently®.

Plans should set out the contributions
expected from development. This should
include setting out the levels and types of
affordable housing provision required, along
with other infrastructure (such as that
needed for education, health, transport,
flood and water management, green and
digital infrastructure). Such policies should
not undermine the deliverability of the
plan*,

3 Ibid., para. 30.

*1bid., para. 34.

5|Page



CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

Submitting Body

6. Under the provisions of the Localism Act 2011 Neighbourhood Area

and Part 2 of The Neighbourhood Planning
(General) Regulations 2012, Cleobury
Mortimer Town Council was recognised as
the relevant body for the designated area
with regards to the Regulations.®

7. Cleobury Mortimer Town Council is the
qualifying body. Professional support has
been provided by Andrea Pellegram MRTPI,
AECOM and Locality.

Figure 1: Cleobury Mortimer Neighbourhood Area

8. Under the provisions of the Localism Act 2011

and Part 2 of The Neighbourhood Planning
(General) Regulations 2012, the town of
Cleobury Mortimer in Shropshire was
designated as a Neighbourhood Area. The
extent of the designation is shown in Figure

1.

] 7 [ creobury Mortimer Neighbourhood Area S

VISR U= ¥ e

5 Effective date 15/05/2018 following Shropshire https://shropshire.gov.uk/committee-

Council Cabinet meeting 02/05/2018

services/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?Alld=10950

Page 104

6|Page



https://shropshire.gov.uk/committee-services/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?AIId=10950
https://shropshire.gov.uk/committee-services/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?AIId=10950

CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

Community Infrastructure Levy

9. Once this planis “made”, i.e. it is passed at Referendum and becomes part of the Development
Plan, the Town Council will receive 25% of all Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) funds
collected from development within the Parish Boundary. The funding is intended to be used for
improvement, replacement, operation, or maintenance of infrastructure: or anything else that is
concerned with addressing the demands that development places on the area. The policies in
this plan set out detailed guidance for applicants on infrastructure that they should provide in
support of their schemes, but CIL payments to the Town Council can assist in providing
additional infrastructure and maintenance.

Sustainable Development

10. The National Planning Policy Framework 2021 states that the purpose of the planning system is
to contribute to sustainable development. The planning systems has three overarching
objectives in achieving sustainable development: economic, social, and environmental.

The policies in the CMNDP together meet the objectives of sustainable development which is
summarised in Table 1.

Table 1: How policies in the CMNDP contribute to sustainable development

NPPF 2021 objectives for | CMNDP policies that meet the sustainability
sustainable objectives in the NPPF 2021 section 2
development

Economic CM3: Extension at Tenbury Road employment area

Social CM1: Ludlow Road residential allocation

CM2: Cleobury Mortimer cemetery extension
CM4: Cleobury Mortimer development boundary
CM5: Housing Mix

CM6: Housing Design

Environmental CM1: Ludlow Road residential allocation
CM6: Housing Design

CM7: Environmental and biodiversity net gain

Page 105 71Page



CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

The Context

11. Cleobury Mortimer (population 3,410 (2015 12. Cleobury Mortimer is identified as a Key

mid-year estimates Shropshire Council) lies
on the Worcestershire border, between
Ludlow to the west and Kidderminster to
the east. It is a small market town in south
east Shropshire which acts as an important
Key Centre for the wider area. It lies on the
A4117 around 10 miles to the east of Ludlow
and six miles to the west of Bewdley. Much
of the town centre lies within a
Conservation Area, and there are a number
of listed buildings including the Grade |
listed St Mary’s Church, the crooked spire of
which is a feature of the landscape. Physical
constraints to development include the
River Rea and its tributaries and the town’s
setting in the wider landscape®.

6 Shropshire Core Strategy, 4.52.

Page 106

Centre in the SAMDev plan and in the
Emerging Shropshire Local Plan 2016 to
2038. The settlement provides local
services, jobs, education, retail and
recreational opportunities to the other
smaller settlements in the Cleobury
Mortimer area. The settlement supports a
reasonably high level of employment self-
containment given its size, though the
number of workplaces is limited, there are
important employers and manufacturing
jobs are a higher than average proportion of
the workforce. Housing tenures at the time
of the 2001 Census was 77% owner
occupied, 14% private rented and 9% social
rented.

8|Page



CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

Vision for the Cleobury Mortimer Neighbourhood Plan

In 2038, our vision for Cleobury Mortimer is that it will be a place where:

e Any future building development is done in location(s) and a manner, which
protects public safety;

e The natural space in which we live is protected, green spaces are improved and
enhanced, and local trees of importance are protected;

e Development will be sympathetic to the living environment;

e People of all ages can live happily and enjoy a strong sense of community and the
security that this brings and where there are sufficient opportunities for the whole
community to come together to meet and celebrate;

e The age profile of the community will be balanced because suitable housing will be
available for people and families in all phases of their lives;

e There is a well-connected public transport system that allows people of all ages and
mobility to travel on foot or by bus on safe, convenient and direct routes;

e Access to the beautiful countryside is available for all with good connections
between rural and urban areas;

e Thereis a prosperous local economy that meets the needs of the town and
surrounding villages and that also provides well-paid local jobs, including working
from home due to high speed internet connectivity for businesses and those
working from home;

e Mental and physical health is good for all members of the community because there
are ample opportunities to exercise, meet others, and obtain specialist support
when it is required;

e There is energy self-sufficiency and the opportunity to benefit from renewable
sources of energy and cleaner energy including vehicle charging points;

e Tourists will visit and contribute to the local economy.

Page 107 9|Page



CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

13. The vision for our NDP was to produce a plan

that was informed and supported by our
community that gives the community
agency in influencing the development of
the town, including the required housing to
be built, to safeguard the future of our town
that makes it a safe and familiar place for
the existing residents, a thriving town with
working and living opportunities for the
younger members of our population and an
attractive and welcoming place for new-
comers who might move into our growing
community.

14. A Task and Finish Group was established by

the Town Council, including members of the
Town Council, for the specific purpose of
creating the Neighbourhood Plan to benefit
those who live and work in our community
today and to 2038. We seek to preserve the
things that our residents like about Cleobury
Mortimer such as the sense of community,
the natural environment and a sense of
safety and friendliness and address some of
the concerns that residents raised during
the preparation period of the CMNDP.

Methodology

15. The emerging Local Plan will cover the

period to 2038. It has produced more up to
date evidence that will be used to inform
policies in this NDP.

16. Our original aim was to:

e  Find out what people want and need
which can guide planners, developers,
businesses and the council;

e Influence the development of more
and better jobs, transport and homes
of the right type, in the right place;

e  Promote a socially inclusive and caring
community;

e  Preserve and enhance the traditions,
character and heritage unique to
Cleobury Mortimer;

Page 108

e  Foster partnership working to achieve
a thriving and safe place to live;

e Influence on national planning for
housing, road, transport and
infrastructure.

. We developed a Communication Strategy to

create engagement with our community to
ensure that the plan is community-led and
to make sure that our community felt
involved in the process and, of course, that
we were able to meet the statutory
requirement to consult on the draft plan at
Regulation 14 stage of the plan’s progress.

Community Engagement

18. The key to a successful Neighbourhood

Development Plan is the engagement of the
community to inform and eventually, to

support the plan. The emerging CMNDP has
been subject to wide consultation including:

e Initial qualitative meetings with
businesses, key organisations and
community groups from August 2017-
January 2018.

e The Town Planning Meeting in January
2018.

e  The Vision for Cleobury 2038 —an
output from the Town Planning
Meeting.

e  Public consultations at The Annual
Town Meeting and Primary School
Expo in April 2018 and May 2019.

e  Local Joint Council (LIC) drop in
sessions.

e  May/June 2018 - The Big Cleobury
Survey (BCS) — 510 household
responses —28% of households.
Distributed door to door, info points
and via e-mail, web and Facebook.

e Interim Town planning meeting
October 2018 with outcome of BCS
and maps of potential development
sites.

10| Page



CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

3 x 4 page A4 colour printed
Newsletters distributed house to
house or via the Cleobury Clarion
local newsletter.

3 drop in open surgeries post draft
plan issue

E-mail feedback route with over 60
responses

Council website regular updates with
status reports

Council Facebook page updates and
comments on Cleobury Community
websites with responses adding up to
300+

Regular updates in the Cleobury
Clarion via independent articles or
via the Council update page —
Circulation 1,000, readership circa
2,300.

Research by the Task and Finish
Group into public data and best
practices.

Input from our independent planning
consultant Andrea Pellegram MRTPI.

Input from Shropshire Planning
Department and the Local Plan
Consultation.

Regulation 14 Consultation was
undertaken in summer 2020 and all
the responses have been considered
and changes have been made to the
plan as a result.

The SEA was completed in Spring
2021 and the Regulation 14
consultation was repeated.

The site proposer for Ludlow Road
withdrew the site in July 2021 and a
new call for sites was undertaken.

The Steering Group discussed the
proposed sites with proposers and
other landowners and a call for sites

Page 109

“refresh” took place in
January/February 2022.

e Aninformal community consultation
was held to consider the proposed
site allocations which ran from 18
March 2022 to 8 April 2022.

e The SEA was updated April 2022.

19. In May 2018, the Steering Group established

a questionnaire of 49 questions (see
Appendix 1) to seek the views of the
community regarding housing, health,
community facilities, transport, the
economy, traffic and safety and the natural
environment. We asked what residents and
those who work in Cleobury Mortimer like
and dislike about the community and gave
respondents the opportunity to comment
on their wishes for the town in the future.
We called it The Big Cleobury Survey (BCS).

20. The community was encouraged to

complete the BCS electronically and this was
shared by email with contacts that had been
made through the initial meetings with
businesses and community groups, shared
on social media and hard-copies were also
made available to those without access or
who preferred to complete on paper. 510
households or individuals responded to the
BCS from a total population of 3,410 and
1,349 households representing a good
proportion of the community.

21. The majority of those that responded to the

BCS were within the 49-65 age range with
good numbers in the immediately below
and above age categories. However, the
results reflected that the highest proportion
of those living in the house was below the
age of 11. Therefore, there is some concern
that the BCS results are not entirely
representative of the whole community, and
young children in particular. The needs of
children has been taken into account in the
policies.

22. Of those that responded to the BCS, 10.5%

live in housing association or shared-

11| Page



CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

ownership housing (Cleobury has 23% 26.
overall). 76% owned their own home, either

with or without a mortgage, 85% of

respondents live in a house and most of

these houses have three bedrooms (41%), a
further 34% live in a four-bedroom house.

23. Of the BCS respondents, 39% are full-time 27.
employed and nearly 30% retired with a
narrow majority working in the
‘manufacturing, construction and
agriculture’ industry. 56% of respondents
work outside of Cleobury, 25% work in the
town but not at home and there were 18%
that work from home.

Evidence Base Overview

24. The analysis and proposals contained in the
CMNDP are based on a variety of
information sources but mainly the BCS,
follow-up engagement events, and research  »g
by the Steering Group.

Strategic Environmental Assessment

The Steering Group commissioned AECOM
through Locality to undertake the screening
process and to produce the final Strategic
Environmental Assessment (SEA)
Environmental Report (April 2022). The SEA
report is attached as a separate document.
With regard to alternative site options, the
SEA did not indicate that any one site was
favourable over another. However, in
assessing the CMNDP proposals as a whole,
including the proposed allocation, the SEA
concluded that:

Overall, the delivery of up to 120 new homes
and additional employment land, alongside
the cemetery expansion and a new
community recreation place is predicted to
deliver predominately positive effects overall
in relation to the SEA objectives.

. The SEA did not recommend that any

changes to the CMNDP policy approach
would be required.

25. As part of the Regulation 14 consultation in NDP Objectives

2020, the Steering Group requested a

screening opinion from the Local Planning 29.
Authority whether Strategic Environmental
Assessment of the CMNDP was required.

Because the CMNDP site allocation

methodology was based upon that

developed by the Local Planning Authority,

the planning authority gave the opinion that

SEA was required for stages not covered by

the Local Plan’s SEA.

Page 110

The objectives of our policies are to:

e Ensure any future building
development is done in location(s) and
a manner, which protects public
safety.

e Provide existing and future residents
with the opportunity to live in a decent
home.

12| Page



CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

Page 111 13|Page



30.

31.

CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

e Minimise the impact of new
development on the surrounding
countryside, landscape, and
ecosystems.

e Reduce harm to the environment by
seeking, where achievable, for new
development to be carbon neutral.

e Ensure that town community spirit is
preserved and, where possible,
enhanced.

e Ensure road traffic risks to public
safety are assessed and minimized.

e Ensure that opportunities for local
businesses and associated
employment are maximized.

The national need for extra housing and
employment land compels Cleobury
Mortimer to be involved in allocating
suitable land for at least 120 houses and 1.3
hectares of employment land by 2038. The
Town Council has chosen to take a major
role in the process of that land allocation
through its Neighbourhood Plan. It
established criteria to judge where and how
that allocation should be made.

The BCS showed that more than 84% of
respondents valued or greatly valued the

32.

countryside, its wildlife, trees, hedges and
wildlife corridors. They wanted them to be
protected and sustainable and to minimise
impacts on and providing net gains for
biodiversity, including by establishing
coherent ecological networks that are more
resilient to current and future pressures.
There is extensive work already in progress
to identify, map and safeguard the primary
habitats closely associated with wildlife
corridors, stepping stones, register of trees
especially veteran and notable trees, rivers
and streams as well as park land and
woodland and areas identified by national
and local partnerships for habitat
management, enhancement, restoration
and creation. This is complemented by the
Grade | manorial estate Mawley Hall who
are undertaking a substantial program of
river restoration, native tree planting, rare
old English breed sheep grazing, red deer
park and other wildlife development
programs. This will aid the overall habitat
improvement in the parish.

The Town Council has identified that its
cemetery space will run out within the
CMNDP period and has sought to find
additional burial space.




CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

About
Cleobury
Mortimer

Page 113 15]Page



CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

Cleobury Mortimer - Our Town

33. The wishes of those who live and work in
the town provide the essential context to
the Cleobury Mortimer NDP. This section
provides a brief overview of the town; its
location, surroundings, size, housing,
heritage and a summary of what residents
think about living in the town.

The Town

34. Cleobury Mortimer is a small market town in
South Shropshire between Clee Hill and the
Woyre Forest. The town has a predominantly
agricultural economy together with a small
amount of local industry within a very rural,
naturally beautiful environment. The town is
dominated by the twisted spire of St Mary’s
Church which can be seen from miles
around as well as the new landmarks of two
wind turbines which power local businesses.

35. The name of the town is thought to be
derived from the old English clifu meaning a
steep place and burg meaning dwellings

36.

within a fortified settlement. Another
suggested origin is from the old English
word for clay which describes the soil of the
area. Mortimer originates from Ranulph de
Mortimer of Normandy who was granted
the land after the Norman Conquest. The
town is included in the Domesday Book
(1086) and is described as Claiberie, with 45
households under the head of the Manor,
including 20 villagers, 8 smallholders, 14
slaves, 1 priest, 2 riders and a mill. The Lord
and Tenant-in-chief in 1086 was Ralph of
Mortimer. The town was granted its town
market charter in 1253 and regular farmers
markets continue to be held.

Cleobury Mortimer has a Conservation Area
(Figure 2) along its main street reflecting the
original residential development of the
town. There are 86 properties and historic
artefacts listed with Historic England within
the town; most of these are houses, but
they also include a manor house, water
trough, milestone markers and the war

memorial (Figure 3).




CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

Figure 2: Cleobury Mortimer Conservation Area

276500

276250

; oA l‘
? :\;I
i

275750

275500

This map is based on Ordnance Survey material with the permission of
Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction
infringes Crown copyright and may lead to p ion or civil p dings.
. Veters Shropshire Council - 2009

Mo V 11 L W)

275250

) 1) 1
367000 367250 367500 367750

Historic Environment Team

[ CLEOBURY MORTIMER CONSERVATION AREA  pevel Servi
@Shropshn"e CLEOBURY MORTINE o Envranment

The Shirehall, Abbey Foregate
Council Shrewsbury, Shropshire, SY2 6ND

Page 115 17|Page



CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

Figure 3: Listed Buildings

A Eyes A

at
a4 Sl

Itk A4
Ay

Source: Historic England crown Copyright: Ordnance Survey 100024900

37. A Conservation Area is an area of a town or
village considered worthy of preservation or
enhancement because of its special
architectural or historic interest. The
scheme was introduced by the Civic
Amenities Act 1967 and superseded by the
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation
Areas) Act 1990.

38. Cleobury Mortimer has developed along the

A4117, the main road through the town,

which provides links to the train stations

and more significant amenities of

Kidderminster, 12 miles to the east and

Ludlow, 11 miles to the west. The smaller

towns of Tenbury Wells (south) and

Bridgnorth (north) are also within 14 miles.

7 Perhaps originally “put-in-brook”.

Page 116

39. The River Rea skirts the eastern end of the
town with Rowley Brook running to the
south of the town and a further brook
across the north. Pudding Brook’ rises on
the western approach to the town on
Curdale Farm and runs through close to the
western side of the main road and high
street. It is breeched and culverted by four
roads before reaching the River Rea. Despite
this, it is has a vibrant amount of wildlife
and is a key corridor for birds such as owls,
swifts, swallows, bats, etc.

18| Page




CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

Living in the Town

40. There is a strong sense of community in
Cleobury Mortimer highlighted by the large
number of clubs and pastimes (circa 80). The
community is served by the Cleobury Clarion
(circulation 1,000 — readership 2,500), which
is the most regular means by which
respondents to the BCS found out about
what was going on in their community. The
sense of community and the people that live
in the town are top among the things that
respondents most like about living in the
town. Everything in the town is walkable by
most of the residents, however, it does
serve a much larger area within the parish
and further afield as can be seen in the
number of buses that bring students into
the town and the busyness of the main
street.

41. The town has a growing and slightly ageing
population. Quality of life in Cleobury
Mortimer is generally high and there are no
areas of high deprivation. Jobseekers
Allowance is paid to a smaller proportion of
the population than Shropshire and Great
Britain as a whole. Crime levels are very low
compared to the country as a whole and
large parts of Shropshire.8 This is supported
by work with community and youth groups
as well as a comprehensive CCTV system
and Smartwater anti theft program praised

8 Monthly crime statistics reviewed by our Council
and its volunteer run Crime Reduction Group

Page 117

by the Police and Crime Commissioner and
local MP.

42. Despite the high quality of life and the
sense of community there are also
frustrations and challenges living and
working in the town. These were
highlighted in the questions that asked
what the least favourite thing about
Cleobury Mortimer was.

Rural Look and Feel

43. Cleobury Mortimer sits within rolling south
Shropshire countryside between the Wyre
Forest and Clee Hill. Protecting the
countryside came out top in the BCS when
asking how important these factors were.

44, The importance of trees was recognised by
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990,
which made special provision for trees in
conservation areas that aren't already
protected by a tree preservation order. The
law requires that anyone proposing to cut
down or carry out any work on any tree
with a stem diameter of more than 75 mm,
when measured at 1.5 metres height above
ground level, in a conservation area must
give the council 6 weeks’ notice of their
intentions. Work may only be undertaken
either when permission has been given or
the six weeks has expired.

Evidence base from BCS :

45. 91% said the local Countryside was
important or very important.

46. 89%wanted to encourage wildlife and

biodiversity.

47. Development of new wildlife corridors
along the outside of the town was
important or very important to 81% of
households.

19| Page



CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

48. 85% agree strongly or very strongly that work and are very active. A tree register of
they regularly use the footpath network. veteran trees has been established and
target spaces within the town identified for
a tree planting program run by uniformed

children’s groups.

49. Planting more trees and hedges was very
important or important to 81%.

50. A tree warden and 2 deputies have been
appointed by the council following this

Page 118 20|Page



CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

Existing wildlife corridors

51. Natural lines of vegetation in and around the
Town with high biodiversity are all named
mapped and well known by community.
These include: Workhouse, School, Pudding
Brook, Tenbury Road, Hobsons, Rowley Brook.
River Rea, Catherton and Wyre Forest

Figure 4: Existing wildlife corridors

Corridors (Figure 4). Their total length is over
8 km and all are now interconnected and
mostly terminate at the River Rea. These
corridors offer shelter, security, feeding and
breeding grounds for wide biodiversity as well
as having easy access for walkers.

W

Workhouse /
on Hill | . b

Pay yg

Révirvoi (eov)

Rowley Brook

— i AT B i o= JE
q ) %ﬂ‘ﬁ, / 7 | r;
\ S & Lg? i | (1N =N > / LN
o¥ %] A o E = “ [ AR SO e
» (’\,{; | | River Rea | | % ) s f :
&5 - ~% | B | y
. .| od \ F8 |
Catherton-Corridor Bpa Sta. \ p <t - Golf Course . |
& < ~County Park Lakeview 7/ |

Crown Copyright and database rights 2021, OS 100031961

\‘q& _* Wyre Cammon

r_JL
River_Rea q - /
B A 2y

— 11-71“:\3'/ B Lo|

o~ ( _ |

&
1

b
(%

e 'SCQ/ “ \ s

Page 119

21| Page



CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

Trees

52. The Council adopted a Tree Charter in 2018

and a tree Warden and two deputies have
been appointed who are very active. They
and the NDP Steering Group have reviewed
the five tree surveys carried out over the
past decade.

53. The Town Council owns and has

responsibility for three areas and their
trees: the graveyard of St. Mary’s Church in
the town, QEIll Park, and the active
Cemetery to the west of the town. A
professional survey was carried out in 2017
and the Council have acted upon the
recommendations in that report. There is
an ongoing commitment to maintain the
trees on these sites.

54. One of the deputy Tree Wardens has been

photographing prominent trees within the
parish. This has resulted in a collection of
over 200 photographs and is a record of
over 200 trees together with specific data
on each tree. This includes: the map
reference, landowner, tree height, trunk
circumference and hence age estimate,
species and relevant notes. It is expected
that this work will continue to be a lasting
and valuable reference book of the trees of
Cleobury.

55. In 2018, the new owner of the Estate

56.

commissioned survey (yet to be published),
of all the trees on the Estate. This forward
thinking approach by the Estate is very
welcome. The CMNDP Steering Group is
committed to working in partnership with
key stakeholders overseeing such
important initiatives. Other landowners
have been managing their trees and
planting new ones mostly under the Farm
Stewardship Scheme, which is a farm
subsidy for environmental work. This may
well change as the EU subsidies are
replaced by UK schemes.

A Desk Top Survey of the Parish Tree
Population was carried out in September

Page 120

2020 using Google Earth Mapping to
estimate the total number of trees and
their age profile in that part of the Parish to
the west of the River Rea. It showed that
there are over 8,500 trees older than 10
years of which 3500 are older than 130
years.

57. The desktop study revealed that over the

last 50-100 years, an imbalance in the age
profile of the trees has developed. If the
present success rate for self-sown trees
surviving to adulthood is not increased,
there will be fewer trees in the future.
Therefore a tree replacement program
needs to be established to secure the long
term future of trees, especially oak trees.

58. To help deal with this identified need, over

1,000 acorns have been harvested by a
group of volunteers under the banner of
“Plant a Tree in 23” and are being sown in
support of developing a tree replacement
program. They should provide a bank of
saplings within 3-5 years. Alongside this, a
new initiative of community acorn growing
at home has begun. Tree planting of
mature sapling/bare roots are also being
acquired from free tree sources to be
planted by the Council and by uniformed
youth groups in the 2020-21 period. A
further option of creating an Oak Avenue
by planning more mature trees along the
A4117 on the approach to the town is
under consideration.

59. A similar desk top survey in October 2020

established a data base recording the
importance of the trees within the seven
Wildlife Corridors. Wildlife Corridors are
not only just avenues/alleyways that join up
areas of high biodiversity, they are also
safeguarded areas of high biodiversity and
habitat in their own right. A mature oak can
provide habitats for over 1,000 species of
fauna and flora according to the Woodland
Trust and RSPB. The table in Table 2 shows
that there are over 600 such trees in these
Wildlife Corridors.

22| Page



CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

Table 2: Table showing age of trees in some Cleobury Mortimer wildlife corridors

Length in Trees over 10 years
Wildlife Corridor metres old Trees over 130 years old
Workhouse 1.4 Km 144 28
School 1.2Km 67 18
Pudding Brook 1.8Km 325 29
Tenbury Road 0.45 KM 20 4
Hobsons 0.75KM 29 10
Rowley Brook 1.75Km 134 15
River Rea >8Km 7500 500
Total Trees 8219 604

Community and Recreational Facilities

60. For a community of around 3,400°,
Cleobury Mortimer is well served with
community and recreational facilities.

Cleobury Mortimer is served by a retained

fire station. The town has a Market Hall

next to the church with meeting rooms and

a number of offices for local businesses,
bank, post office, library and the town

council. There is a Parish Hall and a (former)

Methodist Hall which is now the
Community Hub providing a range of

for football, rugby and cricket. Figure 5
shows some of the many clubs and
community groups that use these facilities
and others.

services including coffee shop, climbing wall
and range of activities for all ages. There is
a Leisure Centre and a Sports and Social
Club alongside the sports field that is used

9 Shropshire Council 2015.

Page 121

23| Page



CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

Figure 5: Diagram of existing community groups in Cleobury Mortimer

Mens Ched COCO Compassionate

Beavers

Rainbows History Soclety oelry\\

Cubs Euf=lcs Arts & music
Guides 10
Ventures British =

Writing Gruup

ub :
Ballet H 4/ Modern Sequenc
Rangers 4 H Dance

‘ Friends of -*\
Clecbury Library ( Junior |

Brass Band |

Stroke Support

Communities Pilates
Carers Group = Dementia Friendly Dart Back Class
Car Neighbourhood o LA
Age UK Schems sl Rugby Club
Monday Club
Walking Football Club Yoga VoI‘I:elybball
: z Sing for Health et
Youth Forum 3
F"Eﬁ:h"’ Laugh breathe | Cricket Club i Y
St. Mary's . P _ » _.
Breakfast Club ClesbrryiRabenta Sports & ; RuTn ’aknd
" Social Club il a \
g St. Mary's e Mary_s st ¥ . Friday Social
New Friends Youth Project 2 . RUNNING
of St Mary" 2 S
Life e Support Sports | e Club
St Mary's Groups Groups - : Taekwando
Day Pastoral Care Group 15 17 e '
Centre Young Badmint
Farmers .y L CT"I: e
: E ul
Soroptomists Churches 5t. Elizabeth Cleobu ry Bowling Club A::clllliry X
Toddler > Communit j
Group Activity Social Groups G 8 Zy f P|geo
Tiny Tots e roxps o | e (" Footpath Whist + Crib )
L Scouts 2019v 8 | ”?;;:m +Dominoes ;I

geinet Plashc
Nol So Fantastic
Bridge Club |

Legion
YAKS Brownies Women's
Institute - H ( lotments
. o d Sl e | F 0 Tl TulVed FORTICUITURAL Yeesie Group
Nippers . 3
EP T “ | Book Club 5 < N.ﬂy J
Explorers lothers Union 7 P Fifties et
it % \_/ K;“t::d (Borders Classw\
» el Bike Club
. Creative

Weekly Hndgnn
Bus Gmup (Severn Hospice
Crafters
Cleobury
w Bell Ringers ) (* Owi
Watch

Source: Big Cleobury Survey

61. The BCS identified that the best
opportunities for groups to get together
and have fun are available for those over 65
with the fewest opportunities for those
between 12 and 18, however, the
respondents identified that there was the
greatest need for more facilities for those
over 65.

62. A number of additional facilities were
suggested in the BCS including:

e Community Bus Service — set routes to
towns and villages not currently served
— paid for by users — some discounts,
this has subsequently been researched
and found to have insufficient demand
at present as a paid service.

e Community Hub (design informed by
young people and run by a local

Page 122

charity. Services are available to all
ages — including Dance Studio, Café,
Climbing Wall, music studio)

e Outdoor Gym Trail — free to use (this
has been implemented)

e Community car service - (For
work/school/leisure/self-drive and
bookable)

e Bike Trail — Through trees in park (with
jumps) - free to use (this has been
implemented)

e Dog training and exercise area -
Free/Bookable as private for small
cost. (this has been implemented)

63. All of these ideas received support with the
Community Bus Service getting the most
support from respondents to the BCS.

24 |Page




CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

64. The rural location of the town is also an

important asset with an active Footpath
Association and a Walkers are Welcome
designation bringing many walkers into the
area to walk on well-cared for footpaths
and to prepared walking routes.

Provision of a Community Hub and
Recreation Space

65. The BCS identified that the greatest need

for the town going forward was for
activities and facilities for younger age
group children. As this was known at the
qualitative stage the proposal was put in
the BCS, 78% strongly or somewhat
supported a Youth Hub designed and run
by youth but to support the whole
community. A phase 1is in place at a
temporary venue, The Methodist Church
under a 5-year lease whilst a business case
is being developed for the eventual
community hub.

66. St. Mary’s Youth Project (SMYP) have tested

the concept of how a community hub
would be used in Cleobury Mortimer. This
has the support of the Town Council and
wider community. A 5-year agreement has
been reached with the Methodist Church
and their hall has been given over to a trial
Community Hub which opened in Autumn
2019.

67. The Shropshire Open Space and Recreation

Needs Assessment (2018) indicated that
Cleobury Mortimer has a 4.4 ha. open
space deficit. The housing land allocation
will provide at least 1 ha of public open
space however a 3.4 ha deficit will remain.
Access to open countryside is well served
with a comprehensive network of public
footpaths.

10 Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD), Department

of Communities and Local Government, Crown
Copyright 2017.

Page 123

Health and Health Care

68. Life expectancy in Shropshire is higher than

the national average. Life expectancy for
births in Shropshire between 2013- 15 are
80.3 for males and 83.8 for females. This
compares to an average of 79.5 and 83.1
for England.*®

69. Of the 3,288 residents of Cleobury

Mortimer in the last census reporting on
their health conditions:

e 246 reported that their day-to-day
activities were limited a lot.

e 338 reported that their day-to-day
activities were limited a little.

e 2,704 reported that their day-to-day
activities were not limited at all.

70. The rate of people expressing that their

day-to-day activities were limited a lot was
7.5% which is lower than the rate for
Shropshire 8.4% and England 8.3%.

71. This was reflected in the BCS, with 86% of

respondents stating that their health was
good or very good.

72. Cleobury Mortimer is served by its own

extended access Medical Centre with an
attached pharmacy. They are based in a
recent, purpose-built facility which was
completed 6 years ago, it has plenty of
available parking and is situated to the west
of the town in a residential area and
opposite the soon-to-be-opened care
facility. The medical centre uses only part of
the new building they occupy and there is
potential that the other part of the building
could be occupied by medical/health
services or for office space. There are
hospital services available in Tenbury Wells,
Ludlow and a minor injuries unit at
Kidderminster Hospital. The nearest

25| Page



CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

Accident and Emergency departments are other practitioners that offer other well-
in Worcester, Telford and Dudley. being services such as podiatry, chiropody,
physiotherapy and osteopathy.

73. The town has its own NHS dentist and NHS
optician services, as well as a number of

Mobile and Broadband Services and these policies will therefore not be

L repeated in the NDP.
74. The broad band service is of a reasonable

standard given the Town has fibre Town Services
broadband and some residents are able to
secure superfast broadband if they are
willing to pay for upgrades which can boost
speeds to circa 30-75 megabits. A similar
service should be secured at of the
expanded in any future developments.
There is a BT station in the town the main
road opposite the Co-Op .

77. Cleobury Mortimer has a range of shops
and services available including a bank
(limited hours), a Post Office, licenced
restaurants, small supermarkets, Public
Houses, tradespeople and local businesses.
These services are greatly valued with the
Post Office and Bank coming top in the BCS
when respondents were asked which

75. Good broadband is not available in all rural services should be protected.
areas of the parish, with outlying properties
and businesses suffering from poor speeds.
There are offers available for improvement

78. Online facilities to shop for groceries and
clothes have changed the nature of all
shopping, and there remain no clothes
shops in Cleobury Mortimer. The closest
towns with clothes shopping options are

76. The emerging Local Plan contains detailed Ludlow and Kidderminster.
policies on broadband and electronic access

but roll-out is still being reported as
problematic.

Page 124 26|Page



CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

79. There are two small, free to use official car
parks in the town with toilet facilities in the
car park on Love Lane. There is on-street
parking through most of the town with
most parts of the main street lined by

housing. There are parts of the main street
that are not suitable for parking and these
have been marked with double-yellow
lines, however, there is minimal
enforcement of the parking restrictions.

Page 125 27|Page



CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

Education

80. Cleobury Mortimer has a small number of

pre-school, nursery care providers, a
primary school and a secondary school.
Lacon Childe Secondary School is a
community school with approximately 500
pupils who travel from a wide catchment
area, employing over 100 staff and with its
own transport system. The Cleobury
Primary School employs a further 41 staff.
The two schools educate approximately 750
pupils. Further education is delivered in
several neighbouring towns combining
limited public and local transport solutions
to get there. The Secondary and Primary
School are part of an Academy group with
neighbouring Clee Hill and Stottesdon
Primary Schools forming the Shropshire
Gateway Academy Trust.

81. The net capacity of Cleobury Primary School

is 264 with an approved annual admission
of 37 pupils. The school has 262 pupils on
roll (2020/2021 data)) plus 30 in nursery
(built in 2015) which will better prepare
children for school. The percentage of
pupils eligible, at any time during the past
six years, for Free School Meals is 22.5%,
below the national average of 23.5%. The
percentage of pupils whose first language is
not English is very low (1.6%) compared to
20.5% nationally. It achieved an Ofsted
Rating of Good in November 2017. The
number of children with SEND support is
13.7%, slightly above the national average
of 12.6%, but SEND with EHC planis 3.1%,
above the average of 2.0%. This partly

Page 126

reflects the lack of provision elsewhere in
South Shropshire and pockets of poverty in
the town.

82. Lacon Childe Senior School has a net

capacity of 540 with an approved annual
admission of 108 pupils. The school has 558
pupils on roll (Mar 2022). The percentage
of pupils eligible, at any time during the
past 6 years, for Free School Meals is
13.1%, lower than the national average of
19.7%. It also has an Ofsted Rating of Good
from November 2017. There is also a Local
Authority managed Special Educational
Needs Hub based within the school with
capacity for 20 students for years 7 to 11.

83. Large coaches, mini-buses and cars, taking

and collecting pupils to and from school,
congest the lanes surrounding the schools
and on the main street during the periods
at the start and end of the school. day.

Traffic

84. Cleobury Mortimer developed along the

A4117 which is a significant route from
Birmingham to the east through to Wales in
the west. It is a busy route that sees lorries
from the nearby quarry at all times of the
day, lorries, motorbike groups, cyclists, bin
lorries, school traffic and agricultural
vehicles alongside the normal day-to-day
traffic of a small, rural town. There is also
parking along the entire route. Figure 6
illustrates lorry traffic causing congestion at
2.00 pm — this level of congestion is
exacerbated when school buses travel to
and from the schools.

28| Page



CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

85. One of the key concerns of residents raised

in the BCS was traffic and congestion
through the town and the danger to
pedestrians which was reflected again in
the Regulation 14 consultation responses.

86. Traffic congestion is generated because of

the significant role that the town plays to
many smaller villages and communities in
the area, such as for the school and medical
centre, the fact that the A4117 is a major
route and the often large number of the
lorries and agricultural vehicles that make
their way through the town. On-street
parking in the town centre adds to
congestion. The growth of housing further
west in Ludlow where in excess of 1,000
houses are planned, will lead to further
through traffic since around 20-25% of
those residents will commute to the Black
Country through Cleobury Mortimer.

Page 127

Figure 6: Photo of lorry congestion in Cleobury Mortimer town centre (weekday)

jet out of the

87. The on-street parking and congestion can

lead to parts of the town feeling unsafe for
pedestrians and the BCS asked which areas
of Cleobury Mortimer felt unsafe. The top
five areas that it is felt were unsafe for
pedestrians were the Tenbury Road
junction (Figure 7) with the high street,
High Street, New Road, the Lion Lane
junction with the high street and around
the Primary School. Those roads deemed
most congested were: High Street (90%),
Lower Street, Tenbury Road junction with
High Street and the Primary School. Traffic
calming measures would be supported at:
High Street, Lower Street; around the
Primary School and Secondary School, the
Tenbury Road junction with High Street and
outside the Manor House.

88. Additional traffic from new homes will add

to existing congestion and road safety
concerns and this is considered in this plan.

29| Page



CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

Figure 7: Tenbury Road junction illustrating lack of pedestrian footways

Local Travel

89. The BCS showed that for respondents, the
main form of transport to work is the car
(89%) though around 9% walked to work.
More people walked to leisure activities
(19%) and 74% drove. There is an even split
between those walking or being driven to
school (Figure 8)

90. Bus services were not generally considered
good or very good across a range of criteria
such as customer service, days, value for
money, routes and reliability. Those

responding to the BCS were asked whether
they would use community bus services if
they were offered. A community bus
service initially looked viable given 37% said
they would definitely or probably use it.
Potential for building on the current
community car scheme or setting up a
separate trust or joining a neighbouring
scheme. The school minibuses are a viable
option if managed independently and
contracts are revised but this has not been
possible to negotiate. Lift sharing and self-
drive were not as popular an option.

Figure 8: Big Cleobury Survey Q42: What is your household's main form of transport

Car Cycle

For work M For leisure

Page 128

Bus Taxi/coach

To get to school/college

30| Page



CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

91. The Town Council has recently considered e Develop partnerships with public,
how to provide a community bus service private and statutory and voluntary
and identified an indicative route network bodies, particular local community
(Figure 9), It has considered feasibility but groups.

has not confirmed sufficient demand to

make it commercially viable.

e Identify and quantify transport
demands ongoing, evaluate the service

92. The aims and objectives of the community against these principals and seek as

bus service would have been:

soon as feasible to provide a more

e To reduce isolation by increasing inclusive, door to door and fully

independence through providing low-

accessible service.

cost transport. 93. Sadly subsidies have dried up from

e To prevent exclusion and
marginalisation of individuals and
groups because of a lack of suitable

transport.

Shropshire Council and a paid for service,
even with volunteer drivers does not now
look viable. The Town Council will review
this in the future.

e To make best use of current transport

resources,

collaborating with other

community transport services, private
and public operators.

Figure 9: Potential route map for community bus service

Billingsley
2 Cleeton St Mary Stottesdon Highley
Farlow SRt
Catherton
Jp—— Kinlet
NEGTJ;SBVBgE Link with Bewdley
Clee Hill _///"" Bridgenorth Bus
Knowle Cleobury

NB: Not to scale

Sidbury

Areas joining very
close to the end
destination will
get a £1 reduction
each way.

Coreley Bayton

Milson  na

Sollars

Worcester

Page 129 31|Page



CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

Employment

94. The BCS showed that 30% of the 96. The BCS indicates that the future economy
respondents were retired, and 55% were will probably require local people to travel
employed either full time, part time or outside the town and that local jobs are not
were self-employed. Only 3% described well paid. There was a belief that new
themselves as unemployed. 44% worked in businesses were likely to focus around
Cleobury Mortimer, and 56% worked tourism, leisure, crafts, followed by light
outside the town. Income levels are industrial, retail and healthcare. 80% say
relatively high for those living in Cleobury we should invest more in promoting
Mortimer and deprivation levels are low. tourism, but it is not important to

everyone.

95. The local economy is very mixed in terms of
type, with the schools being significant 97. Cleobury Mortimer needs more
employers, plus 5 medium sized businesses; employment land, however the majority
Kudos Blends (B2B Baking additives), Muller view via the BCS is that commercial land
Engineering, Amodil (Steel), Hobsons increase should not exceed the local plan
Brewery and Capulet Care. Most local identified requirements.
employment opportunities come from 98. Cleobury Country Centre is a not for profit
organisations of four employees or less. organisation based in Cleobury but serving
These businesses together with self- adjacent parishes. Its remit is to promote
employment are mixed, but with a high local businesses, tourism and the life of the
proportion of builders and craftspeople as town. It also runs the local library and

well as those working in healthcare. This
distribution of employment is typical for
Shropshire, as shown in Figure 10.

houses the Town Council Offices.

Figure 10: Distribution of economic sectors in Shropshire, 2018

Transport, retail
or wholesale

Public sector or
education

Business and other
services, financial
or insurance

Health or social -/ \

care Manufacturing,
J construction or
Hospitality, agriculture
catering or leisure

services

Source: Shropshire Council Business Strategy 2018.)

Page 130 32|Page



CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

99. The Town Council, Cleobury Country Centre
and supportive local organisations will need
to work together to promote the available
employment land with a bias towards
employment opportunities with better pay
and skills to balance the local economy and
the need for fewer people to travel for
employment (Figure 11). This is especially
important, as public transport is poor (see 102. Cleobury Country Centre acts as a hub for
Transport and Traffic section). businesses and this should be encouraged

and supported to help bring about greater

and more relevant employment
opportunities.

101. Consequently we want to encourage new
and better employment locally as well as
enabling self-employment through better
infrastructure such as superfast broadband
and high quality mobile coverage, ideally
offering to be a 5G pilot site.

100. Slightly more people work outside
Cleobury Mortimer (54%) than inside. This
is a consequence of an increase in new

housing and limited employment 103. To reduce the number of commuters
opportunities of a higher value. The Town (54%) and those leaving the town for work
Council and many of the BCS respondents and to encourage employment in the town,
want to make sure that we work for a more the Town Council will work with Cleobury
vibrant and integrated community that Country and existing property owners and
discourages dormitory status. investors to encourage an increase in

shared office space and office rental
opportunities in the town. We should focus
on existing premises ahead of any new
buildings during the plan period.

Figure 11: Q36 If you are in employment or seeking employment, tick the options you believe
to be true for your household

| have good employment opportunities in Cleobury
Mortimer that meet my needs

| work from home/for myself and make my own
opportunities

| want to stay in Cleobury Mortimer but the jobs are too
poorly paid

| will need to travel, or move from Cleobury Mortimer, to
get the job opportunities | want

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140

Page 131 33| Page



CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

104. We hope to provide further shared office

space for the self-employed and emerging
small businesses. Cleobury Country Centre
and the Market Hall are currently fully
occupied. Therefore, we would look to
make available more shared office space
managed by Cleobury Country or if not
possible, another investor. The Medical
Centre has space available that has been
vacant for some time.

105. Tourism adds employment and earning

potential to the town. As a gateway to the
Shropshire Hills, it is its rural setting which
is its greatest asset. The walking

Type

Tourism, leisure, crafts
Light industrial, advanced manufacturing

Shops and retail

Healthcare, homecare and complementary
therapies

Community services and social enterprises

Pubs, restaurants, cafes

Food, drink, ingredient production and
processing

Building contractors, decorators, manual
trades

Financial and professional services

Total Respondents: 346

Page 132

opportunities, local B&Bs, Farm stays, pubs
and tea rooms are a draw for people from
the Birmingham conurbation and some
from as far away as London. We seek to
improve promotion of this offer via a new
tourist strategy and a modest investment in
its support. A modest investment was the
predominant verdict of the BCS.

106. The site considered the most suitable for

the addition of up to two hectares of
commercial land is on the Tenbury Road,
attached to the Newhouse Farm Industrial
Site. Table 3 illustrates the types of new
businesses that may arise.

Table 3: Big Cleobury Survey Q38 What types of Businesses do you think would want to locate
to Cleobury Mortimer?

Responses

60.40% 209
40.46% 140
39.02% 135
37.86% 131
35.26% 122
31.79% 110
28.32% 98
23.12% 80
18.21% 63

34| Page



CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

Page 133 BlPage



CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

Development Plan policies

107. Neighbourhood Plans must meet certain

‘basic conditions’ and other legal
requirements (as set out in paragraph 8 of
Schedule 4B to the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 (as amended)) before
they can come into force. These are tested
through an independent examination before
the neighbourhood plan may proceed to
referendum.

108. Paragraph 8(2) of Schedule 4B to of the

Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as
applied to NDPs by section 38A of the
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act
2004, outlines the basic conditions that a
NDP must adhere to in order to proceed to a
referendum and be ‘made’.

109. “A draft plan meets the basic conditions if:

e It has regard to national policies
and advice contained in guidance
issued by the Secretary of State;

o The making of the plan contributes
to the achievement of sustainable
development;

e The making of the plan is in general
conformity with the strategic
policies contained in the
development plan for the area of
the authority (or any part of that
area);

e The making of the plan does not
breach, and is otherwise
compatible with, EU obligations;

e Prescribed conditions are met in
relation to the plan and prescribed
matters have been complied with in
connection with the proposal for
the plan.”

110. Planning law requires that applications for

planning permission be determined in
accordance with the Development Plan,
unless material considerations indicate
otherwise. The Development Plan includes

Page 134

adopted Local Plans and Neighbourhood
Plans that have been approved at
referendum.

111. The Development Plan for the CMINDP is:

e Shropshire Local Development
Framework, Adopted Core
Strategy, March 2011;

e The Shropshire Council Site
Allocations and Management of
Development (SAMDev) Plan,
Adopted 17/12/2015;

112. The Development Plan is informed by the

Place Plan for Cleobury Mortimer and
surrounding area September 2019.
Information in support of the review of the
Place Plan was submitted by the Town
Council in June 2019.

113. The Local Plan is currently under review

and was subject to Regulation 19
consultation in December 2020.

114. Cleobury lies in the “South Spatial Zone” in

the Core Strategy settlement strategy (Table
1). The Core Strategy (CS1) indicates that
Key Centres will maintain and enhance their
traditional roles in providing services and
employment, accommodating around 40%
of Shropshire’s residential development
over the plan period to 2026. In Cleobury
Mortimer, the Core Strategy seeks to
promote development that balances
environmental constraints with meeting
local needs (CS3). Cleobury Mortimer is also
identified as a District Centre (CS15).

115. Key Centres are identified by their role and

sphere of influence, both existing and
potential, not simply by their size and their
scope for future development. They are, and
could be stronger, focal points for local
transport networks, employment
opportunities and services. They provide
sustainable places in which development
can contribute to a “virtuous circle” of
greater self-sufficiency within the towns,
reducing the need to travel, maximising the
potential for sustainable transport and

36|Page



CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

strengthening local markets, thereby
helping reduce our carbon dioxide emissions
and strengthening local resilience in a
changing world.!

116. SAMDev MD1.1 identifies CM as a market

town and Key Centre!? which is surrounded
by a number of villages and hamlets set out
as “community cluster settlements”*3. MD3
seeks to ensure that there is not an
oversupply of housing permissions in
particular areas and will seek to identify

11 Core Strategy, 4.30.
12 SAMDev page 15.

Page 135

housing land in areas of undersupply,
outside the settlement boundary if
necessary. The supporting text states that
there is an expectation that windfall sites
will make a contribution.

117. SAMDev S6 allocates two sites for housing

(CM0002; CMO005 which have been built
out) and one site for employment
(ELRO68CM) (Figure 12). It also identifies
the development boundary of the
settlement.

13 SAMDev page 17.

37| Page



CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

Figure 12: SAMDev designations and allocations in Cleobury Mortimer

56 Inset 1 Cleobury Mortimer

CMO002
CMO005

ELRnaag}i?i-

Shropshire Council
Adopted Policies Map 2015

Cleobury Mortimer Place Plan Area
S6INSET1, 2,3,4
Key
%_ Protected Employment Area
Housing
' Employment
|:| Development Boundary
I scheduled Ancient Monument
Town Centre

Conservastion Area

© Crown copymght 2015 08 10004004H

| ¥i¥ Shropshire

Council

Source: SAMDev policies map for Cleobury Mortimer

Page 136 38|Page



CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

118. In 2020 in support of the Regulation 19
draft Local Plan, Shropshire identified that
there was a 6.05 year supply of deliverable
housing land against the housing
requirement within the adopted Core
Strategy and 8.11 years supply of deliverable
housing land against the housing need
identified using the Government’s standard
methodology.**

119. Emerging Local Plan policy SP2 will deliver
30, 800 new dwellings and around 300
hectares of employment land for the plan
period of 2016 to 2038. Cleobury Mortimer
is identified as a Key Centre in Schedule
SP2.1 and policy SP2 states that “Key
Centres will accommodate significant well-
designed new housing and employment
development, supported by necessary
infrastructure. Growth within these diverse
settlements will maintain and enhance their
roles, support key services and facilities and
maximise their economic potential.”

120.Cleobury Mortimer was identified as a Key
Centre in Schedule SP2.1 in the Emerging
Local Plan. This considered the needs for
additional housing allocations in the
Cleobury Mortimer area and in Policy S6
(56.1) identifies that 200 dwellings and 2 ha
of employment land will be required over
the plan period to 2038.

121.Emerging Local Plan policy SP12 supports
economic growth in Key Centres and policy
S6 sets out detailed policy aspirations for
the Cleobury Mortimer Plan Area. It
acknowledges the role of the Cleobury
Mortimer NDP. Figure 1 of the Site
Allocations document shows site allocations
saved from the Core Strategy which are not
discussed in this NDP.

122.Appendix 5 of the emerging Local Plan sets
out residential development guidelines for

1 Shropshire Council Five Year Housing Land Supply
Statement: Executive Summary Data to: 31st March
2020 Published: 23rd March 2021.

Cleobury Mortimer. Overall, 200 dwellings
are required for the plan period with a
windfall allowance of 120 dwellings required
to account for what has already been
permitted and completed.

123.1t is unlikely that the requirement for 120

dwellings can be met through windfall
development and therefore, the CMINDP will
allocate land for this number of dwellings.
Any windfall development not on allocated
sites will be in excess of the identified need
and this NDP therefore makes provision for
housing land in excess of the identified
requirement.

124.If the NDP were not to allocate land to meet

this provision, and the need could not be
met within the currently defined settlement
boundary, it must be assumed that
speculative housing development will be
allowed. If this were to occur, then it would
be more difficult to secure developer
contributions arising from the developments
to meet local need, since these would not
be set out clearly in Development Plan
policies. The English planning system is plan
led, and the CMINDP seeks to take a
proactive approach to meetings the
identified housing need and necessary
infrastructure.

125.The overall identified need for 2 ha. of

employment land to 2038 is considered
against permissions, completions and
allocations in Appendix 6, Schedule A6 of
the Regulation 19 draft of the Local Plan.
The 2 ha requirement, taking account of
available land supply of 0.7 ha, indicates
that the CMNDP should make provision for
1.3 ha. of additional employment land.

Page 137 39| Page



CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

Development boundary

126.The Regulation 19 draft leaves it to the
CMNDP to identify a revised development
boundary that considers land allocations
which will be included in the Policies Map®®.

Cleobury Mortimer Development
Strategy

127.The original advice from the Local Planning
authority underpinning the Regulation 14
consultation was to make provision for 138
dwellings. This has now been revised
downwards to 120 dwellings. The 2020
Regulation 14 version of the CMNDP made
provision for 140 dwellings and no windfall
but this will now be reduced to an allocation
for 120 dwellings and no windfall. Windfall
can therefore be considered to be in excess
of the identified need for additional
housing.

128.The full justification for the housing and
employment allocations is set out in a
separate document which accompanies the
CMNDP: Cleobury Mortimer Site
Assessments. The revised development
boundary will respect the existing
development boundary but will include the
new site allocations. In this respect, all
other Development Plan and emerging Local
Plan policies will prevail outside the
Development Boundary.

15Regulation 19 Draft of the Shropshire Local Plan,
para 5.95.

Page 138

Housing Land Allocations

129.The Planning Authority’s approach to site

allocation is summarised in the Cleobury
Mortimer Place Plan Area Site Assessments
Published (August 2020). The CMNDP Site
Allocation extends this assessment in a
Stage 4 assessment of local development
considerations and requirements.

130.The CMNDP undertook extensive

consultations since 2018. The full
background to this is set out in the
accompanying document “Residential Site
Allocations”.

131.The January/February 2022 call for site

yielded 4 sites, one of which was clearly
preferred. The site at Ludlow Road would
be able to provide land for 120 homes at 30
dwelling per hectare, a 0.5 hectare
cemetery extension which was required for
the future of the town, and an adequate
proportion of open space and green
infrastructure with walking and cycling
routes connecting with the town centre.
The site allocation and infrastructure
requirements are set out in Figure 13.

132.The site has been assessed against both the

adopted SAMDev and the Emerging Local
Plan. Development criteria in Policy 1 area
based on these development plan
documents as well as the emerging CMNDP
policies. The ownership of the land will be
transferred to Cleobury Mortimer Town
Council before completion of the 20
dwelling of proposals in CM1.

40| Page



CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

Figure 13: Land allocation at Ludlow Road

/i
NTAE,

\?%% Extension (CM2)
X ’&g--—— Accessible

Map key

Site boundary

Cemetery

wildlife corridor
and footpath

Approximate
location of

accessible open
space

Revised
development
boundary (CM4)

T HLY - -

| ¢ Crown Copyright and database rights 2021, 05 100031961
,:l _| L r“'j-., . [ T

P L S | TS bl

Page 139

41 |Page




CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

V.
vi.
Vii.

CM1: Ludlow Road residential allocation

5.2 hectares of land is allocated between Catherton Road and Ludlow Road for the
delivery of 120 homes at a density of 30 dwellings per hectare, and open space shown
in Figure 13 subject to the following:

A. 0.5 hectares of land allocated in Policy CM2 and shown in Figure 13 will be provided
as cemetery space before completion of the 20" dwelling.
B. An accessible wildlife corridor with a minimum overall area of 1 hectare should be
created linking Ludlow Road with Catherton Road. This will include:
i.

Tree shelter belts to protect the privacy and amenity of residential
properties on Lea View and Catherton Road;

Substantial planting with native species to create new habitats along the
route;

An accessible green space that will make provision for play and recreation;
A segregated walking and cycling route (suitable for pushchairs and mobility
scooters) that will complement but not disturb the newly created wildlife
corridor;

Improvements to the pond near Catherton Road;

Way signage; and

A long term management strategy.

C. A tree planting strategy should be provided and existing trees and hedgerows
should be preserved wherever possible;

D. The site should have a single road access from Ludlow Road;

E. Sustainable Drainage Systems should control water run-off on-site and avoid
pollution impacts from surface water. Natural Flood management will be
welcomed and garden paved areas should be permeable and additional surface
water run-off avoided; and

F. Broadband and mobile phone provision should be implemented where possible.

Cleobury Mortimer Cemetery
Extension

133.The Cemetery was opened in 1895, with the
top section opening in 1961 running
concurrently with the older section for many

and death/burial rates. There are currently
280 spaces available and there is an
estimated 21.5 years capacity remaining at
current levels. A 120 year supply of
additional space would be in the order of
0.6 ha if the population were to grow to
accommodate new housing development.

years for additional burials (re-opens). To

determine future burial land required over
next 30 years based on future population
trends and forecastable burial trends, the
Town Council considered current capacity
based on current trends, changes in
demographics, preferences of type of burial

134. The existing cemetery space is 0.7 ha
broken into two equivalent parcels and it is
proposed here that additional cemetery
space of 0. 5 ha is required which is
approximately 100 years’ requirement. The
required cemetery space is shown in Figure
13.

Page 140 “2|Page




CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

135. In 2022, new guidance was issued which who propose to use the site for ceremonial
will prevent human burials at the cemetery purposes are advised to consult this
extension for reasons of groundwater guidance in the event that an environmental
protection. It will still be possible to have a permit will be required.

garden of remembrance, a structure or wall
containing multiple urns, or sealed caskets
for ground interments of ashes.® Applicants

CM2: Cleobury Mortimer cemetery extension
Land is allocated west of the existing cemetery, shown in Figure 13, for 0.5 hectares
of additional cemetery space subject to the following:

A. The perimeter of the site should be planted with a screening hedge at least 1.5
metres in height when mature, and including native tree species;

B. Consideration should be given to the parking needs of visitors and suitable
provision will be made; and

C. Use of land as a cemetery complies with the requirements of the relevant
Government guidance protecting groundwater from human burials

16 burials#:~:text=The%20Environment%20Agency%?2

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/prot Oencourages%20cemetery,risk%20t0%20the%20wa
ecting-groundwater-from-human- ter%20environment.
burials/protecting-groundwater-from-human-

Page 141 43|Page



CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

Employment Land

136. The Emerging Local Plan indicates that an
additional 1.3 ha. of employment land is

required in Cleobury Mortimer. At the same

time that the CMNDP steering group
consulted landowners and the community
on the preferred location of the housing
developments, it consulted on where and
how local businesses should be located.

137.There was a very strong consensus in the
community that the best location for
additional employment land would be the
extension of the existing employment site
with the provision of necessary
improvements to the highways
infrastructure including footways along

Tenbury Road and a requirement that new

employment development would be of a
high standard so that it would attract
growing businesses and provide high paid

employment. The types of employment
generating uses which maybe appropriate at
the extended employment site under policy
CM3 should align with the emerging local
plan policy SP13, which at paragraph (2) sets
out a list of employment generating uses.
The extent of the allocation is shown in
Figure 14.The use of natural water
management techniques for sustainable
urban drainage systems includes, swales,
wetlands in urban areas, green roofs,
permeable pavements, detention ponds,
filter strips and is advocated by the
Environment Agency.
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/nat
ural-flood-management-part-of-the-nations-
flood-resilience

https://www.gov.uk/flood-and-coastal-
erosion-risk-management-research-
reports/the-natural-flood-management-
nfm-manual

Figure 14: Extension of Tenbury Road employment area

Crown Copyright and database rights 2021, OS 100031961

Map key

Site boundary
" == == Revised

development
boundary (CM4)

Page 142

44 |Page


https://www.gov.uk/government/news/natural-flood-management-part-of-the-nations-flood-resilience
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/natural-flood-management-part-of-the-nations-flood-resilience
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/natural-flood-management-part-of-the-nations-flood-resilience

CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

CM3: Extension of Tenbury Road employment area
1.3 ha of land is allocated at Tenbury road employment area, shown in Figure 14, for
provision of employment uses subject to the following:

A. New development should be of a high standard capable of attracting new and
local businesses and should support overall improvement of the industrial area.

B. Smaller start-up units will be supported.

C. New development, or modifications of existing development, should not lead to
a deterioration of the amenity of neighbouring properties.

D. A footway should be provided before occupation of the extension land along the
full length of the Tenbury Road site boundary to allow safe pedestrian access to
the remainder of the settlement.

E. Provision for superfast broadband to all premises should be designed in where
possible.

F. Development of 1,000m? or more floorspace or with a gross site area of 1ha or
more will achieve the BREEAM Good rating or equivalent standard within an
alternative assessment endorsed by Shropshire Council will be supported.

G. Changes to existing buildings, including extensions and alterations, should
maximise opportunities to increase fabric energy efficiency, reduce carbon
emissions and integrate on-site renewable energy technologies.

H. All development should deliver at least a 10% biodiversity net gain in accordance
with the Environment Act 2021.

I. Where necessary, sustainable urban drainage systems should manage all surface
water risks and use of natural water management techniques will be supported;
and

J. Proposals for renewable and low carbon infrastructure will be supported where
these do not cause harm to local amenity and character.

Page 143 45|Page



CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

Development Boundary
138. Land at Tenbury Road (both housing and 140.Para. 5.95 of the Regulation 19: Pre-

employment allocations) and Ludlow Road is Submission Draft of the Shropshire Local
currently outside the development Plan states that “Should the Neighbourhood
boundary. The Development Boundary Plan propose site allocations and alterations
must therefore be modified to regularise to the development boundary the Policies
future development decisions. map will be amended to reflect these

changes.” Figure 15 illustrates how these

139.Core Strategy policy Adopted Policies Map
changes should be made.

2015, S6 inset shows the current
Development Boundary.

CM4: Cleobury Mortimer development boundary
The development boundary is amended to include the three site allocations in
Figures 13 and 14 and is shown in Figurel5

Figure 15: Cleobury Mortimer Development Boundary as amended to include CMNP site
allocations

Lacon Childe
School

Ludiow Road site

Cleobury
. Mortimer

sadlers
Barn Farm

Key
- " | Cemetery Extension {CM2)

D Site Boundary

= Revised development boundary (CM4)

Tenbury, Road site

© Crown copyright 2023 05 100049048

Page 144 46 |Page



CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

Housing Mix

141.The BCS provided strong evidence of local
housing need which included demand for
the provision of bungalows to support an
ageing population, particularly for 2
bedroom market price bungalows.

142.The total amount of intermediate
affordable or rented social housing is
around 23% which is in keeping with wider
Shropshire trends. Evidence showed that
people left the area due to lack of affordable
housing and the need to commute to work.

143.Since the BCS, a number of permissions
have been granted for converting existing
buildings in the high street and the old
doctors surgery into 1 and 2 bedroom flats
for rent and purchase. This will address part
of the chronic need for low cost rented
properties.

144.A housing need BCS of Cleobury Mortimer
was undertaken by Homepoint on behalf of
Shropshire Council in May 2018.
(https://www.righthomerightplace.co.uk/w
b-
content/uploads/2019/09/ClecburyMortime

r_June2019.pdf ) This showed that the
number and type of housing required was:

e 20 units of 1-bedroom properties
(predominantly over the age of 50)

e 12 units of 2-bedroom properties
(ages 21-59)

e 7 units of 3-bedroom properties
(ages 29-54).

145.The majority of the housing need derived
from residents currently living in Cleobury
Mortimer (39 out of 54 respondents, or
72%).

146.There was some demand for self-build
housing (55 respondents). The emerging
Local Plan contains a policy on self-build
housing so this will not be reproduced here.

147.The Cleobury Mortimer vision calls for
integration and involvement of all types of
socio-economic groups and it is therefore
desirable that any new developments are of
mixed housing type and tenure to support
integration.

148.Core Strategy Policy CS11 seeks to achieve
an overall target of 33% local needs
affordable housing. This figure has been
reduced to 20% in the emerging Local Plan.

CM5: Housing mix

New residential development proposals should demonstrate how the proposed
housing mix will assist in meeting identified local needs.

Page 145

47 |Page



https://www.righthomerightplace.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/CleoburyMortimer_June2019.pdf
https://www.righthomerightplace.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/CleoburyMortimer_June2019.pdf
https://www.righthomerightplace.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/CleoburyMortimer_June2019.pdf
https://www.righthomerightplace.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/CleoburyMortimer_June2019.pdf

CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

Design of housing

149.There have been many houses built in

Cleobury Mortimer under the adopted
Development Plan policies which are
attractive and well designed. Therefore, the
CMNDP will not contain specific policies on
design. However, the BCS showed a
community preference for on-plot parking
so that estate roads would flow freely, and
the accommodation of electric power points
to anticipate a change-over to electric
vehicles in future. The town is not
connected to the main gas network.
Heating in new homes, or as modification to
existing homes, should incorporate green
energy solutions such as high performance
thermal insulation, on-site energy
generation and ground or air source
heating. The emerging Local Plan will
contain robust policies on energy savings,

Page 146

generation and carbon neutrality which will
augment the policies in this NDP.

150.Cleobury Mortimer lies nestled in

undulating hills with scattered woodland
and individual mature trees. Tree cover
therefore provides an essential element of
the local character. The BCS indicated
strong support for “green” housing
developments. The Steering Group
discussed the matter with the Shropshire
Council tree officer and concluded that it
would be suitable to require that future
housing development have 20% of the
development site under tree canopy after
15 years of the original development being
completed.

151.The community strongly supports

development that will address the
challenges of climate change. To this end,
the Steering Group has identified design
principles that would be considered
favourably:

48 |Page



CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

Page 147




CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

CM6: Housing design

All new housing proposals should demonstrate they have had regard to the
Cleobury Mortimer Good Residential Design Principles

Environment

152.The BCS and the Vision both indicated that
the community places a very high value on
the countryside surrounding the settlement
and that they wish to maintain access to it.
Cleobury’s rural background is one of the

155.For all other development, a net gain will be

sought for individual proposals. Whereas
the scope for biodiversity improvement will
vary from site to site, the Steering Group
has identified ecological principles that
would be considered favourably in planning
proposals.

key features making it a place worth living 156.For the avoidance of doubt the definition of

in.
153.The Environment Bill Act 2021 requires

development to provide an improvement to
biodiversity.

154.In Cleobury Mortimer, the requirements for
biodiversity net gain are set out in individual
policies CM1, CM2, CM3, CM6 and CM7 in
the form of new hedges, footpaths, wildlife
corridors, river improvements, and tree
planting.

Page 148

'major development’ is as provided in Annex
2 of the National Planning Policy
Framework.
(https://www.gov.uk/guidance/national-planning-
policy-framework/annex-2-
glossary#:~:text=Major%20development,-
75&text=For%20housing%2C%20development%20wh
ere%2010,0f%200.5%20hectares%200r%20more.)

50| Page



CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

Page 149 51|Page



CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2020 - 2038

CM7: Environment and Biodiversity
All new development proposals should demonstrate they have had regard to the
Cleobury Mortimer Environmental Principles as appropriate.

. need to provide sewers for sites in the
Water infrastructure north.” This is identified as critically

157.Water infrastructure across Shropshire has required infrastructure.

been deemed to be inadequate in many
cases leading to constraints to development.
In Cleobury Mortimer, the Place Plan?’
indicates that “Hydraulic modelling of the
wastewater network is required in the south
west of the town to assess whether there is
capacity within the network to meet
development needs. Developers will also

158.The Habitats Regulation Assessment
(including stage 2 Appropriate Assessment)
carried out for the Emerging Shropshire
Local Plan identifies a need for mitigation
against unacceptable impacts as a result of
wastewater capacity on the Severn Estuary
European Marine Site

CM8: Water infrastructure

Development proposals are required to demonstrate that they will be served by
adequate water supply, foul drainage, wastewater and sewage treatment
infrastructure. In particular, proposals should show how development will be
phased to allow the relevant water company sufficient time to undertake any
necessary capacity improvement works to the existing water supply, wastewater
and foul drainage networks and waste-water treatment works prior to
construction and occupation of the development. Where development is bought
forward in advance of planned capacity improvements by the relevant water
company through their Asset Management Process, any required capacity
improvements should be delivered via agreement between the developer and
the water company.

7 cleobury-mortimer-2019-20.pdf
(shropshire.gov.uk)

Page 150 52| Page


https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/media/13899/cleobury-mortimer-2019-20.pdf
https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/media/13899/cleobury-mortimer-2019-20.pdf

CLEOBURY MORTIMER NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN

Report to Shropshire Council of the Independent Examination

By Independent Examiner, Tony Burton CBE BA MPhil (Town Planning) HonFRIBA FRSA

Tony Burton
tony@tonyburton.org.uk
August 2023

Page 151


mailto:tony@tonyburton.org.uk

Contents

1. Executive Summary
2. Introduction
3. Compliance with matters other than the Basic Conditions

Qualifying body
Neighbourhood Area
Land use issues

Plan period

Excluded development

4, Consultation

5. General comments on the Plan’s presentation
Community Vision and Objectives
Other issues

6. Compliance with the Basic Conditions
National planning policy
Sustainable development
Development plan
Strategic Environmental Assessment
Habitats Regulations Assessment
Other European obligations

7. Detailed comments on the Plan policies

8. Recommendation and Referendum Area

Page 152

00 00 N N N

11
11
11

13
13
14
14
15
15
16

17

35



1. Executive Summary

1. | was appointed by Shropshire Council with the support of Cleobury Mortimer Town
Council to carry out the independent examination of the Cleobury Mortimer Neighbourhood

Plan.

2. | undertook the examination by reviewing the Plan documents and written

representations, and by making an unaccompanied visit to the Neighbourhood Area.

3. | consider the Plan to be an adequate expression of the community’s views and
ambitions for Cleobury Mortimer. It is based on an effective programme of public
consultation which has informed a Vision to 2038 supported by plan objectives. This is to be
achieved through a set of seven objectives and eight planning policies largely dealing with
issues distinct to the locality. The Plan is supported by a Consultation Statement and Basic
Conditions Statement and a Strategic Environmental Assessment. A Habitats Regulations
Assessment is not required and the consequences of the Appropriate Assessment
undertaken for the emerging Local Plan have been addressed by inclusion of a relevant
policy. There is supporting evidence provided and, notwithstanding mixed views about the
residential site allocation, there is evidence of community support and the involvement of

the local planning authority.

4, | have considered the seven separate representations made on the submitted Plan.

These are addressed in this report as appropriate.

5. Subject to the recommended modifications set out in this report | conclude that the
Cleobury Mortimer Neighbourhood Plan meets all the necessary legal requirements,
including satisfying the Basic Conditions. | make a number of additional optional

recommendations.

6. | recommend that the modified Plan should proceed to Referendum and that this

should be held within the Neighbourhood Area of Cleobury Mortimer parish.

Page 153



2. Introduction

7. This report sets out the findings of my independent examination of the Cleobury
Mortimer Neighbourhood Plan. The Plan was submitted to Shropshire Council by Cleobury

Mortimer Town Council as the Qualifying Body.

8. | was appointed as the independent examiner of the Cleobury Mortimer
Neighbourhood Plan by Shropshire Council with the agreement of Cleobury Mortimer Town

Council.

9. | am independent of both Cleobury Mortimer Town Council and Shropshire Council.
| do not have any interest in any land that may be affected by the Plan. | possess the

appropriate qualifications and experience to undertake this role.

10. My role is to examine the neighbourhood plan and recommend whether it should
proceed to referendum. A recommendation to proceed is predicated on the Plan meeting
all legal requirements as submitted or in a modified form, and on the Plan addressing the

required modifications recommended in this report.

11. As part of this process | must consider whether the submitted Plan meets the Basic
Conditions as set out in paragraph 8(2) of Schedule 4B of the Town and Country Planning

Act 1990 (as amended). To comply with the Basic Conditions, the Plan must:

- have regard to national policies and advice contained in guidance issued by the
Secretary of State; and

- contribute to the achievement of sustainable development; and

- be in general conformity with the strategic policies of the development plan in the
area; and

- be compatible with European Union (EU) and European Convention on Human
Rights (ECHR) obligations, including the Conservation of Habitats and Species
Regulations 2017.

Page 154



12. An additional Basic Condition was introduced by Regulations 32 and 33 of the
Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012 (as amended) in 2018 that the making
of the neighbourhood development plan does not breach the requirements of Chapter 8 of
Part 6 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017. | am also required to
make a number of other checks under paragraph 8(1) of Schedule 4B of the Town and

Country Planning Act 1990.

13. In undertaking this examination | have considered the following documents as the

most significant in arriving at my recommendations:

the submitted Cleobury Mortimer Neighbourhood Plan

- the Basic Conditions Statement

- the Consultation Statement

- the Strategic Environmental Assessment

- the relevant parts of the development plan comprising the Shropshire Core Strategy
(2006-2026) and Shropshire Site Allocations and Management of Development
(SAMDev) Plan (2006-2026)

- relevant parts of the draft Shropshire Local Plan 2016-2038, currently at Examination

- representations made on the submitted neighbourhood plan

- relevant material held on the Cleobury Mortimer Town Council and Shropshire
Council websites

- National Planning Policy Framework (2021)

- Planning Practice Guidance

— relevant Ministerial Statements

14. The Plan was largely prepared under an earlier version of the National Planning
Policy Framework than that used for my examination but the second Regulation 14
consultation on the draft Plan took place after the most recent NPPF’s publication in July

2021 and this is the version addressed in the Basic Conditions Statement.

Page 155



15. No representations were received requesting a public hearing and having considered
the documents provided and the representations on the submitted Plan | was satisfied that
the examination could be undertaken by written representations without the need for a

hearing.

16. | carried out an unaccompanied visit to the Neighbourhood Area on a weekend
during May. | visited the main locations addressed in the Plan, including the proposed
changes to the development boundary and the sites allocated for residential, employment
and cemetery use. | visited a mixture of old and new development in Cleobury Mortimer
and its Conservation Area as well as experiencing some of the surrounding countryside and

small settlements.

17. Throughout this report my recommended modifications are bulleted. Where
modifications to policies are recommended they are highlighted in bold print with new
wording in “speech marks”. Existing wording is in italics. Modifications are also
recommended to some parts of the supporting text. These recommended modifications are
numbered from M1 and are necessary for the Plan to meet the Basic Conditions. A number
of modifications are not essential for the Plan to meet the Basic Conditions and these are

indicated by [square brackets]. These optional modifications are numbered from OM1.

18. Producing the Cleobury Mortimer Neighbourhood Plan has clearly involved
significant effort over many years led by the Steering Group. The process began in 2018 and
is informed by significant community involvement. There is evidence of collaboration with
Shropshire Council and continuing this will be important in ensuring implementation of the
Plan. The commitment of all those who have worked so hard over such a long period of
time to prepare the Plan is to be commended and | would like to thank all those at
Shropshire Council and Cleobury Mortimer Town Council who have supported this

examination process.

Page 156



3. Compliance with matters other than the Basic
Conditions

19. | am required to check compliance of the Plan with a number of matters.

Qualifying body

20. The neighbourhood pan has been prepared by a suitable Qualifying Body — Cleobury
Mortimer Town Council — which being a town council is the only organisation that can

prepare a neighbourhood plan for the area.

Neighbourhood Area

21. | am satisfied that the Plan relates to the development and use of land for a
designated neighbourhood area which comprises the parish area of Cleobury Mortimer

Town Council and was agreed by Shropshire Council and became effective on 15 May 2018.

22. The boundary of the neighbourhood area is shown in Figure 1. This is not at a scale
that allows the detailed boundary to be determined and provision of a link to where the
boundary is available at a larger scale would be helpful. The Key to Figure 1 is misleading in
showing the boundary as “Cleobury Mortimer CP”. Although the parish boundary and
neighbourhood area are coincident the purpose of Figure 1 is to show the neighbourhood

area.
e M1 - Amend the title and key to Figure 1 to read “Cleobury Mortimer
Neighbourhood Area” and provide a link to where the boundary can be viewed at a

larger scale

Land use issues

23. | am satisfied that the Plan’s policies relate to relevant land use planning issues.

Page 157



Plan period

24, The period of the neighbourhood plan runs from 2020 to 2038 and the 2038 end
date aligns with the period of the Shropshire Local Plan review. It is also the period of the
Plan’s Vision. The period is shown on the cover and included in a header on each page of

the Plan.

Excluded development

25. | am satisfied that the neighbourhood plan makes no provisions for excluded

development (such as national infrastructure, minerals extraction or waste).

Page 158



4. Consultation

26. | have reviewed the Consultation Statement and relevant information provided on
the Cleobury Mortimer Town Council website. This provides a clear record of the
consultation process that has been undertaken since a visioning event in January 2018. The
process was guided by a Steering Group which included a mix of town councillors and
interested members of the public. The public consultation process has been adequately

open and transparent.

27. A number of different engagement methods have been used, including newsletters,
public meetings, use of the Town Council website and the Big Cleobury Survey promoted
online and through posters, newsletters, advertisements and social media. Regular updates
on progress with the Plan were provided. The Plan was informed by two calls for sites and

meetings with landowners and other interests were held.

28. Participation levels have been good with more than 500 households responding to
the Big Cleobury Survey and significant interest in some of the consultation events. There is
evidence of support from the public for the approach presented in the Plan with more

mixed views over the residential site allocation.

29. An early consultation was held in Spring 2019 ahead of formal Regulation 14
consultation on the draft Plan intended to run between 12 July and 27 August 2021. This
was suspended following withdrawal of landowner support for two of the sites allocated for
housing. A further call for sites was undertaken during the remainder of 2021. A second
formal Regulation 14 consultation was undertaken on the revised Plan from 27 May 2022
and the last response accepted was on 1 November 2022. This consultation included a flyer
being distributed to all households and local advertising. A hard copy was made available for
public access and informal drop-in sessions about the Plan were held. There is evidence of
the consultation including the required statutory and other consultees and more than 30

responses were received. The Consultation Statement summarises the issues raised and

Page 159



details how they have been responded to. Changes to the Plan were made as a result of

public consultation.

30. Seven representations have been made on the submitted Plan including from,
statutory bodies and two national charities. All the representations have been considered

and are addressed as appropriate in this report.

31. | am satisfied with the evidence of the public consultation undertaken in preparing
the Plan since 2018. The Plan has been subject to wide public consultation at different
stages in its development. Participation rates have generally been adequate. The process

has allowed community input to shape the Plan as it has developed and as proposals have

been firmed up. Local landowners, development interests and the local planning authority

have been engaged through the process.

Page 160

10



5. General comments on the Plan’s presentation

Community Vision and Objectives

32. The Plan includes a Vision to be delivered through seven objectives and eight
planning policies. The Vision is widely drawn and addresses the area’s future
environmental, social and economic needs. It is consistent with sustainable development

and reflects the feedback received through consultation.

Other issues

33. The Plan is clearly structured and presented. Policies are distinguished from the rest
of the Plan by being presented in distinctively coloured boxes. The same boxes are used for
the design and environmental principles and | recommend a different presentation for

these.

34, There are a small number of presentational issues. A variety of photographs are
provided throughout the document. Their location is not identified and some create
awkward page breaks (such as page 13). There are a few prominent issues regarding
spelling — e.g. Foreword and Environmental and Design Principles. Paragraph 10 is missing
and paragraphs 75 and 76 run horizontally contrary to the rest of the document where
paragraph numbering runs vertically. There are some examples of different point sizes

being used (e.g. paragraph 135).

35. The Contents on page 3 omits the three main section headings — Introduction, About
Cleobury Mortimer and Policies. Its structure also confusingly results in two “Development

Boundary” headings.

e OM1 — [Address the presentational issues identified in this report]

36. The Plan includes references to a number of documents which comprise the
evidence base. It does not provide details or links to many of these documents and there is
no single source for the Plan’s evidence base provided online. The majority of the evidence

base documents are not made available on the Town Council’s website.

11

Page 161



OM2 — [List all the evidence base documents used in the Plan in an Appendix along
with links where available and consider providing a section of the Town Council’s
website which brings together all the documents in the Plan’s evidence base into a

single location]

Page 162

12



6. Compliance with the Basic Conditions

National planning policy

37. The Plan is required to “have regard” to national planning policies and advice. This is
addressed in the Basic Conditions statement which relates each of the Plan’s policies
relevant paragraphs in the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (July 2021) and
provides a short commentary. No conflicts are identified and it is stated that the analysis
“provides a summary of how CMNDP policies conform to the NPPF”. The assessment omits
Policy CM8 which was included late in the plan-making process. | requested an update to
the Basic Conditions Statement to address this and one was provided. The assessment
identified no conflicts. Overall the analysis does serve to demonstrate that appropriate

consideration has been given to national planning policy.

38. | address some conflicts with national planning policy in my consideration of
individual policies and recommend some modifications. There are also some areas where
the drafting of the Plan’s policies needs to be amended in order to meet the National
Planning Policy Framework’s requirement for plans to provide a clear framework within
which decisions on planning applications can be made. The policies should give a clear
indication of “how a decision maker should react to development proposals” (paragraph 16).
It is also important for the Plan to address the requirement expressed in national planning
policy and Planning Practice Guidance that “A policy in a neighbourhood plan should be clear
and unambiguous. It should be drafted with sufficient clarity that a decision maker can
apply it consistently and with confidence when determining planning applications. It should
be concise, precise and supported by appropriate evidence. It should be distinct to reflect
and respond to the unique characteristics and planning context of the specific
neighbourhood area for which it has been prepared.” (NPPG Paragraph: 041 Reference ID:
41-041-20140306). The Plan’s policies do not always meet these requirements and a

number of recommended modifications are made as a result.

39. Generally, | conclude that the Plan has regard to national planning policy and

guidance but there are exceptions as set out in my comments below. These cover both

13

Page 163



conflicts with national planning policy and the need for some policies to be more clearly

expressed and/or evidenced or for duplication with other planning policies to be avoided.

40. | am satisfied that the Plan meets this Basic Condition other than where identified in

my detailed comments and recommended modifications to the Plan policies.

Sustainable development

41. The Plan must “contribute to the achievement of sustainable development”. This is
addressed in the Basic Conditions Statement by identifying which Plan policies contribute to
each of the economic, social and environmental dimensions of sustainable development. It

concludes that “The plan will serve an economic, social and environmental objective”

42, The assessment is exceptionally brief. Policy CM4 amending the development
boundary also has economic and environmental implications and the analysis omits Policy
CM8. | requested an update to the Basic Conditions Statement to address this and one was

provided.
43, Although the Basic Conditions Statement provides a bare minimum of information
my own assessment of the Plan is that the overall contribution of the Plan to sustainable

development is positive and it meets the Basic Condition.

Development plan

44, The Plan must be “in general conformity with the strategic policies of the
development plan”. The Basic Conditions Statement addresses this by describing how the
most relevant Local Plan policies and those in the emerging Local Plan are addressed in the
neighbourhood plan. It notes areas of difference, such as amendments to the development

boundary, and some instances where changes have been made to ensure conformity.

45, The assessment states that the Plan is in “conformity”. The approach is high level

and does not address specific Plan policies.

14

Page 164



46. Shropshire Council made representations on the consultation draft Plan. These did
not raise material general conformity issues and when a view on the submitted Plan was
requested it said “Shropshire Council does consider the submitted Cleobury Mortimer
Neighbourhood Plan to be in general conformity with the strategic policies of the current

and emerging development plan”.

47. In the absence of strong evidence in the Basic Condition Statement | have paid
particular attention to general conformity in my own assessment of each of the Plan’s
policies. | am satisfied the Plan meets this Basic Condition other than where identified in my

detailed comments and recommended modifications to the Plan policies.

Strategic Environmental Assessment

48, The Plan must be informed by a Strategic Environmental Assessment if it is likely to
have significant environmental effects. Following advice from Shropshire Council, Cleobury
Mortimer Town Council published a full Strategic Environment Assessment prepared by
AECOM. This addressed options for the two main site allocations as well as the Plan’s other
policies. It concludes that “Overall, the delivery of up to 120 new homes and additional
employment land, alongside the cemetery expansion and a new community recreation place
is predicted to deliver predominately positive effects overall in relation to the SEA

objectives”. | am satisfied by the robustness of the Strategic Environment Assessment.

49, Natural England, Environment Agency and Historic England provided responses to
the SEA scoping report. Environment Agency has identified a constraint impacting Policy
CM2 which is addressed later in this report. No other issues have been identified following
publication of the SEA.

50. | conclude that the Plan meets this Basic Condition.

Habitats Regulations Assessment

51. The Plan must be informed by a Habitats Regulations Assessment if it is likely to lead
to significant negative effects on protected European sites. The Basic Conditions Statement

explains that no such assessment has been undertaken because “the neighbourhood area is

15

Page 165



not in close proximity to any European site”. The nearest site is over 18km away. | note that
Natural England’s representation on the draft Plan state that "We are not aware of
significant populations of protected species which are likely to be affected by the
policies/proposals within the plan". | requested further information on the decision not to
screen for a Habitats Regulations Assessment. This confirmed the view of Shropshire

Council that the Plan does not impact on any designated sites.

52. The Government's guidance on Habitats Regulations Assessments is that "you only
need to carry out an HRA if the proposal might affect a European site" and Planning Practice
Guidance is also clear that the requirements of the Habitats and Birds Directives "may"
apply (Paragraph: 078 Reference ID: 41-078-20140306). An Assessment is not a universal
requirement. Natural England has raised no issue regarding the Habitats Regulation

Assessment.

53. | conclude that the Plan meets this Basic Condition.

Other European obligations

54, The Plan must be compatible with European Union (EU) and European Convention
on Human Rights (ECHR) obligations. The Basic Conditions Statement does not directly
address this issue but no evidence challenging compatibility has been presented. My
assessment is that there has been adequate opportunity for those with an interest in the
Plan to make their views known and representations have been handled in an appropriate

manner with changes made to the Plan.

55. | conclude that the Plan meets this Basic Condition.

16

Page 166



7. Detailed comments on the Plan policies

56. This section of the report reviews and makes recommendations on each of the Plan’s
policies to ensure that they meet the Basic Conditions. | make comments on all policies in
order to provide clarity on whether each meets the Basic Conditions. Some of the
supporting text, headings and the Contents will need to be amended to take account of the

recommended modifications.

57. The context for the first four policies is the emerging draft Local Plan’s development
strategy for Cleobury Mortimer provided in Policy $6.1 which identifies both a quantum of
residential and employment development and the role of the neighbourhood plan in

accommodating it:

“1. Cleobury Mortimer will act as a Key Centre and contribute towards strategic
growth objectives in the south of the County, providing around 200 dwellings and
around 2 hectares of employment development over the plan period. New housing

and employment development will respond to local needs.

2. Neighbourhood Plan is being progressed for the Cleobury Mortimer Parish area.
The Neighbourhood Plan will include the strategy for achieving the housing and

employment guidelines for the Key Centre of Cleobury Mortimer.

3. New residential development will primarily be delivered through the saved
SAMDev residential allocations and any residential development allocated within the

Cleobury Mortimer Neighbourhood Plan......

4. New employment development will be delivered through the saved SAMDev
employment allocation and any employment development allocated within the

Cleobury Mortimer Neighbourhood Plan.”

17

Page 167



58. Additionally, the supporting text to the emerging Local Plan states “Should the
Neighbourhood Plan propose site allocations and alterations to the development boundary

the Policies map will be amended to reflect these changes” (paragraph 5.95).

59. Policy CM1 — This allocates land for both residential and cemetery use, establishes a
capacity for 120 new homes and provides a range of relevant planning considerations to

inform future development.

60. The site allocation would meet the outstanding requirement for 120 homes
alongside the 80 completions to meet the Local Plan requirement for 200 homes in the
neighbourhood area. Policy CM1 takes a different approach to the emerging Local Plan
which anticipates a proportion of the outstanding residential requirement being met by
“appropriate small-scale windfall residential development within the Cleobury Mortimer
development boundary” (Policy S6.1). The Plan states that “It is unlikely that the
requirement for 120 dwellings can be met through windfall development” and in doing so
acknowledges that any windfall development that does take place “will be in excess of the
identified need”. (paragraph 129). Current Local Plan Policy MD3 and emerging Local Plan
Policy SP7 both state that the Local Plan housing requirements are a “significant policy
consideration” while acknowledging that additional development may come forward which
exceeds the requirement. Additional policy considerations are provided to be considered in

such circumstances.

61. The Plan provides no evidence on how much of the housing requirement can be
expected to be met through windfall development and the policy approach is one that
meets the housing requirement without any windfall development. This compares to an
emerging Local Plan which makes a windfall allowance of 120 homes. |requested any
further information on the assumptions around windfall development and was told by
Cleobury Mortimer Town Council that “it was clear that there was not capacity for 120
homes”. It was stated that the number of homes could not be accurately calculated
because of uncertainty over where the land would come from. This is, however, the
essence of a windfall site. Such sites are defined as “sites not specifically identified in the

development plan” (NPPF, Glossary). No further justification was provided. In light of the

18

Page 168



fact that Policy CM1 will almost certainly result in the housing requirement for Cleobury
Mortimer being exceeded | have considered whether this is in strategic conformity with
existing and emerging development plan policy and has appropriate regard to national

planning policy.

62. National planning policy is for strategic policies to establish the “minimum number of
homes needed” (paragraph 61, NPPF) and both the existing and emerging Local Plan
recognise that housing requirements may be exceeded. In the event that additional
development does come forward the additional policy considerations in the Local Plan will
apply. Additionally, the emerging Local Plan explicitly recognises that the neighbourhood
plan may choose to allocate additional land and make amendments to the development

boundary.

63. This understanding is shared by Shropshire Council when I invited its views on the
potential conflict. It said “Policy MD3 (2) of the adopted SAMDev Plan and draft Policy SP7
(3) of the emerging Local Plan state that the settlement guideline is a significant policy
consideration, but allow for the opportunity for these guideline to be exceeded where certain
considerations are met. In this regard the opportunity for additional residential windfall is in
conformity with both these policies. It should also be noted that the Neighbourhood Plan’s
period is largely consistent with the emerging Local Plan period to 2038. The Examining
Inspectors in their Initial Findings letter of February 2023 stated that the housing
requirement for the County should be identified as a minimum, rather than an ‘around’
figure. The Council will be proposing to accept this conclusion, and this would add further
support to additional windfall, where appropriate, being considered in conformity with the

emerging Local Plan position”.

64. | am satisfied that despite Policy CM1 most likely resulting in a level of housing
development that exceeds the Local Plan housing requirement and despite this being a
“significant policy consideration” and there being no evidence provided that significant
windfall development will not come forward there is nevertheless no conflict causing the

Plan to conflict with the Basic Conditions.

19

Page 169



65. The selection of the site identified in Policy CM1 is explained by a detailed statement
of “Evidence on Residential Site Allocations” submitted with the Plan. It was informed by

site assessments undertaken by Shropshire Council as part of the Local Plan process and two
call for sites. The second call for sites followed the landowner’s withdrawal of the preferred

site included in plan initially published for Regulation 14 consultation in 2021.

66. Four sites were considered against a range of criteria and the results of this
assessment are provided in the evidence base. The chosen site scores significantly better
than the alternatives. The Strategic Environment Assessment also considered these sites
and three sites that have come through the Local Plan site assessment process as part of its
consideration of reasonable alternatives. The chosen site performs better than the three
other sites that came forward in the call for sites and is preferred amongst all the

alternatives for the way it can integrate with the cemetery expansion.

67. There were objections from residents to the site allocation during the Regulation 14
consultation but none have been made in relation to the submitted Plan. It is acknowledged
that the chosen site is less preferable to that originally proposed but it has the benefit of

being deliverable.

68. There is an overlap between the site allocated in Policy CM1 and that withdrawn at
an earlier stage by the landowner. | sought clarification on this matter to be confident in
the deliverability of the site and was informed that the site included in the Plan had been

resubmitted by the landowner.

69. The site capacity based on an assumption of 30 dwellings per hectare is broadly
consistent with the Local Plan even allowing for the expectation of a significant area of open

space.

70. There is duplication between Policy CM1 and Policy CM2 as both allocate land for
the cemetery extension and require its provision as part of the build out of any future
residential consent. The provision of cemetery space can be achieved through a number of

routes and need not necessarily involve a transfer of ownership.

20

Page 170



71. Parts B, C, D and F overlap with and duplicate other Plan policies. The considerations
in Part C do not all relate to “fabric energy efficiency” and along with Part D are addressed in
Policy CM7. The decision over the appropriateness of the provision for play and recreation
in Part E iii. is a matter for the local planning authority and the Town Council has no formal
status. A tree planting strategy will be required for the whole site, including the proposed

corridor.

72. Representations from Severn Trent support inclusion of reference to sustainable
urban drainage and propose a more detailed and prescriptive wording. | recommend more
minor changes to the drafting which avoid being unduly restrictive and addressing more

detail than intended.

73. The policy drafting is unduly restrictive in stating what “will” be provided. | also
recommend a consistent structure to the policies which relates the lettered policy

considerations to the first paragraph.

74. The site is shown in Figure 13. This does not locate either the access from Ludlow
Road or the pond near Catherton Road. It also does not adequately represent the “tree
shelter belts”, “wildlife corridor” and “accessible open/green space” included in Policy CM1
and there is an overlap between these and inconsistent use of terms. Figure 13 lacks a scale
and its role in illustrating the allocation of land for a cemetery extension in Policy C2 can be
more clearly presented. The continuation of the existing development boundary at either

end should also be shown.

75. The benefit of a tree shelter belt will extend to more properties than “No 10

Catherton Road”. | also recommend some other minor improvements to the drafting.

76. Policy CM1 does not meet the Basic Conditions

e M2 - Amend Policy CM1 to:

o In the first paragraph

21

Page 171



— replace “5.7” with “5.2”
— delete “cemetery extension”
— add “subject to the following” at end
o Replace A. with “0.5 hectares of land allocated in Policy CM2 and shown in
Figure 13 will be provided as cemetery space before completion of the 20"
dwelling”
o Delete PartsB,Cand D
o Replace “will” with “should” in Parts E, F, G and |
o Delete “No. 10” in Part Ei.
o Delete from “in” to end in Part Eiii.
o Replace Part F with “A tree planting strategy should be provided and
existing trees and hedgerows should be preserved wherever possible”
o InPart H replace “should resist adding to surface water run-off” with

“additional surface water run-off avoided”

o Insert “; and” at end of penultimate Part

e M3 - Amend Figure 13 to:

o Clearly distinguish between the allocation of land for residential development
in Policy CM1 and for a cemetery extension in Policy CM2

o ldentify what is currently shown as “accessible open space” as the “wildlife
corridor”

o ldentify what is currently shown as “wildlife corridor and footpath” as the
“walking and cycling route”

o Show the location of the access point from Ludlow Road

o Show the location of the pond near Catherton Road

o Show the location of the tree shelter belts

o Provide a scale

o Show the existing development boundary where it continues unchanged at

either end of the revised boundary

22

Page 172



77. Policy CM2 — This allocates land for a cemetery extension and provides a range of

relevant planning considerations.

78. Although not referenced in the supporting text the need for “additional burial land”
is identified in Shropshire Council’s Place Plan for Cleobury Mortimer and its surrounding
area (page 13). The Policy is supported by a brief analysis of likely future needs based on an
assessment of existing capacity and future demand. The allocation would comprise a
second extension to the original cemetery. It became clear during the Plan’s preparation
that recent Government guidance on protecting groundwater will restrict use of the
cemetery and prevent human burials. | requested further information on the evidence base
used to support the allocation and the impact of the new guidance on future capacity. | was
informed that the area of land to be allocated was not altered so as to provide reasonable
flexibility as to how it is used, including in conjunction with the existing cemetery. | consider

this to be a reasonable approach.

79. As with Policy CM1 the policy drafting is unduly restrictive in stating what “will” be
provided and | recommend a consistent structure to how the policies relate the lettered

policy considerations to the first paragraph.

80. The need for the cemetery space to be provided as part of the delivery of new
homes on the adjacent site is now addressed in Policy CM1 and reference to this should be
provided in the supporting text and not repeated in the Policy. The detail of how the site
can be used is not directly a planning consideration and is controlled by a permit issued by
the Environment Agency. A working link should be provided in footnote 16. The treatment
of the site allocation in Figure 13 is addressed in my proposed modifications relating to

Policy CM1.

81. Policy CM2 does not meet the Basic Conditions.

e M4 - Amend Policy CM2 to:

o Delete “requirements” at the end of the second line

23

Page 173



o Delete Part A and make reference to this requirement in Policy CM1 in the
supporting text

o Replace “will” with “should” in Parts B. and C.

o Insert “; and” at end of penultimate Part

o Replace Part D. with “Use of the land as a cemetery complies with the
requirements of the relevant Government guidance on protecting groundwater

from human burials” and provide a working link

82. Policy CM3 — This allocates 1.3ha of employment land and provides a range of

relevant planning considerations.

83. The Policy provides for the additional employment land necessary to meet emerging
Local Plan Policy S6.1’s requirement for “around 2 hectares of employment development” in

Cleobury Mortimer.

84. The selection of the site identified in Policy CM3 is explained by a detailed statement
of “Evidence on Employment Land Site Allocations” submitted with the Plan. It informed by
site assessments undertaken by Shropshire Council which initially identified 10 potential
sites for residential and/or employment development. Further assessments of their
suitability for residential use were undertaken and the neighbourhood plan was identified
as the most appropriate mechanism to determine final allocations and the approach to
these. The Strategic Environment Assessment considered the two main options for
employment sites as reasonable alternatives. It found only marginal differences with some
advantages in the chosen site for its integration with existing employment land.
Consultation on the Plan demonstrated clear support for the allocated site, which involves
the expansion of an existing employment area. | was provided with correspondence
confirming the landowner is supportive. | am content with the approach to site selection

and have received no contrary views.

85. The Policy does not specify the Use Classes considered appropriate for the proposed

employment uses. Given the intention to align with the emerging Local Plan and the need

24

Page 174



for clarity | recommend alignment with those identified in emerging Local Plan Policy

SP13.2. This can be addressed in the supporting text.

86. The Town Council has proposed a restructuring of the Policy to separate the
designation of the land from the subsequent criteria. | am nevertheless content with the
general approach in the submitted document and do not recommend making a structural
change to the Policy which has been subject to public consultation. As with Policy CM1 the
policy drafting is unduly restrictive in stating what “will” be provided and | recommend a
consistent structure to how the policies relate the lettered policy considerations to the first

paragraph, including confirming all Parts need to be considered.

87. Provision of superfast broadband is not directly a planning consideration. It is
appropriate to expect developments to be designed in such a way that it can be provided
and | recommend a modification to Part E to address this. Part G specifies a need to achieve
a BREEAM Good rating on major development. BREEAM is a voluntary standard and there is
no evidence presented as to why it should be required by planning policy due to specific
circumstances within the neighbourhood area. National planning policy is that “any local
requirements for the sustainability of buildings should reflect the Government’s policy for
national technical standards” (NPPF, paragraph 154) and the Plan can support but not

require development to deliver higher voluntary standards.

88. Part | duplicates emerging Local Plan policy and the detail of this may be amended
before the new Local Plan is adopted. Given that pollution issues are already addressed in
national planning policy (e.g. paragraph 185, NPPF) and no additional evidence specific to

the neighbourhood area is provided, this part of the Policy serves no clear purpose.

89. Representations from Severn Trent support inclusion of reference to sustainable
urban drainage In Part J. and propose a more detailed and prescriptive wording. |
recommend more minor changes to the drafting which avoid being unduly restrictive and
addressing more detail than intended. There is no evidence provided as to why “natural
water management techniques” should be used to provide sustainable urban drainage.

Such an approach can be supported, as in Policy CM1, but not required. | was informed that

25

Page 175



the reference to “natural water management techniques” is intended to be a reference to
“natural flood management” as advocated by Environment Agency and this can be
addressed by providing an appropriate reference in the supporting text. Other small

improvements to the drafting will improve clarity of the Policy.

90. The site is shown in Figure 14. From my visit it is apparent that the boundaries are
not obvious on the ground and a larger scale map enabling the detailed boundary to be
determined is required to provide necessary clarity. Figure 14 shows a gap between the site
boundary and the proposed development boundary when they should be coincident. The
approximate location of the footway in Part D should be identified in Figure 14. To ensure
the Policy is deliverable this footway should also be required to be provided before
occupation of the development. The Figure also lacks a scale. The location is identified as
“Tenbury Road Employment Site” in the Policy and “Tenbury Road employment area” in

Figure 14 and this should be consistent.

91. Policy CM3 does not meet the Basic Conditions.

e M5 - Amend Policy CM3 to:
o Replace the title and first two lines with:
“Extension of Tenbury Road employment area
1.3 ha of land is allocated at Tenbury Road employment area , shown in Figure
14, for provision of employment uses subject to the following:”
o Replace “will” with “should” in Parts A, C, D and H
o Replace “to attract new and local businesses and should seek to add to the”
with “capable of attracting new and local businesses and should support” in
Part A
o Insert “before occupation of the extension land” after “provided” in Part D
o Replace Part E with “Provision for superfast broadband to all premises should
be designed in where possible”
o Delete “Commercial” and add “will be supported” to the end of Part F
o Delete “Where” and replace “are being undertaken, maximising” with “should

maximise” in Part G

26

Page 176



o Delete Part I.
o Insert “; and” at end of penultimate Part
o Delete “use natural water management techniques to” and insert “and use of

natural water management techniques will be supported” at end of Part J.

e M6 - Amend Figure 14 to:
o Provide a map at sufficient scale to enable to detailed boundary to be
determined
o Show the location of the new footway
o Provide a scale
o Show the site boundary and revised development boundary as coincident
o Show the existing development boundary where it continues unchanged at

either end of the revised boundary

e M7 -Inthe supporting text:
o Explain that Policy CM3 relates to the employment uses identified in emerging
Local Plan Policy SP13. 2.
o Provide an Environment Agency reference for “natural water management

techniques”

92. Policy CM4 — This amends the development boundary to accommodate the site

allocations made in the Plan.

93. Amendment through the neighbourhood plan of the development boundary as
defined in the existing and emerging Local Plan is consistent with the Local Plan’s strategic
approach. The emerging Local Plan states “Should the Neighbourhood Plan propose site
allocations and alterations to the development boundary the Policies map will be amended

to reflect these changes” (paragraph 5.95).

94, The Plan references Figure 15 as showing the revised boundary and Figure 21 as
showing how the changes to the boundary should be made. Neither Figure is present in the

Plan. On request | was given corrected numbering but the supporting text does not relate

27

Page 177



to the revised Figures. Figure 13 shows only the amended development boundary along
Ludlow Road and Figure 14 shows only the revised development boundary for the Tenbury

Road employment area.

95. Although the development boundary amendments are evident in Figures 13 and 14
the inclusion of a Figure showing the full boundary and where it is being amended will

provide helpful clarity to the Plan.

96. The Policy drafting references specific Local Plan policies which are likely to be
superseded by the emerging Local Plan very early in the Plan period. This is a potential
source of confusion and | recommend a simpler approach which explains the development
boundary in the supporting text. Shropshire Council has indicated the revised development

boundary will be shown on an updated online Policies Map

97. Policy CM4 does not meet the Basic Conditions

e M8 — Replace Policy CM4 with “The development boundary is amended to include

the three site allocations in Figures 13 and 14 and is shown in Figure ??.”

e M9 — Provide a new Figure showing the full development boundary as amended by
the three site allocations and an appropriate link to the revised development plan

Policies Map online

e M10 - Provide an explanation of where the development boundary is defined in the
existing and emerging Local Plan in the supporting text and provide appropriate

references to the Figures

98. Policy CM5 — This specifies an 80/20% breakdown between market and affordable
housing and proportions of bungalows, self-build homes and numbers of bedrooms within

each category.

28

Page 178



99. The Policy draws on the results of the Big Cleobury Survey and a housing need survey
undertaken by Homepoint on behalf of Shropshire Council. Both surveys were undertaken

in 2018. No details of or link to the Homepoint study was provided.

100. The breakdown between market and affordable housing duplicates that provided by
emerging Local Plan Policy DP3. Policy DP3 applies only to “sites of 0.5 ha or more; sites of 5
or more dwellings in designated rural areas; and sites of 10 or more dwellings” whereas
Policy CM5 includes no thresholds. This is consistent with neither the emerging Local Plan
nor national planning policy (paragraph 64, NPPF). No evidence justifying a different
approach is provided. There is also insufficient evidence in the Homepoint study or Big
Cleobury Survey to justify prescribing the proportion of new homes that should be
bungalows and as an evidence base this is not up to date. | recommend that the Policy
addresses housing mix by reference to the most recent housing need study without

prescribing the approach.

101. Policy CM5 does not meet the Basic Conditions.

e M11 - Replace Policy CM5 with “New residential development proposals should
demonstrate how the proposed housing mix will assist in meeting identified local

needs.”

e OMS3 —[Provide details of and a link to the most recent housing need study for the

area]

102. Policy CM6 — This addresses the design of new housing by reference to local design

principles and makes specific provisions for parking and electric vehicle charging points.

103. The main purpose of the Policy is to secure good residential design. This is done by
expecting “conformity with the Cleobury Mortimer Good Design Principles”. The Principles
have been developed by the Plan’s Steering Group. They do not have an explicit evidence

base nor are they informed by specific consultation feedback or community input. Given

29

Page 179



this, | consider the requirement that all new housing proposals “demonstrates conformity”
to be unduly restrictive. The principles also apply generally to proposals and not just to

“masterplanning and detailed design”.

104. Representations from Severn Trent support the inclusion of water as well as energy
efficiency in the Principles. While this would be appropriate, its omission, as with other

proposals made in Severn Trent’s representations, is not a matter for the Basic Conditions.

105. The Principles are provided in a tinted box very similar to those used for the Plan’s
policies and using a similar tint. This is a source of potential confusion. They are presented

as being of general application but apply only to residential development.

106. The individual principles are largely general in nature and require only minor drafting
changes to improve their clarity and avoid unnecessary detail. Contrary to their title, they

relate only to residential development.

107. Representations from British Horse Society express surprise at the lack of any
mention of equestrians, horses or bridleways in the Plan. They highlight the inclusion of
support for “better access for people to the countryside” in the Principles. | consider the
drafting to include not only walkers and cyclists but also horse riders and other forms of
access. The broader issues raised by these representations should be addressed through a

future review.

108. The requirement to “meet or exceed the minimum County Parking Standards” serves
no clear purpose. It duplicates existing standards and no evidence is provided for why these
should be exceeded in the neighbourhood area. The Plan does not provide a reference for

where the County Parking Standards can be found.

109. The desirability of providing electric vehicle charging points is best addressed within
the Principles rather than as a separate part of the Policy and it is already addressed by

Policy DP11 of the emerging Local Plan.

30

Page 180



110. Policy CM6 does not meet the Basic Conditions.

e M12 - Replace Policy CM6 with “All new housing proposals should demonstrate
they have had regard to the Cleobury Mortimer Good Residential Design

Principles”

e M13 - Amend the Cleobury Mortimer Good Design Principles by:

o Retitling them “Cleobury Mortimer Good Residential Design Principles”

o In h.replacing “no” with “avoid use of” and delete from “netting” to end

o Inj. deleting “environmental surveys should” and insert “in environmental
surveys” at end

o Replacing n. with “Discourage anti-social parking where on-street parking is
provided”

o Inr. replacing “Ensure that wherever possible” with “Ensure that”

o Adding “Provide electric vehicle charging points”

o Presenting the Principles in a form which can be clearly distinguished from

the tinted boxes used for the Plan’s policies.

111. Policy CM7 — This addresses the need for new development to improve the
environment and biodiversity by reference to environmental principles and makes specific

provisions for the tree canopy coverage to be achieved by major development.

112. The main purpose of the Policy is to secure environmental and biodiversity
improvements. This is done by expecting “conformity with the Cleobury Mortimer
environmental principals”. The Principles have been developed by the Plan’s Steering
Group. They do not have an explicit evidence base nor are they informed by specific
consultation feedback or community input. Given this, | consider the requirement that all

new development “demonstrates conformity” to be unduly restrictive.

113. Theindividual principles are largely general in nature and require only minor drafting

changes to improve their clarity and avoid unnecessary detail. The principles are not limited

31

Page 181



to issues of “biodiversity net gain” as indicated by the Policy’s title. There will be some

development in the neighbourhood area to which the Principles are not relevant.

114. The expectation of major development providing 20% tree canopy within 15 years
lacks an evidence base and is not mentioned in the supporting text. | was informed that the
approach expresses a community wish based on “the community conversation that
surrounded the production of the neighbourhood plan”. This understandable wish does not
provide the evidence needed to support a requirement that needs to be met by all major
development. | consider the issue is best addressed within the Principles rather than as a
separate part of the Policy and for it to be confirmed in the supporting text that the

definition of “major development” is as provided in the National Planning Policy Framework.

115. Policy CM5 is referenced twice in paragraph 163 although it does not address issues
relating to biodiversity net gain which is the subject of the paragraph. Policy CM6 and Policy

CM7 are not mentioned although they do address issues relating to biodiversity net gain.

116. Policy CM7 does not meet the Basic Conditions.

e M14 - Replace Policy CM7 with:
“Environment and biodiversity
All new development proposals should demonstrate they have had regard to the

Cleobury Mortimer Environmental Principles as appropriate.”

e M15 - Amend the Cleobury Mortimer Environmental Principles by:
o Retitling them “Cleobury Mortimer Environmental Principles”
o In g.replacing “should wherever possible be” with “in the form of” and insert
“wherever possible” after “trees”
o In h. replacing the first “should” with “that” and the second “should” with
“are”, deleting “be” and replacing the final “and” with “or”
o Ini. deleting “will be supported”

o Inj. deleting “etc. will be supported in all applications”

32

Page 182



o Inkinsert “A management plan for” at the beginning, replace “should be
accompanied by a management plan that will demonstrate” with “that
demonstrates” and remove the italics from “life”

o Adding a principle that major development results in 20% tree canopy
coverage of the development site within 15 years of completion

o Presenting the Principles in a form which can be clearly distinguished from

the tinted boxes used for the Plan’s policies

e M16 — Amend paragraph 163 to include references to the appropriate Plan policies

and clarify the definition of “major development” in the supporting text

117. Policy CM8 — This requires development to demonstrate adequate provision is made
for water, foul drainage, wastewater and sewerage, including where phasing is required or

capacity improvements are provided via agreement.

118. The Policy is supported by an assertion that water infrastructure “has been deemed

inadequate in many cases” and there is support from the Local Plan for additional capacity.

119. Onrequest | was informed the Policy is a response to the need identified in the Local
Plan’s Appropriate Assessment for mitigation against unacceptable impacts on the Severn
Estuary European Marine Site. On request | was provided with a copy of the Habitats
Regulation Assessment (including the Appropriate Assessment) for the emerging Local Plan.

It will be helpful to explain this context in the supporting text.

120. The infrastructure addressed by the Policy is being considered as part of the Local
Plan review which is at Examination. As the Plan is proceeding ahead of the Local Plan
review it is necessary, therefore, for it to include appropriate mitigations. Planning Practice
Guidance is supportive of neighbourhood plans addressing infrastructure (Paragraph: 045

Reference ID: 41-045-20190509).

121. Policy CM8 meets the Basic Conditions.

33

Page 183



OM4 — [Provide an explanation in the supporting text of the Policy’s role as a

mitigation measure identified in the Appropriate Assessment]

Page 184

34



8. Recommendation and Referendum Area

122. | am satisfied the Cleobury Mortimer Neighbourhood Plan meets the Basic
Conditions and other requirements subject to the modifications recommended in this report
and that it can proceed to a referendum. | have received no information to suggest other

than that | recommend the referendum area matches that of the Neighbourhood Area.

35

Page 185



This page is intentionally left blank



DECLARATION OF RESULT OF POLL

Cleobury Mortimer Neighbourhood Planning
Referendum

I, Paula Watson, being the Deputy Counting Officer at the above referendum held on
Thursday 7 December 2023, do hereby give notice that the results of the votes cast is as
follows:

Question

Do you want Shropshire Council to use the Neighbourhood Plan for Cleobury Mortimer to
help it decide planning applications in the neighbourhood area.

Votes Percentage
Recorded 9
Number castin favour of a Yes 384 84.21%
Number castin favour of a No 71 15.57%
The number of ballot papers rejected was as follows: Number of
ballot papers
A want of an official mark 0
B voting for more answers than required 0
C writing or mark by which voter could be identified 1
D being unmarked or wholly void for uncertainty 0
Total 1
Electorate: 2553 Ballot Papers Issued: 456 Turnout: 17.86%

| do hereby declare that more than half of those voting have voted in favour of using the
Neighbourhood Plan for Cleobury Mortimer to help it decide planning applications in the
neighbourhood area.

Dated Thursday 7 December 2023 Paula Watson
Deputy Counting Officer

Printed and Published by Andy Begley, CJar%g?O:’f%Zr Shropshire Council, Shirehall, Abbey
Foregate, Shrewsbury, Shropshire. SY2 6ND.




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 10

Council 21st March 2024 Shrewsbury Town Centre Regeneration: Smithfield Riverside Phase One Development Activities |

Council Item
21 March 2024

¥i¥ Shropshire

Council

Public

Healthy Healthy
Environment Organisation

Shrewsbury Town Centre Regeneration:
Smithfield Riverside Phase One Development

&

Healthy
Economy

Activities
Responsible Officer: Mark Barrow
email: Mark.barrow@shropshire.gov.uk Tel: 01743 258919
Cabinet Member Clir lan Nellins Climate Change, Environment and Transport

(Portfolio Holder): Clir Mark Jones Economic Growth and Regeneration

Clir Dean Carroll Housing and Assets

1. Synopsis

To seek approval to the proposed development activities for the Smithfield Riverside
Phase One regeneration programme, including approval to progress capital projects, to
meet the obligations of the Levelling Up Fund (LUF) Round 2 grant for Shrewsbury,
awarded January 2023.

Executive Summary

2.1. The Shrewsbury Town Centre Redevelopment (STCR) Programme continues to be an
ambitious regeneration initiative, supporting many of the strategic objectives of the
Shropshire Plan. Notably, it supports a Healthy Economy, promoting the County town ‘as
a safe, strong and vibrant destination to visit and invest’; Healthy Environment and
Organisation through the potential for low carbon development, mitigating climate
change, increasing flood resilience, whilst reducing the Council’s operational carbon
footprint and providing greenspace in our public realm. These objectives are reinforced
by the Economic Growth Strategy, Shrewsbury Place Plan and Big Town Plan Vision and
informed by the emerging Movement and Public Realm Strategy.

2.2. The initial phase of the STCR programme continues to proceed at pace and the Cabinet
report of 18 October 2023, titled Shrewsbury Town Centre Regeneration: Smithfield
Riverside Phase One, secured approval to ‘consult on the emerging masterplan and
submit an initial planning application to demolish the former Riverside shopping centre

Pagp 189

Contact: Tim Pritchard 01743 258929




Council 21st March 2024 Shrewsbury Town Centre Regeneration: Smithfield Riverside Phase One Development Activities |

and construct parkland and meanwhile greenspace, amended to align to the LUF2 Grant
award’.

2.3. The outcomes of this consultation, including those informed by focussed engagement
with key stakeholders such as the Environment Agency and Historic England, have
supported the submission of the planning application referenced above. This application
was submitted on 20 December 2023, and at Northern Planning committee on 5 March
2024 there was a resolution to grant planning permission, subject to conditions.

2.4. The Cabinet report of 18 March 2023 included delegated responsibility to the Executive
Director of Place, in consultation with the Section 151 Officer and the Portfolio Holders
for Climate Change, Environment and Transport, Economic Growth and Regeneration
and Housing and Assets, to:

2.4.1. finalise the masterplan for the wider Smithfield Riverside redevelopment area
following the outcomes of the stakeholder engagement and public consultation
programme, and for inclusion in a further report for final approval by Council.

2.4.2. finalise planning strategy for future phases of development for the Shrewsbury Town
Centre Redevelopment Programme: Smithfield Riverside Phase One, following the
outcomes of the stakeholder engagement and public consultation programme, and
for inclusion in a further report for final approval by Council.

2.5. The Cabinet report of the 18 October 2023 recommended to Council to progress the
works associated with the LUF2 grant award for Smithfield Riverside (Project 1) as a
capital project; this report fulfils that recommendation.

2.6. This report also seeks approval to progress the works associated with the LUF2 grant
award for Transforming Movement and Public Spaces in Shrewsbury (Project 2) as a
capital project.

2.7. The masterplanning review and the proposed planning strategy referred to above, have
also identified the need to progress potential opportunities and assess the requirements
and demands for a new cinema in the Smithfield Riverside area (complementary to
existing provision in/around the town) and to undertake soft market testing with hotel
operators/ developers. This report seeks approval to progress the associated
negotiations and engagement activities, necessary to assess these needs. It is proposed
these will be led by Development Manager, Rivington Hark, already commissioned to
support the Smithfield Riverside project.

Recommendations

3.1. With reference to the recommendations of the Cabinet report of 18 October 2023 titled
Shrewsbury Town Centre Regeneration: Smithfield Riverside Phase One and
subsequently informed by the outcomes of the stakeholder engagement and public
consultation programme October - November 2023 (as summarised appendix A):

3.1.1. Approve the masterplan for the wider Smithfield Riverside redevelopment area
(appendix B), as explained in more detail at paragraph 2.4.1 above.

3.1.2. Approve the planning strategy for future phases of development for the Shrewsbury
Town Centre Redevelopment Programme: Smithfield Riverside Phase One
(appendix C), as explained in more detail at paragraph 2.4.2 above.

3.1.3. Progress the demolition of the former Riverside shopping centre and enabling works
and the construction of the linear park to Roushill and associated temporary
greenspace, as a capital project to completion, within the Levelling Up Fund grant
award titled Smithfield Riverside Redevelopment Programme (Project 1) of £14.85m,
(appendix D) as explained in more detail at paragraph 2.5 above.

Pagp 190

Contact: Tim Pritchard 01743 258929 2




Council 21st March 2024 Shrewsbury Town Centre Regeneration: Smithfield Riverside Phase One Development Activities

3.1.4. Approve the reprofiling of currently approved funding streams, as summarised in
section 5 of this report.

With reference to the recommendations of the Cabinet report of 19 April 2023 titled Levelling
Up Fund Award for Shrewsbury, subsequently informed by the outcomes of the public
consultation exercise (8 February — 5 March 2024, appendix E):

3.1.5. Progress the construction of the highway improvements to the gyratory adjacent to
Shrewsbury rail station, and the active travel improvements, as a capital project, all
within the Levelling Up Fund grant award titled Transforming Movement and Public
Spaces in Shrewsbury (Project 2) of £3.852m, as explained in more detail at
paragraph 7.12 below.

3.2. Delegate responsibility to the Executive Director of Place, in consultation with the Section
151 Officer and the Portfolio Holders for Climate Change, Environment and Transport,
Economic Growth and Regeneration and Housing and Assets, to:

3.2.1. progress the capital projects (items 3.1.3 and 3.2.1 above), to include, but not limited
to, completion of contract documentation, receipt/ acceptance of tenders and contract
management to completion on-site.

3.2.2. enter negotiations with cinema operators, hospitality, food and beverage providers
and potential commercial tenants, relevant to opportunities within the development
sites of the former Pride Hill and Riverside shopping centres. Such negotiations to
include receipt of offers, agree Heads of Terms and prepare lease arrangements,
undertaking all due diligence as required. All as potential opportunities identified in
the masterplanning process (item 3.1.1 above). The outcomes of the negotiations will
be included in a further report for approval by Cabinet and Council.

Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal

4.1. The Opportunity Risk Management Strategy sets out the methodology for identifying
opportunities/benefits and assessing these against the associated risks. As part of the
risk assessment and opportunities appraisal, a further detailed review has been
undertaken with key officers to identify the key opportunities/benefits, the associated
risks and possible mitigation, each appraised against all potential options.

4.2. Strategic opportunities and benefits have been identified and continue to be appraised
and updated in the context of the masterplan and planning strategy (recommended for
approval in this report), for the Phase 1 of the Redevelopment Programme. The
significant opportunity to produce an exemplar regeneration scheme, which is both
sympathetic and of an appropriate mix and density of uses to drive transformation in the
town centre, remains a key driver, aspiration and rationale for the Smithfield Riverside
redevelopment. As part of the opportunity/risk analysis key Council/stakeholder
representatives have been identified to enable the opportunities to be realised, together
with the management of associated risks.

4.3. The detailed risk register (aligned to RIBA' workstages) continues to be updated monthly,
both by Shropshire Council officers (client-side) and by the external consultancy delivery
team, coordinated by the appointed development managers, Rivington Hark. The key
risks with mitigations associated with activities relating to this report are as the Cabinet
report of the 18 October 2023, updated as follows:

1y Royal Institute of British Architects Plan of Work

Pagp 191

Contact: Tim Pritchard 01743 2568929 3




Council 21st March 2024 Shrewsbury Town Centre Regeneration: Smithfield Riverside Phase One Development Activities

Risk

Mitigation

The proposed masterplan fails to
remain relevant and accommodate
changes in market conditions/
appetite.

The masterplanning process continues to test scenarios for
development, necessary to ensure it remains flexible to
respond to changes in the market conditions and therefore the
mix, sequencing and phasing of development. This also
ensures early phases of development are appropriate and
resilient to potential changes, and do not prejudice later
phases. Similarly, the planning strategy reflects/ manages this
flexibility using outline planning applications ahead of more
detailed applications and completion of due diligence.
Furthermore, the masterplanning process will be informed by
the Economic Impact Assessment (EIA) and other appraisals.

The planning strategy is delayed
and/or fails to secure planning
permissions to proposed sequence/
timescales

Dedicated and highly experienced external advisors continue
engagement with the Local Planning Authority (LPA) via
Planning Performance Agreement (PPA), Local Highway
Authority (LHA), as well as directly with statutory/non-statutory
consultees (i.e., Environment Agency, Historic England).
Continue extensive stakeholder programme ahead of planning
applications compiled/ submitted. Smithfield Riverside also
subject to Design Review Panel assessment at key milestones.

Failure to secure approval to
proceed with LUF funded capital
projects and risk to grant award;
requirement to spend by March
2025.

Negotiations underway with DLUHC Case Officer regarding
timescales and commitment. Project Adjustment Request
(PAR) to be submitted to request extension of time to deliver
elements beyond March 2025 deadline.

This report seeks approval to proceed with LUF2 initiatives as
Capital Projects to achieve proposed delivery milestones.

Negotiations with cinema operators
is delayed/ fails to secure market
interest, undermining future
business cases for the
development.

The Council’s appointed Development Manager has received
indication of demand from the market, and for facilities
complementary to those already available in Shrewsbury.

Should the market appraisal be delayed or shown not to secure
an appropriate operator/tenant, the masterplan plan allows for
alternative approaches/options within the wider development
programme.

Soft market testing fails to identify
interest in delivering hotels/
hospitality within the development
area.

Low risk due to current interest in place. Data suggests an
under-provision of hotels (quantity and mix) in the locality.

Cost of capital projects exceed
approved budget estimates/grants

Dedicated, independent cost consultants and Development
Managers are appointed on all projects to ensure
benchmarking/value for money assurance. Cost and revenues
are under constant review.

Public opposition to the scheme

Dedicated communications and engagement agency appointed
to ensure the proposed development programme is clearly
presented to all stakeholders and the public, and available via
media channels, as well as in person displays/meetings. The
associated activities will take place prior to planning
applications being determined.

Contact: Tim Pritchard 01743 258929

Pagp 192




Council 21st March 2024 Shrewsbury Town Centre Regeneration: Smithfield Riverside Phase One Development Activities |

4.4. An initial Stage One Equality, Social Inclusion and Health Impact Assessment (ESHIA)
has been carried out, drawing upon related ESHIAs including the screening carried out
for the draft Shrewsbury Movement and Public Space Strategy. Positive impacts would
be intended for a variety of intersecting Protected Characteristic groupings as defined by
the Equality Act 2010 (Age, Disability, Pregnancy and Maternity, Sex) as the
development provides a unique opportunity to repair/ stitch together and transform this
part of the town centre and positively change perceptions of the area.

4.5. Given the recognised intersectionality across the nine Protected Characteristic groupings
as set out in the Equality Act 2010 above, there will be a predicted positive impact for
individuals and households across groupings, particularly in the groupings of Age and
Disability. For example, young people who have been engaged with the consultation
activity to date have contributed to the design of Roushill Park and the overall masterplan
to ensure it incorporates interventions that can positively impact their lives.

4.6. The involvement of Accessibility Groups has ensured that consideration has been given
to residents and visitors to the town who may have a range of disabilities, whether
physical, sensory or in terms of neurodiverse conditions. Specifically, the entry point from
Frankwell Bridge into the site will be fully compliant with legislation to address disability
discrimination, empowering individuals to feel confident walking through and utilising this
area creating a much more pleasant environment for all to enjoy. It is also important that
any wayfinding implemented across the town is multi-sensory, enabling neurodiverse
individuals to be able to experience the town in a safe and accessible manner. Similarly,
older people who may be frailer due to associated physical disability have been
considered through involvement with Age UK and may also feel more confident venturing
out, therefore mitigating against loneliness as well as improved physical wellbeing.

4.7. There will be ongoing efforts, in this and future related projects, to engage with people in
the Protected Characteristic groupings, particularly where low levels of responses to
public consultation have been received to date and where responses are limited to
demographics. Overall, there will therefore be positive equality impacts anticipated
across local communities and groupings within, as the Masterplan sets out to support
creation of a vibrant, safe and inclusive town centre. Key elements of the design of
Smithfield Riverside have evolved to maximise health and wellbeing considerations, and
as such will have a positive impact.

4.8. Additionally, the social value outputs of the phase 1 development activities will be tracked
and monitored. For instance, there will be on-going engagement with Shrewsbury
Colleges Group (SCG) to potentially offer young people work placements and enable
age-specific engagement with this hard-to-reach group. Considerable efforts have been
put into establishing and developing the relationship between Smithfield Riverside and
SCG to ensure positive impacts are made for this Protected Characteristic grouping, and
relationships with Age UK and Shropshire Accessibility Groups will remain in place.

4.9. Further engagement work will include efforts to strengthen engagement with people in
Protected Characteristic groupings and people at risk of social exclusion, to maximise
positive health impact benefits for individuals and for the wider community, and to define
and deliver actions accordingly to mitigate any negative impact and enhance positive
impact of the proposals as they progress.

4.10. The Park will be an exciting new space for the town centre, a symbol of urban
regeneration and demonstration of the importance of greenspace as a crucial part of
making towns more resilient to climate change and improving health outcome.

4.11. Further details relating to the ESHIA are contained within appendix F.

Pagp 193

Contact: Tim Pritchard 01743 2568929 5




Council 21st March 2024 Shrewsbury Town Centre Regeneration: Smithfield Riverside Phase One Development Activities |

5. Financial Implications

5.1. A report to Council on 215t September 2023 titled Capital Investment Programme and
Mid-Year Review of the Capital Strategy (2022/23 - 2027/28) included total development
funding of £5.523m for the Smithfield Riverside Redevelopment Programme Phase One.
Specifically, for the proposed demolition of the former Riverside shopping centre and
construction of a multi-agency hub/ commercial office development with public open
space/park (at £3.146m) and for the partial demolition of the former Pride Hill shopping
centre and leisure-led redevelopment (at £2.377m). This development funding is
comprised of cash match funding financed from borrowing.

5.2. Development appraisals, undertaken by the Council’s appointed Development Manager,
Rivington Hark, in consultation with Council officers and the subject of a Project
Adjustment Request (PAR) submitted to DLUHC, has identified two distinct sub-projects
within the scope of works to be funded by the LUF Round 2 grant award. These are:

e demolition of the former Riverside shopping centre (at £3.357m capital works
cost); and,

e construction of the linear park to Roushill and enabling works to the remainder of
the site, necessary to facilitate future developments, including the proposed
multi-agency hub/ commercial office (£16.108m capital works cost).

5.3. As a consequence of the above, it is recommended to reprofile the current funding
allocations whilst remaining within existing budget approvals. Previous allocations
included £1.431m to specifically progress the multi-agency hub scheme to detailed
design/full planning (RIBA 3); it is now proposed to utilise this allocation to secure outline
planning consent for the wider site of the former Riverside shopping centre, incorporating
the proposed multi-agency hub/ commercial office development, and the design and
construction of Roushill Park. Furthermore, it is now possible to fund the £0.428m match
funding requirement for the LUF Round 2 Project 2 (Transforming Movement & Public
Spaces in Shrewsbury) with uncommitted Government grant. Utilisation of Government
grant has been realised through the day-to-day management of constraints and risks
associated with the design and delivery of schemes within the Integrated Transport
Programme (ITP) and eligibility of the grant for use against wider Council priorities.

5.4. A summary of the proposed funding allocations is as follows:

Pagp 194

Contact: Tim Pritchard 01743 2568929 6




Council 21st March 2024 Shrewsbury Town Centre Regeneration: Smithfield Riverside Phase One Development Activities

Assumed Current Council Approved Smithfield Riverside Transforming Total Pride Total
Funding Funding Redevelopment Movement & Levelling Hill Council
Source Programme Public Spaces  Up Fund Approved
Round 2 Funding
Schemes
Pride Hill  Riverside Riverside Roushill
Multi Demolition Park &
Agency Riverside
Hub Enabling
Works
£ '000s £ '000s £ '000s £ '000s £ '000s £ '000s £ '000s £ '000s £ '000s
Borrowing 1,580 1,715 3,295 1,715 1,715 1,580 3,295
Asset
Contribution
(Council 1,250 1,250 1,250
Owned
Land)
Levelling Up
Fund (LUF) 3,021 11,829 3,851 | 18,701 18,701
Round 2
Grant
Borrowing 797 1,431 2,228 336 1,095 1,431 797 2,228
Borrowing 219 219 219
Government
Grant 428 428 428
Total
Funding 2,377 3,146 5,523 3,357 16,108 4,279 23,744 2,377 26,121

5.5. This proposed repurposing of the approved funding allocations will facilitate delivery of
the LUF Round 2 projects and provide an outline planning consent for the site of the
former Riverside shopping centre including the multi-agency hub and further
development plots designated within the masterplan.

Climate Change Appraisal

6.1. The outline business case (Council report February 2022) has previously stated the
aspiration to demonstrate leadership in the delivery of low carbon, sustainable
development in Shrewsbury. Consequently, the proposed brownfield development of the
wider Smithfield Riverside will provide significant opportunity to create new developments
that will be energy/fuel efficient, both by supply of renewable sources and in operation,
minimising the need for carbon offsetting and mitigation.

6.2. Carbon performance and climate mitigation measures have been included as an integral
part of the project from the early stages of the design process. Carbon performance will
be quantified, monitored and reported as the project proceeds.

6.3. The proposed demolition and enabling works which fall within the scope of this report will
aim to retain and reuse of materials arising from the site’s clearance. The construction of
the proposed park will directly contribute to climate change adaptation through both
surface management and flood water attenuation, including Sustainable Urban Drainage
solutions.

Pagp 195

Contact: Tim Pritchard 01743 258929 7




Council 21st March 2024 Shrewsbury Town Centre Regeneration: Smithfield Riverside Phase One Development Activities |

7. Background

7.1. The Cabinet report of 18 October 2023 sought approval to consult on the emerging
masterplan for phase one of the Smithfield Riverside redevelopment, and to concurrently
submit an initial planning application to demolish the former Riverside shopping centre
and to construct parkland, necessary to meet the Council’s obligations under the LUF
grant award.

7.2. As context to these approvals, the report summarised revisions to the masterplan,
following a detailed review by the appointed specialist delivery team, led by development
managers, Rivington Hark. These revisions included, but not exclusively, the following:

e inclusion of the linear park to Roushill linking the Riverside to Pride Hill and the
River Severn, whilst contributing to flood adaptation;

e raising of the development site to ensure flood resilience, potentially create under
croft parking, and improve connectivity of the site to both Pride Hill and
Frankwell; and,

e to assess the retention/improvement of parking at the site of the Raven Meadows
multi-story car park to sustain/improve footfall to the Darwin Centre.

7.3. The masterplan review was also informed by a sequencing and phasing strategy,
necessary to ensure an efficient programme of delivery that also meets the grant
obligations and timescales required of the Getting Building Fund (GBF) for Pride Hill and
the LUF grant award for Riverside. In summary, the sequence and phasing for the Phase
One developments include:

e Phase 1a — demolition of the former Riverside shopping centre, ground
remediation, enabling works and the creation of the park to Roushill.

e Phase 1b — Partial demolition of the former Pride Hill shopping centre and
construction of leisure led mixed-use redevelopment, including cinema and food
and beverage.

e Phase 1C — Construction of commercial office (including multi-agency hub) to the
site of the former Riverside shopping centre site.

e Phase 1d — refurbishment/reconstruction of the Raven Meadows multi-storey car
park (subject to further detailed technical assessments.

7.4. The finalised masterplan, summarised in appendix B, reflects the outcomes of the initial
stage of public consultation, which commenced on 18 October 2023, concluding 15
November 2023; an overview of its approach and outcomes is summarised in appendix
A. Whilst the masterplan [and planning strategy summarised below] provides a robust
framework within which to bring forward development, it does allow for flexibility (for
example in the mix of uses, sequencing and phasing), to ensure it can respond to, and
be resilient to changes in market conditions and appetite. This report seeks approval to
this masterplan as a vehicle to bring forward the proposed development; this approval is
sought in the context of the Council as developer/landowner and not as planning policy.

Planning Strategy, Stakeholder Engagement and Public Consultation

7.5. The Cabinet report of the 18 October also sets out a planning strategy that will continue
to be informed and supported by the outcomes of the wider focussed programme of
engagement and consultation events at four key stage milestones (appendix C). This
strategy aligns to the masterplan and proposes a series of planning applications for the
various plots within the Phase One development area.

7.6. The initial stage of consultation (as section 7.4 above) has informed the final scope of the
full planning application to demolish the former Riverside shopping centre and associated

Page 196
| Contact: Tim Pritchard 01743 258929 > 8 |




Council 21st March 2024 Shrewsbury Town Centre Regeneration: Smithfield Riverside Phase One Development Activities

works as Phase 1a above. This application is referenced within the proposed planning
strategy, and following approval at the above Cabinet, it was submitted 20 December
2023 and has subsequently been approved (resolution to grant) on5 March 2024.

7.7. This report seeks approval to the continued development of the planning strategy as
referenced above, within which it is proposed to submit the second, outline planning
application for the construction of developments on the site of the former Riverside
shopping centre. As an outline application it will set out an indicative mix of uses
(currently commercial office, hotel/hospitality, residential) with physical, volumetric
parameters/ requirements (building heights, massing, orientation, etc.) within which future
buildings must ‘fit’. This application will be informed by the ongoing stakeholder
engagement and public consultation, specifically the formal public events and activities
between 15 February and 5 March 2024. Online consultation is available at
www.smithfieldriverside.com

Capital Projects: Levelling Up Fund Award for Shrewsbury (LUF Round 2)

7.8. The Cabinet report of 19 April 2023 approved the acceptance of the grant award from the
Department for Levelling Up, Homes and Communities (DLUHC) Levelling Up Fund
Round 2 (LUF2) for Shrewsbury. The total grant award of £18.7m, is supporting the
following projects:

e Smithfield Riverside Redevelopment Programme (Project 1 - £14.85m)

e Transforming Movement and Public Spaces in Shrewsbury (Project 2 -
£3.852m).

7.9. Subsequently, the Cabinet report of 18 October 2023 agreed to recommend to Council
the progressing of Project 1 above, as a capital project, and all as recommendation 3.1.3
of this report. The rationale for the scope of works submitted in the bid to DLUHC clearly
demonstrated how the grant will advance demolition, enabling and environmental works,
ahead of the construction of new developments within the Smithfield Riverside Phase
One Development, as now articulated in the finalised masterplan.

7.10. In summary, LUF Project 1 above (as appendix D) will:

e Secure planning consent and associated statutory approvals for the demolition of
the former Riverside shopping centre and delivery of the park, including physical
enabling works (ground remediation, services and utilities, etc.).

e Procure specialist contractor to demolish the former Riverside shopping centre,
undertake enabling works and remediate the site, in readiness for bringing
forward future development plots.

e Procure a contractor to construct the linear park to Roushill with temporary
landscape treatments/ open space to the remainder of the cleared site, pending
future developments.

7.11. These LUF Project 1 activities can facilitate, and be supplemented by:

e Securing of a subsequent outline planning consent, with indicative mix of uses,
for three development plots (accommodating 3-5 buildings) on the demolished
site above, including office, residential and hotel uses, totalling approx. c28 580
m? (gross internal area -GIA) of new accommodation (planning strategy
application 2)

e Progress design activities necessary secure planning consent for multi-agency
hub/ commercial office development (planning strategy application 4).

Page 197

Contact: Tim Pritchard 01743 2568929 9



http://www.smithfieldriverside.com/

Council 21st March 2024 Shrewsbury Town Centre Regeneration: Smithfield Riverside Phase One Development Activities

e Full business case (FBC) for the multi-agency hub/ commercial office
development, including all development/ construction costs including
professional fees and statutory charges associated with all the above.

7.12. Further to recommendation 3.4 of the Cabinet report 19 April 2023, this report also seeks
approval to progress Project 2 (Transforming Movement and Public Spaces in
Shrewsbury) as a capital project, all as recommendation 3.2.1 of this report, following the
completion of design development and preparation activities. The scope of these works
has also been informed by the focussed public consultation in the town centre and online
at https://shrewsburystationgyratory.commonplace.is, from 8 February till 5 March 2024
(extracts in appendix E).

7.13.In summary, LUF Project 2 above (as appendix E) will deliver: highway and associated
public realm improvements to the gyratory adjacent Shrewsbury rail station, and
implement active travel (e.g., walking and cycling routes) to Castle Street and within the
vicinity of the New Park Road. Specifically, these works will provide:

e 2.3km improved walking/cycle routes
e 20% increase in active travel trips.
e Improved air quality leading to 21% reduction in NO2.

Market Appraisals

7.14. The Smithfield Riverside programme continues to proceed at pace and is attracting
interest from regional and national developers and investors. The masterplanning
process has identified potential development plots that could accommodate various uses,
including cinema operators and hotels.

7.15. The Council's appointed Development Manager, Rivington Hark, has been approached
by cinema operators who are interested in providing a facility in the Smithfield Riverside
Phase One development, as proposed in the masterplan and complementary to existing
provision in and around the town centre. This report seeks approval, with the appropriate
delegations, to formally engage with the cinema market to assess market appetite,
identify and procure potential operator(s), scope their needs and requirements and
undertake the due diligence, necessary to make recommendations for inclusion in a
future report to Cabinet/Council.

7.16. Subject to the above engagement demonstrating a strong and appropriate need for a
cinema within the Smithfield Riverside Phase One development, this approach will
directly inform the detailed design of such a facility, currently indicated on the site of the
former Pride Hill shopping centre. It is envisaged that the cinema engagement exercise
will be completed in Spring 2024, at which point the design of the facility, and the wider
Pride Hill site, can proceed to application of detailed planning consent as the revised
planning strategy (appendix C).

7.17.The costs relating to this activity are estimated at c£47k and are forecast within the
development funding allocated to this project, as summarised in section 5 of this report
above.

7.18. Similarly, there has been strong interest and approaches to Rivington Hark from hotel
operators/ developers looking for opportunities on Smithfield Riverside, again as
articulated in the masterplan. This report acknowledges that this associated soft market
engagement is to commence and the outcomes subject to a future report to
Cabinet/Council.

Pagp 198

Contact: Tim Pritchard 01743 2568929 10



https://shrewsburystationgyratory.commonplace.is/

Council 21st March 2024 Shrewsbury Town Centre Regeneration: Smithfield Riverside Phase One Development Activities

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does
not include items containing exempt or confidential information)

Cabinet report Shrewsbury Town Centre Regeneration: Smithfield Riverside Phase
One — 18 October 2023.

Council report Levelling Up Fund Award for Shrewsbury — 19 April 2023.

Council report Shrewsbury Town Centre Redevelopment Programme Phase One —
24 February 2022.

Local Member: Clir Nat Green

Consultation with Local Member — Please consider the Local Member Protocol
(see page E60 onwards of part 5 of the Constitution) and determine whether it is
necessary to consult with the local member over the proposal set out in this report.
This may not always be applicable (e.g., where the proposal affects all of
Shropshire) but it should always be a consideration and in some cases a necessity
So as to comply with the spirit of the Protocol.

Appendices

Appendix A: Smithfield Riverside Consultation Overview October — November 2023
Appendix B: Smithfield Riverside Masterplan Summary
Appendix C: Smithfield Riverside Phase One: Planning Strategy

Appendix D: Levelling Up Fund Grant Award, Project 1 - Smithfield Riverside
Redevelopment Programme: Capital Project Scope and Summary of Works

Appendix E: Levelling Up Fund Grant Award, Project 2 — Transforming Movement
and Public Spaces in Shrewsbury: Capital Project Scope and Summary of Works

Appendix F: Equality, Social Inclusion and Health Impact Assessment (ESHIA)
Stage One Screening Record 2024 (appended report)

Page 199

Contact: Tim Pritchard 01743 258929 11




Council 21st March 2024 Shrewsbury Town Centre Regeneration: Smithfield Riverside Phase One Development Activities

Appendix A: Smithfield Riverside Consultation Overview October — November 2023
(Further information available at www.smithfieldriverside.com).

CONSULTATION
OVERVIEW

Between 18 October and 15 November
3, Shropshire Council and the Smithfield

Qver the course of the consultation we:

Spoke to over 500 people from all across Shropshire
Hosted 8 events
. «  Received 429 written responses
7
fho did we speak to? « Had more than 14,000 visitors to the Smithfield
Riverside website

Most people we spoke to either lived in
Shrewsbury or were regular visitors to the
town. We heard from people across different
age groups, genders, and ethnicities to
gather a sample that represents the different
demographics in Shropshire.

What age group are you?* How are you responding to this questionnaire
204 Town centre resident

I 1% Town centre business owner

16-19 someone who works in the town

centre

20-29
Employee of Shrophire Council

30-44

208

Regular visitor to the town centre

Representative of a group, forum
or organisation

60-84

Representative of a town or

85+ parish council

Prefer not
to say

EEENEEDE
5

Other

* of 387 people who answered this question

What did people think of the plans?

Most people we heard from were supportive of our plans, particularly for a new park on Roushill.
Lots of people also had suggestions on how we could improve the scheme.

Based on what you've seen so far, do you support our Based on what you've seen so far, do you support our
vision for Smithfield Riverside?* plans for Roushill Park?**

q =
Q 38%

. Yes, with reservations
* of 389 people who answered this question ** of 378 people who answered this question

P

. Yes, with reservations

M-
. Don't know

I
. Don't know

Pagp 200

Contact: Tim Pritchard 01743 258929 12



http://www.smithfieldriverside.com/

Council 21st March 2024 Shrewsbury Town Centre Regeneration: Smithfield Riverside Phase One Development Activities

How have we responded to your feedback?

The feedback we received helped us to develop the plans for Roushill Park further, and ensure it meets the needs of
Shropshire residents. Some specific changes we've made to the park’s design, based on your feedback, are:

+ Many people had concerns about damage to the park from flooding, so we're using soli Iptural play features
rather than traditional children’s play equipment, with a design that will tie sely with the geology and
archaeology of the site. This will also make the play equipment sturdier, and easier to clean up after flooding.

Climbing boulders have been incorporated into the park design, in response to feedback around the need to
provide outdoor play and activity elements for a range of ages, including adults.

Additional rain gardens have been introduced to the park to enhance its role in the Sustainable Urban Drainage
and Flood Management Strategy for the area. The tional rain ga s will also improve biodiversity and
wildlife on the site, which was highlighted as a priority for many people.

In response to concerns around safety, we have carefully considered the use of lighting and CCTV to improve
security.

Hlustrative view - looking southeast towards the proposed Wall and
Amphitheatre from the north of Roushill Park
(fooking away from the river).

We also received lots of helpful suggestions
about other important issues in Shrewsbury,
such as the Movement Strategy. These

will be considered alongside other public
consultations in the near future.

Shropshire Council would like to thank
everyone who took part in the consultation
for your feedback, which has been valuable
in the evolution of our plans for Smithfield
Riverside. We look forward to sharing our
progress with you in early 2024.

Hlustrative view - looking northeast towards the proposed Wall, Event Lawn and Amphitheatre
from Roushill (looking towards the river).

&gM"HFIELE ¥ Shropshire 551Ri"@ui I.ﬁfll.l.llﬁ m

Loca e s-ru: m Fn m r-|>

BIG TEWH PLAN

Paae 201
Contact: Tim Pritchard 01743 258929 > 13




| Council 21st March 2024 Shrewsbury Town Centre Regeneration: Smithfield Riverside Phase One Development Activities

Appendix B: Smithfield Riverside Masterplan Summary
(Further information available at www.smithfieldriverside.com).

The masterplan has been divid ed inbo fowr clear
OU R MASTER PLAN zones, 1o be delivered in separate phases, each with
its own challenges and opporunitie. Below, you

can see some of owr initial ideas about which uses
would be most appropriate for each phase, and
feorws they will relate to one another and to the wider
regeneration of Shrewsbury.

-ﬂ Phasing Strategy: 4 urban projects

‘l The key oppomunity for this 2one is

- b0 Improve the Bnk from th bown
% | cenire to the riverside area through

the creation of a new park at Roushill,
wihich will be the first part of the first

phase of development 1o be delivened,

Alongside the park, we also intend to
G replace the currently empty buildings

i thes zone with new offices, homes,

==
i rEstaurants and a cinema.
@ ﬂ Fomibiraige commmiin m Pr ol
=
a B kit o i ikt Bl
ﬂ iy e cnd et e

L

= .

2- A central priority for the masterplan i
* o ensure that the operational needs
of Thet Darwin Shopping Centne Jnd
Premier inn are safeguanded. The
emphasis will be on bath protecting
senvicing, and ensuning the critical
footfall from the Raven Meadows car
park and the bus station s retained.
We are alko considenng options to
refurbish the car park to bring & up
oo e standands. A new road
T bnking Raven Meadows to Smithfiekd
Road is also proposed, w provide an
e alternative route for buses and help to
reduce traffic on Roushill.

@ Propead nem amna

3 Earlier masterplans, including the Big

+  Town Pan and the Strategic Developrment
Framework, suggested that new buldings
could be delivered on the site of the bus
staticn. While this is still possible, the
masterplan will also consider alternative
options for the bus station based on
the outcomes of the Shrewsbury Moves
consultation.

Smithfield Road so that we are able 1o
keep in step with wider initiatives from the
Big Town Plan. This will be informed by the
Shrewsbury Mowes consultation,

gzl meew roated Browgh fone | of B aserging Syl Avewde moue pion

@oropgie J e i Warchos 2 SMITHEILD

MG TRWN PLAN _I.'_ |—=r e i) SlDE

Paqge 202
Contact: Tim Pritchard 01743 258929 i 14



http://www.smithfieldriverside.com/

Council 21st March 2024 Shrewsbury Town Centre Regeneration: Smithfield Riverside Phase One Development Activities

Appendix C: Smithfield Riverside Phase One: Planning Strategy

Planning Permission

Submission/
determination

(excl. 6 week judicial

Consultation Strategy

review period)
Full application for the former Riverside November 2023 — Stage 1: public
shopping centre and environs relating to: | April 2024 consultation
e demolition of former Riverside Update: submitted preclied[[rilgnplgn?lrg)g ;
shopping centre. December 2023, application (Octobe

e construction of public realm/park
on Roushill.

¢ meanwhile use to the remainder of
site (meeting obligations of the
LUF 2 grant award).

e application to be supported by the
illustrative wider masterplan

Resolution to Grant
approved at
Northern Area
Planning Committee
5t March 2024

— November 2023).

Commencing with
workshop with
Council members to
finalise scope and
content ahead of
public events.

Update: completed.

Outline application with parameters for
the former Riverside shopping centre site
relating to:

e multi-agency hub buildings on plot
3.

e future development plots 5 and 6
to the meanwhile use sites created
by the application 1 above.

e Environmental Impact Assessment
(EIA) relating to the indicative mix
of commercial office (including the
multi-agency hub),
hotel/hospitality, residential and
under croft parking.

January 2024 — May
2024

Update: Target date
for submission April
2024 —
Determination
September 2024

Stage 2: public
consultation
preceding planning
application
(December 2023 —
January 2024).

Update: consultation
period commenced
15 February — 5
March
2024.Completed

Full application for the partial demolition
and redevelopment of the former Pride
Hill shopping centre to include cinema,
food and beverage, retail and public
realm.

March 2024 — July
2024

Update: August
2024 — Jan 2025,
subject to securing
lease with cinema
operator

Stage 3: public
consultation
preceding application
3 (March 2024)

Update: brought
forward within Stage
2 consultation above.

Reserved matters application for plot 3
multi-agency hub plus adjacent surface
car park (the ‘gap’ site) and plots 5/6
subject to full business case/market
demand

August 2024 —
September 2024

Update: January
2025 — March 2025

Stage 4: public
consultation
preceding any
reserved matters
application(s)
(May/June 2024)

Pagp 203

Contact: Tim Pritchard 01743 258929

15




Council 21st March 2024 Shrewsbury Town Centre Regeneration: Smithfield Riverside Phase One Development Activities

Indicative Sequence and Phasing

RN wnris Lot monis
FEFFERY s toh- b

gl v LT
[CFZA mash e s s
[ masew

[ T

T

\\\\\\\E _I!'I | ' I_..-o"’,u"“- [ IR
. = L % S

Paae 204
Contact: Tim Pritchard 01743 258929 > 16




Council 21st March 2024 Shrewsbury Town Centre Regeneration: Smithfield Riverside Phase One Development Activities

J On this board you can see our current
progress towards a connected town
quarter with a mix of uses. This inviting
new hive of activity will be delivered in

several phases, starting with the park
beside Roushill.
]

This plan illustrates the first phase of
development which we have split into
four separate planning applications.
This allows us to seek your feedback at
multiple stages, on different aspects of
the plans.

% RIVER SEVERN

PREAER NN

The first application which
includes demolition of the
Riverside Shopping Centre and
the new park on Roushill was
made in December 2023, and
includes area within the red
boundary.

EUSTIG LA A

MW AVEMLE TO REL EYE HOLISHILL

ERSTMG ELE STATION AMOLNE
TO AR

The second application will be
an outline application, covering
the construction of a podium
area on the site of the Riverside
Shopping Centre, and outline
scale and massing of any

THE A CETRE future buildings within the blue
boundary.

A third, fully detailed,
application for redevelopment
of Pride Hill within the orange
boundary will follow.

ROLSHILL AN - P AN G URGRADES

Darwin Shopping
Centre

Application Two

The outline application for Riverside

will consist of rules that dictate and

control how the development could be

brought forward. Any future development will be

subject to a reserved matters planning application,

which would set out the detail of the actual design, in
adherence with any outline consent. This would be subject to
consultation, like any other detailed planning application.

Application Three

The application for the redevelopment of Pride Hill will be in full detail, and will feature
plans for a cinema, covered shopping arcade, food and drink offerings, and an outdoor
meanwhile use space. This application will be submitted in Late Spring 2024.

Artist's impression of Smithfield Riverside Phase 1

Paage 205
Contact: Tim Pritchard 01743 258929 ~ 17




Council 21st March 2024 Shrewsbury Town Centre Regeneration: Smithfield Riverside Phase One Development Activities

APPLICATION TWO:
OUTLINE SCALE & MASSING

Our second planning application will cover outline
plans for the three plots at the centre of the
smithfield Riverside site: plots 3, 5 and 6.

The aim of our outline planning application is ] l+ -
to secure the future development of the site in i 1
a flexible way, so that individual developments ~ |
can come forward based on demand from future \\\ 1

occupiers. While our outline application indicates
potential uses - including offices, residential and
hotel - it will provide a high degree of flexibility.

_.“‘!‘! Massing
- The buildings proposed for the Riverside will be carefully considered
in relation to the surrounding context and wider conservation area.
The massing envelopes in Application Two show the largest massing
proposed for the site.

T

These masses are tested as part of the application for their impact on the
historic townscape from several key locations locking towards the site.

The massing is stepped in height down towards the river, and also
chamfered back from the site edge on the south west boundary to
respond to important landmarks in the town centre, as well as views into
the site from the west.

Any future Riverside buildings that are proposed in detail, will have to
ensure they fit within massing envelopes proposed in Application Two.

Maximum and Minimum Sizes

The image above shows the maximum and minimum zones for three future buildings on the Riverside site. The exact footprint, size and
shape of these buildings will be defined at a later stage and subject to a full detailed planning application known as ‘Reserved Matters'.

The overlap between Plots 5 and 6 shows the flexibility of the footprint of these two plots. Depending on commercial interest, either plot
could be made larger or smaller within the indicated boundaries.

Below, we can see a specific view looking east from Welsh Bridge towards the site. The maximum massing envelopes are shown, with
examples of the buildings on plots 3, 5 & & contained within them. The view shows how the massing has responded to the townscape
setting, stepping down to the river and back to preserve views of the church spire of 5t Mary the Virgin.

: SHREWSBURY rowEnee s¥ ( §
@Shmpgb"l"rg B7[@7  LEVELLING i\Murches a( glM\}EEEll%E

BIG T®WN PLAN — P —

Paqge 206
Contact: Tim Pritchard 01743 258929 > 18




Council 21st March 2024 Shrewsbury Town Centre Regeneration: Smithfield Riverside Phase One Development Activities

Our third planning application proposes a
L] new social destination between Pride Hill
™ and Raven Meadows, forming a vibrant new

space to eat. meet and socialise, and linking

shopping in the town centre with the new
public park on Roushill. The eastern part of
the podium overlooking Raven Meadows
will become a meanwhile use space for local

makers and small businesses.

Below, you can see how we plan to achieve
Photo of the Pride Hill Centre this, and some of the different uses being
o cuendly fools considered for this plot.

- Tl i

’”

Food & Beverage

Existing Pride Hill Shopping Centre

The existing shopping centre is an inward-locking building, which provides little
interaction and interest to the surrounding streets and paces. It does not provide
a pleasant access route from Pride Hill to the riverside area.

Partial Demolition and Reconfiguration

Opportunity exists to reconfigure the building to enhance and promote the
pedestrian connections between Pride Hill. Roushill Bank and Riverside. The
proposed demaolition will retain the existing service yard platform. This will
reduce the extent of demolition and disruption, whilst preserving a substantial
amount of embodied carbon. This strategy would also result in retention of the
existing foundations, retaining walls to the south and west, and some of the
existing cores and structure to the south of the building, forming a new covered
arcade that will open onto Pride Hill.

Redevelopment Proposal

The proposed scheme is envisaged as a series of courtyards, that cascade from
Pride Hill down to Raven Meadows, responding to the existing height changes
and surrounding buildings. The creation of a podium accommodates the space
needed for a cinema within the slope of the site, where a terrace of retail
pavilions animate the pedestrian journey through the scheme. Opening up the
retained refurbished mall creates a seamless connection from Pride Hill, forming
a covered retail arcade and gateway into the scheme.

@ShrOngbjﬂ? 15‘?? L!\f-EI.I.II'.IG '\\\}ﬂuré'hes

BIG T&WN PLAN — P m—

Local Enteruriss Parinerzhic

Paqae 207
Contact: Tim Pritchard 01743 258929 > 19




Council 21st March 2024 Shrewsbury Town Centre Regeneration: Smithfield Riverside Phase One Development Activities

Appendix D: Levelling Up Fund Grant Award, Project 1 - Smithfield Riverside Redevelopment
Programme: Capital Project Scope and Summary of Works

App 01 Roushill Park
Submitted Nov. 23

Existing Bus
Starion

App 02 Outline
Submission Mar 24
App 04 MAH

Submission July 24

CASTLE STREET

PRIDE HiLL

Budget Estimate £
Demolition Riverside shopping centre and 3,035,000
associated works e.g., asbestos strip

Utility diversions and reinforcement 1,785,089
Site and Ground investigations and surveys 409,999

Construction Roushill Park (including new bridge 7,142,000
link and walkway)

Highways works and realignment (including 1,491,000
Avenue)

Landscaping 416,000
Fees Demolition 127,406
Fees Roushill Park and enabling 1,052,758
Contingency risk allowance 1,040,362

Fees MAH design fees and surveys to Planning 1,715,000
(100% match)

Land and asset contribution (100% match) 1,250,000

Total LUF project 1 Costs 19,464,616

Pagp 208

Contact: Tim Pritchard 01743 258929 20




Council 21st March 2024 Shrewsbury Town Centre Regeneration: Smithfield Riverside Phase One Development Activities

Delivery Milestones

Programme Element

Date/ period

Comments

Planning consent — Demolish Riverside
shopping centre and construction of
Roushill linear park

Resolution to
Grant achieved 5t
March.

Final detailed
conditions to be
agreed and Judicial
Review period to
complete — target
end April

centre

subject to tender
returns,
archaeology,
utilities
disconnections are
discharge of
conditions

Appoint demolition contractor and Summer 2024 Subject to tender
commence works negotiations —
intention to start
with soft strip in
advance of this date
Complete demolition of Riverside shopping | End 2024 — Sectional

completion to be
achieved to allow
the park to be
commenced.

contractor

Appoint Roushill Park and enabling works

Nov / Dec 2024

Complete Roushill Park

Summer 2025

Pagp 209

Contact: Tim Pritchard 01743 258929

21




Council 21st March 2024 Shrewsbury Town Centre Regeneration: Smithfield Riverside Phase One Development Activities

Appendix E: Levelling Up Fund Grant Award, Project 2 — Transforming Movement and Public
Spaces in Shrewsbury: Capital Project Scope and Summary of Works

DETAILED PLAN OF ACTIVE TRAVEL PROPOSALS

Bhort section of shared

footsay'cyclemay

EEQ Shirc

Corroad cycle lame
connecting fo Canal

E Locaiion of posshl=
E new crossing paint
= Fobential loss of on-
E sir==t parking on Casbs=
= Foregpate subj=ct bo 2wy segregabed
=z consulafion CyChway (3 meiers
j wide) narrowing 1o 2
melters in ihe norh
- *
ig 1‘&\ ki
f'ﬂ Rwt i
£ \%) :
[L] X i
] 'R j
i R
[oa
i £ i
&
L
Casfe Sireet wil remain
one-way o iaffic with A
he bus lane replaced
by a cycl=may
= 2-way segregabed
E CyChmay (3 msiers
B wlde)
(5]
E Losding bay locabions
2 subject o furiher
'i- consukasion wih
oA Dusinesses
o
o
(A
KEY
Bukdsg Fond ey Sharin Isohsayispchna iy
Rt Exsleg ren iyt sk
- — PEAIRED Y
ot g LEVELLING
Cidofisl pnsin Semieent Indicative Sropirad S plaslisg UF —
Panhiilinn cresing paisi
Page 210

Contact: Tim Pritchard 01743 258929

22




Council 21st March 2024 Shrewsbury Town Centre Regeneration: Smithfield Riverside Phase One Development Activities |

%Y Shropshire

Council

MOVEMENT - WALKING PROPOSALS

The proposed changes for walking movement aim fo increase active travel, prioritise safety and ease of movement
across key junctions, and improve accessibility inte and out of the Station Gyratory area. There will be wider pavements.
new signalised crossings and benches. In addition the reduclion of traffic and addition of a footpath along the southem
edge. Cross Street will be a better route for pedesirians.

Mew fooipath along
southem edge
of Cross Sireet,
- ing under the
Mew signalised [passing un
erossings viaduct
New on-sireet
[planting, providing 3
buffer from vehicles

New public benches
and seating

Widen existing
footways

Informal crossings
at the entrance ——.
and exi o the = — T . g
Shrewsbury Stafion
«car park \ \ SMITHFIELD ROAD AND CHESTER STREET JUNCTION
¥
View is from the junction of Smithfield Road and Chester Street. The view faces east
KEY & @ |, Towards Shrewsbury Castie and outines the key changes t the junction, additional
- * " street greaning and new public spaces propased to the south of the Station
—— eassinan movement 1N wromma crossng pont T- - 95 oyratory
_ y @
I Fomal rossing point o = -
mm Seaing -5
Faature space
LOCATION PLAN FOWERED BY

= e LEVELLING

Council

% Shropshire

MOVEMENT - CYCLING PROPOSALS

As part of the Station Gyratory Improvements project we will introduce two new cycle routes to the north and south of the
scheme via new active travel corridors along Castle Foregate (north of the Station) and Castle Street (south of the Station

towards the town centre).

The for eyeling aim to age active travel and improve accessibility for cyclists throughout
the Station Gyratory area. These changes align with the Shrewsbury Movement and Public Space Strategy to link with
proposals for mavement routes within the wider area, both to and across Shrewsbury.

~———— Cycelneto
confinue on narthem
comidor via Castie
LAY Foregate
-.\\‘ (se= Board 4)
.
W
b
‘.‘ N
4 “"mm_m__,
4
\
Cycle route obe ———————————=& %
reiocated from L
shared footway to i
on-road.Cycing to !
be integrated with p
traffic within the i e I e
new 20mph zone A segregated oyl
LY
On-road cycle route
and improvements
o junctions New cycie parking 3 <
P spaces Y . - g
yol
confinue on southern /A\‘ CASTLE FOREGATE, CROSS STREET AND HOWARD STREET JUNCTION
via Castle
Strest (see Board 4) & View is from the northem junation between Castle Foregate, Cross Street and
Howard Strest, View faces south along Castle Foragate and shows the proposed
junetion impravements, reduction of the existing vehicle movement to single lane
traffic: (as shown on the vehicle proposals plan) and adition of the new Z-way
Cycle parking within foctway segregated cycle track

W Station entrance i
LOCATION PLAN roOWERED BY

LEVELLING

Paae 211
Contact: Tim Pritchard 01743 258929 > 23




Council 21st March 2024 Shrewsbury Town Centre Regeneration: Smithfield Riverside Phase One Development Activities

MOVEMENT - VEHICLE PROPOSALS

The proposed improvements and changes for vehicles movement aim fo ease congestion and enhance safety for all users
throughout the Station Gyratory area. A new 20mph speed limit is to be proposad |hm.|ghc|u| the Station Gyratory area o
reduce vehicle speeds and further improve safety for walking and cycling include

vehicle movement in line with the overall vision for Shrewsbury indicated within the Blg Toun pian

»
Cross Street wil
be changed to 3

" ?; single lane of traffic

New 20mph : and will be lefi-tum

%Y Shropshire

Council

TRAFFIC MODELLING SUMMARY
We have modelled the exisfing and forecast vehicle movements in the Gyratory area across weekday

and weekend peak rush hours. Based on 2023 surveyed flows our proposals improve the operation of the two Cross
Straet junctions (with Chester Street and Castle Foregate). The introduction of traffic lights wil infroduce some additional
delay 10 vehicle movements at other junctions around the Gyratory. However, the overall total current delays on the
Gyratory are forecast to reduce during peak periods with the reduction in through-traffic in the town cenre associated
with the opening of the North West Relief Road. other and the for the Gyratory.

speed limit to be only onto Castie
implemented ¢ Foragate.
A _J,i Castie Gates and
» e‘ Castie Foregate
| {(A5101) to be
] changed to single
. lane southbound
Chester Streat ’ traffic.
I - s s
edioa ¥
way traffic route, "8 loading bays wil be
re-girecting vehicles ._'l\ relocated close to
away from the front existing locations.
of Shrewsbury
railwiay station. - ;
. 3
i
Y
tokey
The southbound Lane
will remain on Castle I Saton G
Street, with the bus o ey, Sen Y atory
lane removed to A
make space for
the southem cycle
route
KEY

[ usstops

PUBLIC SPACE PROPOSALS

The proposad improvements and changes to public space aim to improve public safety throughout the Station Gyratory
area and celebrate the loeal eharacter of our historic town centre. The area will be greener and less poliuted, making it
more welcoming for those visiting Shrawsbury by rail, as well as more appealing for commutars Using the raitway station.

Cleaner visduct
‘tunnels with new
pavement to make
waiking mere
pleasant
L) i - i
i new publc art
‘% :’5 ! nstaliations
\
Streetfrees and ) i
Janti
planting *\
s \
o ®
i, - - New feature space
- oy & for people to rest
e - and anjoy the area,
® including trees,
cycie fachties and
seating
1y
@
KEY
O Tree plantng” I rewresture space

smmsc;  Opportuniy for public art

Ennanced unction area
s Stabon enirance

“Tree numbers, locations and exact planting
areas are ndicative.

Pagp 212

LOCATION PLAN

LOCATION PLAN

CROSS STREET AND CHESTER STREET JUNCTION
View is from the corner of Cross Street and faces south along Chester Street.

The view shows the propased junclion improvements, street greening along and
conversion of Chester Street to a 2-way traffic route.

FPOWERED BY

LEVELLING

Shropshire

Council

CASTLE GATES AND SMITHFIELD ROAD JUNCTION

View is from the southern end of Castle Gates at the junction with Smithfield Road
and faces north along Castie Gates. The view demonsirates the proposed junction

and by railway station, the reduction of
Castle Gates o single lane traffic, the intraduction of the new 2-way cycle track and
the proposed street greening and public space improvements.

FOWERED BY

LEVELLING

Contact: Tim Pritchard 01743 258929

24




Council 21st March 2024 Shrewsbury Town Centre Regeneration: Smithfield Riverside Phase One Development Activities

Elemental Cost Summary

Element

Budget estimate

Comments

Professional fees £964 455 | Design validation,
development, contract
documentation, procurement,
project management, site
supervision

Surveys and Assessments £182 803 | Topographical surveys, traffic
modelling/ data, legal support,
drainage surveys, safety
audits, air quality assessments.

Consultation and engagement £42 593

Construction works £2 593 816 | Gyratory and active travel
routes

Contingency £495 027

Total £4 278 694

Milestones

Preliminary design — complete following reviews

End October - completed

Main stakeholder engagement

February — March 2024 -
ongoing

Detailed design

November 2023 — March 2024
- ongoing

Contract Award (following open market tender)

March 2024

Mobilisation (subject to contractor programme)

April 2024

Construction period (subject to contractor

programme)

April 2024 — March 2025

Scheme completion

April 2025

Pagp 213

Contact: Tim Pritchard 01743 258929

25




Council 21st March 2024 Shrewsbury Town Centre Regeneration: Smithfield Riverside Phase One Development Activities

Appendix F: Equality, Social Inclusion and Health Impact Assessment (ESHIA) Stage One
Screening Record 2024 (appended report)

Pagp 214

Contact: Tim Pritchard 01743 2568929 26




Shropshire Council
Equality, Social Inclusion and Health Impact Assessment (ESHIA)
Stage One Screening Record 2024

A. Summary Sheet on Accountability and Actions

Name of proposed service change

Shrewsbury Town Centre Regeneration: Smithfield Riverside Phase One Development Activities

Name of the officer carrying out the screening

Tim Pritchard & Claire Evans

| Decision, review, and monitoring

Decision Yes No

Initial (Stage One) ESHIA Only? | X

Proceed to Stage Two Full
ESHIA or HIA (part two) Report? X

If completion of a Stage One screening assessment is an appropriate and proportionate action at this
stage, please use the boxes above, and complete both part A and part B of this template. If a Full or
Stage Two report is required, please move on to full report stage once you have completed this initial
screening assessment as a record of the considerations which you have given to this matter.

Actions to mitigate negative impact or enhance positive impact of the
service change in terms of equality and social inclusion considerations

The development and delivery of the Shrewsbury Town Centre Regeneration:
Smithfield Riverside Phase One Development Activities is anticipated to have a
positive impact on communities in Shropshire.

Positive impacts would be intended for a variety of intersecting Protected
Characteristic groupings as defined by the Equality Act 2010 (Age, Disability,
Pregnancy and Maternity, Sex) as the development provides a unique
opportunity to repair/ stitch together and transform this part of the town centre
and positively change perceptions of the area.

The area is poorly connected to the town centre due to its topography and the
barrier created by the former shopping centres accommodated in the Pride Hill
and Riverside centres. The existing footbridge that links Frankwell to the
Riverside is also difficult to navigate for some due to its height above the road
and landings. Furthermore, pedestrian routes are dominated by vehicular traffic
and prevent good quality public realm being developed, particularly along the
river, and an inability to maximise footfall.

Page 215

The redevelopment of Smithfield Riverside and the proposed interventions, notably




the inclusion of Roushill Park, and its inclusiveness including green interventions,
play equipment and access to all aspects of the site will ensure that this area of the
county town is accessible for all.

Given the recognised intersectionality across the nine Protected Characteristic
groupings as set out in the Equality Act 2010 above, there will be a predicted
positive impact for individuals and households across groupings, particularly in the
groupings of Age and Disability. For example, young people who have been
engaged with the consultation activity to date have contributed to the design of
Roushill Park and the overall masterplan to ensure it incorporates interventions that
can positively impact their lives.

The involvement of Accessibility Groups has ensured that consideration has been
given to residents and visitors to the town who may have a range of disabilities,
whether physical, sensory or in terms of neurodiverse conditions. Specifically, the
entry point from Frankwell Bridge into the site will be fully compliant with legislation
to address disability discrimination, empowering individuals to feel confident walking
through and utilising this area creating a much more pleasant environment for all to
enjoy. It is also important that any wayfinding implemented across the town is multi-
sensory, enabling neurodiverse individuals to be able to experience the town in a
safe and accessible manner.

Similarly, older people who may be frailer due to associated physical disability have
been considered through involvement with Age UK and may also feel more confident
venturing out, therefore mitigating against loneliness as well as improved physical
wellbeing.

There will be ongoing efforts, in this and future related projects, to engage with
people in the Protected Characteristic groupings, particularly where low levels of
responses to public consultation have been received to date and where responses
are limited to demographics.

Overall, there will therefore be positive equality impacts anticipated across local
communities and groupings within, as the Masterplan sets out to support creation of
a vibrant, safe and inclusive town centre.

Page 216



Actions to mitigate negative impact or enhance positive impact of the
service change in terms of health and wellbeing considerations

Key elements of the design of Smithfield Riverside have evolved to
maximise health and wellbeing considerations, and as such will have a
positive impact.

The Park will be an exciting new space for the town centre, a symbol of
urban regeneration and demonstration of the importance of greenspace as
a crucial part of making towns more resilient to climate change and
improving health outcomes.

A panel review with Design Midlands on the initial masterplanning vision
produced the following feedback:

“The site as existing has a confused street layout, suffers from severance
and feels to a large degree like the ‘back of town’.

The development provides a unique opportunity to repair/ stitch together
and transform this part of the town centre and positively change
[perceptions of the area. The site has significant potential and the
investment in Shrewsbury town centre is welcome. The shared ambition,
the collaborative approach and the work undertaken to date is rigorous
and commendable. This approach has led to a scheme which is
sensitive, well considered overall and responds positively to its site
context”

The results of the consultation (the approach to which is laid out in Section B)
identified the key uses that Roushill Park would provide for. All of these uses
contribute towards positive health and wellbeing outcomes.

Q7. How do you think you would use the new Roushill Park?

A place to sit and relax 191
A place for kids to play 86
A place to socialise / meet friends 185
Visiting for temporary events and pop ups, 166
A safe and pleasant route to pass through 226
A place for recreational / sporting activities 62
A place for educational activities 65
I’'m unlikely to make use of the park 66
Other 42

0 50 100 150 200 250

Children’s play elements have been made more reflective of stakeholder desires,
making use of solid and sculptural play features rather than traditional children’s play
equipment, with a design ethos that ties more closely with the geology and
archaeology of the site. This will also make the play equipment more robust, and
easier to clean up after flooding — responding to a concern raised in feedback.

Partly in response to these considerations around flood resilience, climbing boulders
have been incorporated into the park design. These features also reflect feedback
around the need to provide outdoor play and activity elements for a range of ages,
including adults. Access to blue and gl%ag@ébw, and places to ‘play’ will have a
further positive impact on wellbeing.




Actions to review and monitor the impact of the service change in terms of
equality, social inclusion, and health considerations

Ongoing communication, engagement and public consultation with residents and
key stakeholders in Shrewsbury will need to consider any potential negative
impacts of the strategic interventions outlined in terms of equality, social inclusion,
and health. In addition, noting positive impacts of the development will be key to
show the positive change made for the residents and visitors of Shrewsbury.

As the redevelopment programme continues at each stage public consultation will
be a requirement, and at those intervals reviewing and monitoring of previous
activity can be undertaken.

The approach taken to consultation is shown below:

July - September October - February 2024 May/June 2024
202 November 2023 Second stage of Third stage of
Groundwork and First stage of public public consultation public consultation
initial stakeholder consultation
engagement
\
/ \ ctroducing the \ ( / \

Smithfield Riverside St
Reaching out to key project, including " ;
stakeholders to vision, funding, seeking feedback Ig:guﬁgaiid
make introductions timescales, and on the development B
and understand consultation of masterplan since to date%o: o?he
baseline views. process. the previous J\ '

consultation, ahead areas of the
of the submission of ) scheme). and

Starting to gather Seeking views on the outline with —V seeking feedback
feedback on design principles, parameters (or on Pride Hill
priorities to inform illustrative hybrid) planning redevelopment and
masterplan masterplan, as well application for gapsite
principles. as detailed design Riverside (Application 3),

for Roushill Park. redevelopment.

(Application 1), (Application 2),

. VAN AN AN J

Monitoring and evaluation are essential to ensuring that the activities within phase 1
of the development are delivering the outputs stated in the Outline Business Case
and as a requirement of receiving Levelling Up funding.

The following monitoring and evaluation activities will be undertaken as part of the
LUF2 funding:
e Change in business sentiment
Change in perceptions of place (business, residents and visitors)
Increase in business investment
Change in pedestrian & cycle flow (+20% increase in foot and cycle trips)
Increased pride of place of Shrewsbury residents
Future phases of Shrewsbury Masterplan accelerated

Carbon performance and climate mitigation measures have also been included as
an integral part of the project from the early stages of the design process. Carbon
performance will be quantified, monitored and reported as the project proceeds.

Additionally, the social value outputs of the phase 1 development activities will be
tracked and monitored. For instance, there wiII be on-going engagement with
Shrewsbury Colleges Group ( SCCP t lly offer young people work
placements and enable age-speci %‘%Dg ent with this hard to reach group.
Considerable efforts have been put into establishing and developing the




relationship between Smithfield Riverside and SCG to ensure positive impacts are
made for this Protected Characteristic grouping, and relationships with Age UK and
Shropshire Accessibility Groups will remain in place.

The Council is also keeping abreast of other approaches across the country in
regard to monitoring and evaluating the impact of changes. To reflect this, Equality
Impact Assessments, and associated documents from local authorities across the
West Midlands continue to be analysed to understand their approach to monitoring
equality impacts.

Further engagement work will include efforts to strengthen engagement with
people in Protected Characteristic groupings and people at risk of social
exclusion, to maximise positive health impact benefits for individuals and for the
wider community, and to define and deliver actions accordingly to mitigate any
negative impact and enhance positive impact of the proposals as they progress.

Page 219



Actions to mitigate negative impact, enhance positive impact, and review
and monitor overall impacts in terms of climate change considerations and
any other impacts with regard to economic and societal implications

The current site of Smithfield Riverside has low ecological value (i.e. hard
standing, amenity grass and shrubs). The phase one activities for Smithfield
Riverside will help reverse that resulting in a positive impact while helping to
negate the current site conditions and their impact on economic and societal
factors and future proofing the site against the impact of climate change.

The aim is to identify all materials which have the potential to be recovered for
re-use, reclaim or recycling as part of the demolition works to minimise waste
to landfill. This waste will be stockpiled for a period of time on site.

Roushill Park will be planted with new trees and plants for pollinators -
boosting local biodiversity in the town centre. The park will collect surface
water runoff into Rain Gardens, which will create new habitats for birds and
invertebrates. As a consequence of the new park, there will be a substantial
increase in greenspace on the Site and biodiversity net gain.

The Park avoids removing further area from the floodplain providing
additional flood compensation within the Site. The permeable hardstanding
treatments allows water to be naturally released from the site in the event that
it does flood with landscaped areas providing filtration of surface water.

In the short term, the demolition and development of the Park meet the
following key policy objectives and will have a positive impact on a
number of health, social and environmental implications:

e Providing high quality public realm and links between spaces
including walking routes

e A new green link via the Park to the River Severn

e Removing underused buildings to provide a setting for investment in
better quality buildings

e Celebrating new gateways and arrival points through the
Park and a new arched wall feature and lift and stairs
linking the Park and podium

e The park will replace existing buildings, increasing the
volume of available floodplain storage.

¢ Rain gardens and planted filter margins have been
incorporated into the park landscape in preference to
traditional surface drainage such as gullies. The proposed
features will help to attenuate surface water, will provide
storage for surface water within the filter material, and will
help to safeguard water quality. Within and outside of
Roushill Park, surface water storage tanks and flow
restrictions will also be provided where possible.

e The park will provide substantial leisure and amenity value as well
as enhancing biodiversity in what is currently a heavily urbanised
area.

e Proposed landscaping in Roushill Park would introduce substantial
new planting and gBagfrz'&’lﬁjcture including tree and shrub cover,
flower rich meadows, flowering and fruiting trees and shrubs and




seasonally wet SUDS areas. All planting is selected to maximise
biodiversity and feature native or near native species which will help
to establish a new habitats within the Site compared to existing.
Roushill Park will reuse part of a redundant brownfield site to
create new open space in the centre of Shrewsbury providing
multifunctional uses - places to meet, sit, play and host community
events;

Community health and wellbeing benefits arising from the new
Park in terms of access to nature and open space

Carbon performance and climate mitigation measures have been included as an
integral part of the project from the early stages of the design process. Carbon
performance will be quantified, monitored and reported as the project proceeds and

includes:

inclusion of the linear park to Roushill linking the Riverside to Pride
Hill and the River Severn, whilst contributing to flood adaptation;

raising of the development site to ensure flood resilience, potentially
create under croft parking, and improve connectivity of the site to
both Pride Hill and Frankwell; and,

to retain/improve parking at the site of the Raven Meadows multi-
story car park to sustain/improve footfall to the Darwin Centre.

all materials which have the potential to be recovered for re-use,
reclaim or recycling as part of the demolition works to minimise
waste to landfill.

the design of specific buildings such as the Multi-Agency Hub
(MAH) has included extensive consideration of energy and
carbon performance.

Stakeholder engagement workshop(s) undertaken by Arup
(Engineering specialist on the Project) on the sustainable design of
the Riverside redevelopment, including exploring the potential to
incorporate various low carbon energy technologies and other
sustainable design features.

Page 221




Associated ESHIAs

A recent ESHIA for the Shrewsbury Movement and Public Space Strategy was
undertaken by the same team involved in Smithfield Riverside and went to Cabinet
on 17 January 2024. The overlap between this and the Movement Strategy is
important to recognise as both will provide positive impact for Shrewsbury. The
involvement in delivering the Shrewsbury Big Town plan for each of these ESHIAs
ensures that that future public consultations in Shrewsbury continue to engage with
Protected Characteristic Groupings.

ESHIAs were also previously carried out in relation to the development of the
Council’'s Economic Growth Strategy 2022 - 2027, before and following public
consultation. These provide useful additional context for the overall strategic policy
of the Council towards economic growth as an integral element of place shaping
approaches across the County.

An initial Equality, Social and Health Impact Assessment (ESHIA) completed for
the Shrewsbury Big Town Plan was signed off on 17th October 2018 with a follow
up ESHIA in January 2021.

Page 222



Scrutiny at Stage One screening stage

People involved

Signatures

Date

Lead officer for the proposed
service change

Tim Pritchard

77/ A purvel

11 March 2024

LA~ Sl o

Adrian Cooper

Officer carrying out the Claire Evans 4/3/2024
screening

Any other internal service area

support*

Any external support** Lois Dale

7th March 2024

12" March 2024

*This refers to other officers within the service area

Page 223




**This refers to support external to the service but within the Council, e.g, the Performance and Research
Specialist for Rurality and Equalities, Public Health colleagues, the Feedback and Insight Team,
performance data specialists, Climate Change specialists, etc.

Sign off at Stage One screening stage

Name Signatures Date

Lead officer’s name Tim Pritchard

TN f
s

11 March 2024

Service manager’s name Tracy Darke

Do a0

12t March 2024

*This may either be the Head of Service or the lead officer

B. Detailed Screening Assessment

Aims of the service change and description

The aim of the Phase One development is to undertake demolition works, alongside

facilitation and enablement works. These include:

e Phase 1a — demolition of the former Riverside shopping centre, ground
remediation, enabling works and the creation of the park to Roushill.

e Phase 1b — Partial demolition of the former Pride Hill shopping centre and
construction of leisure led mixed-use redevelopment, including cinema and
food and beverage.

¢ Phase 1C — Construction of commercial office (including multi-agency hub)
to the site of the former Riverside shopping centre site.

e Phase 1d - refurbishment/reconstruction of the Raven Meadows multi-storey.
car park (subject to further detailed technical assessments.

These Phase One activities form a key, regenerative element of the Shrewsbury
Town Centre Redevelopment (STCR) Programme which is an ambitious
regeneration initiative, supporting many of the strategic objectives of the
Shropshire Plan.

Notably, it supports a Healthy Economy, promoting the County town ‘as a safe,
strong and vibrant destination to visit and invest’; Healthy Environment and
Organisation through the potential for low carbon development, mitigating climate
change, increasing flood resilience, whilst reducing the Council’s operational
carbon footprint and providing greenspace in our public realm.

These objectives are reinforced by the Economic Growth Strategy, Shrewsbury
Place Plan and Big Town Plan Visj gcqﬁd yHormed by the emerging Movement
and Public Space Strategy (which'is e ubject to public consultation, ending
22 March 2024).




The key objectives for Smithfield Riverside, as laid out in the Shrewsbury Riverside
Framework Regeneration are provided below, and when taken together ensures
that the redevelopment aims to make positive impacts on equality, social inclusion,
climate change and health and wellbeing outcomes.

CELEBRATE THE INNOVATIVE & MEANINGFUL RESILIENT TO CHARACTERFUL PEDESTRIAN- A HIGHLY
RIVER SEVERN, SUSTAINABLE, CONNECTIONS, CHANGE, deiivering & DISTINCTIVE, LED, = pisce which LIVEABLE TOWN

making the most of a design which a highly connected site an adaptable plan which achieving distinctive is designed for and CENTRE, contribure
the fantastic natural embraces new which knits seamiessly can respond is resifient modern design which prionitises pedestrians i iy Syt
waterfront setring technaiogy and into the town centre to-economic and responds to the and cyclists over SRy
providing opportunities contemporary design and the surround urban i enviranmental change unique character of vehicles it
for biodiversity through 10 deliver sustainability context Shrewsbury e
the site and ensuring the and distinctiveness, it e
site responds to-and is representing a positive et it et
resilient to flooding future and spearheading

innovation in

Shrewsbury.

Page 225



Intended audiences and target groups for the service change

Throughout the consultation, engagement activities have been guided by the

following key principles:

+ Being open and honest with stakeholders and members of the local
community when presenting all information about the proposals.

+ Being clear and ‘plain speaking’, avoiding the use of jargon or technical terms
where possible.

« Ensuring that all public engagement materials can be easily accessed by
local stakeholders and the wider public.

+ Identifying different audiences and developing appropriate communication
techniques that effectively engage with each one.

+ Responding quickly and effectively to enquiries received from stakeholders
and members of the public.

The objectives of the consultation process were as follows:

* To undertake a multi-phase consultation to ensure that members of the local
community and key stakeholders had the opportunity to comment and
influence the development proposals at

o (a) an early, formative stage and
o (b) a more detailed design stage.

+ To demonstrate best practice in consultation delivery, ensuring the
consultation was accessible, thorough, and robust.

+ To proactively demonstrate where feedback from the consultation has
influenced the scheme design.

» To use the consultation and engagement process to fully explain the
proposals in context, and as an opportunity to address any sensitive issues or
concerns.

The different audience groups identified were:

e Elected representatives — including representatives to Shrewsbury Town
Council and surrounding parish councils, Shropshire Council, and Members
of Parliament.

o Directly affected residents — i.e. those living close to the site.

¢ Local organisations and businesses — including schools and colleges, civic
organisations, museums and cultural attractions, environmental groups and
residents’ organisations.

e Businesses and residents across a wider area of Shropshire

The intended audience and target groups have been engaged in the consultation
activities that have taken place to date, with concerted efforts to engage younger
audience which is demonstrated by the summary of the first consultation below,
and showing a 23% response rate overall for 16 — 19 year olds:

Page 226



CONSULTATION
OVERVIEW

Who did we speak to?

Most people we spoke to either lived in
Shrewshury or were regular visitors to the
town. We heard from people across different
age groups, genders, and ethnicities to
gather a sample that represents the different
demographics in Shropshire.

Over the course of the consultation we:

Spoke to over 500 people from all across Shropshire
Hosted 8 events

Received 429 written responses

Had more than 14,000 visitors to the Smithfield
Riverside website

What age group are you?*

=
s

What did people think of the plans?

16-19

20-29

30-44

60-84

85+

Prefer not
to say

EEEEEEN
5

How are you responding to this questionnaire
Town centre resident
Town centre business owner

Someone who works in the town
centre

Employee of Shrophire Council

208

Regular visitor to the town centre

Representative of a group. forum
or organisation

Representative of a town or
parish council

Other

* of 387 people who answered this question

Most people we heard from were supportive of our plans, particularly for a new park on Roushill.
Lots of people also had suggestions on how we could improve the scheme.

Based on what you've seen so far, do you support our
vision for Smithfield Riverside?*

FPa ;-

. Yes, with reservations

-
. Don't know

* of 389 people who answered this question

Based on what you've seen so far, do you support our
plans for Roushill Park?**

. Yes

. Yes, with reservations

-
. Don't know

** of 378 people who answered this question

Page 227




Evidence used for screening of the service change

The Smithfield Riverside Redevelopment Programme is supported by a robust
evidence base. The programme has undertaken numerous economic &
environmental impact assessments, and provided a full Planning Statement in
January 2024 as part of the Planning Application for the demolition and creation of the
Roushill Park (23/05402/FUL)

Over the last five years Shrewsbury has been the focus of an ambitious plan for
growth, driven forward by the Big Town Plan. This plan outlined a series of key
themes for the town, which included creating a place for enterprise and vitality, life
and mix. The plan has since been progressed in 2020 through the creation of the
Shrewsbury Masterplan Vision to drive forward the aspirations of the original Big
Town Plan. A key driver of both these plans has been to connect communities and
create balanced growth.

The Proposed Development will also act as a catalyst for benefits in the
longer term namely:
e Reducing the impact of traffic on Smithfield Road
e Providing further high quality public realm and new routes through to
Pride Hill
e Enhancing the role of the river and access to it

Shropshire’s adopted Local Plan and emerging Review has identified Shrewsbury as
a ‘Strategic Centre’, with ‘high-growth aspirations’ which will enable growth of its
businesses through the provision of both housing and employment land allocations.
The population of the town is already growing faster than the county average
(+3.8%, equating to +2,700 people over the last five years).

As a result of ambitious growth plans, the population is projected to rise to 85,700 by
2026. This is the equivalent of more than 10,000 additional people who will be reliant
on the town centre for access to the retail, education, health, leisure and cultural
offer within ‘their’ town.

Page 228


https://shrewsburybigtownplan.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/01/Shrewsbury-Masterplan-Vision-Jan-2021.pdf
https://shrewsburybigtownplan.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/01/Shrewsbury-Masterplan-Vision-Jan-2021.pdf

Specific consultation and engagement with intended audiences and target
groups for the service change

A number of methods were used to engage with intended audiences that included:

e Consultation Postcard — distributed to 4,436 commercial and residential
properties

e Stakeholder Emails

e Consultation Posters

e Public Information Totems in 8 locations in the town centre

¢ Information in public libraries across the county

¢ Media Coverage & associated PR campaign

e Social Media

e Consultation website

e Consultation Drop-in Events, a breakdown of the attendees of each drop-in
event during the consultation period is shown below.

Date Time Attendees|
Wednesday 25 October 2pm -7pm 74
Thursday 26 October 11am-4pm 102
Saturday 28 October 10:30am — 3:30pm 202
Wednesday 15 November 4pm - 6pm 10

e Three events were held at Shrewsbury Colleges Group (SCG) campuses in
the final week of the initial consultation, with a particular focus on gathering
the views of young people. In total, 102 students were engaged and 78
feedback forms were collected from these events. The events held at SCG
campuses collected feedback from a total of 78 young people across three
days, as shown below.

Date Location Feedback Forms
Collected
Wednesday 15 November SCG London Road Campus 20
Thursday 16 November SCG English Bridge Campus 26
Friday 17 November SCG Welsh Bridge Campus 32

The feedback that was collated as part of the consultation was provided in summary
form and disseminated at the second consultation event in February 2024 to
demonstrate the impact the engagement had in informing the design — this is shown
below:

Page 229



OCTOBER 2023
CONSULTATION FEEDBACK

hed our first round of iltation on Srr for your

ill Park.

d 15 November last year, we:

5 received 429 fee
Shropshire residents forms
a 8 events

Many people were excited to sitive change happening in th
we could improve the scheme.

YOU SAID: WE DID!

The feedback we received helped us to further develop the plans for Roushill
Park, and ensure they meet the needs of Shropshire residents.

Some specific changes we've made to the park's design, based on your
feedback, are:

Many people had questions about how

the park will cope with flooding, so we're
using salid sculptural play features, rather
than traditional children’s play equipment,
with a design that will tie-in closely with the
geology and archaeology of the site. This
will also make the play equipment sturdier,
and easier to clean up after flooding.

Additional rain
introduced to the

will al
e on the
ted as a priority

ack on the maste

N

found that around
two thirds (65%) of
d

f our pl

rea of the town centre. Lots of people also had suggestions on how

Page 230




Initial equality impact assessment by grouping (Initial health impact

assessment is included below this table)

Please rate the impact that you perceive the service change is likely to have on a group,
through stating this in the relevant column.

Please state if it is anticipated to be neutral (no impact) and add any extra notes that you think

might be helpful for readers.

Protected
Characteristic
groupings and other
groupings in
Shropshire

High
negative
impact
Stage Two
ESHIA
required

High
positive
impact
Stage One
ESHIA
required

Medium
positive or
negative
impact
Stage One
ESHIA
required

Low positive,
negative, or

neutral impact

(please
specify)
Stage One
ESHIA
required

Age

(please include children, young
people, young people leaving
care, people of working age, older
people. Some people may belong
to more than one group e.g., a
child or young person for whom
there are safeguarding concerns
e.g., an older person with a
disability)

X
positive

Disability

(please include cancer; HIV/AIDS;
learning disabilities; mental health
conditions and syndromes;
multiple sclerosis; neurodiverse
conditions such as autism; hidden
disabilities such as Crohn’s
disease; physical and/or sensory
disabilities or impairments)

X
positive

Gender re-assignment
(please include associated
aspects: safety, caring
responsibility, potential for bullying
and harassment)

Neutral

Marriage and Civil
Partnership

(please include associated
aspects: caring responsibility,
potential for bullying and
harassment)

Neutral

Pregnancy and Maternity
(please include associated
aspects: safety, caring
responsibility, potential for bullying
and harassment)

X
positive

Page 231




Race

(please include ethnicity,
nationality, culture, language,
Gypsy, Roma, Traveller)

Neutral

Religion or belief

(please include Buddhism,
Christianity, Hinduism, Islam,
Jainism, Judaism,
Nonconformists; Rastafarianism;
Shinto, Sikhism, Taoism,
Veganism, Zoroastrianism, and
any others)

Neutral

Sex

(this can also be viewed as
relating to gender. Please include
associated aspects: safety, caring
responsibility, potential for bullying
and harassment)

Neutral

Sexual Orientation

(please include associated
aspects: safety; caring
responsibility; potential for bullying
and harassment)

Neutral

Other: Social Inclusion
(please include families and
friends with caring responsibilities;
households in poverty; people for
whom there are safeguarding
concerns; people you consider to
be vulnerable; people with health
inequalities; refugees and asylum
seekers; rural communities; and
veterans and serving members of
the armed forces and their
families)

X
positive

Initial health and wellbeing impact assessment by category

Please rate the impact that you perceive the service change is likely to have with regard to
health and wellbeing, through stating this in the relevant column.
Please state if it is anticipated to be neutral (no impact) and add any extra notes that you think

might be helpful for readers.

and wellbeing

Health and High High positive | Medium Low
wellbeing: negative impact positive or positive
individuals and impact negative negative or
communities in Part Two impact neutral
Shropshire HIA impact

required (please

specify)
Will the proposal have a X -
directimpacton an Creation of
wellbeing? will improve
health

Page 232




For example, would it outcomes
cause ill health, affecting

social inclusion,

independence and

participation?

Will the proposal X -itwil help
indirectly impact an supportan
!ndlwdual s _ablllty to individuals
improve their own

health and wellbeing? heath .&

For example, will it affect welbeing
their ability to be outcomes
physically active, choose through green
healthy food, reduce and play spaces

drinking and smoking?

Will the policy have a
direct impact on the
community - social,
economic and
environmental living
conditions that would
impact health?

For example, would it
affect housing, transport,
child development,
education, employment
opportunities, availability
of green space or climate
change mitigation?

X —
Community
improvements
will be made
including
measures to
enable
commercial
premises to
improve
economic
outcomes.

Will there be a likely
change in demand for or
access to health and
social care services?

For example: Primary
Care, Hospital Care,
Community Services,
Mental Health, Local
Authority services
including Social Services?

Neutral

Page 233




Guidance Notes

1. Legal Context

Page 234



It is a legal requirement for local authorities to assess the equality and human rights
impact of changes proposed or made to services. It is up to us as an authority to
decide what form our equality impact assessment may take. By way of illustration,
some local authorities focus more overtly upon human rights; some include
safeguarding. It is about what is considered to be needed in a local authority’s area,
in line with local factors such as demography and strategic objectives as well as with
the national legislative imperatives.

Carrying out these impact assessments helps us as a public authority to ensure that,
as far as possible, we are taking actions to meet the general equality duty placed on
us by the Equality Act 2010, and to thus demonstrate that the three equality aims are
integral to our decision making processes.

These are: eliminating discrimination, harassment and victimisation; advancing
equality of opportunity; and fostering good relations.

These screening assessments for any proposed service change go to Cabinet as
part of the committee report, or occasionally direct to Full Council, unless they are
ones to do with Licensing, in which case they go to Strategic Licensing Committee.

Service areas would ordinarily carry out a screening assessment, or Stage One
equality impact assessment. This enables energies to be focussed on review and
monitoring and ongoing evidence collection about the positive or negative impacts of
a service change upon groupings in the community, and for any adjustments to be
considered and made accordingly.

These screening assessments are recommended to be undertaken at timely points
in the development and implementation of the proposed service change.

For example, a Stage One ESHIA would be a recommended course of action before
a consultation. This would draw upon the evidence available at that time, and identify
the target audiences, and assess at that initial stage what the likely impact of the
service change could be across the Protected Characteristic groupings and our tenth
category of Social Inclusion. This ESHIA would set out intended actions to engage
with the groupings, particularly those who are historically less likely to engage in
public consultation eg young people, as otherwise we would not know their specific
needs.

A second Stage One ESHIA would then be carried out after the consultation, to say
what the feedback was, to set out changes proposed as a result of the feedback, and
to say where responses were low and what the plans are to engage with groupings
who did not really respond. This ESHIA would also draw more upon actions to
review impacts in order to mitigate the negative and accentuate the positive.
Examples of this approach include the Great Outdoors Strategy, and the Economic
Growth Strategy 2017-2021

Meeting our Public Sector Equality Duty through carrying out these ESHIAs is very
much about using them as an opportunity to demonstrate ongoing engagement

Page 235



across groupings and to thus visibly show we are taking what is called due regard of
the needs of people in protected characteristic groupings

If the screening indicates that there are likely to be significant negative impacts for
groupings within the community, the service area would need to carry out a full
report, or Stage Two assessment. This will enable more evidence to be collected
that will help the service area to reach an informed opinion.

In practice, Stage Two or Full Screening Assessments have only been
recommended twice since 2014, as the ongoing mitigation of negative equality
impacts should serve to keep them below the threshold for triggering a Full
Screening Assessment. The expectation is that Full Screening Assessments in
regard to Health Impacts may occasionally need to be undertaken, but this would be
very much the exception rather than the rule.

2. Council Wide and Service Area Policy and Practice on Equality, Social
Inclusion and Health

This involves taking an equality and social inclusion approach in planning changes to
services, policies, or procedures, including those that may be required by
Government. The decisions that you make when you are planning a service change
need to be recorded, to demonstrate that you have thought about the possible
equality impacts on communities and to show openness and transparency in your
decision-making processes.

This is where Equality, Social Inclusion and Health Impact Assessments (ESHIAS)
come in. Where you carry out an ESHIA in your service area; this provides an
opportunity to show:

« What evidence you have drawn upon to help you to recommend a strategy or
policy or a course of action to Cabinet.

« What target groups and audiences you have worked with to date.

« What actions you will take in order to mitigate any likely negative impact upon
a group or groupings, and enhance any positive effects for a group or
groupings; and

« What actions you are planning to monitor and review the impact of your
planned service change.

The formal template is there not only to help the service area but also to act as a
stand-alone for a member of the public to read. The approach helps to identify
whether or not any new or significant changes to services, including policies,
procedures, functions, or projects, may have an adverse impact on a particular group
of people, and whether the human rights of individuals may be affected.

There are nine Protected Characteristic groupings defined in the Equality Act 2010.
The full list of groupings is: Age; Disability; Gender Reassignment; Marriage and
Civil Partnership; Pregnancy and Maternity; Race; Religion or Belief; Sex; and
Sexual Orientation.

Page 236



There is also intersectionality between these. Eg a young person with a disability
would be in the groupings of Age and Disability, and if they described themselves as
having a faith they would then also be in the grouping of Religion or Belief.

We demonstrate equal treatment to people who are in these groups and to people
who are not, through having what is termed 'due regard' to their needs and views

when developing and implementing policy and strategy and when commissioning,
procuring, arranging, or delivering services.

Social inclusion is then the wider additional category we use in Shropshire, in order
to help us to go beyond the equality legislation in also considering impacts for
individuals and households with regard to the circumstances in which they may find
themselves across their life stages. This could be households on low incomes, or
households facing challenges in accessing services, such as households in rural
areas, and veterans and serving members of the armed forces and their families, or
people that we might consider to be vulnerable, such as young people leaving care
or refugee families.

Please note that the armed forces are now a grouping to whom we are required to
give due regard under new Armed Forces legislation, although in practice we have
been doing so for a number of years now.

When you are not carrying out an ESHIA, you still need to demonstrate and record
that you have considered equality in your decision-making processes. It is up to you
what format you choose.-You could use a checklist, an explanatory note, or a
document setting out our expectations of standards of behaviour, for contractors to
read and sign. It may well not be something that is in the public domain like an
ESHIA, but you should still be ready for it to be made available.

Both the approaches sit with a manager, and the manager has to make the call,
and record the decision made on behalf of the Council.

Carry out an ESHIA:

If you are building or reconfiguring a building.

If you are planning to reduce or remove a service.

If you are consulting on a policy or a strategy.

If you are bringing in a change to a process or procedure that involves other
stakeholders and the wider community as well as particular groupings

Carry out an equality and social inclusion approach:

« If you are setting out how you expect a contractor to behave with regard to
equality, where you are commissioning a service or product from them.

Page 237



« If you are setting out the standards of behaviour that we expect from people
who work with vulnerable groupings, such as taxi drivers that we license.

« If you are planning consultation and engagement activity, where we need to
collect equality data in ways that will be proportionate and non-intrusive as
well as meaningful for the purposes of the consultation itself.

« If you are looking at services provided by others that help the community,
where we need to demonstrate a community leadership approach

3. Council wide and service area policy and practice on health and
wellbeing

This is a relatively new area to record within our overall assessments of impacts, for
which we are asking service area leads to consider health and wellbeing impacts,
much as they have been doing during 2020-2021 and 2021-2022, and to look at
these in the context of direct and indirect impacts for individuals and for
communities.

A better understanding across the Council of these impacts will also better enable
the Public Health colleagues to prioritise activities to reduce health inequalities in
ways that are evidence based and that link effectively with equality impact
considerations and climate change mitigation.

Health in All Policies — Health Impact Assessment

Health in All Policies is an upstream approach for health and wellbeing
promotion and prevention, and to reduce health inequalities. The
Health Impact Assessment (HIA) is the supporting mechanism

e Health Impact Assessment (HIA) is the technical name for a process that
considers the wider effects of local policies, strategies and initiatives and how
they, in turn, may affect people’s health and wellbeing.

e Health Impact Assessment is a means of assessing both the positive and
negative health impacts of a policy. It is also a means of developing good
evidence-based policy and strategy using a structured process to review the
impact.

¢ A Health Impact Assessment seeks to determine how to maximise health
benefits and reduce health inequalities. It identifies any unintended health
consequences. These consequences may support policy and strategy or may
lead to suggestions for improvements.

e An agreed framework will set out a clear pathway through which a policy or
strategy can be assessed and impacts with outcomes identified. It also sets
out the support mechanisms for maximising health benéefits.

The embedding of a Health in All Policies approach will support Shropshire Council
through evidence-based practice and a whole systems approach, in achieving our
corporate and partnership strategic priorities. This will assist the Council and
partners in promoting, enabling and sustaining the health and wellbeing of
individuals and communities whilst reducing health inequalities.

Individuals

Page 238



Will the proposal have a direct impact on health, mental health and wellbeing?

For example, would it cause ill health, affecting social inclusion, independence and
participation?

Will the proposal directly affect an individual’s ability to improve their own health and
wellbeing?

This could include the following: their ability to be physically active e.g., being able to
use a cycle route; to access food more easily; to change lifestyle in ways that are of
positive impact for their health.

An example of this could be that you may be involved in proposals for the
establishment of safer walking and cycling routes (e.g., green highways), and
changes to public transport that could encourage people away from car usage. and
increase the number of journeys that they make on public transport, by foot or on
bicycle or scooter. This could improve lives.

Will the proposal indirectly impact an individual’s ability to improve their own
health and wellbeing?

This could include the following: their ability to access local facilities e.g., to access
food more easily, or to access a means of mobility to local services and amenities?
(e.g. change to bus route)

Similarly to the above, an example of this could be that you may be involved in
proposals for the establishment of safer walking and cycling routes (e.g.
pedestrianisation of town centres), and changes to public transport that could
encourage people away from car usage, and increase the number of journeys that
they make on public transport, by foot or on bicycle or scooter. This could improve
their health and well being.

Communities

Will the proposal directly or indirectly affect the physical health, mental health, and
wellbeing of the wider community?

A direct impact could include either the causing of ill health, affecting social inclusion,
independence and participation, or the promotion of better health.

An example of this could be that safer walking and cycling routes could help the
wider community, as more people across groupings may be encouraged to walk
more, and as there will be reductions in emission leading to better air quality.

An indirect impact could mean that a service change could indirectly affect living and
working conditions and therefore the health and well being of the wider community.

An example of this could be: an increase in the availability of warm homes would
improve the quality of the housing offer in Shropshire and reduce the costs for

Page 239



households of having a warm home in Shropshire. Often a health promoting
approach also supports our agenda to reduce the level of Carbon Dioxide emissions
and to reduce the impact of climate change.

Please record whether at this stage you consider the proposed service change to
have a direct or an indirect impact upon communities.

Demand

Will there be a change in demand for or access to health, local authority and
social care services?

For example: Primary Care, Hospital Care, Community Services, Mental Health and
Social Services?

An example of this could be: a new housing development in an area would affect
demand for primary care and local authority facilities and services in that location
and surrounding areas. If the housing development does not factor in consideration
of availability of green space and safety within the public Space, further down the
line there could be an increased demand upon health and social care services as a
result of the lack of opportunities for physical recreation, and reluctance of some
groupings to venture outside if they do not perceive it to be safe.

For further advice: please contact
Lois Dale via email lois.dale@shropshire.qov.uk, or
Sue Lloyd via email susan.lloyd@shropshire.qgov.uk

Page 240


mailto:lois.dale@shropshire.gov.uk
mailto:susan.lloyd@shropshire.gov.uk

Agenda ltem 1|1

| Council 21 March 2024 — Post16 Transport Task and Finish Group

Committee and Date ltem

¥i¥ Shropshire

Council Council

21 March 2024

Healthy
Environment

Public

Healthy
Organisation

Healthy
Economy

Post 16 Transport Task and Finish Group:
Update Report and Next Steps

Responsible Officer: David Shaw — Assistant Director of Education and
Achievement
James Willocks — Passenger Transport Group Manager

email: david,shaw@shropshire.gov.uk Tel: 01743 256479
james.willocks @shropshire.gov.uk 01743 252474

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder): | lan Nellins
Kirsty Hurst-Knight

Task and Finish Group Chair: lan Nellins

1.0 Executive Summary

1.1 Council, at its meeting on the 14 December 2023 passed a Motion that
commissioned a task and finish group to look into how the Council could promote
fairness and inclusivity by ensuring that all students, regardless of their economic
backgrounds or location, have equal access to education without an unfair financial
burden of excessive transportation costs

1.2  This paper sets out the findings and recommendations of this task and finish group.

2.0 Report

2.1 Members of the task and finish group, supporting officers, and Member observers
have met to discuss the motion and work through the relevant information to
understand the issues, options and confirm next steps and emerging
recommendations.

2.2  As part of this work they considered two core statutory documents which are useful
reference regarding what the Council must provide in terms of post 16 Transport.
e Travel to school for children of compulsoiy school age (publishing.service.gov.uk)

rPage
Contact: Tom Doddson 01743258518 = 1 |



mailto:david,shaw@shropshire.gov.uk
mailto:james.willocks@shropshire.gov.uk
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/659d7ebb0dd0a200138b612a/Travel_to_school_for_children_of_compulsory_school_age.pdf

Council 21 March 2024 — Post16 TransportTask and Finish Group

2.3

3.0
3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

e Post-16 transport and travel support to education and training
(publishing.service.gov.uk)

The group also considered the local situation in Shropshire, particularly in relation to
the public transport network, and how the network would look without funding
support. They discussed the challenges of living in rural areas and recognised that
one of the biggest challenges relating to equity of access was public transport
network coverage.

Next steps and recommendations

The group confirmed that the first steps should be to meet the requirements of the
Motion. Members reflected that the conversation was positive, and solution focused,
but they were at risk of moving beyond the scope of their work.

Raising awareness of options and informing expectations

That a One Stop Shop approach should be considered, where parents, carers,
students and colleges could go to for advice, guidance and information that helped
set out options and provided signposting in relation to post-16 transport.

The Passenger Transport Group Manager should talk to the Enhanced Bus
Partnership Group (providers) about the challenges, opportunities and options
relating to post-16 transport.

Developing a clearer understanding of the costs and challenges

A further mapping exercise should be carried out to provide a clearer understanding
of current and future demand for post-16 transport taking account of small area
statistics on 16 to 19 demographics (current and projected for the coming years),
urban centres, Further Education (FE) college locations, and public transport
routes, and should be integrated with data that is informing place planning.

Work should be completed to develop an understanding of the likely scale, costs
and options to cover point 2 of the motion in the immediate term, whilst the wider
work of negotiating with other bus companies is undertaken as a longer-term piece
of work.

. that the total annual cost of a Post-16 students transport, when using

school buses and public transport, shall not exceed the expense of a
single annual Arriva student bus pass within Shropshire.

Future funding for the public transport network

The Department of Transport support ends on 315t March 2025. The Council should
take an improved coverage option back to The Department for Transport to pursue
future funding.

Working with the further education colleges

Improved data connectivity with colleges should continue to be progressed. This will
help to develop understanding from the data and insights they hold on where their
students travel infrom. The group were mindful that next year's cohort would be
known, shortly.

The Council should explore the opportunity to make available and visualise data
that the Council holds and has access to, identifying the potential demand in

Page 242

| Contact: Tom Doddson 01743258518 2



https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/5c48534c40f0b616fba5cb6a/Post16_transport_guidance.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/5c48534c40f0b616fba5cb6a/Post16_transport_guidance.pdf

Council 21 March 2024 — Post16 TransportTask and Finish Group

communities to indicate where there are young people in the relevant age groups in
the current and future years. This might help colleges who are working to expand or
target their own offers and how transport could be a feature. It could also be
something that the council could provide as part of a commercial offer — either for a
fee, or as part of a package that will deliver identified outcomes.

3.9  Where there are specific issues related to access from communities and it is known
that a further education college is providing transport to a nearby settlement, the
Council could ask the college whether they would either extend the route or provide
a new service where there was demonstrated demand. As well as helping address

access there would be a mutual benefit of increasing the colleges enrolment
numbers.

4.0 Manging the flow of the work
4.1  The group identified three stages to the work.

Short term = One Stop Shop scoping exercise potentially moving to
implementation,

Medium term = Opportunities to speak to colleges, and completing the data and
mapping exercise for the realistic establishment of numbers and costs

Long term = Public transport infrastructure in Shropshire, developing a more
integrated transport offer, making the link to the Economic Growth Strategy and
employers and FE/HE (Higher Education) provision

4.2  The Group felt that the aim should be to getthe short term element of this work
underway for September 2024 for this years cohort, or January 2025 at the latest.

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does
notinclude items containing exempt or confidential information)

Local Member: All

Appendices [Please list the titles of Appendices]

Page 243

Contact: Tom Doddson 01743258518 3




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12

Committee and Date Item

¥ Shropshire

Council Council

21 March 2024

Public

Annual Report of the Portfolio Holder for Adult
Social Care and Public Health

Responsible Officer: Tanya Miles and Rachel Robinson

email: Tanya.miles@shropshire.gov.uk Tel:
Rachel.robinson@shropshire.gov.uk

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder):  Cecilia Motley

1. Synopsis

The Portfolio Report provides Council with an overview of the developments and
achievements that have been delivered in 2023 for adult social care and public health. This
has been a challenging year with ongoing demand pressures across the sector but also an
exciting time of change with Transformation Programmes of work helping us to deliver the
Shropshire Plan priorities.

2. Executive Summary

This report updates on the work across adult social care, public health and communities and
includes the work being undertaken to deliver the Shropshire plan priorities, detailing areas
of transformation and focus.

For adult social care pressures continue to increase with high demand for support, increasing
complexity such as dementia and nursing provision required. This with the rising costs
associated with delivering services has seen increased budget pressures despite being on
target for our savings programme aligned to the transformation programmes. Social care and
public health are working collectively to address and mitigate the impacts by focussing on
early intervention and prevention activities to keep people well and supported in their own
homes.

For public health, the report provides an overview of the context and delivery of improving

Public Health outcomes in Shropshire. It summarises the key health and wellbeing priorities
for Shropshire, the exercising of the Public Health statutory public health responsibilities.

Page 245


mailto:Tanya.miles@shropshire.gov.uk
mailto:Rachel.robinson@shropshire.gov.uk

Council 21 March 2024: Annual Report of the Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care, Public Health & Communities 2022-23

3. Recommendations

That Members receive the report, and raise any issues as appropriate on the performance
and activities of the functions of the Council in respect of adult social care, public health, and
communities.

Report

4. Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal

ASC has statutory duties under the Care Act 2014 to meet needs and manage the care
market; meeting need in the most cost effective and way. The teams continue to assess
needs and work with commissioners to do this creatively whilst maintaining good quality care
that meets individual needs.

Public Health has a range of Mandated and Statutory Services and Duties it is expected to
deliver within available resources alongside areas of identified local health and wellbeing
need; this report demonstrates Public Health Shropshire’s compliance with these functions.
In addition, an assessment has also been undertaken in line with the Public Health function
in the Rural Proofing Toolkit for Health and Inequalities (Rural proofing for health toolkit —
Rural England. This shows the steps that need to be taken to rural proof the delivery of public
health services. Our assessment noted nine areas where the indicator is met with five where
it was partially met. Plans are in place to address partial or maintain and improve minimal
areas noted within both assessments. A review against both the Mandatory/ Statutory Duties
and Rural Proofing assessment will be routinely undertaken by the Directorate as part of
annual service review planning and when a new policy or service is introduced and routinely
shared with the Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee as part of Public Health Updates.

5. Financial Implications

For adult social care the overall forecast overspend across Social Care Operations is
£10.081m for quarter 2. This is mainly due to purchasing where numbers of service users
and cost of placements are higher than anticipated at budget setting, we continue to see an
increase in nursing care, highlighting a complexity in people’s needs from the community and
through the hospital discharge pathways. We have also seen more packages of care
commissioned within peoples’ homes, resulting positively on reduced waiting lists however
costs have increased due to improved wait times. Work is on-going with the market to
manage the increased costs of care. Finally, we have seen further pressures due to the
continued need to support hospital discharges and short term care provision which has
resulted in higher costs. One-off Grant funding has been applied to offset some of these
pressures and the Reablement Transformation is in progress with system engagement.

Adult Social Care - Adult social care is on trajectory to meet its current savings plan currently
over £12m to date, these savings are as a result of working differently and improving
outcomes for people by progressing our transformation plans across the customer journey.
By using technology we have many examples of how we have improved the wellbeing and

Pagp 246

Contact: Tanya Miles and Rachel Robinson 2 |



https://ruralengland.org/rural-proofing-for-health-toolkit/
https://ruralengland.org/rural-proofing-for-health-toolkit/

Council 21 March 2024: Annual Report of the Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care, Public Health & Communities 2022-23 |

independence of individuals; one example includes reducing a care package by tailoring the
technology to support an individual with high mental health needs which not only has resulted
in efficiency savings but importantly has given their family the confidence so they have been
able to go on holiday for the first time knowing their family member is safe and more
independent.

We still however continue to experience high demand and high cost across the sector in
areas such as hospital discharge and with people presenting with more complex needs, in
particular needing dementia support. We are however positively supporting more people at
home with Direct Payments giving people autonomy and choice over their care and support
in a more cost-efficient way. Supporting people at home and increasing their independence
and wellbeing is in line with the Shropshire plan priorities and the transformation programmes
currently underway across adults social care.

To facilitate the delivery of Public Health outcomes, each upper tier local authority area has
been given a grant since 2013. This grant is ring fenced and the terms of the grant include
delivery of several mandated functions, which are specific to the public health prevention
agenda, including lifestyles. Any remaining budget is to be used at the discretion of the local
authority area to reflect local need and target areas with the biggest impact. In addition, the
remaining grant is used to fund public health staff delivering statutory and mandated public
health functions and the substitution of several key services within Shropshire Council that
are deemed to be delivering priority public health Outcomes. During 2023/24 the full Public
Health grant will be spent. Furthermore, the directorate held £4.215m as ring fenced Public
Health reserve from activity paused during COVID and outbreak/contractual pressures.
There are plans to use £1.4m of in 2023/24. The directorate has clear plans for the use of
the balance of this reserve over the subsequent two years to meet public health local and
national priorities, alongside supporting the Councils Transformation programmes and
activities where the focus is on achieving improved health outcomes taking a prevention and
demand management approach.

The directorate also brought in specific grant funding of £1.669m to enhance its public health
activities in 2023/24, having secured approximately £5m in external funds to support activities
between 2022/23 to 2024/25. For example, in drugs and alcohol spend, the Council has
received an additional £0.8M in 2022/23 and £1.3m in 2023/24 for this area compared to its
normal core spend of £2.7m (therefore nearly 50% additional funding for this area in 2023/24).

While spend on Public Health has increased over the past decade, there has been a 27%
real-terms per person cut in the value of the grant between the initial allocations for 2015/16
and 2024/25 due to inflation and population growth.

6. Climate Change Appraisal

The climate crisis is a serious threat to the lives of millions of people globally, nationally and
locally. The mitigation of greenhouse gas emissions and adaptation measures to build
resilience is now urgent and essential to prevent the worst outcomes. Even if we are
successful in mitigating the worst effects, we will continue to experience more pronounced
and frequent episodes of extreme weather. The much greater frequency of extreme weather
events will significantly increase insurance risks and threaten the health, wellbeing and future
resilience of our communities.

Pagp 247

Contact: Tanya Miles and Rachel Robinson 3 |




Council 21 March 2024: Annual Report of the Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care, Public Health & Communities 2022-23 |

Shropshire Council declared a climate emergency in May 2019 and in December 2020
adopted a Climate Strategy and Action Plan, which establishes the objective of achieving net-
zero carbon performance for Shropshire Council by 2030. The Climate Change Task Force
was established to lead the Council’s response in November 2019, supported by an internal
officer working group. A Climate Change and Carbon Reduction Advisory Board was
established in September 2022 to act as a ‘critical friend’ and to assist the implementation
and review of the Council’s Climate Strategy.

The climate crisis is already recognised as a significant strategic risk to Shropshire and the
delivery of Council and public services. This risk is most likely to manifest itself in terms of
financial impacts (e.g. operating costs, impacts on the Shropshire economy) and impacts on
the health and well-being of staff and residents as service users.

Climate action and carbon reduction are integral to all aspects of the Shropshire Plan:

Healthy People — Extreme weather associated with the climate crisis will adversely
affect vulnerable residents and service users disproportionately. This is likely to drive
significant future growth in the demand for social care services as well as generating
significant impacts on the physical and mental health and wellbeing of staff.

Healthy Economy — The recent energy crisis illustrates potential impacts on the
Shropshire economy from the climate crisis. However, there are also significant
opportunities for growth and skilled employment in new technologies, renewable
energy and the rural economy.

Healthy Environment — The climate crisis has very serious implications for
biodiversity and food production. However, as a large rural area, Shropshire is also in
an excellent position to take positive action to help mitigate these effects.

Healthy Organisation — Extreme weather associated with the climate crisis may
significantly disrupt the delivery of Council services through damage to physical
infrastructure such as roads and power infrastructure, and through impacts on staff
health and wellbeing. Demand for services and service delivery costs such as highway
maintenance are likely to increase significantly.

Taking active steps through the implementation of a corporate Climate Strategy and Action
Plan and supporting wider community efforts allows the Council to make a demonstrable
contribution to reducing the carbon footprint of the wider county, as well as ‘leading by
example’ by reducing its own carbon footprint. Through its regulatory role and procurement
decisions, Shropshire Council is in a position to make a strong positive contribution to help
the wider Shropshire community make a positive transition to a low carbon future.

Individual Council services will progressively need to engage with their staff and service users
to explore the need for, and implications of, service changes which may result from the
adoption of carbon reduction measures. The Council will need to adopt an agile approach
keep abreast of national good practice in order to maximise opportunities for equality and
social inclusion within the overall policy context of addressing the climate emergency.

During the last year, the efforts of the Climate Task Force have been directed towards
continuing to embed climate change as a key consideration in the Council’s corporate
governance systems and to widen ownership of the issue through accredited carbon literacy
training. A range of projects and initiatives continue to be developed and implemented to help

Pagp 248

Contact: Tanya Miles and Rachel Robinson 4 |




Council 21 March 2024: Annual Report of the Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care, Public Health & Communities 2022-23 |

the Council improve its own performance and to help foster similar action across the wider
economy and communities in Shropshire, including:

Renewable Energy - Shropshire Council is developing a 2MW solar farm on a former
landfill site which lies within a large industrial area in Oswestry and is considering a
number of other sites on Council-owned land for similar opportunities.

Low Carbon Community Buildings — the design of new buildings such as the new
swimming pool at Whitchurch is increasingly being informed by information about
lifetime energy and carbon performance to minimise carbon emissions and running
costs.

Electric Vehicle Chargers — Shropshire Council has one of the largest EV charging
infrastructure programmes in the Midlands and will soon own and operate over 300
chargers in its car parks, with a further 500 to come in future years!

Business Support — Shropshire Council is working closely with community climate
organisation and local businesses to offer free climate advice and training for local
firms and to free consultancy advice on the installation of solar panels on large
industrial buildings.

Biochar — Shropshire Council recently approved £2m capital funding to develop a
demonstrator plant to test the use of pyrolysis to ‘cook’ (rather than burn) natural
woody materials from highway maintenance and garden waste to reduce it to pure
carbon ‘biochar’ which can be used to store carbon in a stable form, improve soil
quality and for the manufacture of low carbon building materials such as bricks and
asphalt.

Green hydrogen feasibility — current battery technology is unsuitable for many of the
heavy goods vehicles which are used to deliver Council services in Shropshire
because of the long distances which they need to travel. The Council is therefore
working with a range of commercial and academic stakeholders to develop a small
scale demonstrator hydrogen fuel manufacturing facility, co-located with renewable
energy generation on Council owned land near Shrewsbury.

Adult services recognise its role in reducing carbon emissions and it forms strategy and
commissioning approaches to ensure Provider services across the county deliver services
with consideration to its impact upon the climate.

Public health recognises the importance role it needs to play in promoting both activities to
reduce carbon emissions, through its strategic influencing, service delivery and
commissioning activities, and through its work to build resilience and response via the
emergency planning functions. These activities form a core part of the public health function
and are embedded within service delivery and improvement plans.

Pagp 249

Contact: Tanya Miles and Rachel Robinson 5 |




Council 21 March 2024: Annual Report of the Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care, Public Health & Communities 2022-23

7. Background

Adult Social Care — Transformation

ASC has embarked on an exciting transformation programme. Our overarching ambition for
this programme will be for advice, information, and support to be available for people to
maximise their independence, prevent ill health, allowing people to live safely in their own
home for as long as possible.

We want to identify what is important to people and will help shape our care market vision for
the future ensuring high quality home care is readily available across all areas of Shropshire,
delivered; through a sustainable market, resilient to future demands and challenges, by
workers who are recognised and valued fully for the work that they do.

Care at Home:

The programme has 2 key areas and several other interdependent projects and programmes
that support and are key to the successful delivery of the Care at Home transformation. All
have actions, outcomes along with ensuring they link to the Shropshire Plan. This is to ensure
people are receiving the correct service and seeking alternatives to paid care where possible
through a robust reviewing process by social work teams.

Acknowledging the significant challenges, we face with rurality and an ageing population. A
key focus will look at/work alongside care providers, service users, unpaid carers,
communities, social care and partners to identify issues/risks and to ensure we have
sustainable and reliable care market and thriving communities that can meet future demand
for people who will require to have a paid care service in their own home.

Reablement:

The reablement project is a transformational change project focussed on supporting people
in the right way, at the right time, and in the right environment to help more people regain and
maintain their health and wellbeing.

Our ambition is to create an integrated approach to Reablement with effective ways of
working between the Council and Health services, with a clear delivery model.

Increasing the numbers of people accessing reablement is an outcome based approach and
reduces the likelihood for long term or ongoing care. This aim to move away from bedded
provision models of care to the least amount of required support at home.

8. Integrated Community Services (ICS)

Hospital Discharge has seen increased demand over the past 3 years and more recently a
24% increase in Demand. Discharge activity has increased 13.5% since July 2023, nearly
80% of people have been supported ‘Home First'.

Challenges remain with the ‘No Criteria to Reside’ numbers increasing to pre-summer levels

after a significant reduction in July and August, however, this aligns with the increased
demand.

We have increased complex discharges from hospital setting by 13.5% since July 2023. The
percentage of people returning home after hospital has increased, with the current trend

Pagp 250

Contact: Tanya Miles and Rachel Robinson 6 |




Council 21 March 2024: Annual Report of the Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care, Public Health & Communities 2022-23 |

being 80%. The length of stay in hospitals from referral to discharges for residents who need
support from Shropshire Council has reduced to 1.6 days on average.

The ICS team are working within the Reablement Transformation programme to deliver an
improved ‘Home First’ discharge offer which will build on the work we have already completed
to reduce the length of stay for people who need support. The trial will see O.T.’s working
closely with START and ICS to provide efficient and safe access to support, with the
reablement being prescribed and monitored by an O.T. once home. The purpose of this is to
achieve the best outcomes for people, support individuals to be as independent as possible
and enable people to have the right support to remain in their local community with their
existing support networks for as long as possible. This will also support Shropshire Council
to manage demand for care home beds post discharge from hospital.

9. START

START (Short Term Assessment and Reablement Team*) is Shropshire Council’s frontline
reablement care provider. It offers a unique service within the Domiciliary Care Provider
market. The service works with people in their own homes, utilising a person centred,
approach to enable and support independence

People supported through the START reablement programme have significantly improved
outcomes and remain more independent in the community for longer. The service has grown
significantly in the last year with improvement in recruitment and retention rates. On average
START are providing 65% of Reablement packages in Shropshire with a reduced length of
stay of around two weeks. This has resulted in significantly lower pressure on the ASC
demand pressure and proves the effectiveness of the reablement programme with approx.
65% needing no further care. The service is developing expertise to support more complex
needs making it more widely available to people in Shropshire.

10. Community Social Work Team (Adults)

Demand into ASC in Shropshire has been steadily consistent over recent years, however a
recent increase in demand and people presenting with have complex needs. To respond to
this, we have focussed on reducing our response time, improved how we triage referrals and
maintain contact with people waiting. Over the last 3-6 months there has been a significant
reduction in the number of individuals waiting to be assessed.

Waiting times are the lowest they have been in over 4 years and the aim at the end of 2023
was for people to be assessed within 4 weeks of contact.

Teams have been trying new ways of working to improve efficiency and manage demand.

A recent Innovation Week took place where teams worked closely to learn from each other,
implementing different ways to support demand, such as 2 workers in a car, increasing visits,
providing people with information and signposting them to services that could also help. A
key focus is on early intervention and prevention and how people can link within their local
community, reducing the need for formal care as appropriate.

There is clear evidence that the changes made over the last 12 months are having a positive
impact.

Pagp 251

Contact: Tanya Miles and Rachel Robinson 7 |




Council 21 March 2024: Annual Report of the Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care, Public Health & Communities 2022-23 |

Our data systems have been developed and improved so they are more accessible to support
continuous improvement in performance, understanding demand to be able to support people
at the right time and ensure resources are used in the right place by informing our
commissioning intentions.

We are working with our colleagues in children’s services and public health to look at the
family hub offer recently launched by Early Help, building on from our successful Let's Talk
Local model. Encompassing a family approach across the People’s directorate and
recognising the need to get involved with families as early as possible to reduce the risk and
effects of the cost of living, risk of neglect, homelessness etc.

We are incorporating a Neighbourhood focussed approach in our locality areas, creating a
multiagency approach to early intervention and prevention, a real focus on dementia, self-
neglect, substance and alcohol misuse and those with co-morbidities. This will involve regular
local Multi-Disciplinary Teams (MDT) where agencies can share concerns and information
about residents they are working with.

We continue to support individuals in their own homes and consider a care home placement
only when all other options to safely support individuals in their own homes (or a community
setting) have been explored.

11.Direct Payments

The direct payment team is now well established and provide support and guidance to
operational staff, direct payment recipients, and others. Direct Payment Board is chaired
jointly by an individual who receives a direct payment and the Assistant Director for Adult
Social Care. Membership of the Board includes both staff and experts by experience.

Following the ‘mend the gap’ project a number of improvements have been made to the direct
payment offer within the Council. These include improved and more personalised
communications, the development of a direct payment policy, the development of the direct
payment website and the development of the personal assistant noticeboard. The proportion
of people receiving long term support via a direct payment is steadily rising with some teams
achieving over 30%.

Direct payments not only provide people with the flexibility to meet their care and support
needs they are also recognised as a cost-effective way of providing social care and staff are
being encouraged to consider direct payments first and supporting people to utilise this
method of support where appropriate.

12.Principal Social Worker Professional Development

The Principal Social Worker and professional development service have delivered training to
operational staff on community led support, strengths-based practice, person centred
assessments and reviews. A Practice Framework was also developed, aligned to our
priorities and delivery model.

A Quality Improvement and Service Development board will provide the governance to
evaluate quality of practice and service delivery.

Pagp 252

Contact: Tanya Miles and Rachel Robinson 8 |




Council 21 March 2024: Annual Report of the Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care, Public Health & Communities 2022-23

In 23/24 The professional development team:

e Supported 14 SW students on BA/MA/Step-up courses

e Supported 13 Social Work apprentices in training; three of whom are due to qualify in
early 24

e Supported 18 newly qualified social workers

e Sponsored 6 members of staff to complete their pre-AMHP training

e Supported and assessed three members of staff during their AMHP training and have
identified a further two to complete their qualifying training in 2024

e Supported and Assessed 4 practice educators in training.

e Supported and Assessed 4 Social Care Practitioners.

13.Carers

Adult carer support in Shropshire had traditionally been outsourced to an external provider
however the service was brought in-house in February 2021. The (Adult) Carer Support team
is made up of 3.4 FTE carer support practitioners (CSP); a team coordinator, Information
officer and Shropshire Carer Manager, who is also the Carer Lead for the People Directorate.
The Carer Support service offers carers 1:1 support, information and advice, support line,
regular wellbeing calls, peer groups, planning ahead, events, Carer Feedback and Carer
Register, a tool to share relevant information with carers and where they receive an
Emergency/ID carer card and emergency plan. 1437 carers on now on the register with
support groups in place across the county.

The Hospital Carer Support practitioner (HCSP), supports carers through the discharge
process while their cared for person is in a hospital setting, providing information and advice
and signposting to other support. The HCSP raises awareness of carers with teams/wards
within the secondary care sector, to enable NHS staff to identify carers and offer to signpost
to support.

The commissioned digital carer support service, delivered by Mobilise, is continuing to
exceed targets of carers reached. Statistics show that carers all over Shropshire are
accessing the digital carer support, predominantly through mobile phones. This includes over
21,000 visits to the site, 4185 accessing information for example the carer allowance checker
and 1,000 people supported 1:1 coaching, virtual cuppas as some examples.

The All-Age Carers strategy 2022-2027 was ratified by Cabinet in March 2023. The strategy
has been co-produced with carers, former carers and key organisations representing carers
spanning all carer age groups. The action plan supplementing the strategy demonstrates how
we will deliver the priorities and what measures are in place to monitor success.

14.Preparing for Adulthood Team

We are currently supporting over 190 young people. We have a target to become involved
with young people at a younger age, currently this averages in the 17t year, the aim is to
incrementally lower this age to ensure a positive impact for adult life. This will complement
the 0-25 years pathway.

Pagp 253

Contact: Tanya Miles and Rachel Robinson 9 |




Council 21 March 2024: Annual Report of the Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care, Public Health & Communities 2022-23 |

Last autumn we began a new project with IMPACT (Improving Patient Care Together),
funded by the NDTi exploring community support and early information for young people who
may require adult social care support in future. The objective being young people and families
receiving information and signposting at the time that is right for them, reducing dependence
on social care services and improving outcomes for young people.

15.Mental Health Team

The mental health social work team working in the community of Shropshire have developed
following adult social care’s innovation week, a restructured front door experience for
individuals being referred into mental health social worker- reducing the time it takes to
receive an assessment. With a robust duty system, individuals are supported to access the
most appropriate services at the most appropriate time.

We have reduced waiting time to zero and have plans to sustain this, over 52% of contacts
to the team are concluded successfully and are not requiring further assessment or support.

Work is planned in the next period to review models of support with commissioning
colleagues to ensure the right service, right time and right place is used. We have a target to
increasingly meet need closer to home, in a way that maximises independence.

We continue to work with partners in MPFT (Midlands Partnership NHS Foundation Trust) to
improve outcomes for individuals.

16. Adult Safeguarding Team

The team has a countywide remit to explore safeguarding concerns. The team explores all
concerns on daily basis undertaking same day visits when required. The team has
experienced an increase in demand however the team have been able to manage this with
support from both First Point of contact and Community Social Work teams.

In addition to the direct work with residents our team holds strategic responsibility as a key
partner for Shropshire Safeguarding Community Partnership (SSCP) to prevent and tackle
Child and Adult abuse in Shropshire.

17.Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS)

The volume of requests remains a challenge to the service. Numbers have risen over the
years from 1857 in 2019/20 to 2516 in 2022/23. Shropshire referrals are higher than the
national average however in line with West Midlands figures. Work is underway with

acute trust colleagues to ensure appropriateness of hospital referrals. An action plan is in
place to address the waiting lists and will be an area of focus this year.

The Liberty Protection Safeguards (LPS) has been postponed indefinitely by central
government however work is underway with regional partners to reduce system challenges
to assist with meeting a higher proportion of referrals.

18.Four Rivers Nursing Home

Four Rivers is the only nursing home run by Shropshire Council. Their last CQC (Care Quality
Commission) inspection in April 2019 rated the home as good in all five of the assessment

Page 254
| Contact: Tanya Miles and Rachel Robinson i 10 |




Council 21 March 2024: Annual Report of the Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care, Public Health & Communities 2022-23 |

areas and a recent CQC desk top review in 2023 did not identify any concerns. Four Rivers
are now utilising an electronic care planning system, and this has improved monitoring and
recording processes in the home.

There has been continued development with using IT for several tasks from food ordering,
medication monitoring, recording and ordering and case records. There are now two deputy
managers to support Four Rivers, following analysis of tasks, roles and business need.
Apprenticeships are being introduced to encourage the recruitment and retention of staff. The
home also has difficulties recruiting nurses so we are exploring how we can demonstrate a
clear career path of development.

19.Making it Real (MiR)

Shropshire’s Making it Real board is made up of Experts by Experience (EbE), practitioners,
council officers, managers and representatives of voluntary organisations. It uses the
principles of the Making it Real framework to ensure that people who are Experts by
Experience are at the centre of the design and delivery of care and support. This can be
either at a personal and individual level or working together on developing policies and
strategies.

The board strongly supports the principle of including EbE and their families as equal partners
in the planning, design, development, and evaluation from the outset and throughout the life
of all adult social care services.

EbE, their families and the local community should be involved at the earliest and all stages
of service development journey as equal partners. They are the experts in knowing what
support and services are needed to ensure individuals and families can live full and
independent lives in a way that is genuinely “person-centred”.

Locally, MiR continue to work with EbE to coproduce the development and transformation of
ASC. This includes the development of several forward-thinking documents such as a
Renumeration Policy, Co-production Framework and Experts by Experience Guide.
Furthermore, this will be supported into 2024 with the introduction of Coproduction
Champions. The MiR webpages have also been redesigned to ensure they're assessable
and up to date and the Local Account has provided another powerful way of celebrating the
impact that ASC’s broad remit has on people's lives. MiR has also assisted other department
within the council to improve the literature that is communicated to residents, removing jargon
and improving the tone. Making it Real Shropshire has grown its Board membership over the
last 12 months and continues to develop its membership of both EbE and council officers.

20.Day Opportunities

This year has seen an emphasis placed on person centred support that flexibly and creatively
helps people develop their belonging and connections in their chosen communities.

Early in 2023 a wide range of stakeholders came together (guided by the NDTi) to understand
how younger and older adults can best be supported and empowered to reach their full
potential. Discussions involved people who draw on support alongside council run and
independent providers, representatives from health, education, the police, and the voluntary
sector.

Pagp 255

Contact: Tanya Miles and Rachel Robinson 11 |




Council 21 March 2024: Annual Report of the Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care, Public Health & Communities 2022-23 |

Messages shared show that people want to “live a gloriously ordinary life”. Day opportunities
play an important role in understanding people well and responding to strengths, dreams and
needs, while on that journey.

Providing Community based day opportunities in the right place and at the right time helps
individuals find and build relationships and good support in their own communities. Highlights
have included the relationships built with community-based organisations such as OsNosh
(Oswestry) and Shrewsbury Town in the Community. This year we have seen the offer of
weekend and evening events, new activities and a stronger link to young people leaving
school education.

Links with the Healthy Lives project run through Actio (involving PACC (Parent and Carer
Council) and Taking Part) have helped raise access to, and the importance of, ongoing health
checks for members of the learning disability community.

Connections, friendships and opportunities have been communicated through ‘The Rainbow
Times’, a publication that arose during Covid as a way of keeping people in touch. It continues
with input and stories from the learning disability community.

21.Joint Training

The Joint Training team has recently been amalgamated with some officers from the
children's team to form one People’s Directorate training team. The new team are going
through a transformation process to be rebranded and relaunched to support social care
services and wider partners in Shropshire. The changes will ensure that social care provider
services both within and commissioned by the Council can have all their training needs met
to ensure compliance with CQC and Ofsted regulations. Partners such as Police, Health, Fire
and Ambulance will also be able to access training to support their staff. The new training
team will be formally launched early in 2024.

22.Enable (Supported Employment Services)

Enable helps a wide variety of disadvantaged people in Shropshire find paid work, training
and education, as well as providing long term post-employment support to ensure sustainable
outcomes. The service contributes to the prevention and delay of people accessing council
services and benefits.

The team have grown again in the last year, taking on several new contracts. These include
working with clients accessing substance misuse services, clients accessing talking therapies
and supporting with employment and retention and working with any economically inactive
people on a self-referral basis whilst still supporting priority client groups such as those not
in education, employment and training and those aged over 50.

Enable are working on several projects to continue growth and to save more money through
prevention. They are working hard with the SEND (Special Educational Needs and
Disabilities) team to increase travel training which will reduce the council’s transport costs
and are continually bidding for new funding to support more people.

23.Market Engagement and Commissioning

Adult Social Care consulted with Partners in Care (Shropshire, Telford and Wrekin) and
providers regarding the overarching fee uplift for 2022/23. We recognised the significant

Pagp 256

Contact: Tanya Miles and Rachel Robinson 12 |




Council 21 March 2024: Annual Report of the Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care, Public Health & Communities 2022-23 |

challenges faced by the market providing care with rising prices and workforce pressures and
therefore, in order to utilise our limited resources to the greatest effect and support a
sustainable market, the decision was made to uplift domiciliary care rates by 12%, a 7% uplift
to supported living, alongside a 7% increase on standard rates to residential and nursing
homes. The fee review for 2024/25 is currently being reviewed based on affordability,
provider feedback, current pressures and benchmarking activity.

The Council is in the process of undertaking a root and branch review of supported living,
which is detailed later in the document.

A celebration event recognising the contribution of our residential and nursing providers also
took place in November.

Adult Social Care engaged with care home and domiciliary care providers in order to meet
the DHSC (Department of Health and Social Care) requirements for receiving additional
funding, in order for Council’s to move towards paying providers a fair cost of care. The fair
cost of care exercise was undertaken over the summer period and the results published along
with the market sustainability plan in October. The additional funding received from the DHSC
was used towards the increase in provider fees set out above. We are now working through
actions specifically in relation to the care home rates.

Engagement commenced in January with providers and stakeholders in order to identify
issues relating to supporting individuals within their own homes with an ambition of
appropriate support to be available to all across the breadth of Shropshire. We are currently
seeking the views of people receiving care at home, Providers and care workers and
gathering data to inform the future model of home care across the County.

Work is being developed across all ages with additional capacity put in place for Childrens
commissioning; further work is currently underway to focus on children and young peoples
commissioning and those transitioning into adult services to ensure smooth transfer.

The Commissioning Teams continue develop effective joint commissioning. Examples of this
is include joint contracting of our Two Carers in a Car Service, joint brokerage functions on
behalf of health to commission at scale and develop the market collectively. A system wide
Strategic commissioning board with joint commissioning intentions to focus on areas of focus
for joint commissioning.

In Autumn 2023, the Contracts and Compliance Team for Adults and Children’s Social Care
moved from the Resources Directorate to the People Directorate, streamlining processes and
improving efficiency. Further work on roles and responsibilities to develop a comprehensive
quality assurance process will be a key focus for the teams along with additional support for
children's commissioning.

24.Supported Living

The Council continues to maintain an excellent track record of supporting individuals under
65 outside of residential and nursing care settings through its offer of Supported Living.

We currently have over 200 individuals in over 120 properties.

The Council is in the process of undertaking a root and branch review of Supported Living
processes in Shropshire, following a commitment to providers detailed in the 23/24 uplift

Page 257
| Contact: Tanya Miles and Rachel Robinson i 13 |




Council 21 March 2024: Annual Report of the Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care, Public Health & Communities 2022-23 |

position. The root and branch review will explore best practice, benchmarking across other
Local Authorities, process and contracting review alongside a review of existing rates paid
across the sector. Consultation with Providers on the rates was completed Autumn 2023.

Our aim is to support a sustainable and vibrant market across Shropshire that are able to
recruit and retain the best workforce and give the best quality service provision, using different
methods of support such as technology. This is an area of focus and development within the
market as we know we benchmark higher in spend on working age adults than similar local
authorities and an efficiency review forms part of the transformation work.

The Council continues to work closely to develop its overall shared framework, the Flexible
Contracting Arrangements, with Telford and Wrekin Council and are planning joint
engagement events with supported living providers in early 2024.

25.Care Quality Commission (CQC)

CQC have just announced that Shropshire will receive its assurance visit, we are awaiting
confirmation of timescales.

Adult social care had a quality assurance visit which was organised through ADASS with a
team on site on the 30 and 31 March. A self evaluation was prepared in advanced against
the draft framework which focusses on 4 domains; assessments will focus on how local
authorities discharge their duties under Part 1 of The Care Act (2014). The 4 themes include:

- 1. How local authorities work with people
- 2. How local authorities provide support
- 3. How local authorities ensure safety within the system

- 4. Leadership

LAs will be rated; Outstanding, Good, Requires Improvement or Inadequate.

The teams have been working through improvements including a clear prevention strategy,
improving data and information dashboards, monitoring and reporting impact through case
studies, feedback as well as performance such as waiting lists which was described above.
Further actions are in place to prepare for its assurance visit. We are attending regional
meetings and have recruited to a role to support the co-ordination of the CQC preparations.

PUBLIC HEALTH

26.Public Health and Good Health and Wellbeing is a shared
responsibility

This section of the report provides an overview of the context and delivery of public health
outcomes in Shropshire. It summarises Public Health’s key health and wellbeing priorities
and the work over the past 12 months.

Public Health is “The science and art of promoting and protecting health and well-being,
preventing ill-health and prolonging life through the organised efforts of society”. Public
Health addresses the health of the population. Importantly, Public Health focuses on

Page 258
| Contact: Tanya Miles and Rachel Robinson i 14 |




Council 21 March 2024: Annual Report of the Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care, Public Health & Communities 2022-23 |

preventing illness and promoting health to reduce the need for hospital or long-term care. It
is about good health and wellbeing in our communities and tackling inequalities in health and
care outcomes. The Faculty of Public Health defines nine key areas of Public Health practice:

. Surveillance and assessment of the population’s health and wellbeing.

. Assessing the evidence of effectiveness of health and healthcare interventions.
. Policy and strategy development and implementation.

. Strategic leadership and collaborative working for health.

. Health improvement

. Public Health Intelligence.

. Health and Social Service quality.

. Health protection

. Academic Public Health.

© 0O NO OGP, WN -

In local authorities, public health’s functions focus mainly on areas 1 to 8 with support from
partners and joint working to deliver these functions. These are prioritised according needs
and resources within each local area.

Many factors can have either a positive or a negative effect on a person's health. These
include our age, family history, friends, our lifestyle choices, income, housing conditions,
access to services and education; little as 10% of our health and wellbeing is linked to
access to healthcare. Therefore, to improve health outcomes, action is required not just at
the individual level but also in communities and through the work and living environment.

27.Public Health Outcomes/Priorities

A comprehensive list of Public Health Outcomes is available on Public Health England’s
Fingertips website (https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/). This is monitored on a routine basis with
key indicators being included in The Shropshire Plan, Director of Public Health  Annual
Report, Integrated Care Strategy and Health and Wellbeing Strategy; a directorate dashboard
is also currently being built containing high level outcomes as listed below alongside more
detailed service KPlIs.

Overall, health and wellbeing in Shropshire is above the national average. Healthy life
expectancy for females in Shropshire remains significantly better than England for females
in Shropshire (67.1 years; England 63.9years) and similar for males (Shropshire 62.8 years
and England 63.1 years). However, there are several outcomes where, overall Shropshire
continues to underperform as a County. Furthermore, significant inequalities remain across
the County. This requires local, targeted response and delivery based on best practice. The
table below illustrates this trend.

Pagp 259

Contact: Tanya Miles and Rachel Robinson 15 |



https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/
https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiMTcwZTY1MWYtYmM1Mi00M2JhLWIwNTctOTE3NjJiYWIwZjMxIiwidCI6ImI2YzEzMDExLTM3MmQtNDM4Yi1iYzgyLTY3ZTRjNzk2NmU4OSIsImMiOjh9
https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/committee-services/documents/s36557/10b.%20January%202024%20HWBB%20DPH%20Annual%20Report%20-%20full%20report.pdf

Council 21 March 2024: Annual Report of the Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care, Public Health & Communities 2022-23 |

. Infant mortality rate (4.7 per 1,000)

. 0000 . Unintentional/deliberate injuries in 0-4s admissions (87.1 per 10,000 )
* a qm\!milm\tms . Emergency admissions aged 0-4 (180.8 per 100,000)
62.8 years»HEalthy 67.1 years Healthy 12,0%mothers 80,4%New birth 74.8%baby's first childhood . Early preventable mortality (132.4 per 100,000)
Life expectancy at smoking at time of  visits within 14 days fed nraastmllk immunisations DEAP,
birth (Male, 18/20) delivery (21/22) 21/22) PV, Hl;’f;{f"‘"""“

. Early preventable mortality from CVD (25.8 per 100,000)

ufe expec[ancyat
2238 ARl miim
m m - . Early preventable mortality from cancer (47.3 per 100,000)
. Early preventable mortality from respiratory disease (9.8 per 100,000)

104 per 10,000 14.4%of children in M ofc “lﬂ'fﬂ 9.5%16-175 not 57.5%achieving a 33.1%yea
mld:rzeu%'; care lowi n:ome Fam lies ;‘ deehsd unzmpl{)ymenr. 4 gofd Leveltak_Z overwei qht or ohese
education o levelopment a 5 5
end training (2021) 2.5 years (21/22) . Early preventable mortality from liver disease (16.6 per 100,000)

o
I:IHI:I ¢ S
Early mortality in people with SMI (89.0 per 100,000)
’ ‘ - I . Excess mortality in people with SMIs (477%)
76.2%in adults 36.T%aged 16+ 67.4%Adults 13.2%Adults 27.9%Adults 71 4%Dh ically

employment (21/22) eat(\?%‘gzﬂ) day over@glrzw%fzrz?nese smoking 18+ (2021) completing fzcuozr!lo)l R il s < (21/22) . Suicide rate (11.6 per 100,000)
'%\ . Emergency hospital admissions for  self harm (128.1 per 100,000}
el
| . Alcohol related hospital admissions (females 65+, 486 per 100,000)
11
17.3%adults 23.0%receiving NS 19.7%reporting 14.4%Adults with 0.78%Adults with 71.4%Diabetes Alcohol related hospital admissions (513 per 100,000
vepoll(llnﬂlz%lielmess health check atw MSK problem (2022) depression (QOF SMI (QOF 21/22) diagnostic rate -

zoFs) sstimits

L
=]
@
-4
o
>
@
®
13
o
B
L)
E
o
£
=
o
2
o
B
=
w
-3
o
=
7]
o
£
5
a
=
o
o
w
=
=
o
o
o

years, |a/192 /23) 21/22)
(aged 17+) " " .
— . Smoking attributable mortality (173.7 pe 100,000)
Go2
O‘ o O . Smoking attributable hospital admissions (1475.0 per 100,000)
L5 <
. Dementia diagnosis rate aged 65+ ( 60.1%)
50.3%Early cancer 60.6%Flu 76.6% Cervical 58.5%breast cancer 73.9%B owel
diagnasis Sall ages, va :.cma tmns of at screening coverage screening covera Screening coverage
2020) 2321”25 (50-64yTs, S022)" (503-70ys, Hi e (60-74yrs, 2022) . Hip fractures aged 65+ (353 per 100,00)

Considering all the information above, national and local policy drivers, Public Health focuses
on several outcomes in its work outlined in this report; a continued focus on smoking including
smoking in pregnancy, alcohol, mental health including excess mortality from serious mental
illness and diabetes. Additional focus will be on work to monitor road traffic accidents (RTAs),
cancer screening coverage and children and young people's health including school
readiness. Targeted work will also be undertaken to understand inequalities in local areas
and action required to tackle those outcomes.

Details of the public health offer in Shropshire are given below, grouped into the following
themes.

e Public Health Intelligence

e Partnerships & Communities
e Healthy Population

¢ Inclusion Health

¢ Inequalities

e Healthcare Public Health

Health protection will be covered under the Annual Report of the Portfolio Holder for Planning
and Regulatory Service.

Pagp 260

Contact: Tanya Miles and Rachel Robinson 16 |




Council 21 March 2024: Annual Report of the Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care, Public Health & Communities 2022-23

28.PUBLIC HEALTH INTELLIGENCE

There are two Statutory duties in relation to Public Health Intelligence produce an annual
report and prepare the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) in addition to the
requirements to support the evidence base for commissioning, population health
management (NHS) and monitoring of outcomes.

JSNA

Local authorities and health have equal and joint duties to prepare JSNAs and Joint Health
and Wellbeing Strategies, through the health and wellbeing board. The JSNA seeks to
identify current and future health and wellbeing needs in the local population and identify
strategic priorities to inform commissioning of services based on those needs. In practice, in
Shropshire, these duties are led by Public Health to deliver on behalf of the Health and
Wellbeing Board and are available here.

Since 2019, Shropshire introduced a comprehensive programme to meet these duties and

supported evidence-based commissioning and work to tackle inequalities. This was paused
temporarily during COVID. It is managed as three separate workstreams:

e Placed-based JSNA: Supporting the development of the integration and
transformation work as part of the Shropshire Plan. A Place Based Profile is
developed followed by an action plan, which is put together and supported by local
stakeholders and takes account of local inequalities including rural factors. The aim is
to have all 18 Place Plan JSNAs completed by end of summer 2024.

e Web-based JSNA: Shropshire’s suite of web-based needs assessments present key
data for Shropshire’s population, its communities, and the wider determinants of
health, following a life-course approach, new datasets and dashboards continue to be
developed.

e Thematic JSNAs: Including the Statutory pharmaceutical needs assessment 2022/23
which describes the current pharmaceutical services in the county, systematically
identifies gaps, unmet need, and in consultation with stakeholders made
recommendations on future development. Currently the team are leading a
comprehensive Children and Young’s People’s Needs Assessment and recently
published the Drug and Alcohol Needs Assessment.

Annual Report

Directors of Public Health have a statutory requirement to write an annual report on the health
of their population. It describes the health of the population, is evidence based and is a way
of informing local people about the health of their community. It also provides necessary
information for decision makers in local health services, authorities and communities on
health gaps and priorities that need to be addressed. The reports also include an update of
progress against recommendations from previous reports and areas for priority actions.
Three reports have been published since 2019 which can be found here.

Pagp 261

Contact: Tanya Miles and Rachel Robinson 17 |



https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/public-health/joint-strategic-needs-assessment-jsna/
https://next.shropshire.gov.uk/public-health/what-we-do/the-public-health-annual-report/

Council 21 March 2024: Annual Report of the Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care, Public Health & Communities 2022-23

Evidence Based Decision Making

In addition, the directorate leads the population health management agenda for STW ICS as
part of its core offer to the STW ICS. Recognising good decision making is based on a good
strong evidence base and understanding of the population needs, the team have a focus on
improving integration across health and social care and making better use of health and social
care intelligence and evidence to drive and underpin decision making. This will include the
use of predictive analytics to allow services to be targeted to need and help to reduce
inequalities in Shropshire.

29.PARTNERSHIPS & COMMUNITIES

Health & Wellbeing Board (including Healthy Lives Steering Group)

The Shropshire Health and Wellbeing Board acts to ensure that key leaders from the health
and care system work together to improve the health and wellbeing of Shropshire residents.
The Board is now co-chaired by the Portfolio Holder and the accountable officer for the ICS
with a revised format which is aligned to scrutiny to maximise our outcomes. Board members
collaborate to understand their local community’s needs, agree priorities and work together
to plan how best to deliver services. The board meets five times a year and works to deliver
the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy published in 2022.

The vision is for Shropshire people to be healthy and fulfilled. The aims are:

o To improve the population’s health and wellbeing

o To reduce health inequalities that can cause unfair and avoidable differences in people’s
health

o To help as many people as possible live long, happy and productive lives by promoting
health and wellbeing at all stages of life

o To ensure that prevention is at the heart of improving health and wellbeing, and to
reduce ill health and the associated demand on health and care services

The Healthy Lives Steering Group brings together partners from across the system and
enables sharing of current workstreams and relationships to be built to coordinate delivery.
This has included warmer homes through the Marches Energy Agency, enabling links to train
a wide range of professionals on what can be offered to families, as well as highlighting issues
that may contribute to poor outcomes for children. Other areas of collaboration have included
youth vaping, social prescribing, oral health, food banks and tier 3 weight management.

Shropshire Integrated Place Partnership

The purpose of Shropshire Integrated Place Partnership (ShIPP) is Shropshire’s Place
Partnership Board. Established in March 2021, it is a partnership with shared collaborative
leadership and responsibility, enabled by the Health and Wellbeing Board and the ICS
governance and decision-making processes. Clinical/care leadership is central to the
partnership, to ensure that services provide the best quality evidence-based care and support
for our people, improving outcomes and reducing health inequalities aligned to delivery of
outcomes in the HWBB and ICP Strategies. It is expected that through the programmes of

Pagp 262

Contact: Tanya Miles and Rachel Robinson 18 |



https://shropshire.gov.uk/committee-services/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=217
https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/media/22492/2022-27-hwbb-strategy.pdf

Council 21 March 2024: Annual Report of the Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care, Public Health & Communities 2022-23 |

ShIPP routine involvement and coproduction with local people and our workforce is prioritised
so that our residents and staff can feed ideas and information to inform and influence system
strategy and priority development.

Key successes for ShIPP include driving the Personalised Care (Person Centred) approach
for Shropshire, including Social Prescribing & Health Coaching, Creative Health &
Community Led approaches for health improvement, community led approaches for
improving outcomes for SEND, action on falls prevention and embedding trauma informed
approaches. Other activities and outcomes are documented through this report. The
Strategic Plan for 2023/24 includes delivering an all-age Local Care Programme across
communities in Shropshire and improving access to health, care and wellbeing services and
community support.

Prevention Framework & One Shropshire

To support our population to lead healthier lives public health have led the development of a
prevention framework, drafted during 2023. This is an ambitious approach to prevention at
scale across the life course, it builds on the effective work already established across the
County and the Integrated Care System, recognising that all key partners, communities, and
individuals have a role in improving the quality of lives and health of our population. The draft
framework has been developed through working with system partners. It highlights the needs
of our communities (our case for change), our vision and our plans to embed prevention
activity across all our services as a system; through a holistic community offer that supports
people to take charge of their own health and wellbeing. It is recognised that the Framework
is, and will be a, living document.

Community Health and Wellbeing Hubs

Our work on the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment Place Plan areas demonstrates the
variation in outcomes across local areas and variation in assets within each area, levels of
need and service provision. It is important to therefore take a place-based approach to
delivery of services to tackle inequalities and focus on prevention and early intervention.
Through the work programme focused on Integration and the approach to integration), we
have been able to articulate our person-centred approach for Neighbourhood working, that
includes the development of community and family hubs rooted within local communities.
These hubs will be places where people can access a local venue where they can get help
to navigate the health, care and community system. The hubs will also be enhanced by the
work to develop integrated practitioner teams, with consultation panels operational to discuss
the needs of children and young people and families where support from a multi-disciplinary
perspective would be helpful. The work is being developed on a rolling programme based on
need. The hubs model will be finalised during early 2024 and will build on the delivery of
Early Help Family Hubs moving towards an all-age approach.

Women’s Health Hubs

A new national initiative to develop Women'’s Health Hubs with the expectation that there will
be at least one hub in every ICB area. This is currently being explored with Telford & Wrekin
Council, ICS, and primary care to identify opportunities and options incorporating existing
models of care supported by the team.

Pagp 263

Contact: Tanya Miles and Rachel Robinson 19 |



https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/committee-services/documents/s36064/November%202023%20HWBB%20Prevention%20Framework%20Appendix%20A%20Prevention%20Matters.pdf
https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/committee-services/documents/s36064/November%202023%20HWBB%20Prevention%20Framework%20Appendix%20A%20Prevention%20Matters.pdf
https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/committee-services/documents/s36064/November%202023%20HWBB%20Prevention%20Framework%20Appendix%20A%20Prevention%20Matters.pdf

Council 21 March 2024: Annual Report of the Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care, Public Health & Communities 2022-23 |

Healthy Lives Social Prescribing Service

In Shropshire, our Healthy Lives Team delivers Health checks and Social Prescribing. Social
prescribing uses a person centred, preventative approach by intervening early, before
problems start to escalate, or to support people alongside other services. In Shropshire,
people referred have the space to talk one to one with a trained Social Prescribing Advisor
and come up with a plan of action together, to help resolve health and wellbeing concerns
and help put the person back in charge of their life, shown here. In 2022/23 there were 3343
referrals to adults Social Prescribing, and in 2023/24 (April to September) there have been
1,708 referrals so far. This is a service that is maintaining a high level of support for people
and gathers excellent satisfaction reports from people who have been supported.

In addition to an adult social prescribing, Shropshire now offers a Children and Young
People’s Social Prescribing which is offered across Shropshire for those aged 11 (in school
year 7) and above. The service would usually meet children and young people at the school
they attend or maybe in a community venue or at home. Again, it is a non-medical approach
to helping children and young people feel better and find out what matters to you. If you would
like to feel happier, make friends where you live, reduce anxiety, improve mood, try something
new or get fitter. In 2022-23 there were 249 referrals to the Children and Young People’s
Social prescribing, and in 2023-24 (April to September) there have been 254 referrals so far.
This service has seen a rapid increase over the past year and achieves high satisfaction
feedback from young people in the county.

Community Outreach Wellbeing Team

This team focusses on 4 key areas, health promotion, health protection, place based Joint
Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) and supporting emergency support (e.g. Flooding).
The team have supported the development of the Place Based JSNAs (Joint Strategic Needs
Assessment), including a key element of the Place Based JSNA is to develop action plans to
address key issues in local communities. The team has also started delivering mini-health
checks in local communities, including the farming community and with other marginalised
groups. The Team is working with other local health and community organisations across
Shropshire to deliver preventative blood pressure checks in local communities. This includes
working with teams of Blood Pressure (BP) Champion volunteers who are connecting with
people in local areas to offer free blood pressure checks. By providing BP checks at locations
that are convenient to local people, such as Livestock Markets, food banks, coffee mornings
and veterans’ groups, the programme hopes to prevent complications associated with high
blood pressure in the population. The work with farming communities works across our
Animal Health and Mental Health teams, to deliver improved health and mental health
outcomes. Additionally, the team works with the Environment Agency and our Emergency
Planning team to support during flooding events and other emergency situations to support
communities.

30.HEALTHY POPULATION

The public health team leads a number of health improvement functions and public health
mandated services:

Best Start for Life Programme
In line with the national vision to promote every child to have the Best Start for Life, with
evidence identifying the first 1001 days of a child’s life as critically important to outcomes in

Pagp 264

Contact: Tanya Miles and Rachel Robinson 20 |



https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/11/model-social-prescribing.jpg
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/605c5e61d3bf7f2f0d94183a/The_best_start_for_life_a_vision_for_the_1_001_critical_days.pdf

Council 21 March 2024: Annual Report of the Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care, Public Health & Communities 2022-23 |

later life. During 2023 a comprehensive Best Start for life programme was formed which
focuses on laying the best foundations for cognitive, emotional, and physical development,
this will continue into 2024. The work to date includes a systematic review of the evidence,
work to publish the best start in life offers to parents, carers and practitioners to increase
awareness of the support available, development of a new universal parent course to be
delivered perinatally to first time parents, developments to the early years speech language
and communication offers through new interventions such as the Talkboost programme,
coproduction of the programme with parents and carers, and enhancements to data collection
and reporting so we can track outcomes. This is also part of the Council’s Childrens
transformation programme.

Healthy Child Programme

Public Health is responsible for ensuring the provision of the Healthy Child Programme
including the weighing and measuring of children, through the commissioning of the Public
Health Nursing Service (PHNS), delivered by Shropshire Community Health NHS Trust.
PHNS includes health visiting, school nursing and family nurse partnership. The Healthy
Child Programme mandated contacts have continued to be delivered through the Public
Health Nursing service (PHNS), and there has been a significant increase in uptake in all
contacts post-pandemic. The service is continuing to develop its offer to families and the
following are examples of work undertaken during the reporting period: a school readiness
leaflet has been produced, a focus on Healthy Start- to encourage the uptake of healthy start
vitamin and food vouchers has been prioritised, along with work to promote Measles, mumps
and rubella vaccination uptake for families, public and professionals. There has also been a
focus this year on safer sleeping due to concerns locally and nationally over sudden infant
deaths. In addition, the service supported a call to action to safeguard our youngest residents
aged 0—4-year-olds and this led to piloting a drop-in clinic at Sunflower house. The team are
also providing a response to Entitled Persons at Nescliffe through weekly clinics. Ensuring
the strengthened resilience of the PHNS to respond has been achieved through
implementation of its workforce development plan which included the service focusing on the
training of new workforce through a grow your own model. Key measures are monitored at
regular contracting meetings and routinely reported to the Health and Wellbeing Board and
ICS Quality Committee.

Healthier Weight Strategy

Supporting our population to achieve a healthier weight and reducing rates of overweight and
obesity is a H&WBB (Health and Well Being Board) and ICS priority for Shropshire. Public
Health have led the development of a Healthier Weight Strategy for Shropshire, which was
endorsed by the H&WBB at its November 2023 meeting and supported by cabinet. Actions
will be monitored going forward.

NHS Health-checks

Public Health have the responsibility for commissioning the mandated NHS Health Check
programme which offers an opportunity to identify many of the hidden health risks helping
prevent heart attacks, stroke, diabetes, kidney disease and vascular dementia. In Shropshire
the service is delivered through general practice, supported by the Healthy Lives delivery
team. Covid-19 had a profound and continued impact on the total number of people receiving
their health check. Pre-Pandemic 2,000 checks were being delivered each quarter. During
2022-23 we have seen a recovery with approximately 1,100 checks achieved in Q2 of
2023. Work is also underway with general practice and Primary Care Networks (PCN’s) to

Pagp 265

Contact: Tanya Miles and Rachel Robinson 21 |



https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/media/23895/school-readiness.pdf
https://www.healthystart.nhs.uk/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/measles-resources-for-local-government
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/measles-resources-for-local-government

Council 21 March 2024: Annual Report of the Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care, Public Health & Communities 2022-23 |

support areas yet unable to return to pre pandemic levels, and efforts are continuing to focus
on those most at risk in our communities.

Smoking cessation

Smoking remains the leading cause of preventable illness and death, and reducing smoking
rates in Shropshire remains a priority for the public health team. Public Health are members
of the ICS Tobacco Dependency Treatment pathway Steering Group which is focused on
stop smoking provision in acute settings, mental health in-patients and pregnant women
working with midwifery. In addition, the Shropshire Public Heath team deliver the mental
health in-patient offer for community step down via ours Healthy Lives team (or via the
national community smoking cessation pharmacy scheme if preferred). A new webpage is
available under Healthy Shropshire focusing on Stopping Smoking that describes the offer to
Shropshire residents to aid them to stop smoking available here: Stopping smoking |
Shropshire Council

During 2024/25 Shropshire will receive an allocation of national funding to support further
enhancements to the smoking cessation offer. Work is currently underway to develop an
enhanced delivery plan and further communications will be issued regarding this in due
course.

Youth Vaping

A Task and Finish group has been established to improve local understanding and
intelligence of underage (youth) vaping in Shropshire and to develop clear comms for
professionals, practitioners, parents and carers and young people. A new Youth Vaping
schools lesson programme has been designed in partnership between the Task & Finish
group and the Public Health Nurse team that promotes conversation in the classroom and for
students to consider their own attitudes and beliefs about vaping and vaping harms. The
Director of Public Health, jointly with the Director of Children’s Services and the Chief Medical
Officer of the ICB published a position statement on vaping and young people which
summarises the current evidence and understanding of risk associated with young people
and vaping. It promotes a message that vaping is not for children and the safest, healthiest
option is not to vape or smoke. The statement is available from the following link: shropshire-
position-statement-on-underage-vaping.pdf

31.INCLUSION HEALTH

Public Mental Health and Mental Health Prevention

Mental health is a key area of improvement focus for Shropshire. The vision of the Shropshire
Public Mental Health offer is for every resident in Shropshire to have the best mental health
they can at every stage of their life to thrive, not just survive. To support this vision, the
Healthy Shropshire webpage was updated with a dedicated Mental health and wellbeing site
providing quick links and information for a range of support. A multi-agency programme
focused on improving the health outcomes of the Shropshire farming community was
launched in 2023, providing health checks to those in attendance of livestock markets.

Shropshire Council has invested one off funding and grants in the online TogetherAll mental
wellbeing platform which provides 24/7 free, confidential access to peer support and
resources to express feelings, managed round the clock by trained professionals. The
Shropshire Bereavement Co-ordinated offer was launched in 2020 to address concerns from
the pandemic on the impact of unexpected death and disruption to usual grieving processes

Page 266
| Contact: Tanya Miles and Rachel Robinson i 22 |



https://next.shropshire.gov.uk/public-health/healthy-shropshire/stopping-smoking/
https://next.shropshire.gov.uk/public-health/healthy-shropshire/stopping-smoking/
https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/media/26061/shropshire-position-statement-on-underage-vaping.pdf
https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/media/26061/shropshire-position-statement-on-underage-vaping.pdf

Council 21 March 2024: Annual Report of the Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care, Public Health & Communities 2022-23 |

due to lockdowns. During this time, it has been identified there have been many of our
residents who have complex bereavement, grief and loss needs which have not previously
been addressed and who were not sure where to access support. Public Health continue to
support and promote programmes such as Future in Mind and Mental Health in Schools
Teams. Public Health is also developing our programme in support of local delivery of the
Prevention Concordat for Better Mental Health.

Suicide Prevention

A new Shropshire Suicide Prevention Strategy was published in September covering period
2023 to 2026. The focus of the strategy is to expand beyond the universal offers from the
previous Strategy and explore with system partners how to target support to higher risk
cohorts for suicide to ensure the most appropriate messages, support and impact can be
connected. The Action Plan is currently being refreshed on how the above will be delivered
with new workstreams created to invite those who already work with these cohorts to advise
most appropriate approaches or to connect with existing programmes of work.

Tackling Drugs and Alcohol

Public Health services are responsible for ensuring the provision of drug and alcohol
treatment and recovery services for their population. In Shropshire, core substance misuse
treatment service delivery in Shropshire is delivered by a single third sector treatment
provider, known as With You (WY). WY also deliver appropriate treatment services to children
and young people. Shropshire Council also commissions a range of both inpatient
detoxification services and residential rehabilitation placements for those assessed as
suitable and requiring these interventions and has contracts with some GPs and pharmacies
as part of its recovery services. This is routinely reported to the Health and Wellbeing Board
and Shropshire Community Safeguarding Partnership.

During 2022 public health lead a bid for external funding to provide enhanced services for
people who use drugs who are homeless or at risk of homelessness. £1.4m was awarded to
the Council and a multi-disciplinary team established, known as RESET. The team is made
up of staff from Shropshire Council, With You, Midlands Partnership Foundation University
Trust, Shropshire Domestic Abuse Service, the Shrewsbury Ark, and Intuitive Thinking
Skills. The programme provides opportunities to improve access into treatment services for
rough sleepers which otherwise can often be complicated by changes in their personal
circumstances.

Public Health have also led the production of a new partnership action plan to deliver the
aspirations of the national drugs strategy. This plan is focused on breaking drug supply,
improving drug and alcohol treatment and recovery services, and ensuring a generational
shift in demand for drugs.

32.INEQUALITIES

Health in All Policies

Public Health continues to work across with colleagues across the Council to embed heath
in all policies. We do this through a screening tool, Equality Social Inclusion and Health
Impact Assessment (ESHIA), the tool is used by teams to screen their own
policies/strategies. Public Health have worked extensively with Place colleagues in specific
areas including Economic Development, Severn Water Management and UK Shared
Prosperity Fund. Public Health are currently supporting planning in the development of

Page 267
| Contact: Tanya Miles and Rachel Robinson i 23 |




Council 21 March 2024: Annual Report of the Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care, Public Health & Communities 2022-23 |

Healthy Place through health impact assessment in the planning process. This approach is
embedded in the Local Development Plan.

Shropshire Inequalities Plan

Health inequalities are defined as avoidable, unfair, and systematic differences in health
between different population groups. At a high-level, health inequalities are measured by
differences in life expectancy and healthy life expectancy between different population
groups. Mortality rates and healthy life expectancy reflect a social gradient where people
living in more deprived areas live shorter lives. Action to reduce health inequalities requires
action to improve outcomes across all the factors that influence our health, including wider
determinants of health such as education, employment, income, and housing. Only around
10% of our health is impacted by the healthcare we receive. The development of the
Shropshire Inequalities Plan has been led by Public Health to address avoidable differences
in outcomes for our population to reduce the inequalities that exist. Further information on the
plan is available at the following link: shropshire-inequalities-plan-executive-
summary.pdf This will be routinely monitored and reported to the Health and Wellbeing
Board and ICB Inequalities and Prevention Group.

Shaping Places Programme

Shaping Places for Healthier Lives is an externally funded programme of work by the Local
Government Association, in partnership with the Health Foundation, seeking to promote
access to affordable and nutritious food, to help Shropshire residents live a healthy life. There
are 4 workstreams that are being progressed:

1. Communities and Organisations working together. Over the last 12 months, we have
been working in partnership with the Hardship and Poverty Group, Social Task Force,
Cost of Living Communications Group, Voluntary and Community Sector Assembly,
Food Partnership Advisory Group and Community Connectors.

2. Maximising Income including the successful development and ongoing support of a
pilot training scheme in SW Shropshire for the Citizens Advice Bureau First Aiders
(FPOC (First Point of Contact)).

3. Re-framing food insecurity. We have been working with the Design Council on
improved visuals and communications to highlight the experience of residents
experiencing food insecurity and reduce any stigma when seeking support.

4. Co-producing solutions which aim to reduce food insecurity: We have developed a
town collaboration group in Church Stretton, to discuss and take action on the issue
of food insecurity. This group comprises the local foodbank, the town mayor, town
councillors, healthy lives advisor, the local Rotary Club and community members

Cost of Living Crisis

Shropshire’s Cost of Living Social Taskforce supported by Public Health, has brought
together a wide range of organisations from across the public, community, and voluntary
sector, as well as business representatives to create a joint local response to the cost-of-
living crisis. The taskforce has been meeting regularly since March 2022, building on the
partnerships established and learnings gained in response to COVID. Membership of the
Taskforce and Sub-groups (Hardship and Poverty Group and Cost of Living Comms) group
incorporates representatives from over 20 organisations including Shropshire Council,
Citizen’s Advice Shropshire, Age UK Shropshire Telford and Wrekin, Marches Energy
Agency, Community Resource, Shropshire Food Poverty Alliance, Shropshire Mental Health

Pagp 268

Contact: Tanya Miles and Rachel Robinson

24 |



https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/media/25751/shropshire-inequalities-plan-executive-summary.pdf
https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/media/25751/shropshire-inequalities-plan-executive-summary.pdf

Council 21 March 2024: Annual Report of the Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care, Public Health & Communities 2022-23 |

Support, Shropshire Voluntary and Community Sector Assembly, DWP (Department for Work
and Pensions), Shropshire Association of Local Councils and local NHS trusts.

33. HEALTHCARE PUBLIC HEALTH

Specialist Public Health Advice to Integrated Care Board

Public Health services have a mandated requirement to provide specialist public health
advice to Integrated Care Boards, to support them with the planning procuring and monitoring
of health services. This requirement is achieved through the core public health offer. This
offer covers specialist public health advice regarding intelligence and insight, evidence
reviews of best practice, service and pathways evaluation and redesign and strategy
development amongst others. During 2023/24 this work has continued including Public
Health advocacy at system strategy and transformation boards (including: Integrated Care
Partnership, Local Maternity & Neonatal System, Cancer Strategy Board, Inequalities &
Prevention Board, Mental Health Boards, CVD Prevention etc) and providing support,
guidance and input for reviewing applications as part of the NHS Shropshire, Telford & Wrekin
Individual Funding Request panels for consideration of exceptional clinical circumstances.

CVD (cardiovascular disease) Prevention

High blood pressure affects almost one in three adults in the UK, and many are unaware that
they have it as there are often no symptoms. Shropshire, Telford & Wrekin’s Hypertension
Case-finding Pilot is a collaborative 12-month pilot funded through Health Innovation West
Midlands. It aims to increase the detection of hypertension of targeted groups (20% most
deprived areas, ethnic minority groups and those living in rural areas), narrow the diagnosis
gap between the target groups and the general population, increase the proportion of patients
being appropriately treated for high blood pressure, reduce heart attacks and strokes, and
increase a network of CVD champions to raise community awareness.

Child Mortality

A report to the September 2023 ICB showed an overall increase in numbers of deaths across
all perinatal, neonatal and child mortality in 2021/22 and 2022/23, public health is working
with ICS colleagues to monitor 2023/34 closely. We recognise that every child's death is a
tragedy and therefore more detailed work is being undertaken to review local evidence and
actions. While there are already lots of activity in place across STW to address these issues,
following additional investigation and actions have been agreed.

Oral Health

Shropshire Telford and Wrekin oral health network meet quarterly to discuss oral health
improvement generally as well as the performance of the commissioned oral health
improvement programmes, ensure that programme delivery is as effective as
possible. Public Health supports this network which is led by the NHS dental team including
a Dental Consultant in Public Health based with NHS England. There are issues with levels
of hospital admissions for extractions. The team support action to improve uptake of dental
health survey and ongoing monitoring of all and improvement plans as required.

Pagp 269

Contact: Tanya Miles and Rachel Robinson 25 |




Council 21 March 2024: Annual Report of the Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care, Public Health & Communities 2022-23

34. Conclusions

This report has presented the work undertaken by adult social care and public health to meet
the statutory and mandated functions of the local authority for these services. It demonstrates
the range of work undertaken to provide care and support for our vulnerable residents and
communities and outlines the model of delivery for Public Health across Shropshire.

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does
not include items containing exempt or confidential information)

Local Member: All Members

Appendices [Please list the titles of Appendices]

None

Pagp 270

Contact: Tanya Miles and Rachel Robinson 26 |




Agenda Item 13

| Council 21 March 2024 — Annual Report—Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2022/23 |

¥a¥ Shropshire

Committee and Date ltem

Council Council
21 March 2024

Public

°Q9 &S )
w Healthy Healthy
Economy Organisation

Healthy
Environment

Healthy
People

Annual Report — Health and Adult Social Care
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2022/23

Responsible Rachel Robinson
Officer:
email: rachel.robinson@shropshire.gov.uk Tel: 01743 25

Cabinet Member Gwilym Butler
(Portfolio Holder):

[ Scrutiny Chair: | Steve Charmley

1. Synopsis

Health and Adult Social Care Committee looked at a range of key topics in 2022/23
which are summarised inthis paper.

2. Executive Summary

The Shropshire Plan includes ‘Healthy Organisation’ as a priority outcome and the
Strategic Objective that “We will ensure councillors are supported to advocate for their
constituents but to also be ambassadors for the council”.

This report shares the annual statement for 2022/23 for the Health and Adult Social
Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

3. Recommendations

Members are asked to consider and comment on the 2022/23 annual statement for

Health and Adult Social Care Overview Committee.
Page 271

Contact: Tom Doddson 01743258518 1



mailto:rachel.robinson@shropshire.gov.uk

Council 21 March 2024 — Annual Report—Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2022/23

Report

4. Risk Assessmentand Opportunities Appraisal

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

45

Effective Overview and Scrutiny (O&S) is a feature of the Council’s governance

arrangements, particularly where the Council is operating executive arrangements.

There are arange factors that could result inrisks to Council of not undertaking

O&S as effectively.

e Failure to challenge and hold decision makers to account.

e Failure to link O&S work to the delivery of the council’s priorities and risk
management — failure to demonstrate added value

¢ Failure to carry out thorough and appropriate research to make evidence-based
recommendations.

e Failure to engage partners and providers.

e Failure to ensure that structures and models of operation are fit for purpose and
match ambition and available resources.

e Failure to ensure that O&S can operate as the voice of communities.

e Failure to draw on member knowledge and experience to inform policy
development.

To mitigate, tolerate or eradicate these risks, enablers for effective scrutiny include:

e Operating in an apolitical manner

e Clarity of vision and purpose

e Overview and Scrutiny support availability, capability and capacity

e Effective engagement and commitment by Members and officers at all levels,
including Cabinet, Opposition Leaders, Scrutiny Chairs and Senior Officers who
play a central role in setting the tone and direction

e Robust work programming and prioritisation of topics with clear objectives and
expected impacts

e Access to and availability of robust data and intelligence

e (Good relationship with partners and providers

Overview and Scrutiny Committees have remits that cover the breadth of the work
of the Council, as well as looking externally including Health Services and provision
through Health Overview and Scrutiny requirements.

Topics for Overview and Scrutiny Committee work programmes are identified based
on a number of different considerations including an understanding of risks to the
Council, employees, people who use services, to service themselves, and to
communities. These may be identified through reviewing performance information
and comparing with others, changes to national and local policies, budget
information, feedback from communities and customers/service users, feedback
from partners/providers, and reports from regulators.

During Overview and Scrutiny work, evidence will be gathered that builds on this
understanding to inform the development of conclusions and evidence-based
recommendations.

Page 272

Contact: Tom Doddson 01743258518 2




Council 21 March 2024 — Annual Report—Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2022/23

5

6

4.6

The use of external peer challenge such as that offered by the Centre for
Governance and Scrutiny provides objective review and feedback about
opportunities to develop the effectiveness and impact of overview and scrutiny. The
Council carries out a regular review of Overview and Scrutiny to collect feedback
from Members and officers on what is going well and where there are opportunities
for continuous improvement.

Financial Implications

5.1

5.2

There are no direct financial implications associated with the annual statements of
the Council’'s Overview and Scrutiny Committees set out in this report.

Effective Overview and Scrutiny produces evidence-based recommendations.
These can be informed by learning from best practice and an understanding of
“‘what works” at other similar local authorities, as well as developing a robust picture
of the situation locally based on data, intelligence and insights. Where adopted
recommendations can help with the efficiency and effectiveness of services that can
be delivered differently, as well as informing the development of current and new
policies.

Climate ChangeAppraisal

6.1  Overview and Scrutiny Committee work programmes directly link to the Shropshire
Plan priorities, including Healthy Environment which is built around climate change
and carbon reduction, and the natural and historic environment.

Background

7.1 The Health and Adult Social Care Overview Committee considered a full range of topics

from its remit, maintaining a view of what was happening in the health and care system
in Shropshire. The Committee carried out activity holding decision makers and the
providers of services to account. As well as making recommendations to inform the
development and delivery of health and care services. The following section provides a
summary of key topics and the work done.

Shrewsbury Health and Wellbeing Hub

7.2

7.3

7.4

Over the year the Committee have reflected the concerns of the community and
maintained a clear focus on the proposals for a Health and Wellbeing Hub in
Shrewsbury from the Shropshire, Telford and Wrekin Intergrated Care Board
(previously Clinical Commissioning Group.) Examining the opportunities and risks of
this model of Primary Care provision.

The Committee reviewed the proposals, rational and development of the project
which involved the Beeches Medical Practice, Belvidere Medical Practice, Claremont
Bank Surgery, Marden Medical Practice, Marysville Medical Practice and South Hermitage
Surgery.

Evidence was presented which laid out that the GP Practices were in a varying
state of condition - most being either no longer fit to deliver modern healthcare
services and/or do not having enough space to meet future demand. It was laid out

that The Hub would offer opportunities to expand the services they can offer in a fit
Page 273

Contact: Tom Doddson 01743258518 3 |




Council 21 March 2024 — Annual Report—Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2022/23

for purpose building, which would offer attractive conditions to retain and recruit, as
well as a viable option that works best for the current workforce.

7.5 Members raised concerns regarding the initial lack of engagement with both the
Council and the public on the proposals. An acknowledgement was made by the
ICB representatives that the initial engagement had not been thorough enough and
that every effort would be made to ensure all parties were consulted throughout the
project. Members were assured by the sharing of an engagement roadmap and the
creation of Stakeholder Reference Group to deliver an engagement exercise to
ensure openness and transparency and that Council representatives were sought to
join the group.

7.6  The Committee raised further concerns about the engagement process as it did not
appear to adequately have included those without transport, frail and elderly
patients and how would the views of hard-to-reach groups be obtained
independently, especially those not digitally enabled?

7.7  The Committee highlighted concerns about the travel implications for many patients
whose surgery would be relocating and associated costs and carbon emissions.
The Committee felt this may deter patients from visiting their GP which is against
the emphasis on preventative care.

Bishops Castle Community Hospital

7.8 The Committee considered points arising from the proposal by Shropshire
Community Health Trust to reduce services Bishops Castle Community Hospital.

7.9  Through their work the Members understood that the temporary closure had come
about due three main areas: recruitment, outpatients, and relocated services.

7.10 Members made suggestions to support with recruitment including that registered nurses be
contacted before their registration lapses and to send letters to bank staff. Advertisements
for posts would be more entertaining.

7.11 The Committee also suggested that as services available at the hospital prior to
closure have been retained the public should be made aware of the returned
services and the success of the recruitment campaign. The CCG was working with
Shropshire Council on integrated services to meet health needs and to put together
a vision for preventing and delivering care when needed. This would be realistic,
sustainable, and focused on patient outcomes.

The Future of Primary Care-The Fuller Report

7.12 The Committee considered the implications arising from the Fuller Report, with the
outputs from their focus summarised below. The committee:

e Were presented with information about the background, scope, vision, and
challenges of the Fuller Report, as well as the four key areas of intervention
and feedback from the Royal College of GPs. A response was awaited and
the Board would be setting out local implementation plans.

e Made comments and asked questions about various issues, including the
current status of the report, definitions of Integrated Care Board and
Integrated Care Partnership, the 'Core 20 plus five approach’ for Shropshire,
digital issues in rural areas, workforce issues, and the withdrawal of support

Page 274

Contact: Tom Doddson 01743258518 4




Council 21 March 2024 — Annual Report—Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2022/23

for Primary Care Networks by the BMA. Concerns were also raised about the
utilisation of available space, the need for focus on obesity, and long waits
for GP appointments.

Discussed the 'Core 20 plus five approach’ which was designed to support
Integrated Care Systems to drive targeted action for health qualities
improvement, with rural population groups in Shropshire benefiting from a
tailored approach. Members felt that engagement with only 1,000 people was
not representative and expressed concerns about the lack of reference to
very rural areas in the report. Members also referred to the need for easy
access to dashboards of information.

Prevention, Primary Care, Urgent and Emergency Care, and Discharge Task and
Finish Group Report

7.13

7:14

7:15

7:16

7:17

7:18

The Committee received the report of the Task and Finish Group for
Prevention, Primary Care, Urgent and Emergency Care, and Discharge. The

Task and Finish Group, assisted by the Executive Director of Health and the
Executive Director of People, scoped their work around three key stages:

e Primary Care and preventing emergency department attendance
e Emergency department attendance and admissionto hospital
e Preparing for discharge from hospital and discharge from hospital

The Group acknowledged that a whole system approach is needed to
improve the current system. Concerns were raised about the lack of hospital
beds available, especially in certain parts of the county, which delayed
admission to hospital.

Members also acknowledged concerns about disconnect when being
discharged from hospital, as patients may be told they can leave, but not all
actions had been completed, for example, they were unable to get their
medication or transport was not available at the time, and therefore they were
unable to be discharged.

It was agreed that these issues need to be raised with the Joint HOSC and
ICS and to work together to agree on a work program to find and assess the
impact of solutions. Examples to ease the pressure on services included

setting up another ward in A&E or having a discharge ward, which is
currently in operation in other areas.

Members felt that social care staffing shortages were leading to care
packages not being delivered and that 24/7 care in hospitals, including
radiographers and pharmacists, could improve the system to allow treatment
to continue in the community and reduce the time taken to discharge
patients.

Members agreed that performance data was required to track patients from
the point of entry at A&E through to discharge to understand the system in
more detail. It was noted that a joint commissioning project with the ICS was
in progress and that a piece of work was also taking place with Healthwatch

Page 275

Contact: Tom Doddson 01743258518 5




Council 21 March 2024 — Annual Report—Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2022/23

Shropshire on patients' experiences through A&E. The findings from this
were expected to be published in January.

7:19 It was also stated that GP contracts in community hospitals could be coming
to an end in April, which were felt to play a significant part in patient
recovery and could ease the pressure on other services. Further information
regarding these proposals was requested.

7:20 The Executive Director for People advised members that there had been an
increased number of discharges despite national challenges around the
workforce. Shropshire Council was now supporting many more patients at
home than ever before and looking at a range of options as to how to support
people differently. There was an aspiration for more patients not to have to
go to the hospital, but if they did, to be discharged as soon as possible. It
was felt that understanding the scope and expected outcomes of the work
being undertaken was important.

7:21 The report highlighted the impact of Shropshire being a rural and in areas
sparsely populated on access to health and care services. This encapsulated
ongoing concerns raised by the Committee on this subject and informed the

creation of the Rural Proofing in Health and Care Task and Finish Group at
the March 2023 HASC.

7:22 As per recommendation 7 of the report it was presented to JHOSC on the
19" of December 2023 and the JHOSC agreed to use it to shape the scope for
future work, key lines of enquiry, and prepare for a meeting being held with wider
system key partners so that recommendations could be made in time for plans for
the next winter.

Market Position Statement

7.23 The document presented opportunities within the care and support market of
Shropshire by identifying the future demand for care and support to ensure
needs can be met now and in the future.

7:24 Members noted the significant increase in costs in care provision as well as
workforce pressures and were asked to consider the role of the Council in
buying or commissioning services, targeting resources, and supporting
market development and sustainability. The new MPS would be implemented
in April 2023, subject to Cabinet approval.

7:25 Members felt that the mapping contained within the presentation showing the
places with the highest older populations was quite dramatic and
demonstrated the areas inthe county which required more focus to ensure
needs were being met.

7:26 Concerns were expressed regarding rurality in terms of service delivery,
including care provision and broadband. The MPS had a place-based
approach and the team was working closely with colleagues in Health and
the broadband team to ensure a collaborative response. A request for a map
detailing areas experiencing shortages of care workers was made.

Page 276

Contact: Tom Doddson 01743258518 6




Council 21 March 2024 — Annual Report—Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2022/23

7:27 Members noted the differing types of support available, such as care in the
community. One scheme was “two carers in a car’, however, it was felt that
this was less feasible in more rural areas due to distance and related time
between visits. Despite national workforce pressures, the Council was
expanding its in-house care team alongside partners across the county. A
Hub was suggested to be set up in partnership with the University of Chester
to train carers and shape the market. The Council had already partnered with

the University of Chester and had 15 local apprentices graduating next
February, 14 of which had confirmed their intention to work for the council. A
retainment payment was available after 2 years of service.

7:28 Funding had been made available for work experience placements and
further funding options were being looked into, including options for recruiting
from overseas. Members felt that it was important that there were
opportunities for career progression. It was also suggested that, by
partnering with local care homes, these could act as hubs where an outreach
team could be based to deliver care in the community. This could involve
working alongside the planning team to ensure that care can be delivered in
rural areas.

7:27 To maintain a view of what was happening in the health and care system
during the year the Committee also reviewed:

e The Shropshire Inequalities Plan for Shropshire and the issues and areas
of focus that have been identified.

e The Welsh Air Ambulance - Changes to Sites to discuss and agree the
response made by the Committee to the consultation exercise.

e The Carers Strategy, the Committee considered and provided feedback to
inform the final version of the strategy.

e Social Prescribing, the Committee received an update on progress and
impact of Social Prescribing for Shropshire people, including development

areas such as working with Adult Social Care, Accident and Emergency and
Children and Young People.

e Progress on Highley Medical Practice, the Committee received an update
on Highley Medical Practice.

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does
not include items containing exempt or confidential information)

Meeting Papers for the People Overview Committee April 2022 to March 2023

Local Member: All

Page 277

Contact: Tom Doddson 01743258518 7




Council 21 March 2024 — Annual Report—Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2022/23

Appendices [Please list the titles of Appendices]

Page 2/8

Contact: Tom Doddson 01743258518 8




Agenda Iltem 14

Annual Report of the Portfolio Holder for Climate Change, Environment & Transport Council 215t March 2024

Committee and Date ltem

¥i¥ Shropshire

Council ]
Council

21st March 2024

Public
[ 1)
a & )
Healthy Healthy ’ Healthy
People Economy H ealthy Organisation

Environment

Annual Report of the Portfolio Holder for Climate
Change, Environment & Transport

Responsible Officer: Mark Barrow
email: Mark.barrow@shropshire.gov.uk Tel: 01743 258676
Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder): lan Nellins

1. Synopsis

The Portfolio Holder for Climate Change, Environment & Transport has responsibility for
a range of functions delivered by the Place Directorate. This report updates on key work
undertaken over the year and outlines key achievements and developments, as well as
future priorities.

2. Recommendations

That Members receive the report and raise any issues as appropriate on the
performance and activities of the Council’s Climate Change, Environment and Transport
function.

3. Climate Change

3.1. The climate crisis is a serious threat to the lives of millions of people globally, nationally
and locally. The mitigation of greenhouse gas emissions and adaptation measures to
build resilience is now urgent and essential to prevent the worst outcomes. Even if we
are successful in mitigating the worst effects, we will continue to experience more

Paqge 279
Please contact Mark Barrow on 01743 258676 > 1 |




Annual Report of the Portfolio Holder for Climate Change, Environment & Transport Council 215t March 2024

pronounced and frequent episodes of extreme weather. The much greater frequency of
extreme weather events will significantly increase insurance risks and threaten the
health, wellbeing and future resilience of our communities.

3.2. Shropshire Council declared a climate emergency in May 2019 and in December 2020
adopted a Climate Strategy and Action Plan, which establishes the objective of
achieving net-zero carbon performance for Shropshire Council by 2030. The Climate
Change Task Force was established to lead the Council’s response in November 2019,
supported by an internal officer working group. A Climate Change and Carbon
Reduction Advisory Board was established in September 2022 to act as a ‘critical friend’
and to assist the implementation and review of the Council’s Climate Strategy.

3.3. The climate crisis is already recognised as a significant strategic risk to Shropshire and
the delivery of Council and public services. This risk is most likely to manifest itself in
terms of financial impacts (e.g. operating costs, impacts on the Shropshire economy)
and impacts on the health and well-being of staff and residents as service users.

3.4. Climate action and carbon reduction are integral to all aspects of the Shropshire Plan:

A. Healthy People — Extreme weather associated with the climate crisis will adversely
affect vulnerable residents and service users disproportionately. This is likely to drive
significant future growth in the demand for social care services as well as generating
significant impacts on the physical and mental health and wellbeing of staff.

B. Healthy Economy — The recent energy crisis illustrates potential impacts on the
Shropshire economy from the climate crisis. However, there are also significant
opportunities for growth and skilled employment in new technologies, renewable
energy and the rural economy.

C. Healthy Environment — The climate crisis has very serious implications for
biodiversity and food production. However, as a large rural area, Shropshire is also
in an excellent position to take positive action to help mitigate these effects.

D. Healthy Organisation — Extreme weather associated with the climate crisis may
significantly disrupt the delivery of Council services through damage to physical
infrastructure such as roads and power infrastructure, and through impacts on staff
health and wellbeing. Demand for services and service delivery costs such as
highway maintenance are likely to increase significantly.

3.5. Taking active steps through the implementation of the adopted corporate Climate
Strategy and Action Plan and supporting wider community efforts allows the Council to
make a demonstrable contribution to reducing the carbon footprint of the wider county,
as well as ‘leading by example’ by reducing its own carbon footprint. Through its
regulatory role and procurement decisions, Shropshire Council is in a position to make a
strong contribution to help the wider Shropshire community make a positive transition to
a low carbon future.

3.6. Individual Council services will progressively need to engage with their staff and service
users to explore the need for, and implications of, service changes which may result
from the adoption of carbon reduction measures. The Council will need to adopt an
agile approach keep abreast of national good practice in order to maximise
opportunities for equality and social inclusion within the overall policy context of
addressing the climate emergency.

3.7. The Council’s latest annual carbon performance was last reported to Cabinet on 7t
June 2023, and this showed that the Council’s corporate carbon emissions had dropped
by only 1% overall, with an increase in direct emissions offset by a decrease in indirect
emissions. This is likely to be due to a return to normal services after three years of

Pagp 280

Please contact Mark Barrow on 01743 258676 2




3.8.

3.9.

3.10.

Annual Report of the Portfolio Holder for Climate Change, Environment & Transport Council 215t March 2024

disruption from the Covid pandemic. It is also important to recognise that the path to our
corporate net zero goal will take time and improvements will not be linear.
Commissioned and outsourced services represent 93% of our footprint and this will be
an increasingly focus over the coming year in order to drive down emissions.

The Climate Change agenda was considered by Environment and Economy Scrutiny
Committee on 25" January 2024 and generated a wide-ranging discussion around
recent work and future priorities. Scrutiny Committee are proposing to establish a
Standing Task and Finish Group to consider climate change and carbon reduction in
more detail.

During the last year, the efforts of the Climate Task Force have been directed towards
continuing to embed climate change as a key consideration in the Council’s corporate
governance systems and to widen ownership of the issue through accredited carbon
literacy training. A range of projects and initiatives continue to be developed and
implemented to help the Council improve its own performance and to help foster similar
action across the wider economy and communities in Shropshire. A wide range of
Shropshire Council staff outside the Climate Task Force also contribute actively to
carbon reduction and climate action projects, including:

A. The Council’s Affordable Warmth team, who have been extremely successful in
attracting substantial amounts of Government grant to retrofit homes for our most
vulnerable residents.

B. Colleagues in our Facilities Management Service, who are working out how we can
best improve the energy and carbon performance of both our existing buildings and
new construction projects.

C. Colleagues in Highways and Transport, who are busy installing grant-funded EV
charging infrastructure across the county and improving the carbon performance of
the Council’s vehicle fleet.

Key Achievements during 2022-23:

A. Grant Funding - The Climate Team has attracted Government capital and revenue
grant funding awards totalling £4.3m to date.

B. Integration / normalisation — supply chain emissions and changes to procurement
policy. We are making great strides in building internal capability as an organisation
through an active programme of carbon literacy training. Most of the Council’s
Cabinet and senior leadership team have now been externally accredited as ‘carbon
literate’ and the Council as an organisation is accredited to the ‘Bronze’ level.

C. Biochar— Shropshire Council is currently procuring a demonstrator plant to test the
use of pyrolysis to ‘cook’ (rather than burn) natural woody materials from highway
maintenance and garden waste to reduce it to pure carbon ‘biochar’ which can be
used to store carbon in a stable form, improve soil quality and for the manufacture of
low carbon building materials such as bricks and asphalt. This is a technology which
could be widely deployed commercially in Shropshire to generate ‘green growth’.

D. Green hydrogen feasibility — current battery technology is unsuitable for many of the
heavy goods vehicles which are used to deliver Council services in Shropshire
because of the long distances which they need to travel. The Council is therefore
working with a range of commercial and academic stakeholders to on a project to
test hydrogen refuelling facilities for its own fleet and that of its contractors. In the
longer term, the Council hopes to develop a small-scale demonstrator facility to
manufacture hydrogen fuel locally.

Pagp 281

Please contact Mark Barrow on 01743 258676 3




3.11.

Annual Report of the Portfolio Holder for Climate Change, Environment & Transport Council 215t March 2024

E.

Leading by example - A number of the demonstrator projects which we are
developing are already recognised as being at the forefront of good practice by local
authorities in the UK.

Low Carbon Community Buildings — the design of new buildings such as the new
swimming pool at Whitchurch is increasingly being informed by information about
lifetime energy and carbon performance to minimise carbon emissions and running
costs.

Electric Vehicle Chargers — Shropshire Council has one of the largest EV charging
infrastructure programmes in the Midlands and will soon own and operate over 300
chargers in its car parks, with a further 500 to come in future years!

Business Support — Shropshire Council is working closely with community climate
organisation and local businesses to offer free climate advice and training for local
firms and to free consultancy advice on the installation of solar panels on large
industrial buildings. The continued availability of these support programmes may
also help local companies supplying goods and services to Shropshire Council to
reduce their emissions.

Community Climate Action - We have established a really positive and constructive
ongoing working relationship with community climate organisations across
Shropshire.

Aims and Objectives for the Future:

A. Generate wider ownership of the climate change agenda through staff engagement,

and through the integration and normalisation of climate considerations as part of
normal council business. This should include:

i. building internal awareness, capacity and capability through an on-going
programme of carbon literacy training

ii. the development and implementation of a corporate carbon accounting approach,
including the inclusion of carbon offset values in project financial business cases

iii. the identification of service-level champions to help ensure that carbon
performance and climate issues to be considered as a normal part of service
planning across all Council services

iv. urgently working our top 100 suppliers to test modelled data and to help them
develop and deliver carbon reduction plans to reduce the carbon emissions which
they generate on our behalf

Resilience & Adaptation — National research indicates that 77% of local authorities
have reported that public health is already being impacted adversely affected by
climate-related hazard such as heat, flooding and heavy rainfall. We urgently need
to work jointly with others to work out how local services and infrastructure could be
affected by extreme weather and to build their resilience.

Support wider engagement of Shropshire communities and businesses to generate
informed decisions about investment in measures to improve the energy
performance of domestic and commercial buildings and capture the full potential of
green growth and skills in Shropshire.

The Climate Task Force is proposing to carry out a mid-term review of the adopted
corporate Climate Strategy and Action Plan during 2025 to take account of
Shropshire’s climate and carbon performance to date and to reflect the availability of
additional information and changes in context and technology.

Pagp 282

Please contact Mark Barrow on 01743 258676




Annual Report of the Portfolio Holder for Climate Change, Environment & Transport Council 215t March 2024

4. Integrated Waste PFI Contract

4.1 The Integrated Waste Management PFl Agreement commenced in 2007 and covers the
collection, transport, treatment and disposal of municipal waste in Shropshire the
contract being in two parts, Waste Treatment Services (WTS) and Collection Recycling
Services (CRS). The PFI Agreement was awarded to Veolia Environmental Services
Shropshire Ltd (VES Shropshire) with Shropshire Council (“the Council”) taking on the
role of client from the Shropshire Waste Partnership, following the creation of the
Unitary Authority in 2009.

4.2 The existing assets including operational depots and Household Recycling Centres
(HRC) are leased to Veolia under the terms of the contract whilst the key piece of
infrastructure, the 95,000 tonnes per annum Battlefield Energy Recovery Facility (ERF)
became operational in 2015. The original planning application for the ERF was refused
in July 2010 and following a planning appeal, approval was issued in January 2012 with
construction of the facility starting in October 2012. The contract was for 27 years up to
September 2034 however, due to the delay in the construction of the ERF the contract
was extended in March 2015 for a further 4.5 years taking the end of the contract to
2038/39.

4.3 The project has also benefited from financial support in the form of PFI credits due to
the associated infrastructure development, specifically the ERF. The plant has been
successfully delivered and been classed as a recovery operation by the Environment
Agency, other minor infrastructure has been developed as required within the PFI
Agreement, the only outstanding element being the in-vessel composting facility. A
suitable site has now been identified and plans for the plant will be put forward once the
decision on the future collections of food and garden waste have been agreed in order
to determine the size and type of facility required.

4.4 Contract performance in terms of the delivery of key contract requirements has been
good and is reflected in both Key Performance Indicators (KPI) and customer
satisfaction this is also reflected by relatively low number of formal complaints received
relating to the waste services.

Energy Revenue Share

4.5 The arrangement within this contract is fixed which provides stability, predictability,
reduces administrative costs and complexity, gives a clear financial responsibility and
benefit to the provider although the provider may take more risk, they also have a
greater percentage of any reward.

4.6 There is a base case revenue for both energy (electricity from the ERF) and recyclable
materials. The ERF principal activity is the burning of residual household waste 24/7,
which heats water, and the steam turns turbine blades attached to a generator that
converts the energy into electricity which is then sold on to the wholesale energy
market. Due to the significant increase in the wholesale energy market it is now
predicated that the council will be moving into a positive revenue share position from
energy and recycle from 2024/25 onwards.

Pagp 283

Please contact Mark Barrow on 01743 258676 5




Annual Report of the Portfolio Holder for Climate Change, Environment & Transport Council 215t March 2024

Key Achievements during 2022-23
Best Value Review

4.7 The Best Value Duty relates to the statutory requirement for local authorities and other
public bodies defined as best value authorities in Part 1 of the Local Government Act
1999 (“the 1999 Act”) to “make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the
way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy,
efficiency and effectiveness”. In practice, this covers issues such as how authorities
exercise their functions to deliver a balanced budget (Part 1 of the Local Government
Finance Act 1992), provide statutory services, and secure value for money in all
spending decisions.

4.8 There conditions within the contract allow the council to instigate a best value review at
any time and to address the council budgetary pressures and requirement for financial
savings the council instigated a formal review of the relevant services within the contract
in September 2023.

This had the following objectives:

e To determine how to extract better value out of the contract and where there may
be opportunities for efficiencies and financial savings.

e To gain a better understanding of the payment mechanism and the financial model
and how these are being applied to invoices in practice.

e To establish whether energy and recyclate revenues have been generated in
accordance with the contract and, are an actual reflection of energy and materials
pricing over the contract term to date.

e To summarise the financial performance of Veolia ES (Shropshire) Itd as set out in
the published accounts and compare to the projections in the financial model.

e To understand how IRR was intended to be applied to the contract and any
opportunities for gainshare.

e To be clear on the impact of how upcoming legislation may alter waste volumes in
the original base case financial models.

e To consider potential options to derive value from the contract and analyse the
pros, cons and potential for efficiencies associated with each of them in order to
determine a recommended way forward.

This work was undertaken by PWC and covered 6 main areas:

Commercial review of contract terms to identify value levers:

Invoice validation:

Commodity market review - energy and recyclate

Assessment of current market value and IRR including gainshare options
Assessing the impact of upcoming legislation

Options appraisal to extract best value from the Contract:

2 A

EFW Net Future Value Analysis

4.9 Additional work was also undertaken by WSP to inform the future value of the EfW
asset: setting out the longlist of contracting options for the council upon expiry of the PFI
in 2039

Page 284
Please contact Mark Barrow on 01743 258676 > 6 |




4.10

4.1

4.12

4.13

414

4.15

4.16

417

4.18

Annual Report of the Portfolio Holder for Climate Change, Environment & Transport Council 215t March 2024

Aims and Objectives for the Future:
Weekly Food Waste Collections

The council presently collects food with garden waste on a fortnightly basis from 90,000
of the 147,000 properties in Shropshire those not included are in Bridgnorth and
Oswestry and they receive a fortnightly garden waste only service.

In December 2022 DEFRA wrote to all Local Authorities regarding the implications of
the introduction of separate food waste collections on existing long-term contracts
setting out relevant criteria for a potential transitionary period. As there is already a
mixed food & garden service in place then in accordance with the legislation a weekly
food waste collection service is required to be implemented by 2026/27

We have been working with colleagues from DEFRA through the food waste
programme and part of this work has included the provision of funding to develop
weekly food waste collection options across Shropshire utilising the WRAP Kerbside
Analysis Tool (KAT).

This work was to explore the costs and operational implications of introducing a
separate weekly food waste collection system. The carbon emissions from each
collection option have also been modelled through the Waste & Resource Assessment
Tool for the Environment (WRATE). This work has been undertaken by the Local
Partnerships through Frith Resource Management.

The options presented give a good understanding of the impact of changes to the
existing baseline service. The overall results show that there will be both a financial and
carbon impact that cannot be helped. Whilst increased recycling and decreased residual
will mitigate some of the impacts, the report correctly identifies that weekly separate
collections of food waste will significantly impact on the council finances in terms of
capital and revenue expenditure which has not been included within our medium-term
financial strategy due to the uncertainty around new burdens funding.

However, indicative transitional costs for bins and vehicles has now been confirmed as
grant payment for 2023/24 of £2.791m, this presently does not meet the cost of any of
the options modelled and quality assured by DEFRA, subsequently we have raised our
concerns and are awaiting confirmation of additional funding to cover the gap.

It is also critical for our medium-term financial strategy that we receive indicative funding
details for both the resource transitional funding for 2024/25 and ongoing resource and
revenue costs post 1 April 2026.

Garden Waste

The council continues to face significant financial pressures and it is therefore essential
that the council looks at alternative sources of revenue generation, the alternative would
be to cut essential frontline services.

The collection of garden waste is not presently a statutory duty and a service the council
are not required to provide if they choose not to do so. However, this service was
including within the specification for the letting of the integrated waste contract and was
subsequently priced into the bids submitted.

Pagp 285

Please contact Mark Barrow on 01743 258676 7




Annual Report of the Portfolio Holder for Climate Change, Environment & Transport Council 215t March 2024

4.19 There is presently no statutory duty to collect garden waste and whilst some councils
collect free of charge the majority 67% (221) charge for the service. There is no
specific legislation that dictates what a council can charge, the fees for garden waste
can vary from between £30-£75 and are set on each councils’ individual circumstances
such as, cost of providing the service, local budget constraints and demand. The
revenue generated can be used to offset other budget pressure and support the delivery
of existing services.

4.20 The benefit in Shropshire is that the infrastructure in terms of bins, vehicles, staff, and
treatment facilities are already in place and these costs fully understood so the
introduction from an operational point of view is straight forward.

4.21 Residents will only pay for the service if they opt-in to the scheme and it will remain free
for residents to dispose of their garden waste at our Household Recycling Centres
(HRC)

4.22 We remain committed to protecting and enhancing our environment and delivering on
the aims and priorities as set out in our corporate plan. This includes continuing to
encourage people to think about the impact of their actions on the environment and to
‘reduce, reuse and recycle’ their waste.

4.23 There is no evidence to suggest that we will see any increase in fly-tipping because of a
subscription service being introduced. We have spoken to other councils that have
introduced similar schemes and they have not seen an increase. Importantly, fly-tipping
is a crime, and anyone caught doing it could be prosecuted and face a large fine,
although this is organic material and will naturally breakdown, posing no risk to the
environment.

Waste Minimisation

4.24 Reducing the amount of waste that residents produce in Shropshire can have several
benefits ranging from protection of natural resources, conserving energy and reducing
carbon emissions to the financial benefits to the council of reducing our collection costs.
Current waste minimisation initiatives include:

Master Composter Programme.

Shropshire Good Food Partnership

Social media and piggy backing of national and local campaigns
Outreach and Public Engagement

4.25 Further to a recent motion at Council a revised ‘Waste Minimisation plan’ is now being
developed, this will include relevant consultation and is due to be discussed and agreed
at full council in September 2024.

5. Public Transport - Background

5.1 Shropshire Councils Active Travel ambitions are established and prioritised within the
draft Shropshire Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP). In the summer
of 2023, the Council analysed the feedback generated through a comprehensive public
and stakeholder engagement exercise and produced the final draft of the LCWIP and
the Delivery Plans for Shrewsbury, Oswestry, Market Drayton, Whitchurch, Ludlow,
Bridgnorth and Church Stretton. (See Background Paper- Draft LCWIP)

Page 286
Please contact Mark Barrow on 01743 258676 > 8




Annual Report of the Portfolio Holder for Climate Change, Environment & Transport Council 215t March 2024

5.2 The LCWIP aims to deliver on the Shropshire Plan’s key strategic objectives by
providing for a high-quality active travel network of routes which will enable more people
to choose walking, cycling and wheeling for short trips. This, in turn, will help Council to
deliver on its ambitions to:

a. Develop more opportunities for active travel in Shropshire generating a range of
related benefits, including improved air quality and better health and wellbeing
(Healthy Environment)

b. Support the increase in low carbon transport in the County (Healthy Environment)

c. Encourage changes to the way people travel and the use of sustainable transport
options (Healthy Economy)

d. Increase health and wellbeing and reduce social isolation through physical activities
(Healthy People)

5.3 Once endorsed by Cabinet (March 2024), it is expected that the LCWIP will be
adopted by Council summer 2024.

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does
not include items containing exempt or confidential information)

Draft LCWIP
Local Member:
All

Appendices

Pagp 287

Please contact Mark Barrow on 01743 258676 9




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 18

MEMBER QUESTIONS
COUNCIL 21 MARCH 2024

Question from Councillor Dan Thomas

This year a former Town Councillor and community activist took his own life,
shocking the Much Wenlock Community. His family will clearly never overcome this
loss.

In a personal capacity | am a member of the Shropshire Roots Brotherhood, a
community group that encourages men across Shropshire to meet and discuss
issues affecting their mental health. Suicide is now the leading — and increasing -
cause of premature mortality in men below the age of 50.

There are a number of occupations where suicide rates are high, and one is farming.
This is important in Shropshire which is a predominantly rural county and one where
farming is a significant -and often solitary - activity. In recent years suicide prevention
campaigns have focused on men, who apparently still have a much higher rate than
women in all age groups and are over three times more likely to die by suicide than
women. However, recent global reports reveal that suicide has overtaken maternal
mortality as one of the highest incidences of premature death in young women.

It is vital that Mental Health Services have adequate risk assessments and
procedures in place so that the risk of suicide is recognised and minimised.

Would the Portfolio Holder articulate the measures that are in place to provide
support and intervention in order that individuals can get their lives back onto an
even keel, so that families do not have to suffer the anguish that has afflicted too
many in Shropshire during the last couple of years?

Response from Councillor Cecilia Motley, Portfolio Holder for Adult Social
Care and Public Health

Thank you for your question and interest in this important issue. Every loss of life due
to suicide is devastating and may | start my response by sending my deepest
sympathies and condolences to all our Shropshire residents who have been
personally impacted by the loss of a family member or friend.

Suicide prevention has been a priority for Shropshire health and care system since
2017. There are around 5,200 lives lost to suicide every year in England and around
35 each year in Shropshire. Every one of these deaths leaves behind family, friends
and communities shattered by the loss. We know the results of an individual
attempting to take their own life are wide reaching and every death by suicide is a
tragic loss with major impact on our communities.

We believe that suicide is preventable; but it requires all of us to seek every
opportunity to achieve this. Through promoting more awareness and conversation
about suicide throughout the health and care workforce and in our communities, we
hope to tackle stigma and to encourage anyone struggling with orimpacted by

Page 289



suicide to reach out as early as possible. There is no one reason why someone may
decide to end their life and anyone can be affected at any time in their life, which
makes prevention complex. National evidence identifies a range of factors that can
increase suicide risk. These can include recent challenges such as the cost-of-living
crisis, ongoing global conflicts and the impact from the pandemic which can also
influence poorer mental health and increased suicide risk. We also know from
national evidence there are a range of groups with a higher risk of suicide.

To this end, in September 2023 a revised partnership Shropshire suicide prevention
strategy for was published, which sets ambitions and commitments of raising
awareness of suicide risk across our communities and workforce, enhance skills and
confidence talking about suicide to reduce stigma and promote early help seeking
behaviour, ensure the right offers are available to the right people at the right time
and ensure those who have been impacted or bereaved by a suicide or unexpected
death have access to the support that best address their needs. An online version of
the Strategy can be found here: Shropshire Suicide Prevention Strategy 2023 - 2026
| Shropshire Council.

The refreshed Strategy recognises national evidence that there are some groups
within society that are at greater risk of suicide compared to the general population
and as such, the new Strategy includes the need for targeted offers in addition to
universal services. This includes men (as a group), people with protected
characteristics (including neurodivergent conditions), people in contact with mental
health services, people with long term physical health conditions, young people and
young adults and our farmer/rural population.

The Strategy and Programme in Shropshire is delivered by the multi-agency
Shropshire Suicide Prevention Action Group led by our Public Health Team. This
partnership group includes the local NHS, Mental Health Trust, Shropshire Council,
Emergency services, Criminal Justice, Drug & Alcohol services, Voluntary and
Community Sector partners (including Shropshire Mental Health Support, Samaritans
and Papyrus) and experts by experience who have been impacted by suicide
amongst others with an interest in supporting the programme.

Aligned to the Strategy, there are a series of programmes already in place and new
ones being developed within the new action plan.

Below are some of the highlights of what has been delivered to date;

. Skills based suicide prevention understanding and awareness training for those
most likely to be working with vulnerable and high-risk groups. This continues to be
targeted across all above partner agencies including the Royal Shrewsbury Hospital
Mental Health Liaisonteam within the Emergency Department, frontline workers in
the Mental Health Trust and Adult Social Care teams within the Council. Subsidised
(and sometimes free to access) training has also been targeted to additional
agencies working with veterans and homeless/at risk of rough sleeper populations,
people working in pharmacies, abuse support services, drug alcohol services, money
and financial worries support, sports and youth clubs, carer groups as well as many
other community groups and services. An overview of the training options currently
are highlighted below.

Page 290


https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/disability-information/mental-health/suicide-prevention/shropshire-suicide-prevention-strategy-2023-2026/
https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/disability-information/mental-health/suicide-prevention/shropshire-suicide-prevention-strategy-2023-2026/

e Zero Suicide Alliance free online training available at: Free online training
from Zero Suicide Alliance. Zero Suicide Alliance is one of the country’s
leading suicide prevention charities and they provide easy access and
digestible information on how to talk about suicide, how to spot risk and how
to signpost. There are also versions available in Welsh language and also
targeted at specific groups including veterans, taxi drivers, prisons and
probation staff.

e Suicide Awareness — a 2-hour interactive webinar delivered by our local
Shropshire Joint Training team based at Shropshire Council aimed at anyone
with an interest and reach to support suicide prevention and assuming no prior
knowledge. The purpose is to explore the myths and stigma on suicide, raise
awareness of risk and build confidence in applying the Zero Suicide Alliance
approach. More details can be found at: Suicide Prevention Awareness |
Shropshire Council

e Suicide First Aid: Understanding Suicide Intervention — a 1 day more in-
depth training session to practice skills and knowledge to identify someone
who may be thinking about suicide and competently intervene to help create
suicide safety in any professional or personal setting. More details can be
found at: Suicide First Aid: Understanding Suicide Intervention | Shropshire
Council

e Suicide First Aid: Children and Young People — a 1 day programme to
develop knowledge and skills to identify a child or young person who may be
thinking about suicide with the opportunity to build confidence to intervene

2. Bespoke local resources and materials to promote support for suicide risk. The
Action Group designed and widely shared the Pick Up The Phone You Are Not Alone
z-card — a wallet sized fold-out information card that provides first point of contact
details and advice for anyone concerned about suicide in themselves or someone
else. Printed copies have been shared with GP practices, pharmacies, libraries and
a range of other public facing services across the Shropshire Council area. A digital
version can be found online at: pick-up-phone-z-card-single-pages.pdf
(shropshire.gov.uk)

Targetted offers to high-risk populations. A recent project taking a health check
offer to farmers and being delivered at livestock markets launched in 2023 using
grant funding with support from the Suicide Prevention Action Group, Shropshire
Council, the Public Health Outreach Team, Shropshire Rural Support and NFU. The
purpose of this project is to reduce barriers for farmers and those working within the
rural community to talk about their health and wellbeing, to have an opportunity to
check their blood pressure, access advice and also to have an opportunity to discuss
emotional wellbeing and mental health concerns with a mental health first aid and
suicide first aid trained practitioner. In addition, we are seeking opportunities to
connect with those who work alongside the sector to target skills-based training on
recognising and understanding suicide risk, how to have a difficult conversation and

Page 291


https://zerosuicidealliance.com/training
https://zerosuicidealliance.com/training
https://next.shropshire.gov.uk/joint-training/course-schedule/suicide-prevention-awareness/
https://next.shropshire.gov.uk/joint-training/course-schedule/suicide-prevention-awareness/
https://next.shropshire.gov.uk/joint-training/course-schedule/suicide-first-aid-understanding-suicide-intervention/
https://next.shropshire.gov.uk/joint-training/course-schedule/suicide-first-aid-understanding-suicide-intervention/
https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/media/24985/pick-up-phone-z-card-single-pages.pdf
https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/media/24985/pick-up-phone-z-card-single-pages.pdf
https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/media/24985/pick-up-phone-z-card-single-pages.pdf

how to signpost or appropriately intervene. We are continuing to work with
representatives from the farming community to explore what could and should be
within the suicide prevention action plan that could best support local needs.

. Support for people impacted by suicide. A Suicide Bereavement Service was
launched in 2021 for people who are bereaved by suicide or possible suicide, which
is being delivered in partnership by Shropshire Mental Health Support and Telford
Mind providing support for the county of Shropshire. This service recognises that
people bereaved by suicide can be at greater risk of a mental health crisis or suicide
and works closely with the Coroner team as well as wider partners including the
police to promote the offer. The service is available to anyone impacted by a suicide
death (recent or previous). It provides practical and advocacy support to ensure
client needs are best met. In addition, a new peer support group led by the charity
Survivors of Bereavement by Suicide group was launched in Shrewsbury and
Oswestry in 2023. The purpose is to provide a safe space to talk about their
experiences and support each other, with support from trained facilitators who
themselves have been bereaved by a suicide death. More details about local
bereavement support can be found at: Bereavement support | Shropshire Council
You raise, that it “is vital that Mental Health Services have adequate risk
assessments and procedures in place so that the risk of suicide is recognised and
minimised”. Please see detailed response from Midlands Partnership NHS
Foundation Trust below.

More information on local mental health and wellbeing offers a dedicated site has
been created on the Healthy Shropshire webpage at: Mental health and wellbeing |
Shropshire Council. This provides access to;

¢ Information, tools and resources on how to keep mentally well — including the
locally invested online peer support portal TogetherAll, which provides a safe,
secure and anonymous community for anyone aged 16+ who lives in an area
served by Shropshire Council and who may be stressed, anxious or feeling
low

e Local support for an emotional health or mental health concern

e Adedicated page for concerns about suicide (including link to the Shropshire
Telford and Wrekin Suicide Prevention Resources page at: Suicide and
suicidal thoughts - NHS Shropshire, Telford and Wrekin
(shropshiretelfordandwrekin.nhs.uk))

e Afirst point of contact resource that provides suggestions on local support that
could support both mental health and other influencing factors that may impact
on mental wellbeing (including money worries, employment, health and social
care needs, families and unpaid carers and impacted by abuse)

Midlands Partnership Foundation Trust
Query:

It is vital that Mental Health Services have adequate risk assessments and
procedures in place so that the risk of suicide is recognised and minimised.

Page 292


https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/public-health/healthy-shropshire/mental-health-and-wellbeing/bereavement-support/
https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/public-health/healthy-shropshire/mental-health-and-wellbeing/
https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/public-health/healthy-shropshire/mental-health-and-wellbeing/
https://www.shropshiretelfordandwrekin.nhs.uk/advice-for-professionals/mental-health-services/suicide-and-suicidal-thoughts/
https://www.shropshiretelfordandwrekin.nhs.uk/advice-for-professionals/mental-health-services/suicide-and-suicidal-thoughts/
https://www.shropshiretelfordandwrekin.nhs.uk/advice-for-professionals/mental-health-services/suicide-and-suicidal-thoughts/

Suicide Strategy and Planning

Midlands Partnership University NHS Foundation Trust (MPFT) takes its
responsibilities around effective suicide mitigation seriously. We have our own suicide
prevention plan which was aligned to the ‘Suicide prevention in England: 5-year
cross-sector strategy’ on its publication in September 2023.

In line with the national strategy and plan, we work closely with our partners in the
Shropshire suicide prevention partnership and have strong alignment with their work
and plan. We are an active member of the Suicide Prevention Action Group in
Shropshire and support their targeted working groups.

Risk Assessment and Targeted Intervention

In relation to risk assessment, we have been working with the recommendations of
the National Institute of Health and Care Excellence (NICE). lts guidance on ‘Self-
Harm: assessment, management and preventing recurrence’ (NG225), published in
September 2022 states that mental health services should not use risk assessment
tools and scales to predict future suicide or repetition of self-harm. It has been
identified through research that such scales have a low efficacy in predicting suicide
(as low as 5%).

Instead, NICE recommends focusing the assessment on the person's needs and how
to support their immediate and long-term psychological and physical safety.

Within its national strategy the Department of Health and Social Care has convened
a national safety planning working group, which is expected to publish its suicide
safety planning guidance by March 2024 and roll out its training by March 2025.

MPFT has chosen not to wait for the outcome of this and undertaken to train our own
clinical trainers in suicide awareness and mitigation training developed by
4MentalHealth. We have already trained over 1,200 staff on suicide awareness and

mitigation and are currently building the SafeTool safety planning document into our
electronic patient record to support this.

In line with the national suicide prevention strategy, we recognise the need to ensure
that our mental health services are aligned to high-risk groups and those in mental
health crisis. As such we have in place:

e Mental health crisisintervention and home treatment services
e Mental health 111 services (from April 2024)

e Liaison mental health services in urgent care

e Mental health support teams in schools

e 72-hour follow up of those discharged from mental health inpatient services, in
line with national guidance

Learning

MPFT implemented the national NHS Patient Safety Incident Response Framework
(PSIRF) in December 2023, which includes the use of a system-based patient safety
learning response review for all unexpected deaths of those accessing our services

Page 293



or discharged within six months. These reviews involve all services involved in
supporting the person. In addition, we seek to engage families in the review through
the support of our family liaison officer who ensures their voice is included in the
learning review and they receive appropriate support and sign posting to postvention
support.

The learning we take from our review of patient safety incidents is shared widely
across services to offer the widest opportunity to mitigate further impact. Our learning
from deaths reporting is shared at multiple levels of the Trust including the Trust
Board and incorporates an analysis of the data, learning themes and any associated
learning from system and national activity (such as the national confidential enquiry
into suicide and homicide). We share learning with system partners through the
Shropshire Suicide Prevention Action Group.

Oversight and Assurance

In terms of objective scrutiny of our systems and processes, regular Quality
Standards Assurance visits are carried out in clinical services by MPFT corporate
quality staff. Partners such as Healthwatch and Integrated Care Board (ICB)
commissioners often accompany quality visits. These, together with the regulatory
oversight framework of the Care Quality Commission, ensure that teams and
services are independently audited and held to account to deliver any action plans
that arise.

Additionally, MPFT staff and teams always aim to work collaboratively to assess and
mitigate risk with service users and their families, but also with other partners, both
statutory and non-statutory (proportionate to need and where information sharing is
justified). There is a history of close collaboration at team, service and organisational
level between the Trust and Shropshire Council with regards the suicide prevention
agenda and this work is a key feature of the multi-agency Mental Health, Learning
Disability and Autism Operational Group, which reports into the ICB.

Page 294



Agenda lte

Shropshire and Wrekin Fire and Rescue Authority
Chair’s Reportof the Meeting held on 21 February 2024

Capital Programmes, Treasury Management Statementand
Capital Strategy

The Fire Authority confirmed its 2024/25 to 2028/29 capital programmes, and
approved its Capital Strategy for the same period, together with its Treasury Strategy
Statement for 2024/25.

Adequacy of Reserves and Robustness of Budget

The Fire Authority agreed the reserves, recommended by its Strategy and Resources
Committee, and noted the Treasurer’'s assurances covering the robustness of the
2024/25 budget and adequacy of the reserves.

Revenue Budget 2024/25

The Fire Authority considered recommendations made by its Strategy and Resources
Committee in relation to the revenue budget for 2024/25.

The Committee had recommended, and the Fire Authority approved, a precept
increase of 2.99% in 2024/25.

Revenue Budget: 2023/24 Precept

The Fire Authority agreed:

o A net budget requirement of £29,198,100
o A total precept of £20,123,327 to be levied on the billing authorities

o A Council Tax resulting in a basic amount of Council Tax at Band D of
£114.49
o The amount payable by billing authorities for 2023/24, as follows:
Council Precept
£
Shropshire Council 13,646,194
Borough of Telford & Wrekin Council 6,477,133
20,123,327
Page 295

Fire Authority
1 Chair’s Report 21.2.2024

19



Annual Plan 2024/25

The Fire Authority has agreed the proposed format of its Annual Plan 2024/25.
Authority has been delegated to the Fire Authority’'s Strategy and Resources Committee
to agree the setting of corporate performance indicators and associated tolerances.
This issue will be considered at the Committee’s meeting on 21 March 2024.

Responsibility for agreeing the final layout and wording of the Annual Plan 2024/25
has been delegated to the Chief Fire Officer, in consultation with the Chair of the
Fire Authority.

Annual Review of Charges for Special Services 2024/25

The Fire Authority has agreed that its special service charges be uplifted by 5%,
which is the pay increase that has been awarded to firefighters for 2024/25.

As the standard method of increasing the special service charges is the application
of the firefighter pay award for the year concerned, the Fire Authority has delegated
this exercise to officers. Any future exceptions from this approach will be brought to
the Fire Authority for consideration.

Amendmentsto the Pay Policy Statement 2024/25

The Fire Authority has conducted its annual review of the Pay Policy Statement and
agreed changes to reflect the non-uniform pay award for 2023 and the revised
National Joint Council pay award for Brigade Managers.

The amended Statement, as agreed by the Fire Authority will now be published as
required under the Localism Act 2011, with updates being made as further pay
awards are agreed.

Government Consultation Responseto the Fire Reform White
Paper

The “Reforming Our Fire and Rescue Service” consultation paper was first published
in May 2022 and the fire sector, stakeholders and the public were given the
opportunity to respond with their views. The consultation has now concluded, and
the government has published its response. The Fire Authority received a summary
report setting out the Government’s vision for fire reform which is centred around
three main themes:

People
Talent and inclusion

The White Paper outlines plans to help fire professionals to further develop their
skills and ensure that everyone could thrive in their work.

Page 296
Fire Authority

2 Chair’s Report 21.2.2024



It also sets out the intention to build on existing progress to provide effective
leadership of the sector and building capacity, embedding values, and nurturing
talent within services.

Funding will be made available to support and widen the direct entry schemes which
will allow more non-operational professionals to lead Fire and Rescue Services
(FRSSs).

Pay and role

The government will work with fire employers and unions to crucially review the
National Joint Council (NJC) own mechanisms, operations, and transparency. This
should be completed by early 2024.

If this does not result in meaningful change, the government will explore other routes
to ensure a modern, fair pay system which constructively enables role reform in
England.

Professionalism

Creating a College of Fire and Rescue

To assist in strengthening the overall professionalism of services itis proposed that a
College of Fire and Rescue be created, with the most appropriate deliver model for
this to be developed. Such a college would have responsibility for professional
standards.

Raising standards

The White Paper will propose creation of a statutory code of ethics. Furthermore,
the Home Office will place future responsibility for professional standards with the
College of Fire and Rescue.

Governance

Governance Change

Although the White Paper outlined support for a single point of accountability for fire
governance, itis not proposed to mandate the transfer of governance to Police and
Crime Commissioners (PCCs). Voluntary transfers and those facilitated in local
devolution deals will be supported.

Operational Independence

Legislation will be introduced at the earliest opportunity to give chief officers
operational independence, with FRAS retaining responsibility for their services.

Clarity will also be given on providing a clear separation of strategic and operational
planning requirements, and overall governance.

The full document that will be set before Parliament can be accessed via the

following link:
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/657888bc095987000d95df2a/E02947
034 Fire Reform Consultation Resp Accessible.pdf

Page 297
Fire Authority

3 Chair’s Report 21.2.2024


https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/657888bc095987000d95df2a/E02947034_Fire_Reform_Consultation_Resp_Accessible.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/657888bc095987000d95df2a/E02947034_Fire_Reform_Consultation_Resp_Accessible.pdf

Q] Moawry

David Minnery
Chair

Shropshire and Wrekin Fire and Rescue Authority
February 2024

Background Papers

Agenda and Papers for the meeting of Shropshire and Wrekin Fire and Rescue
Authority held on 21 February 2024

The agendas and reports (except for exempt or confidential items) for all

Fire Authority meetings and those of its committees appear on the Service’s
website:

https:/Mmww.shropshirefire.gov.uk/

To access reports, go to the Fire Service’s website and follow the steps below.

Click on ‘About Us’ at the top of the page

Click on ‘Fire and Rescue Authority

Click on ‘Meetings’ in the list on the right-hand side of the screen

Click on ’21 February 2024’ and the various reports and appendices will be listed

if you have any difficulty with the website, please contact Lynn Ince,
Executive Support Supervisor via lynn.ince@shropshirefire.gov.uk .

Page 298

Fire Authority
4 Chair’s Report 21.2.2024


https://www.shropshirefire.gov.uk/
mailto:lynn.ince@shropshirefire.gov.uk

	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	6 Establishment of the Children’s Improvement Board
	Appendix 1 Shropshire Council_ToR Childrens Improvement Board Dec 2023 DRAFT v0.2
	Slide 1: Terms of Reference (ToR) | [Children's Improvement Board]
	Slide 2: Terms of Reference (ToR) | Governance | Decision making hierarchy


	7 Senior Officer Employment Procedure
	Appendix 1 – Senior Officer Employment Procedure

	8 Community Governance Reviews
	Draft Proposals - Albrighton-Donington
	Plan A_Albrighton_Donington_and_Boscobel_Parishe
	Draft Proposals - Baschurch-Pimhill
	PlanA_Baschurch_Parish_Wards
	PlanB_Pimhill_Parish_Wards
	Draft Proposals - Ludlow
	Ludlow_and_Ludford_Parishes_and_PWs
	Draft Proposals - Market Drayton
	PlanA_Market_Drayton_and_Adderley_Parishes
	Draft Proposals - Shrewsbury
	PlanA_Shrewsbury_Parish_Wards

	9 Adoption of Cleobury Mortimer Neighbourhood Development Plan
	Appendix 1 - Cleobury Mortimer Neighbourhood Development Plan
	Appendix 2 - Final Examiners Report - Cleobury Mortimer Neighbourhood Plan
	Appendix 3 - Cleobury Mortimer referendum result

	10 Shrewsbury Town Centre Regeneration: Smithfield Riverside Phase One Development Activities
	Appendix F_ ESHIA -STCR-Smithfield Riverside Phase 1 Activities

	11 Post-16 Transport Task and Finish Group
	12 Annual Report of the Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care and Public Health
	13 Annual report – Heath & Adult Social Care Overview & Scrutiny Committee (Including Joint HOSC)
	14 Annual Report of the Portfolio Holder for Climate Change, Environment & Transport
	18 Questions from Members
	19 Report of the Shropshire and Wrekin Fire and Rescue Authority



